
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
855 W. Base Line Road, Rialto, CA 92376 
PH: (909) 875-1804   FAX: (909) 875-1849 

ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING 
AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that West Valley Water District has called a meeting of the 
Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee to meet in the Administrative Conference Room, 
855 W. Base Line Road, Rialto, CA 92376. 

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a State of Emergency resulting from the 
threat of COVID-19. On September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill No. 
361 into law. Assembly Bill No. 361 amends Government Code section 54953(e) by adding 
provisions for remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative 
body, without the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the 
existence of certain conditions. The West Valley Water District adopted a resolution 
determining, by majority vote, that, as a result of the declared State of Emergency, the 
District is adopting the State protocol which allows meetings in person and/or via 
teleconference. Accordingly, it has been determined that all Board and Workshop meetings 
of the West Valley Water District will be held pursuant to Assembly Bill No. 361, the Brown 
Act and will be conducted via teleconference and in person. Members of the public may 
listen and provide public comment via telephone by calling the following number and 
access code: Dial: (888) 475-4499, Access Code: 840-293-7790 or you may join the meeting 
using Zoom by clicking this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790. Public comment 
may also be submitted via email to administration@wvwd.org. If you require additional 
assistance, please contact administration@wvwd.org. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Director, Greg Young, (Chair) 
Director, Angela Garcia 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

The public may address the Board on matters within its jurisdiction.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to 
no more than three (3) minutes.  However, the Board of Directors is prohibited by State Law to take action on items 
not included on the printed agenda. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790
mailto:administration@wvwd.org
mailto:administration@wvwd.org


III. DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Updates to Engineering, Operations, and Planning Committee

2. Award of Contract for the Construction of the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration 
Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project. Pg. 3.

3. Grant of Easement for the Oliver P. Roemer Upgrade and Expansion Project. Pg. 157.

4. Bunker Hill Well Site Evaluation Ph2. Pg. 169.

5. Water Supply Assessment: Pepper 210 Commerce Center. Pg. 206.

6. Water System Infrastructure Install and Conveyance Agreement with Lennar. Pg. 255.

7. Cactus Basin 2 Maintenance Activities. Pg. 279.

8. Soft Start Motor Drive for 4-1 Pump Station. Pg. 283. 

9. Disposable Cartridge Filters for Ion Exchange Treatment Systems. Pg. 290.

10. Ultraviolet Transmittance Meter for the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Plant. Pg. 296.

11. Post Water-Main Break Street Repairs. Pg. 304.

12. Architectural Services for Building “C” Improvements. Pg. 310.

IV. ADJOURN

DECLARATION OF POSTING: 

I declare under penalty of perjury, that I am employed by the West Valley Water District and 
posted the foregoing Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee Agenda at the 
District Offices on October 6, 2022. 

Nancy Albitre, Acting Board Secretary 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: October 12, 2022 

TO: Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
West Valley Water District (“District”) analyzes water demand trends and reviews land use 
designations for undeveloped parcels within its service area boundary and sphere of influence to 
determine the future water demands and supply requirements, and to identify the water facilities 
needed to produce, deliver, store and transport that supply to its customers.  The facilities are 
evaluated based on the projected highest water usage day when the District’s service area is fully 
developed or built out. 
 
To meet the existing water demands the District utilizes several sources of water supply, including 
water pumped from four (4) groundwater basins and treated surface water.  Local surface water 
from Lytle Creek and imported State Water Project (“SWP”) water are treated at the Oliver P. 
Roemer Water Filtration Facility (“Roemer WFF”) and this high-quality drinking water is then 
delivered to existing customers.   The Roemer WFF has a treatment capacity of 14.4 million gallons 
per day (“mgd”) and is currently operating up to the maximum capacity of the facility. 
 
To provide existing customers with a reliable and drought resistant water supply and to meet rising 
peak summer demands and projected demands due to infill and growth, the District is implementing 
the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project (Project).  The 
Project will increase treatment capacity at the existing Roemer WFF by 7.2 mgd, for a total 
treatment capacity of 21.6 mgd and will upgrade critical facility components.  The Project will 
replace aging infrastructure, increase system security, provide operational flexibility, and assist in 
responsibly managing regional groundwater basins.  With the construction of this Project, the 
District is seeking to implement a conjunctive use strategy which is critical for the long term, 
sustainable water management for the region. 
 
As part of the expansion, new facilities will be constructed including an influent and effluent pump 
station, filter and operations building with laboratory/SCADA area, PLC room, kitchen, staff area 
and education/training space.  The new filter building will house three (3) new Trident Filter units 
with room for future expansion that can be utilized in the interim for storage of portable emergency 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE OLIVER 
P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY  UPGRADE AND 
EXPANSION PROJECT 

3.2

Packet Pg. 3



generators.  Upgrades include new ultraviolet disinfection reactors, new granulated activated carbon 
influent pumps and electrical/mechanical upgrades of the existing facility that will provide security 
and reliability enhancements.  The westerly side of the Roemer WFF property along Riverside Ave. 
between Cedar Ave. and Linden Ave. will receive improvements which will showcase drought 
tolerant landscaping and provide a visually appealing enhancement to the neighborhood and the 
education/training space would provide the District an area to engage with students and customers 
through conservation messaging/classes and facilitate tours of the Roemer WFF. 
 
Additional SWP water treated at the Roemer WFF will increase energy generation at the District’s 
Hydro Electric Generation Plant and offset electrical costs associated with the Project, further 
maximizing the District’s investment in both of these facilities. 
 
For this Project, the District is utilizing a Design Build (“DB”) delivery method.  This procurement 
method fosters a team environment between the contractors, design team, and the District to 
consider opportunities to enhance the project to better serve the community further into the design 
process than in a traditional design-bid-build project.  The District solicited proposals from the three 
(3) firms that were previously vetted through a statement of qualifications process and received 
those proposals in early June.  Proposals were then evaluated by a selection committee and in-
person interviews with presentations were undertaken to determine the DB Team to move forward 
with the District on design and construction of this valuable investment for the community. 
 
GHD, our technical consulting firm that has been assisting the District through the 30% design 
phase of the project, along with District personnel, comprised the selection committee.  Through 
this process, PCL Construction, Inc. (“PCL”) was chosen as the successful DB Team (Attached as 
Exhibit A is a copy of the proposal received from PCL).  To maximize this opportunity, a 
cooperative effort has been underway between PCL, GHD and the District to refine the project 
scope.  Through this collaboration the collective team has developed a comprehensive guaranteed 
maximum price that reflects the refined scope of services. 
 
This Project continues to identify new opportunities to serve the community and enhance the 
operational sustainability and flexibility of the water treatment facility.  With the expertise of the DB 
Team including PCL, GHD and District staff this Project can support the Project mission and the 
District’s vision as well as highlight innovation and environmental stewardship, two of the District’s 
core valves, which are at the forefront of this momentous project. 
 
The contracts to be entered into by the District for this project have been prepared, updated and 
approved by our special legal counsel for this project Hunt Ortmann Palffy Nieves Darling & Mah, 
Inc. (Attached as Exhibit B is a copy of the Contract Documents) 
 
If approved by the Board of Directors, construction will begin in early 2023 and be completed in 
early 2025. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Through collaboration among the collective team, a comprehensive guaranteed maximum price was 
developed that reflects the refined scope of services.  The cost to perform the work as proposed by 
PCL Construction, Inc. is $59,116,871.  This Project is included in the current Capital Improvement 
Program and is budgeted over multiple fiscal years.  Rollover funds and current fiscal year funds 
total $31,751,028.  The remainder of the funds required for this contract will need to be included in 
future fiscal year budgets.    
 

3.2

Packet Pg. 4



The District is near to securing a low interest Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (“SRF”) loan 
estimated with an interest rate of 1.1%, for the Project and is working with the California State 
Water Resources Control Board on the final contract language.  District staff will continue to pursue 
additional funding sources to further offset the costs of this project and to look for new 
opportunities to potentially defray operational costs. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to: 
 
1. Award a Design Build contract to PCL Construction, Inc. in the amount of $59,116,871.00 

for the design and construction of the Oliver P. Roemer Upgrade and Expansion Project. 
 
2. Authorize the Acting General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
LJ:ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. EXHIBIT A - PCL Construction Inc. Proposal Revised 

2. Exhibit B - Contract Documents 

3.2

Packet Pg. 5



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 6



WEST VALLEY  
WATER DISTRICT
PROPOSAL FOR THE ROEMER WATER  
FILTRATION FACILITY DESIGN-BUILD PROJECT
June 3, 2022 | Respondent: PCL Construction, Inc.

IN ASSOCIATION WITH

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 7



TABLE OF 
CONTENTS
4.2. PART I:  TRANSMITTAL LETTER, TEAM ADMINISTRATIVE 
AND FINANCIAL CAPABILITY

4.2.1. Transmittal Letter

4.3. PART II: PROJECT TEAM, EXPERIENCE, AND APPROACH
• Key Project Personnel

• DB Project Manager
• DB Construction Manager
• Design Manager
• Key Technical Leads (as needed)

• Additional Team Members and Experience (Added Since SOQ)
• Team Experience
• Project Approach

• Management of Project Team
• Project Management Approach

4.3.1. Environmental Management
4.3.2. Design Build Quality Control Plan

• Quality control processes (including for Subconsultants)
• Document Control
• Records Management
• Key staff responsible for quality control and assurance
• Team Partnership Environment

4.4. PART III: TECHNICAL APPROACH
4.4.1. Treatment Processes, Equipment Selection & Capacity

• History and demonstrated results of the proposed treatment 
technologies

• Anticipated useful life of the proposed systems
• Facility Description
• In-Plant Pump Station Design

4.4.2. Hydraulic Capacity
• Future expansion capacity
• Minimizing pumping costs

4.4.3. Non-Process Design and Auxiliary Facilities
• Construction Sequencing
• New Filter Building
• Power Supply & Electrical Equipment
• Instrumentation & Controls

4.4.4. Innovation & Design Optimization

I:1
I:1

II:1
II:1
II:1
II:1
II:1
II:1
II:3
II:4
II:8
II:9

II:11
II:15
II:16
II:16
II:17
II:17
II:17
II:18

III:1
III:1
III:1

 
III:7
III:7

III:10
III:12
III:12
III:12
III:13
III:13
III:15
III:17
III:17
III:19

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 8



4.5. PART IV: CONSTRUCTION & START-UP PROCESS
4.5.1. Construction Planning and Sequencing
4.5.2. Approach to Safety

• Safety goals, standards, and guidelines
• Designation by name of a full-time, on-site safety coordinator 

who is to be responsible for all safety related activities and a 
description of other staff positions involved in safety planning 
and review

• A framework for a safety review process and appropriate regular 
meetings to address safety issues

• Documentation of safety procedures
• Construction traffic management and equipment and substance 

(chemicals) safety training
• Method for tracking all personnel on Site and controlling Site 

access
4.5.3. Design-Build Schedule
4.5.4. Cash Flow
4.5.5. Approach to Start-up & testing
4.5.6. Acceptance and Training Period Approach

4.6. PART V (PROVIDED SEPARATELY): 
FIXED FEE, UNDER A SEPARATE SUBMITTAL

4.6.1. PROPOSAL BID BOND 
4.7. PART VI: MARKED UP CONTRACT 

4.7. PART VI: CONTRACT MARKUP 

4.8. PART VII: REQUIRED FORMS 
4.8.1. Forms attached to the RFP

• Proposal Form 1: Suggested Changes to the Design Build 
Contract

• Proposal Form 3: Bid Bond Form
• Proposal Firm 4: Contract Performance Bond Form
• Proposal Form 5: Payment Bond Form
• Proposal Form 6: Certificate of Acceptance / Waiver of 

Honorarium
• Proposal Form 7: Fixed Fee

4.8.2. Funding Required Forms

APPENDICES
Appendix A: Resumes
Appendix B: Site Logistics Plan
Appendix C: Schedule
Appendix D: Subcontractor & Supplier List
Appendix E: Project Specific Safety Plan
Appendix F: Start-up & Commissioning | Shutdowns / Tie-Ins
Appendix G: Quality Control Plan
Appendix H: DBIA 535 & DBIA 545

IV:1
IV:1
IV:5
IV:5
IV:5

 

IV:5
 

IV:5
IV:5

IV:5

IV:6
IV:9

IV:10
IV:12

 

VI:1 
VII:1 

VII:1 

VII:2
VII:7

VII:10
VII:12

Provided Separately
VII:14

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 9



INDEX
EVALUATION CRITERIA

PART I:  TRANSMITTAL LETTER, TEAM ADMINISTRATIVE 
AND FINANCIAL CAPABILITY

Transmittal Letter
Bonding, Sureties, etc.
Financial Capacity Confirmation
Project Labor Commitments and CEQA Compliance Confirmation

PART II: PROJECT TEAM, EXPERIENCE, AND APPROACH
Project Team / Org Structure
Key Personnel
Project Experience 
Project Management Approach
Coordination and Communication
Permit Requirements and Updates
Quality Management Plan

PART III: TECHNICAL APPROACH
Treatment Processes, Equipment Selection & Capacity
Non-Process Design and Auxiliary Facilities
Innovation & Design Optimization

PART IV: CONSTRUCTION & START-UP PROCESS
Construction Planning and Sequencing
Approach to Safety
Design-Build Schedule
Approach to Start-up & testing
Acceptance and Training Period Approach

PART V (PROVIDED SEPARATELY): FIXED FEE, UNDER A 
SEPARATE SUBMITTAL

Fixed Fee
Selection and approach to Commodities Escalation

PART VI: MARKED UP CONTRACT

PART VII: REQUIRED FORMS

I:1

I:1
1:9
1:9
I:1

II:I
II:2
II:1
II:4

II:19
II:13
II:15
II:16

III:1
III:1
III:1
III:1

IV:1
IV:1
IV:5
IV:6

IV:10
IV:12

VI:1

VII:1

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 10



PART I 
TRANSMITTAL 
LETTER, TEAM 
ADMINISTRATIVE & 
FINANCIAL CAPABILITY 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 11



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:1

PART I
TRANSMITTAL LETTER, TEAM ADMINISTRATIVE 
AND FINANCIAL CAPABILITY

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 12



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:2

TRANSMITTAL LETTER

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 13



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:3

TRANSMITTAL LETTER

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 14



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:4

TRANSMITTAL LETTER

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 15



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:5

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 16



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:6

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 17



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:7

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 18



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:8

ATTACHMENT 1 TO PROPOSAL FORM 2: CERTIFICATE OF 
AUTHORIZATION

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 19



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:9

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY - BONDING, SURETIES

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 20



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:10

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY - BONDING, SURETIES

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 21



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:11

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY - BONDING, SURETIES

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 22



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY - BONDING, SURETIES

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 23



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:13

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY - BONDING, SURETIES

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 24



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:14

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY - BONDING, SURETIES

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 25



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

I:15

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY - BONDING, SURETIES

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 26



PART II 
PROJECT TEAM, 
EXPERIENCE,  
AND APPROACH 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 27



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:1

PART II
PROJECT TEAM, EXPERIENCE, 
AND APPROACH

TEAM MEMBER ROLE ON ROEMER WFF PROJECT

Jeff Newman, PE Project Executive

Jim Borchardt, PE Engineering Manager*

Ken Slota, PE, DBIA Advisory Council*

Sean Neprud, PE, LEED AP Design Manager*

Darren Wright Design-Build Manager / Commissioning Lead*

David Griffin Design-Build Construction Manager

Craig Yukabow Lead Estimator 

Kevin Schow Superintendent

Craig Wilcox, PE, SE, P.ENG, LEED AP 
BD+C Design Quality Control Manager 

Tyler Hadacek, PE Process Engineer

Long Hoang, PE Electrical Lead

Simon Lin Ph.D., PE SE Structural Lead

Christopher Mote, PE Civil Designer

Eric Sanchez, LEED AP BD+C Architectural Lead

Sanki Sankaran, PE Instrumentation & Controls

George Tey, PE Mechanical Engineer

KEY PROJECT PERSONNEL
The organizational chart on the following page provides key personnel’s specific responsibilities, 
authority, and accountability and discusses how these team members will interact with each 
other and other entities involved in the Project. Resumes for the following key team members 
demonstrating their performance in their roles are provided in Appendix A.  PCL-Stantec 
commits all the key personnel identified below for the duration of the project.

*Key personnel’s roles have changed since the SOQ submission

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 28



R
O

EM
ER

 W
AT

ER
 F

IL
TR

AT
IO

N
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y 
20

22
 U

PG
R

A
D

ES
 A

N
D

 E
XP

A
N

SI
O

N

II:
2

PR
OJ

EC
T 

OR
GA

NI
ZA

TI
ON

AL
 C

HA
RT

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
 c

om
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

rig
ht

 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 s
ki

lls
, a

 c
om

m
itm

en
t t

o 
ac

tiv
el

y 
en

ga
ge

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t’s

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
, a

nd
 s

tro
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

oo
ls

. O
ur

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 is
 c

en
te

re
d 

ar
ou

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
in

g 
th

e 
rig

ht
 s

ta
ff 

at
 th

e 
rig

ht
 ti

m
e 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 

th
e 

R
oe

m
er

 W
FF

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
an

d 
Ex

pa
ns

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t.

D
E

S
IG

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

SE
A

N
 N

EP
R

U
D

, P
E,

 L
EE

D
 A

P
C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
IN

G
 L

E
A

D
D

A
R

R
EN

 W
R

IG
H

T
D

E
S

IG
N

- B
U

IL
D

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

D
AV

ID
 G

R
IF

FI
N

H
E

A
LT

H
, S

A
F

E
T

Y,
 

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

A
LE

X 
M

A
D

R
ID

D
E

S
IG

N
- B

U
IL

D
 A

D
V

IS
O

R
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

K
en

 S
lo

ta
, D

B
IA

, P
E 

- P
C

L
A

nk
ur

 T
al

w
ar

 - 
PC

L
M

ik
e 

W
at

so
n,

 P
E,

 D
B

IA
 - 

St
an

te
c

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
JI

M
 B

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
T,

 P
E

D
E

S
IG

N
 Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 

C
O

N
T

R
O

L 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

C
R

A
IG

 W
IL

C
O

X,
 P

E,
 S

E,
 P

.E
N

G
, 

LE
ED

 A
P 

B
D+

C

D
E

S
IG

N
- B

U
IL

D
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

D
A

R
R

EN
 W

R
IG

H
T

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
JE

FF
 N

EW
M

A
N

, P
E

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 S
P

E
C

IA
L

IS
T

JA
C

O
B

 H
A

G
M

A
N

L
E

G
E

N
D

K
ey

 P
er

so
nn

el

L
E

A
D

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

O
R

C
R

A
IG

 Y
A

K
U

B
O

W

S
U

P
E

R
IN

T
E

N
D

E
N

T
K

EV
IN

 S
C

H
O

W

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

IN
G

 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

H
EE

T 
PA

TE
L

EX
H

IB
IT

 1

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
A

L 
L

E
A

D
LO

N
G

 H
O

A
N

G
, P

E

IN
S

T
R

U
M

E
N

TA
T

IO
N

 &
 

C
O

N
T

R
O

L
S

 L
E

A
D

 
SA

N
K

I S
A

N
K

A
R

A
N

, P
E

P
R

O
C

E
S

S
 L

E
A

D
TY

LE
R

 H
A

D
A

C
EK

, P

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

A
L 

L
E

A
D

SI
M

O
N

 L
IN

, P
H

.D
., 

PE
, S

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L 
L

E
A

D
G

EO
R

G
E 

TE
Y,

 P
E

C
A

D
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

S
 L

E
A

D
EL

IZ
AB

ET
H 

NA
VA

RR
O

, C
DT

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L 

LE
A

D
ER

IC
 S

A
N

C
H

EZ
,

AI
A,

NA
CR

B,
 L

EE
D 

AP
 B

D+
C

C
IV

IL
 L

E
A

D
C

H
R

IS
 M

O
TE

, P
E

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 29



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:3

PCL and LEED Electric have an 
established and successful working 
relationship on several treatment plant 
projects in the Southern California 
area. Our teams have worked closely 
together and have been instrumental 
in delivering succesful projects. LEED 
also has experience with design-build 
projects and has worked with our design-
partner Stantec. LEED will bring the 
design assistance needed to complete 
the electrical and instrumentation scope 
for this project and work closely with Plant 
Staff for the integration of this work.

Beavens Systems Incorporated will work 
under LEED Electric for the SCADA 
integration work.

ADDITIONAL TEAM MEMBERS AND 
EXPERIENCE (ADDED SINCE SOQ)
Key Subcontractors
We have enhanced our team by adding LEED Electric, Inc. for electrical and 
instrumentation and ACCO Engineered Systems for the HVAC scope of the project.

UNIQUE QUALIFICATIONS 
AND BENEFITS

 Certified Small Business 
Enterprise (SBE) by 
the State of California 
Department of General 
Services.
 Water Treatment Plant 

Experience
 Integrated Electrical, 

Instrumentation & Controls 
Systems Contractor

ACCO Engineered Systems will provide 
HVAC services and installation for this 
project. ACCO has extensive treatment plant 
experience and a long and successful history 
of working with PCL. ACCO understands 
the subtle variations needed to address 
HVAC requirements for projects just like 
Roemer WFF.  They have the engineering 
support, established quality standards, and 
installation experience to install a modern, 
highly efficient system that will last for years 
to come.

UNIQUE QUALIFICATIONS 
AND BENEFITS

 Specialized in HVAC 
Design-Build services and 
installation
 Water Treatment Plant 

Experience
 In-house engineering, 

fabrication, installation, and 
commissioning

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 30



II:4

OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

TEAM EXPERIENCE
The PCL-Stantec Team has delivered over 75 projects totaling over $9.4B+ in Design-Build 
projects in North America including one of the largest Design-Build Water Treatment facilities 
that treats up to 315MGD for the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission - the Tesla Water 
Treatment Plant Ultraviolet Facility.

PROJECT EXPERIENCE: The following projects, fully detailed in the SOQ response, further 
demonstrate our team’s experience working together on similar projects.

LAKE OSWEGO WATER 
TREATMENT PLANT 
UPGRADES & EXPANSION

MT. ROSE WATER 
TREATMENT PLANT

EPCOR WATER 
SERVICES, INC

FULL-SCALE FIXED-
BED BIOLOGICAL 
PERCHLORATE 
DESTRUCTION 
DEMONSTRATION

TESLA WATER 
TREATMENT FACILITY

DISINFECTION BY-
PRODUCT CONTROL 
PROGRAM

WEYMOUTH WTP FILTER 
REHABILITATION DESIGN 
AND CONSTRUCTION

II:6

ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

The images didn’t show 
up in the word doc (just a 
gray box). Please attach 
the images you’d like to 

use via Filestage.

CITY OF SAINT JOHN, NEW 
BRUNSWICK 
SAINT JOHN, NEW BRUNSWICK, CANADA

In connection with a project carried out as 
a public-private partnership (PPP), Stantec 

Acciona-Agua for the design and construction 
of a new drinking water production plant 
serving the City of Saint John, New 
Brunswick. Under the name Port City Water 
Partners (PCWP), this partnership was 
awarded the contract following a call for 

competing against each other. The selected 
project consisted of the construction of a 
drinking water production plant with a 75,000 
m3/d capacity. Stantec was entrusted with the 
critically important responsibility and heart of 
the project, namely the entire water treatment 
process and onsite treatment of wastewater 
produced, to minimize discharge to the 
sewer system. Stantec helped develop the 
preliminary design presented in the retained 
bid and, after that, worked on developing the 
detailed design along with detailed plans and 

contractor (NAC) in charge of the construction 
work. Stantec coordinated the activities of the 
other disciplines (structure, electricity, building 
mechanicals, architecture, etc.), which were 
ensured by another consulting engineering 

CONSTRUCTION 
COST NEEDEDNEEDED

COMPLETION Month? Year?Month? Year?
KEY 
PERSONNEL First, LastFirst, Last

REFERENCE NEEDEDNEEDED

NEEDEDNEEDED
RELEVANCE TO THE ROEMER WFF

Project is not included on 
project table - please provide 

relevance

ThThThThThe ee e immimimimagagagagageseseseses dddddidididididnnnnn
upupupupupu iiiiinnnn n thththththeeee e wowowowowordrdrdddrdrd ddddd
grgrayayy bbbboxoxoxx).).).).)))) PPPPleleeleleeeeeeeeeasasasasassasassssssssasssssasassssssssssssssssssaaassssssasssaaaasssssssssssaaaaaaasssssssss
ththhthttttttththttttttththhthttttttththttttttththtttttththhhthtttttthhtthtttththhthtttttthhhhttthhhhhtttthththhhthttthtthhhhhtttththhhhhttttthhhhtttthhhhhtttthhhhhhhhhhttttthhhhhhhhtttttththhhhhhhhhhhhhhhtttththththhththhthththhhhhhhhhhthttthththhhthhhthhhhhhhhtthththhthhtttttttttttthttttththhhttttthtththhtttthtththththhhhheeeeeeeeee ee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee iiiiiiiiimiiimiimimimiiiiiiiiiimimimimiiimiiiiiiiimimimimimiiiiimiiiiimimmimimimimimimiimmimimimimimiimimimimimimmmimimmimmmmmmimimimimiimimimmmmimimimmimmimimmmmmimmimmmmmmmmmmimimmmmimmmimmmmimimmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmagaagaagagagaagagagagagggagagagagagaggagagagaagagagagaggagagaggaaaagagaaagagagagagaggggagagaagagagagagaggagaagaagaggaaaaaagagagagagagggaggaagagagaggaggagagaaagagagagagaggagagaaagagagggagagaagaagagaagaaagaagggaggggagaggggaaagagagaggaaggggggaggagggggggagagagaggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggeeeeeeseeesesssesssssesesessseeeeeeeeeesssssssesseeeeseeeesesesssssseeeseesssssseseseseeesssssseesessssssssssesssssssseeeessssssseesssssssssesssseesssesssesesseseessssseeseeesessessesssessessssessesesesesseesseeeeeessssseessssseessssessssssssss yyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyouoooooooooooououououuuououououuououuouououuououoooooouuuuuouououououououoooououuouououuouoouuuuououoooooououuouououuooouuuouououuoououuuuouououuuuouoououououoouuouuouuuouuoooouooouuuuoououuuuuuuoooouuooouoouuouuuoooouooouououoouuuuoouuuoouuuu

uuuuususususususussusususssssssussssssssssssssssssssssssssussssssssssussussssssssussssssuuuuusssuussseeee e e e eeeeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee eeeeeeeee viviviviviivivviiiiviviivviviivvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvivvvvvvvvvvvivvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvivvivvvvvvvvvivvvvvvvivivivivvviviivvvivivivvvivivivivivivivivivvivvivivvvvviviviviviivivivivvivvvivvivvvvvvviiivvvvvivvvivivviviv aaa aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa FFFiFiFFiFiFFFiFFFiFiFiFFiFiiFiFiFiiiFFFFFFFFiFiFiFFiiiFFiFiFiFiFFFFiFFiFiFiFiFiFiFiiiFFFiFFiFFFiFFiFiiiFFFiFiFFFFFFFFiiFiFiFiFFiFiFFFFFiFiFiFiiFFFFFFiFFFiFFiiFFFFFFFFFiFiFiiiiiiFFFFFFFFiFFFFFiFFiFiiFiFFFFFFFFFFFFiFiiFFFFFFFFFFFiFiiFiFFFFiFiFiFiFFFFFiFiiFiiFFFFiFiFFFFFiiFFFFiFiFiFFFiiFiFFFFiFFFiFiFiFiFFFiFiFiFiFiFiFFFFiFFFiFiiFiFiFiFiFFFFFFFFFFiFFiFiFFFFFiiFFFFFFiFFFFiiFFFFiFiFiFFFFFiiFFFFiFiFFiFiFFiFiiFiFiFFFiFiFFiFFiiiFiFiFFiFFFiFiiFFFiiFFFiFFFFFFFiFiillellellelellelelelelleleleleeelelllllellelleleeleleleleeeelllllelleleleleleeeellllleleeleleleleleleellllellleleleleleleeelllllllleleleleleleelellleleleeeelelellllleelelelelllleleleeeleeeeeellllleleeeeellllelelelelelelelelellllllllleeleleleeeleeelllleleleeellllleleeeleelllleleleeeeellelellllleeeeeeeeeelleleleeeeeellleeeeeeelleeeeeeleleeeeeellleleleeellleeeelellleeeeeeeelelleeeleeelleeeellleleeeeellllleleeeelllleleeleeelleeeeelllleeeeeeeeessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss

nn’nn’nnnnnn’’’n’n’’n’’’’’nnnn’’n’’’n’’’n’nnnn’n’n’’’’’’’n’’’nn’’n’’’nn’nn’’’nnnn’’’nnnn’’n’’’’’nnnnn’’’’’nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn tttttttt ttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttt ttt ttttttt tttt ttttttttttttttttt tttttttt t ttttt hhshshshshshshshshshshhshshshhshshhshhhshshshshsshshhhshhhshshhhhshshhshshshshshshshshshhshshhhhhhhhshshshshshshshhhhshhshshshshshhshhshsshhhhshhshssshshshshhhshsshsshshshhhshhssssshshhshsshshshhhsshshsshshhhhhsshhhhhhhshsshhhhhssshshhssshhhhhssshhhshshshshsshhhhhsshsshshshhhhhshsshshshsshhhshhhhshshshshhhshshhhhhshhshsshshshshhhhhhsshssshshhhhhhhhhssssshshsshhhhssshsshhhshhshshssshhhhhhssshshshhhhshss owowowoowowoowowowowowowowowowowowowowowowowoooowowwowowwowowowowoowooooooowowowwowwwowoooooowowwowowwwowoooooowwowwwwwwwwwowwoowoowowowwwwowwwooowowowwwwowowowwowowooooooowowowowwowwwwowowooooooowwowwwowowowowowowoooooowoowowoowowwowowowowooowwowwowwwwooowwwwwowwwowowowowwwowoowwwwooooowowowwwooooowwwwoooooowwwooowwwo  
ooooocococococococcccccccoccccccccocoocccccoccoocccocccoocccococcocooococoococoococoocccooooooooccooocooocccccoooocococcccoocococooocccoooooococcooooococcccooocoococcccoooococccooooccccc ((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((jjujujujjujujujujujuujujujujuujujujujjujjujjujjujjujujujjjujujujujujujuujujuujjjujuujujjujujjjujjjujujujujjjjujujuujujujujjuuujujujujjjuujjjjjujuujujujjuujuujjuujjujjuujuuuujuuujuujujjuujuuuuujujuujuuujuuujujuujujuujjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjj tstststsstsststststststststststsstststststttststtstststtstststssststssttssststststtttsstttststststttststststttsttststtsssssststtsttsttstttttttttstssssstttttttttsttssssststsstststststtsttsttststtsssssstttttt aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa 
eeeeeeeeeeeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee eeee atataaaaattttttattttataaaatatttaaatataaataatattaaaaatatataatatataataatattttattaaaaaatataaaaataaaaaataatattatataatataaataatattttatattaaaataatatttaaatttattaataattaaaattttatattttaaaattaaaaaaa tatatatatatttatatttatatatatataattatataatatattattatataatatatatatatattatattatttatatatatattatataaatattatataaaaatattaataaaatatattattaaattattataatttatataataaattataataaatataaaaatatataaataaaataatattaaaattattta hchchchchchchchhhhhhhhhchhhchchchchcchchhchchchchhchhhhhchchchchhhhhhhhchchchhchchchchhchchhhhchchchchchchhhhhhhchhhchchchhchchchchchchchchhhhchhchcccchchchchhhchchccchchchcchhhchcchchchcchchhchchchchccchchchhchhcccchhhhchchcchchchccchcchhcchchcchhhcchchcc  
dddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddd llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllliikikikikikkikikikikkiikikikkkkikkikiikikkkkkikkikikkkikikkikikikkkikkkkkikkikkkkikikkkkikkkkiikkkkkikikkikkkkkiikkikkkikkkkkiikkkkkkiiikkkkikikkkkkkiiikkikkkikikkkikikikkke e eeeee eeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee totototototototttototototototooototoottototoootottotototottotoottototototototototototottotototottototototttotottotototottoottoototoootttottottoottoototttotoooottootoooooootooototoooo 
ttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttagagaaaaagagagaagggaggaggaggggagagagagagagagaagaagagagagggagaggaggagagagagagagaaggggaggagggggagaagaaaaagagagaggggagaagaagaagaagggaggggagagaaaaagagagaggggggaaagaaaaaggagggaggagaaaggagggaggaaaaagggggaaagggagggagaagaaggggggaaaagagggagaagaaagaagaaggggaagagagagaagggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggeeee.eeee..ee.eeeeeeeeeee..eeeeeee.eeeeee.eeeee.eeeee.e.eeeeeeeeee.eeeeeeee.e.eeee.eeeeee.ee..eeeeeeeee.eeeee...eee

6/2018

delete this row

$63M

Mr. Dean Price,
506-658-4770
dean.price@saintjohn.ca

Design-Build 
Filters 
Dissolved Air Flotation 
UV Disinfection 
DAF Thickening 
New Pump Station 
New Pipelines 

SAINT JOHN WATER 
TREATMENT PLANT

MINERS RANCH WATER 
TREATMENT PLANT 
IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT

 PACKAGED FILTER EXPERIENCE
 DISSOLVED AIR FLOATATION (DAF)
 PUMP STATIONS EXPERIENCE
 UV DISENFECTION
 ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY
 WATER TREATMENT

RELEVANT FEATURES

The following 
pages include three 
additional, relevant 
projects that were not 
included in the original 
SOQ.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 31



II:5

OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

MINERS RANCH WATER TREATMENT 
PLANT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
OROVILLE, CALIFORNIA

The South Feather Water & Water Power 
Agency’s Miners Ranch Water Treatment Plant 
Improvements Project was designed to expand 
the treatment capacity of the plant to meet future 
demands, conserve water during the treatment 
process, improve disinfection of the treated water, 
and eliminate backwash water discharge into 
the agency’s Miners Ranch Reservoir. The plant 
was originally designed to treat up to 14 MGD for 
potable use – only 3 MGD of which could be treated 
as full conventional treatment. The improvements 
increased treatment capacity to 21 MGD with full 
conventional treatment. The project consisted of the 
following key improvements:
• Addition of a new raw water pump and raw water 

pump header
• Addition of a new jet mixing pumping station to 

reduce coagulant chemical use and improve 
chemical mixing

• Addition of six new buoyant media upflow 
clarifiers (WesTech/Trident Adsorption Clarifiers) 
for preliminary treatment of the raw water that 
will allow the plant to achieve full conventional 
treatment year-round

• Addition of two new dual media gravity filters 
(to augment the existing four dual media filters), 
as well as new blowers and air scour piping to 
replace the surface spray system in existing filters

• Addition of a new 2 million gallon concrete treated 
water reservoir with baffle walls

• Addition of a new gunite-lined backwash water 
storage basin to work in tandem with the existing 
basin to settle solids from clarifier and filter 
backwash water for collection

• Addition of a new waste solids collection and 
pumping system in the new backwash water basin

• Addition of a new homogenization tank (bolted 
steel) to further settle solids and decant 
clearwater as well as mix contents prior to 
dewatering

• Addition of a new solids handling building (metal) 
with centrifuge, feed pump, screw conveyor, and 
solids removal system

CONSTRUCTION 
COST $25 million 

COMPLETION 1/2021
KEY 
PERSONNEL Stantec

REFERENCE

John Shipman
(230) 533-2412
jshipman@
southfeather.com

RELEVANCE TO THE  
ROEMER WFF

 9 Trident Filters
 9 New Pump Station
 9 Solids Handling
 9 Pipelines
 9 Permitting

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 32



II:6

OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

EPCOR WATER 
SERVICES, INC. 
WETASKIWIN, ALBERTA, CANADA

CONSTRUCTION 
COST $9 million

COMPLETION 10/2008
KEY 
PERSONNEL Stantec

REFERENCE
Glen Sinclair
(403) 775-5617
glen.sinclair@aecon.com

 9 Design-Build
 9 Dissolved Air Flotation
 9 Filtration
 9 UV Disinfection
 9 Chemical Systems
 9 Control Systems
 9 Continuous Operation

RELEVANCE TO THE ROEMER WFF

Stantec as lead designer with another firm, 
executed the design build services for the 
Wetaskiwin Water Treatment Plant.  The 
source water, Coal Lake, has elevated 
levels of organic carbon, algae, iron, and 
UV absorbance resulting in issues with 
taste, odor, and toxins. 

The plant needed to be upgraded to better 
treat the water, but with an estimated 
price tag of close to $20 million, this 
12,000-person community could not afford 
the expenditure. Stantec’s Design-Build-
Operate team proposed a lower-cost 
solution that met treatment and regulatory 
goals – for less than half the cost. This was 
accomplished through treatment process 
enhancements and extensive reuse of 
existing infrastructure. We upgraded the 
facility with new dissolved air flotation 
units, granular activated carbon filters, and 
UV disinfection with enhanced chemical 
feed systems. The existing controls were 
completely removed, and a mezzanine 
level was added to house a new laboratory, 
electrical room, and control room. All work 
was completed without unplanned outages. 

An existing facility located outside the City 
is now used for sludge storage, reducing 
costs and minimizing odor impacts. Now, 
the residents of Wetaskiwin can rely on 
Coal Lake and its plant to provide excellent 
quality water that is clear, fresh, and 
compliant with new provincial regulations.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 33



II:7

OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:6

ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

The images didn’t show 
up in the word doc (just a 
gray box). Please attach 
the images you’d like to 

use via Filestage.

CITY OF SAINT JOHN, NEW 
BRUNSWICK 
SAINT JOHN, NEW BRUNSWICK, CANADA

In connection with a project carried out as 
a public-private partnership (PPP), Stantec 

Acciona-Agua for the design and construction 
of a new drinking water production plant 
serving the City of Saint John, New 
Brunswick. Under the name Port City Water 
Partners (PCWP), this partnership was 
awarded the contract following a call for 

competing against each other. The selected 
project consisted of the construction of a 
drinking water production plant with a 75,000 
m3/d capacity. Stantec was entrusted with the 
critically important responsibility and heart of 
the project, namely the entire water treatment 
process and onsite treatment of wastewater 
produced, to minimize discharge to the 
sewer system. Stantec helped develop the 
preliminary design presented in the retained 
bid and, after that, worked on developing the 
detailed design along with detailed plans and 

contractor (NAC) in charge of the construction 
work. Stantec coordinated the activities of the 
other disciplines (structure, electricity, building 
mechanicals, architecture, etc.), which were 
ensured by another consulting engineering 

CONSTRUCTION 
COST NEEDEDNEEDED

COMPLETION Month? Year?Month? Year?
KEY 
PERSONNEL First, LastFirst, Last

REFERENCE NEEDEDNEEDED

NEEDEDNEEDED
RELEVANCE TO THE ROEMER WFF

Project is not included on 
project table - please provide 

relevance

ThThThThThe ee e immimimimagagagagageseseseses dddddidididididnnnnn
upupupupupu iiiiinnnn n thththththeeee e wowowowowordrdrdddrdrd ddddd
grgrayayy bbbboxoxoxx).).).).)))) PPPPleleeleleeeeeeeeeasasasasassasassssssssasssssasassssssssssssssssssaaassssssasssaaaasssssssssssaaaaaaasssssssss
ththhthttttttththttttttththhthttttttththttttttththtttttththhhthtttttthhtthtttththhthtttttthhhhttthhhhhtttthththhhthttthtthhhhhtttththhhhhttttthhhhtttthhhhhtttthhhhhhhhhhttttthhhhhhhhtttttththhhhhhhhhhhhhhhtttththththhththhthththhhhhhhhhhthttthththhhthhhthhhhhhhhtthththhthhtttttttttttthttttththhhttttthtththhtttthtththththhhhheeeeeeeeee ee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee iiiiiiiiimiiimiimimimiiiiiiiiiimimimimiiimiiiiiiiimimimimimiiiiimiiiiimimmimimimimimimiimmimimimimimiimimimimimimmmimimmimmmmmmimimimimiimimimmmmimimimmimmimimmmmmimmimmmmmmmmmmimimmmmimmmimmmmimimmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmagaagaagagagaagagagagagggagagagagagaggagagagaagagagagaggagagaggaaaagagaaagagagagagaggggagagaagagagagagaggagaagaagaggaaaaaagagagagagagggaggaagagagaggaggagagaaagagagagagaggagagaaagagagggagagaagaagagaagaaagaagggaggggagaggggaaagagagaggaaggggggaggagggggggagagagaggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggeeeeeeseeesesssesssssesesessseeeeeeeeeesssssssesseeeeseeeesesesssssseeeseesssssseseseseeesssssseesessssssssssesssssssseeeessssssseesssssssssesssseesssesssesesseseessssseeseeesessessesssessessssessesesesesseesseeeeeessssseessssseessssessssssssss yyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyouoooooooooooououououuuououououuououuouououuououoooooouuuuuouououououououoooououuouououuouoouuuuououoooooououuouououuooouuuouououuoououuuuouououuuuouoououououoouuouuouuuouuoooouooouuuuoououuuuuuuoooouuooouoouuouuuoooouooouououoouuuuoouuuoouuuu

uuuuususususususussusususssssssussssssssssssssssssssssssssussssssssssussussssssssussssssuuuuusssuussseeee e e e eeeeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee eeeeeeeee viviviviviivivviiiiviviivviviivvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvivvvvvvvvvvvivvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvivvivvvvvvvvvivvvvvvvivivivivvviviivvvivivivvvivivivivivivivivivvivvivivvvvviviviviviivivivivvivvvivvivvvvvvviiivvvvvivvvivivviviv aaa aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa FFFiFiFFiFiFFFiFFFiFiFiFFiFiiFiFiFiiiFFFFFFFFiFiFiFFiiiFFiFiFiFiFFFFiFFiFiFiFiFiFiFiiiFFFiFFiFFFiFFiFiiiFFFiFiFFFFFFFFiiFiFiFiFFiFiFFFFFiFiFiFiiFFFFFFiFFFiFFiiFFFFFFFFFiFiFiiiiiiFFFFFFFFiFFFFFiFFiFiiFiFFFFFFFFFFFFiFiiFFFFFFFFFFFiFiiFiFFFFiFiFiFiFFFFFiFiiFiiFFFFiFiFFFFFiiFFFFiFiFiFFFiiFiFFFFiFFFiFiFiFiFFFiFiFiFiFiFiFFFFiFFFiFiiFiFiFiFiFFFFFFFFFFiFFiFiFFFFFiiFFFFFFiFFFFiiFFFFiFiFiFFFFFiiFFFFiFiFFiFiFFiFiiFiFiFFFiFiFFiFFiiiFiFiFFiFFFiFiiFFFiiFFFiFFFFFFFiFiillellellelellelelelelleleleleeelelllllellelleleeleleleleeeelllllelleleleleleeeellllleleeleleleleleleellllellleleleleleleeelllllllleleleleleleelellleleleeeelelellllleelelelelllleleleeeleeeeeellllleleeeeellllelelelelelelelelellllllllleeleleleeeleeelllleleleeellllleleeeleelllleleleeeeellelellllleeeeeeeeeelleleleeeeeellleeeeeeelleeeeeeleleeeeeellleleleeellleeeelellleeeeeeeelelleeeleeelleeeellleleeeeellllleleeeelllleleeleeelleeeeelllleeeeeeeeessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss

nn’nn’nnnnnn’’’n’n’’n’’’’’nnnn’’n’’’n’’’n’nnnn’n’n’’’’’’’n’’’nn’’n’’’nn’nn’’’nnnn’’’nnnn’’n’’’’’nnnnn’’’’’nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn tttttttt ttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttt ttt ttttttt tttt ttttttttttttttttt tttttttt t ttttt hhshshshshshshshshshshhshshshhshshhshhhshshshshsshshhhshhhshshhhhshshhshshshshshshshshshhshshhhhhhhhshshshshshshshhhhshhshshshshshhshhshsshhhhshhshssshshshshhhshsshsshshshhhshhssssshshhshsshshshhhsshshsshshhhhhsshhhhhhhshsshhhhhssshshhssshhhhhssshhhshshshshsshhhhhsshsshshshhhhhshsshshshsshhhshhhhshshshshhhshshhhhhshhshsshshshshhhhhhsshssshshhhhhhhhhssssshshsshhhhssshsshhhshhshshssshhhhhhssshshshhhhshss owowowoowowoowowowowowowowowowowowowowowowowoooowowwowowwowowowowoowooooooowowowwowwwowoooooowowwowowwwowoooooowwowwwwwwwwwowwoowoowowowwwwowwwooowowowwwwowowowwowowooooooowowowowwowwwwowowooooooowwowwwowowowowowowoooooowoowowoowowwowowowowooowwowwowwwwooowwwwwowwwowowowowwwowoowwwwooooowowowwwooooowwwwoooooowwwooowwwo  
ooooocococococococcccccccoccccccccocoocccccoccoocccocccoocccococcocooococoococoococoocccooooooooccooocooocccccoooocococcccoocococooocccoooooococcooooococcccooocoococcccoooococccooooccccc ((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((jjujujujjujujujujujuujujujujuujujujujjujjujjujjujjujujujjjujujujujujujuujujuujjjujuujujjujujjjujjjujujujujjjjujujuujujujujjuuujujujujjjuujjjjjujuujujujjuujuujjuujjujjuujuuuujuuujuujujjuujuuuuujujuujuuujuuujujuujujuujjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjj tstststsstsststststststststststsstststststttststtstststtstststssststssttssststststtttsstttststststttststststttsttststtsssssststtsttsttstttttttttstssssstttttttttsttssssststsstststststtsttsttststtsssssstttttt aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa 
eeeeeeeeeeeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee eeee atataaaaattttttattttataaaatatttaaatataaataatattaaaaatatataatatataataatattttattaaaaaatataaaaataaaaaataatattatataatataaataatattttatattaaaataatatttaaatttattaataattaaaattttatattttaaaattaaaaaaa tatatatatatttatatttatatatatataattatataatatattattatataatatatatatatattatattatttatatatatattatataaatattatataaaaatattaataaaatatattattaaattattataatttatataataaattataataaatataaaaatatataaataaaataatattaaaattattta hchchchchchchchhhhhhhhhchhhchchchchcchchhchchchchhchhhhhchchchchhhhhhhhchchchhchchchchhchchhhhchchchchchchhhhhhhchhhchchchhchchchchchchchchhhhchhchcccchchchchhhchchccchchchcchhhchcchchchcchchhchchchchccchchchhchhcccchhhhchchcchchchccchcchhcchchcchhhcchchcc  
dddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddd llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllliikikikikikkikikikikkiikikikkkkikkikiikikkkkkikkikikkkikikkikikikkkikkkkkikkikkkkikikkkkikkkkiikkkkkikikkikkkkkiikkikkkikkkkkiikkkkkkiiikkkkikikkkkkkiiikkikkkikikkkikikikkke e eeeee eeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee totototototototttototototototooototoottototoootottotototottotoottototototototototototottotototottototototttotottotototottoottoototoootttottottoottoototttotoooottootoooooootooototoooo 
ttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttagagaaaaagagagaagggaggaggaggggagagagagagagagaagaagagagagggagaggaggagagagagagagaaggggaggagggggagaagaaaaagagagaggggagaagaagaagaagggaggggagagaaaaagagagaggggggaaagaaaaaggagggaggagaaaggagggaggaaaaagggggaaagggagggagaagaaggggggaaaagagggagaagaaagaagaaggggaagagagagaagggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggeeee.eeee..ee.eeeeeeeeeee..eeeeeee.eeeeee.eeeee.eeeee.e.eeeeeeeeee.eeeeeeee.e.eeee.eeeeee.ee..eeeeeeeee.eeeee...eee

6/2018

delete this row

$63M

Mr. Dean Price,
506-658-4770
dean.price@saintjohn.ca

Design-Build 
Filters 
Dissolved Air Flotation 
UV Disinfection 
DAF Thickening 
New Pump Station 
New Pipelines 

SAINT JOHN WATER 
TREATMENT PLANT 
SAINT JOHN, NEW BRUNSWICK, CANADA

In connection with a project carried out as 
a public-private partnership (PPP), Stantec 
was part of the group-led jointly for the design 
and construction of a new drinking water 
production plant serving the City of Saint 
John, New Brunswick. Under the name Port 
City Water Partners (PCWP), this partnership 
was awarded the contract following a call 
for tenders that saw various pre-qualified 
groups competing against each other. The 
selected project consisted of the construction 
of a drinking water production plant with a 
20 MGD capacity. Stantec was entrusted 
with the critically important responsibility and 
heart of the project, namely the entire water 
treatment process and onsite treatment of 
wastewater produced, to minimize discharge 
to the sewer system. Stantec helped develop 
the preliminary design presented in the 
retained bid and, after that, worked on 
developing the detailed design along with 
detailed plans and specifications submitted 
to the partnership contractor in charge of the 
construction work. Stantec coordinated the 
activities of the other disciplines (structure, 
electricity, building mechanicals, architecture, 
etc.), which were ensured by another 
consulting engineering firm.

CONSTRUCTION 
COST $63 million

COMPLETION 6/2018
KEY 
PERSONNEL Stantec

REFERENCE
Mr. Dean Price
(506) 658-4770
dean.price@saintjohn.ca

 9 Design-Build
 9 Dissolved Air Flotation
 9 Filtration
 9 UV Disinfection
 9 Chemical Systems
 9 Control Systems
 9 Continuous Operation

RELEVANCE TO THE ROEMER WFF

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 34



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:8

PROJECT APPROACH
STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING OF THE RFP 
The Roemer Water Filtration Facility RFP is requesting design-build services 
to complete the 30% design documents, produced by GHD, and construct the 
facility’s expansion. To successfully accomplish this, we have assembled a highly 
experienced and innovative design and construction team that will follow the 
requirements described in the design criteria report and 30% design drawings. 
Upon completion of design, our team will collaborate with the District to finalize 
applications with the DDW and SRF. At the same time, we will complete other 
required permits for the project. Through past project experience, our team has 
developed the goals and strategies outlined below that have proven to deliver 
successful design-build projects. 

GOAL / OBJECTIVE DESCRIPTION STRATEGY

Innovative Ideas

Through collaboration and 
open communication, the 
team will be able to bring 
innovative ideas that will 
ultimately deliver a higher 
quality project and ease of 
operations. 

Establish working 
sessions with Operations, 
District Staff, and DB 
Team to generate ideas, 
identify challenges, and 
provide solutions prior 
during 60% drawing 
development.

Project Team 
Involvement

Maintain involvement 
of plant operations, 
District staff, and outside 
agencies through the 
Project’s Design-Build 
process. 

Establish contacts with 
operations, District Staff, 
and outside agencies 
involved and hold weekly, 
monthly, or quarterly 
touchpoints.

Innovative Cost Model 
/ Schedule Dates

Collaborate and innovate 
within the project cost 
model and schedule 
dates. 

Establish time and cost 
restraints and potential 
cost/schedule saving 
opportunities through 
innovative working 
sessions.

Lower Operating 
Cost while Increasing 
Operational Flexibility

Deliver a project that 
lowers operating 
costs while increasing 
operational flexibility 
with current and future 
demands.

Review project design 
early on with plant staff.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 35



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:9

Our team will provide WVWD with clear, 
efficient, and expedited communication 
throughout the project, which will be 
facilitated through your single point of 
contact, Darren Wright, Design-Build Project 
Manager. All formal communication with 
WVWD will be routed through Darren, who 
will engage Sean Neprud, Design Manager, 
and David Griffin, Design Build Construction 
Manager, for design or constructed-related 
items, respectively.  Likewise, Sean and 
David will be responsible for reporting any 
challenges to Darren. Darren will work 
closely with Jeff Newman. Jeff serves as the 
Project Executive and has full authority to 
provide any resources necessary to the team 
to successully deliver the project.

Working collaboratively, our team will identify 
deliverables and individual responsibilities to 
ensure everyone involved, fully understands all 
project elements. 

The project charter, shown below, will 
provide a guide for the team to address 
functions and processes necessary to 
execute a successful project.  This charter 
will be a part of the kick-off meeting, ensuring 
a successful start and will be utilized during 
execution of this project.

On the following page, we have provided 
the composition of our team, consistent with 
our Project Organizational Chart, and have 
detailed each of our team member’s roles, 
responsibilities, and their reporting structure.

MANAGEMENT OF THE PROJECT TEAM

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 36



R
O

EM
ER

 W
AT

ER
 F

IL
TR

AT
IO

N
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y 
20

22
 U

PG
R

A
D

ES
 A

N
D

 E
XP

A
N

SI
O

N

II:
10

NA
ME

 A
ND

 R
OL

E 
AT

 E
AC

H 
ST

AG
E

RE
PO

RT
S 

TO
RE

SP
ON

SI
BI

LI
TI

ES
, A

UT
HO

RI
TY

, A
ND

 A
CC

OU
NT

AB
IL

IT
Y

ADVISORY COUNCIL
 

�
An

ku
r T

alw
ar

Ad
vis

or
y C

ou
nc

il
Co

rp
or

ate
 

Re
pr

es
en

tat
ive

An
ku

r T
alw

ar
 ha

s b
ee

n i
nv

olv
ed

 in
 th

e W
es

t V
all

ey
 D

ist
ric

t’s
 pr

oc
ur

em
en

t s
inc

e i
t’s

 in
ce

pti
on

.  A
nk

ur,
 a 

se
nio

r m
an

ag
er

 w
ith

 29
 ye

ar
s a

t P
CL

 ov
er

se
es

 ou
r C

ali
for

nia
 op

er
ati

on
s a

nd
 w

ill 
en

su
re

 ou
r 

tea
m 

is 
re

so
ur

ce
d a

nd
 w

ill 
be

 av
ail

ab
le 

for
 fr

eq
ue

nt 
cli

en
t c

he
ck

 in
s a

nd
 as

 ne
ed

ed
.

	
�

Mi
ke

 W
at

so
n

Ad
vis

or
y C

ou
nc

il
Co

rp
or

ate
 

Re
pr

es
en

tat
ive

Mi
ke

 is
 a 

Se
nio

r V
ice

 P
re

sid
en

t s
pe

cia
liz

ing
 is

 al
ter

na
tiv

e p
ro

jec
t d

eli
ve

ry
 fo

r S
tan

tec
’s 

W
ate

r B
us

ine
ss

 Li
ne

. M
ike

 w
ill 

en
su

re
 al

ign
me

nt 
be

tw
ee

n P
CL

 an
d S

tan
tec

 on
 th

e a
pp

ro
ac

h t
o d

es
ign

ing
 

an
d e

ng
ag

e i
n t

he
 pr

oje
ct 

for
 cl

ien
t s

ati
sfa

cti
on

.

 
�

Ke
n 

Sl
ot

a, 
PE

, D
BI

A
Ad

vis
or

y C
ou

nc
il

Co
rp

or
ate

 
Re

pr
es

en
tat

ive

Ke
n w

ill 
be

 en
ga

ge
d i

n t
he

 in
itia

l s
et-

up
 an

d m
on

ito
r t

he
 pr

oje
ct 

du
e t

o h
is 

ex
ten

siv
e e

xp
er

ien
ce

 w
ith

 D
es

ign
-B

uil
d w

or
k a

nd
 w

or
kin

g w
ith

 S
tan

tec
. K

en
 ha

s c
om

ple
ted

 ov
er

 $
46

6 m
illi

on
 in

 D
es

ign
-

Bu
ild

 an
d o

the
r a

lte
rn

ati
ve

 de
liv

er
y p

ro
jec

ts 
an

d u
nd

er
sta

nd
s h

ow
 to

 de
sig

n a
nd

 co
ns

tru
ct 

wi
thi

n b
ud

ge
ted

 tim
e a

nd
 co

st.
 B

efo
re

 w
or

kin
g f

or
 P

CL
, K

en
 w

as
 a 

de
sig

n e
ng

ine
er

 on
 w

ate
r a

nd
 

wa
ste

wa
ter

 pr
oje

cts
 an

d f
ull

y u
nd

er
sta

nd
s t

he
 ov

er
all

 pr
oc

es
s a

nd
 de

sig
n.

KEY PERSONNEL

 
�

Je
ff 

Ne
wm

an
, P

E
Pr

oje
ct 

Ex
ec

ut
ive

Ad
vis

or
y C

ou
nc

il
Je

ff 
wi

ll m
an

ag
e t

he
 D

es
ign

-B
uil

d a
gr

ee
me

nt 
an

d p
ro

vid
e fi

na
l d

ire
cti

on
 to

 bo
th 

de
sig

n a
nd

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
.

 
�

Da
rre

n 
W

rig
ht

De
sig

n-
Bu

ild
 M

an
ag

er
Je

ff 
Ne

wm
an

, P
E

Da
rre

n w
ill 

re
po

rt 
to 

Ke
n a

nd
 w

ill 
be

 en
ga

ge
d f

ro
m 

the
 st

ar
t o

f d
es

ign
 th

ro
ug

h t
he

 co
mp

let
ion

 of
 th

e P
ro

jec
t. D

ar
re

n w
ill 

ma
na

ge
 th

e c
on

tro
l o

f d
oc

um
en

ts 
an

d t
he

 ov
er

all
 pr

oje
ct 

sc
he

du
le 

an
d w

ill 
clo

se
ly 

mo
nit

or
 co

ns
tru

cta
bil

ity
 is

su
es

 du
rin

g t
he

 de
sig

n p
ro

ce
ss

. D
ar

re
n w

ill 
pr

ep
ar

e b
id 

pa
ck

ag
es

 fo
r lo

ng
-le

ad
 eq

uip
me

nt 
an

d m
an

ag
e t

he
 ov

er
all

 pr
oc

ur
em

en
t o

f th
e P

ro
jec

t. D
ar

re
n w

ill 
be

 th
e 

ov
er

all
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

 le
ad

 du
rin

g t
he

 P
ro

jec
t’s

 de
sig

n p
ha

se
 an

d e
ns

ur
e a

 se
am

les
s t

ra
ns

itio
n t

o t
he

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
 ph

as
e.

	
�

Jim
 B

or
ch

ar
dt

, P
E

En
gin

ee
rin

g 
M

an
ag

er
Mi

ke
 W

ats
on

Jim
 w

ill 
be

 en
ga

ge
d i

n t
he

 in
itia

l s
et-

up
 an

d m
on

ito
r t

he
 pr

oje
ct 

du
e t

o h
is 

ex
ten

siv
e e

xp
er

ien
ce

 w
ith

 D
es

ign
-B

uil
d w

or
k, 

kn
ow

led
ge

 of
 th

e R
oe

me
r f

ac
ilit

y a
nd

 w
or

k w
ith

 P
CL

. J
im

 w
ill 

ha
ve

 
re

sp
on

sib
le 

ch
ar

ge
 of

 al
l d

es
ign

 m
an

ag
er

s a
nd

 te
ch

nic
al 

lea
ds

 w
or

kin
g o

n t
he

 pr
oje

ct.
 Ji

m 
alo

ng
 w

ith
 S

ea
n w

ill 
en

su
re

 th
e c

on
tra

ct 
do

cu
me

nts
 m

ee
t th

e d
es

ign
 in

ten
t s

et 
for

th 
in 

the
 D

es
ign

 
Cr

ite
ria

 R
ep

or
t. J

im
 ha

s t
he

 au
tho

rit
y t

o m
ak

e fi
na

l d
ec

isi
on

s o
n b

eh
alf

 of
 S

tan
tec

 an
d r

ep
or

t th
is 

ba
ck

 to
 K

en
 an

d D
ar

re
n

	
�

Se
an

 N
ep

ru
d,

 P
E,

 L
EE

D 
AP

De
sig

n 
M

an
ag

er
Jim

 B
or

ch
ar

dt,
 P

E
Se

an
 w

ill 
be

 th
e d

ay
-to

-d
ay

 de
sig

n l
ea

d a
nd

 be
 re

sp
on

sib
le 

for
 co

or
din

ati
on

 be
tw

ee
n t

he
 te

ch
nic

al 
lea

ds
 to

 pr
od

uc
e t

he
 pr

oje
ct 

Dr
aw

ing
s a

nd
 S

pe
cifi

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r o
wn

er
 ap

pr
ov

al,
 ag

en
cy

 ap
pr

ov
als

, 
an

d c
on

str
uc

tio
n. 

Se
an

 w
ill 

re
po

rt 
dir

ec
tly

 to
 Ji

m 
an

d b
e t

he
 pr

im
ar

y p
oin

t o
f c

on
tac

t fo
r t

he
 D

ist
ric

t a
nd

 P
CL

 w
ith

 th
e d

es
ign

 te
am

. H
e w

ill 
co

or
din

ate
 su

bm
itta

l re
vie

ws
 an

d e
ng

ine
er

ing
 su

pp
or

t 
for

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
 ac

tiv
itie

s d
ur

ing
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

. S
ea

n w
ill 

be
 de

dic
ate

d t
o t

he
 pr

oje
ct 

10
0%

 fr
om

 de
sig

n t
hr

ou
gh

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
.

 
�

Da
vid

 G
rif

fin
De

sig
n-

Bu
ild

 C
on

str
uc

tio
n 

M
an

ag
er

Da
rre

n W
rig

ht
Da

vid
 w

ill 
pa

rti
cip

ate
 in

 co
ns

tru
cta

bil
ity

 re
vie

ws
 an

d p
ro

vid
ing

 in
for

ma
tio

n f
ro

m 
the

 fie
ld 

to 
su

pp
or

t d
es

ign
. O

nc
e c

on
str

uc
tio

n b
eg

ins
, D

av
e w

ill 
be

 re
sp

on
sib

le 
for

 su
cc

es
sfu

lly
 de

liv
er

ing
 th

e 
Pr

oje
ct,

 in
clu

din
g s

elf
-p

er
for

m 
ac

tiv
itie

s, 
su

bc
on

tra
cto

r p
er

for
ma

nc
e, 

an
d w

or
kin

g w
ith

 fa
cil

ity
 st

af
f to

 sc
he

du
le 

an
d c

oo
rd

ina
te 

the
 w

or
k i

n t
he

 fie
ld.

 H
e w

ill 
wo

rk 
clo

se
ly 

wi
th 

Da
rre

n a
nd

 K
ev

in 
to 

re
so

lve
 is

su
es

 in
 th

e fi
eld

 an
d i

de
nti

fy 
ite

ms
 to

 be
 do

cu
me

nte
d i

n t
he

 as
-b

uil
ts 

or
 th

at 
re

qu
ire

 de
sig

n t
ea

m 
inp

ut.
	

�
Cr

aig
 W

ilc
ox

, P
E,

SE
, P

.E
NG

, L
EE

D 
AP

 B
D+

C
De

sig
n 

Qu
ali

ty 
Co

ntr
ol 

M
an

ag
er

Jim
 B

or
ch

ar
dt,

 P
E

Cr
aig

 w
ill 

ma
na

ge
 th

e q
ua

lity
 re

vie
ws

 of
 th

e d
es

ign
 do

cu
me

nts
 by

 en
su

rin
g t

ha
t e

ve
ry

 de
sig

n r
ep

or
t, d

ra
wi

ng
, a

nd
 sp

ec
ific

ati
on

 ha
s a

n i
nd

ep
en

de
nt 

int
er

na
l re

vie
w 

for
 te

ch
nic

al 
co

mp
let

en
es

s a
nd

 
qu

ali
ty 

of 
de

sig
n. 

He
 w

ill 
ap

ply
 hi

s e
xte

ns
ive

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e i
n e

ng
ine

er
ing

 de
sig

n i
n t

he
 w

ate
r in

du
str

y t
o m

ak
e s

ur
e t

ha
t th

e d
es

ign
 m

ee
ts 

the
 qu

ali
ty 

ex
pe

cta
tio

ns
 of

 S
tan

tec
, P

CL
, a

nd
 th

e D
ist

ric
t.

 
�

Cr
aig

 Y
ak

ub
ow

Le
ad

 E
sti

m
ato

r
Je

ff 
Ne

wm
an

, P
E

Cr
aig

 w
ill 

be
 re

sp
on

sib
le 

for
 de

ve
lop

ing
 th

e fi
xe

d p
ric

e b
re

ak
do

wn
 pr

ov
ide

d i
n P

ro
po

sa
l F

or
m 

7. 
Cr

aig
 w

ill 
be

 a 
re

so
ur

ce
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 ad

dit
ion

al 
ba

ck
up

 an
d i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 re
ga

rd
ing

 th
e b

as
is 

of 
co

st.
 

Cr
aig

 w
ill 

als
o p

ro
vid

e e
sti

ma
tin

g s
er

vic
es

 to
 th

e D
es

ign
-B

uil
d t

ea
m 

to 
ma

na
ge

 ch
an

ge
s t

o s
co

pe
 or

 pr
ici

ng
 ex

er
cis

es
. H

e w
ill 

re
po

rt 
ba

ck
 to

 Je
ff 

for
 an

y fi
na

l d
ec

isi
on

s o
n t

he
 P

ro
jec

t a
nd

 w
ill 

en
su

re
 ov

er
all

 bu
dg

et 
go

als
 ar

e a
ch

iev
ed

.
 

�
Ke

vin
 S

ch
ow

Su
pe

rin
ten

de
nt

Je
ff 

Ne
wm

an
, P

E
Ke

vin
 w

ill 
pa

rti
cip

ate
 in

 pr
e-

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 ac

tiv
itie

s d
ur

ing
 th

e d
es

ign
 ph

as
e. 

On
ce

 fie
ld 

op
er

ati
on

s b
eg

in,
 K

ev
in 

wi
ll b

e r
es

po
ns

ibl
e f

or
 en

su
rin

g P
CL

’s 
fie

ld 
op

er
ati

on
s p

ra
cti

ce
s a

re
 in

 pl
ac

e f
or

 a 
su

cc
es

sfu
l p

ro
jec

t. H
e w

ill 
als

o w
or

k w
ith

 Je
ff 

on
 pr

op
er

 la
bo

r s
etu

p w
ith

 th
e P

LA
, C

EQ
A,

 an
d S

W
PP

P 
re

qu
ire

me
nts

. 

KEY TECHNICAL LEADS

	
�

Ty
ler

 H
ad

ac
ek

, P
E

Pr
oc

es
s E

ng
ine

er
Se

an
 N

ep
ru

d, 
PE

, 
LE

ED
 A

P
Ty

ler
 w

ill 
lea

d t
he

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 pr

oc
es

s d
ra

wi
ng

s a
nd

 sp
ec

ific
ati

on
s. 

Ke
y T

ec
hn

ica
l L

ea
ds

 ar
e a

cc
ou

nta
ble

 to
 co

or
din

ati
ng

 w
ith

 ot
he

r d
isc

ipl
ine

s a
nd

 m
ee

tin
g p

ro
jec

t s
ch

ed
ule

 co
mm

itm
en

ts.

	
�

Lo
ng

 H
oa

ng
, P

E
El

ec
tri

ca
l E

ng
ine

er
Se

an
 N

ep
ru

d, 
PE

, 
LE

ED
 A

P
Lo

ng
 w

ill 
lea

d t
he

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 el

ec
tric

al 
dr

aw
ing

s a
nd

 sp
ec

ific
ati

on
s. 

Ke
y T

ec
hn

ica
l L

ea
ds

 ar
e a

cc
ou

nta
ble

 to
 co

or
din

ati
ng

 w
ith

 ot
he

r d
isc

ipl
ine

s a
nd

 m
ee

tin
g p

ro
jec

t s
ch

ed
ule

 
co

mm
itm

en
ts.

	
�

Si
m

on
 L

in
, P

hD
, P

E,
 S

E
St

ru
ctu

ra
l E

ng
ine

er
Se

an
 N

ep
ru

d, 
PE

, 
LE

ED
 A

P
Si

mo
n w

ill 
lea

d t
he

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 st

ru
ctu

ra
l d

ra
wi

ng
s a

nd
 sp

ec
ific

ati
on

s. 
Ke

y T
ec

hn
ica

l L
ea

ds
 ar

e a
cc

ou
nta

ble
 to

 co
or

din
ati

ng
 w

ith
 ot

he
r d

isc
ipl

ine
s a

nd
 m

ee
tin

g p
ro

jec
t s

ch
ed

ule
 

co
mm

itm
en

ts.
	

�
Ch

ris
to

ph
er

 M
ot

e, 
PE

Ci
vil

 D
es

ign
er

Se
an

 N
ep

ru
d, 

PE
, 

LE
ED

 A
P

Ch
ris

top
he

r w
ill 

lea
d t

he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

 ci
vil

 dr
aw

ing
s a

nd
 sp

ec
ific

ati
on

s. 
Ke

y T
ec

hn
ica

l L
ea

ds
 ar

e a
cc

ou
nta

ble
 to

 co
or

din
ati

ng
 w

ith
 ot

he
r d

isc
ipl

ine
s a

nd
 m

ee
tin

g p
ro

jec
t s

ch
ed

ule
 

co
mm

itm
en

ts.
	

�
Er

ic 
Sa

nc
he

z, 
LE

ED
 A

P 
BD

+C
Se

nio
r A

rc
hit

ec
t

Se
an

 N
ep

ru
d, 

PE
, 

LE
ED

 A
P

Er
ic 

wi
ll l

ea
d t

he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

 ar
ch

ite
ctu

ra
l d

ra
wi

ng
s a

nd
 sp

ec
ific

ati
on

s. 
Ke

y T
ec

hn
ica

l L
ea

ds
 ar

e a
cc

ou
nta

ble
 to

 co
or

din
ati

ng
 w

ith
 ot

he
r d

isc
ipl

ine
s a

nd
 m

ee
tin

g p
ro

jec
t s

ch
ed

ule
 

co
mm

itm
en

ts.
	

�
Sa

nk
i S

an
ka

ra
n,

 P
E

In
str

um
en

tat
ion

 &
 C

on
tro

ls 
En

gin
ee

r
Se

an
 N

ep
ru

d, 
PE

, 
LE

ED
 A

P
Sa

nk
i w

ill 
lea

d t
he

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 In

str
um

en
tat

ion
 &

 C
on

tro
ls 

(I&
C)

 dr
aw

ing
s a

nd
 sp

ec
ific

ati
on

s. 
Ke

y T
ec

hn
ica

l L
ea

ds
 ar

e a
cc

ou
nta

ble
 to

 co
or

din
ati

ng
 w

ith
 ot

he
r d

isc
ipl

ine
s a

nd
 m

ee
tin

g 
pr

oje
ct 

sc
he

du
le 

co
mm

itm
en

ts.
	

�
Ge

or
ge

 Te
y, 

PE
M

ec
ha

nic
al 

En
gin

ee
r

Se
an

 N
ep

ru
d, 

PE
, 

LE
ED

 A
P

Ge
or

ge
 w

ill 
lea

d t
he

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 m

ec
ha

nic
al 

dr
aw

ing
s a

nd
 sp

ec
ific

ati
on

s. 
Ke

y T
ec

hn
ica

l L
ea

ds
 ar

e a
cc

ou
nta

ble
 to

 co
or

din
ati

ng
 w

ith
 ot

he
r d

isc
ipl

ine
s a

nd
 m

ee
tin

g p
ro

jec
t s

ch
ed

ule
 

co
mm

itm
en

ts.

 
�

PC
L

	
�

St
an

te
c

EX
H

IB
IT

 2
: K

EY
 P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 M

AT
R

IX

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 37



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:11

PROJECT 
MANAGEMENT 
APPROACH
Our overall management approach is based 
on our team’s history of collaboration and 
the strength of our established relationship, 
providing West Valley Water District with a 
proven, successful design-build team you can 
trust to deliver.

EQUIPMENT SELECTION  
The design-build team will work with qualified vendors 
and select equipment, based on conformance to 
design criteria and drawings. Working in collaboration 
with the District, our team will make sure the pre-
selected equipment matches the intended design. All 
equipment selected by our team will be reviewed with 
the District and Operations Staff to ensure it meets 
the same level of quality.

CONSTRUCTABILITY REVIEWS & OPERATIONS 
TEAM INPUT
Constructability reviews will be conducted at the 30%, 
60%, and 90% levels and managed by Craig Wilcox. 
These reviews will be conducted internally to meet 
established quality control measures prior to review 
by the District and Plant Staff. Operations team input 
will be obtained through constructability reviews 
and field walks of the process areas during design 
development.

DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION OPERATION 
STRATEGIES
Construction strategies are regularly implemented into 
the design to eliminate constructability challenges.  
We achieve this by including our construction team 
members throughout the design phase.

Darren will develop and manage the comment 
resolution log for design submittals and conduct 
reviews, workshops, and solicit input at critical design 
stages to prevent costly changes and surprises. 

The team will meet with Union officials to ensure 
CWA Compliance and conduct monthly compliance 
checks. 

Aligned and accountable. 
Establish clear understanding
of expectations, roles, 
responsibilities, and WVWD-
provided services ensuring 
alignment and accountability in 
everything we do.

Collaborate and listen. 
Engage staff including operations
in well-planned and frequent 
manner. Ensure all comments 
are heard, addressed, and 
incorporated into next submittal.

Communicate frequently and 
openly. Accurate, meaningful, 
and timely communication and 
reporting to facilitate decision 
making and capture progress 
including
early identification of issues.

Stay focused on risk and 
quality. Work continuously to
eliminate uncertainty, control risk, 
and provide quality
submittals and facilities 
throughout the delivery process.

Do great work—on time. 
Meet deliverable deadlines 
and construction milestones 
with high-quality work that is 
responsive to expectations and 
project needs.

HOW DARREN 
WILL MANAGE 
THE PROJECT

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 38



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:12

SCHEDULE MANAGEMENT
PRIMAVERA PROJECT PLANNER P6
PCL has been using Primavera scheduling tools for more 
than 20 years. Our enterprise license agreement with Oracle 
allows all our engineering and field management staff to use 
the full P6 Client program on our internal networked database.

The program produces resource-loaded schedules that 
are web-based, with real-time data, producing reports 
and charts to track current progress and address future 
resource requirements. Our team will use P6 to develop 
the project baseline schedule and continually monitor 
progress throughout the life of the project. The baseline 
schedule is the primary tool for tracking the design schedule; 
coordinating subcontractors, suppliers, and submittals; and 
provides guidance for the project team regarding issues 
requiring their input.

Our schedule management process will include phase 1 
design activities and phase 2 construction activities in one 
combined schedule which will be reviewed weekly with the 
District and other stakeholders. As the design build manager, 
Darren Wright will manage the execution of the schedule 
from NTP through project closeout to avoid discontinuity 
between phases. Darren will ensure design decisions are in 
alignment with equipment release and delivery milestones 
and that minor design changes do not cause major 
construction disruptions. Give the current market disruptions 
and supply chain challenges, Darren will update fabrication 
and delivery schedules real time to properly manage design 
resources to ensure timely delivery of long lead equipment. As 
key team members, David Griffin and Kevin Schow will work 
with Darren in the design phase to develop the construction 
portion of the schedule which will include input form key sub 
trade partners to verify activity durations. 

PCL will also incorporate activities such as required 
agency permit approvals, financing, long-lead time material 
procurement, and operation concerns (i.e., weather 
concerns, shutdowns, tie-ins). We will work closely with each 
stakeholder involved with the project and create a baseline 
master schedule structured around the critical path that 
incorporates all the activities and durations associated with 
construction.

We have completed a preliminary P6 schedule for the project 
including all key scopes and milestones during design and 
included in Appendix C. This P6 schedule will be further 
developed upon award.

Pull Planning
In addition to traditional CPM 
scheduling, PCL uses the Last 
Planner System to develop 
and manage highly detailed 
schedules for complex projects. 
Also known as “pull planning,” 
this method of scheduling is 
particularly useful in planning 
and tracking concurrent 
work activities with multiple 
trades. Starting with the last 
milestone for a project (plant 
commissioning), the team works 
backwards and reviews all 
work activities with subtrades 
to capture interdependent 
relationships and ensure 
everyone is on the same page. 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 39



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:13

COST MANAGEMENT
We will manage construction cost through 
our BEST PM+ program, PCL’s online 
collaboration tool further described in 
document management, that tracks budgets, 
subcontracts, purchase orders, change 
orders, labor cost productivities, and invoicing. 

COORDINATION & COMMUNICATION
Communication is key to collaboration and 
the best way to help mitigate risk and ensure 
all parties are moving towards a common 
goal. At the initial kickoff meeting, lines of 
communication will be established to ensure 
all stakeholders are engaged in the process. 
We will utilize a cloud-based site to provide 
real-time access to drawing and specification 
updates, meeting minutes, and other project 
documents.

As the design process begins, we will have 
weekly workshops that focus on task-specific 
issues. Design workshop agendas will be 
focused on specific items and can primarily 
be managed via Microsoft teams as this 
allows designers to make real-time changes 
to documents to capture discussions and 

decisions made during these workshops. 
We will use Bluebeam Studio and Revit 3D 
BIM throughout the process. Our experience 
shows using this tool reduces RFIs, reduces 
construction costs, and optimizes layouts for 
operation and maintenance. We will track 
all decisions made during the meetings 
on a decision log accessible on the cloud. 
In addition to the weekly workshops, 
we anticipate holding ongoing meetings 
with Operations for input, holding multi-
day reviews at major design deliverable 
milestones, and formal meetings to review 
the CPM schedule and major equipment and 
subcontractor packages. 

Communication with our subtrades and 
vendors is key to successfully delivering 
our cost and schedule goals on the Project. 
We will invite key subs to review the plans 
and specifications throughout the design 
process to eliminate inefficiencies during the 
construction process. We will solicit the same 
feedback during the preparation of the CPM 
schedule to ensure we have accurate and 
obtainable durations and logic.

PCL utilizies the latest construction technology to ensure efficient 
communications and streamlined processes to monitor the schedule and 
costs so that we deliver a high-quality project on schedule and budget. 

The PCL team will use BIM in conjunction with our estimating, 
scheduling, and planning tools to optimize the project’s design and 
construction with respect to cost, schedule, and quality to add value at 
every step of the project’s life span. 

BIM is also an effective tool in helping manage risk for each 
stakeholder. During the design phase, we will produce 3-D and 4-D 
models that we will use for clash detection, constructability reviews, 
scheduling, process pipe shop drawings, concrete lift drawings, 
and critical lifting plans. By using a model to simulate the design, 
construction, and operation of a project, we are able to optimize 
each of these phases before a shovel is put into the ground, avoiding 
conflicts and issues, minimizing risk, and delivering the project on time 
and on budget. This effectively allows us to “build the project twice,” 
without actually building the project twice. 

PCL produced a 3-D model 
of our recently completed 
PAR 1280 Project for Metro 
Wastewater Reclamation 
District.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 40



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:14

PM4+ is a single-source solution providing speed to 
execution, reducing duplication and lean process 
management; real-time information for the entire 
project team; access to everything project-related in 
one place; and cloud-based working on the go.

DESIGN
The design process will take the DCR and 
30% drawings, completed by GHD, along with 
preliminary drawing development that has 
already been completed between Stantec, 
PCL, and the major equipment vendors to 
produce the 60% design. Prior to owner 
review, Stantec will make the drawings and 
specifications available for PCL, equipment 
vendors, and key subcontractors’ review to 
confirm preliminary drawing development 
agreements. Comments, meetings, and 
working sessions will need to occur during 
this specific review time to maintain the 
design schedule. Once internal reviews 
have been completed, the drawings will be 
submitted to the owner for review. 

At the 60% design stage, we will deliver a 
list of remaining long-lead items, prepare 
an overall procurement plan, prepare the 
initial maintenance of plant operations plan 
(MOPO), review the initial control strategy, 
and develop the initial construction work plan. 
The CPM schedule will be updated based 
on material procurement and feedback from 
the subcontracting community. The project 
procurement plan will be the road map for the 
successful execution of the Project and will 
establish how the Project will be broken down 
into distinct work packages. This approach 
will provide the opportunity to accelerate 
the schedule and reduce supply chain and 
budget risk.

At the 90% design, subcontractor and vendor 
packages will be finalized, preliminary testing 
startup and commissioning plans will be 
developed, and the CPM schedule will be 
finalized. At this time, the preconstruction and 
work assignment meeting required by the PLA 
will be conducted. 

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION 
Construction administration will be conducted 
by PCL’s onsite supervision. It is not 
anticipated for Stantec to have a resident 
engineer onsite full time. PCL will hire third-
party special inspectors to conduct the code-
required inspections. Per initial discussions, 
GHD will be onsite to serve as the owner’s 
agent. PCL will work closely with GHD to 
ensure work is installed according to the 
approved documents. PCL will also manage 
the schedule to ensure both design and 
construction meet their dates.

INFORMATION FLOW, DOCUMENT 
MANAGEMENT AND RECORDS CONTROL 
Keeping comprehensive project records is 
essential to efficient project execution. To 
maximize collaboration between project 
stakeholders and provide easy access to the 
most up-to-date records and documents, PCL 
developed a proprietary online collaboration 
tool called PM4+. This centralized system 
houses electronic files and project documents 
like drawings, specifications, submittals, 
RFIs and as-builts in an archive that can be 
accessed any time. This application can also 
generate transmission and record document 
distribution.

All project stakeholders have full access at 
all times, eliminating the need to request 
documents and taking the guesswork out of 
where to find exactly what you may be looking 
for at any given time.

As the Design-Build Construction Manager, 
David will be ultimately responsible for 
maintaining the formal records in PM4+ and 
distributing all contracts documents. 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 41



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:15

4.3.1. ENVIRONMENTAL 
MANAGEMENT

Our team is highly experienced in 
leading the permitting efforts to support 
accelerated project timelines. Success in 
navigating this process relies heavily on 
early coordination between the project 
team to identify all required permits, 
populate a project-specific permitting 
matrix, and engage permitting agencies 
to understand their unique requirements.

A permit acquisition plan will be established 
during the project kick-off phase to narrate 
specific deliverables required at each stage 
and the responsible party. This provides 
accountability and adherence to deliverable 
dates to avoid delays. Conformance review 
of each permit will be conducted to ensure 
program changes are identified and tracked in 
the permit acquisition plan.

The District will lead the DDW permitting 
process. Quarterly meetings will be held 
with the District to inform the design-build 
team. The technical report, design criteria, 
and application for amendment will be 
developed to receive the temporary permit to 
operate and begin the 30-day performance / 
acceptance test. It is anticipated the District 
will receive their final permit to operate a few 
months after project completion.

The design team will take the lead on the 30” 
pipeline, Riverside Avenue improvements, 
Cedar Avenue driveway approach and 2” 
water meter with the City of Rialto. The 
city plan check office has been informed of 
the upcoming work and review durations 
have been included in the schedule. We do 
not foresee any schedule constraints with 
obtaining permits with the City of Rialto.

The SCAQMD Generator permit to construct 
and operate will be filed by a 3rd party 
consultant experienced with generator 
permits. The Caterpillar Model 3512C 
Diesel Standby Generator is pre-certified 
for emergency standby power with Tier 2 
emissions levels. The generator is also more 
than 1,000 feet from Wilmer High School and 
will not require a Diesel Particulate Filter. We 
do not anticipate any issues with securing the 
SCAQMD permit. 
 

The CEQA Mitigation, Monitoring, and 
Reporting Program will be followed in a 
format similar to our Safety Programs. 
PCL realizes the impacts construction has 
on the environment; therefore, we have 
included Environment in our HSE (Health, 
Safety, Environmental) Program. Most of the 
requirements are already included in PCL’s 
standard HSE Program and Practices. PCL 
and Stantec will review before 60% design 
to ensure opportunities are not missed to 
engineer or design around a potential issue. 
We anticipate an emphasis on air quality and 
dust control within the facility. Stormwater, 
noise, and vibration mitigation are anticipated 
during the installation of the 30-inch line to the 
reservoir.

PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 
& UPDATES

Conformance review 
of each permit will be 
conducted to ensure 
any program changes 
that have been made 
are identified and can 
be tracked in the permit 
acquisition plan.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 42



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:16

4.3.2. DESIGN BUILD QUALITY 
CONTROL PLAN

To us, quality 
means continually 
achieving or 
exceeding compliance 
to standards, 
specifications, and 
codes / regulations. 
This mindset is part 
of PCL’s culture as 
we are committed 
to excellence and 
leadership in quality. 

TRIED, TESTED, AND TRUE: 
QUALITY CONTROL PROCESSES
The team’s Quality Management Program is based on the 
commitment to continually improving quality by identifying 
and correcting challenges so they do not reoccur. The critical 
steps required to build right the first time include monitoring 
the process, inspecting, verifying and documenting 
implementation of any necessary changes. High quality is 
continually achieving or exceeding compliance to standards, 
specifications and regulations. 

Quality is a culture instilled within every one of our team 
members. This mindset is part of our team’s culture; we are 
committed to excellence and leadership in quality. 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 43



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:17

QA/QC DURING DESIGN - 
DOCUMENT CONTROL & 
RECORDS MANAGEMENT

A quality control process 
implemented by our discipline 
leads who set the design 
standards used across all design 
packages.

An independent technical review 
(ITR) team led by our Quality 
Manager who conducts and 
documents independent reviews 
at key milestones during design.

Performing and documenting 
field inspections, pressure 
testing, leak testing, and key 
inspections by the Engineer of 
Record.

Coordinating and scheduling 
required materials testing and 
special inspections with the 
Owners Engineer/Agent.

Documentation and record 
keeping of all quality control 
reports for final project close-out

1

2

BENEFITS OF OUR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
APPROACH
 Independent verification for a high degree of 

confidence. An independent review team led 
by the Quality Manager and key technical and 
construction professionals will perform design and 
constructability reviews at all project milestones for 
each package prior to submission to WVWD.

 Technology-assisted reviews for enhanced 
visual clarity and decision-making. Experience has 
shown us the value of using BIM and VR design 
tools to drive an integrated approach to project 
design, construction, and asset management. 
Our BIM model will be used for multidisciplinary 
clash detection, and for regular reviews of the 
project in 3D and VR with key stakeholders 
representing engineering and plant O&M with 
supplemental formal reviews of design packages 
to expedite and more thoroughly involve these key 
stakeholder groups in the review process. We find 
this approach engages O&M staff early and often 
throughout the design process. This approach 
also makes the review process more efficient by 
reducing the risk of surprises when reviewing the 
formal milestone submittals.

 Collaborative engagement with WVWD and the 
owner’s engineer. We propose regular reviews 
of the design concepts with key WVWD internal 
stakeholders including engineering, and O&M 
staff. Early and frequent engagement improves 
the efficiency of the review process by reducing 
the risk of issues and schedule impacts. 

 Documentation of quality control by ITR and 
reviewers to log any issues identified as well as 
corrective actions required. 

 Precise documentation and superior writing 
quality. All design quality reviews (internal and 
external) are documented using quality review 
forms and drawing redlines. We assign one of our 
senior engineers to quality manage all technical 
writing to assess clarity and accuracy.

3

4

5

KEY STAFF RESPONSIBLE 
FOR QUALITY CONTROL & 
ASSURANCE
Craig Wilcox will lead the design 
development quality control reviews and 
follow design standards and technical 
reviews between disciplines. We will 
schedule workshops to engage early 
development of the drawings with the 
District to ensure design development is 
meeting Districts expectations.

PCL’s Quality Specialist, Jacob 
Hagman, will assist the project team 
in completing the development of the 
quality control in the field. Jacob will 
ensure the field team adheres to PCL’s 
quality control standards.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 44



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

II:18

TEAM 
PARTNERSHIP 
ENVIRONMENT
SCHEDULE DURING DESIGN 
DEVELOPMENT & DISTRICT 
INVOLVEMENT 
An “Early Works” package will be 
completed to release long lead items 
so that construction may begin as soon 
as possible. The District will be involved 
throughout the process. This early works 
package will include the major equipment 
and underground piping. Design workshop 
agendas will be focused on specific items 
and can mostly be managed over Microsoft 
Teams. This allows designers to make real-
time changes to documents, incorporating  
decisions made during these workshops. 
Key issues for refinement will be exposed 
pipe routing, valve placement, operator 
maintenance, layout of the SCADA room and 
laboratory.

COMMUNICATION & THE PM ROLE
Weekly meetings will be held to discuss 
action items and track project status. We 
believe the most productive approach is to 
identify breakout sessions that involve the 
relevant stakeholders to get more specific 
in the details and provide resolution. 
Higher level management meetings will be 
scheduled periodically to ensure the desired 
collaboration is occuring within the team.  
Weekly meeting minutes will be recorded, 
review of the 3-week look-ahead schedule 
will occur and monthly status reports will 
be utilized to track project progress. David 
will have direct control of the work in the 
field and decision making power regarding 
direct labor, subcontractor management, 
extra work orders, schedule changes and 
coordinating with Operations. David will be 
involved in further schedule development 
and any resequencing required. 

Interactive Design Workshops
USING BIM AND VR

A proven strategy for fostering communication 
and collaboration is workshop-style meetings 
throughout the design process, which includes 
the design-build and client teams to make key 
decisions regarding the direction of the project.

Prior to these meetings, we prepare detailed 
agendas, discussion papers, technological 
alternatives, technical memos, and cost 
alternatives, allowing for meaningful engagement 
and decision-making. We will also hold critical 
decision meetings to allow the design process to 
progress uninterrupted and to keep WVWD informed. 

These meetings will be led by Sean and 
attended by members of the design delivery 
team as required. We will also set up a decision 
log to document key decisions from meetings 
and workshops and provide accountability and 
transparency in the decision-making process.

We will also show live BIM 3D model 
walkthroughs and flyarounds during the design 
phase to key stakeholders from WVWD and the 
community. We find highly visual and interactive 
demonstrations like these enhance discussion 
among stakeholders, O&M staff, design and 
construction team members, and increases 
collaboration and team-building among all team 
members. 

Stantec hosted two VR 
sessions for the East Bay 
Municipal Utility District 
Chemical Systems 
Safety Improvements 
project. 
The team viewed the 
federated 3D model of 
the Orinda WTP 50% 
design using Oculus Rift 
headsets, and plant staff 
and stakeholders could 
navigate a walkthrough 
of the model.
These sessions allowed 
engagement with O&M 
staff and facilitated 
the collection of design 
review comments to 
supplement traditional 
drawings and 
specifications review.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 45



PART III 
TECHNICAL  
APPROACH 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 46



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:1

PART III
TECHNICAL 
APPROACH
4.4.1. TREATMENT PROCESSES, 
EQUIPMENT SELECTION & 
CAPACITY
DESIGN CRITERIA REPORT UNDERSTANDING
The Request For Proposal was accompanied by a Design Criteria 
Report (DCR) that developed the requirements of this Project to a 
30% level of completion. In general, the DCR will be used as the 
basis of design.

Our approach will be to develop the requirements of the DCR to a 
final design level and construct the Project according to that final 
design. For some of the project elements, the final design will closely 
match what is described in the DCR; for others, the design will differ 
from the DCR requirements in ways that will improve longevity, 
flexibility, reliability, and project costs.* 

In the following sections, we describe our approach to designing this 
Project and explain in more detail our engineering design process 
and where we intend to differ from the DCR. There are many 
elements described in the DCR that are not described below; these 
range from valve and instrumentation requirements to modifications 
of existing facilities and more. Therefore, where we have not 
commented on an item defined in the DCR, we intend to proceed 
with that element using the DCR as the Basis of Design.

TREATMENT OVERVIEW
The primary treatment equipment that we will furnish will add 7.2 
million gallons per day (MGD) of treatment capacity to the existing 
treatment plant. Improvements are located on the site layout on the 
following page in Figure 3.1. We will tie into the existing 30-inch 
influent line from Influent Blending Pond 1 with a new 30-inch line that 
will convey water to the suction of a new Influent Pump Station. Water 
will be pumped to three new clarifier/filter units located in a new Filter 

Represents a design 
innovation that enhances 

longevity, flexibility, 
reliability, or project costs.

* 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 47



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:2

Building addition. The effluent from the new 
filters will tie into the existing effluent pipe from 
the existing filters, pass through three new UV 
Reactors, and then discharge into the existing 
Chlorine Contact Tank.

We will cut into the existing 24-inch gravity 
outlet pipeline from the contact tank, increase 
it in size to 30-inches, and feed water by 
gravity to a new Effluent Pump Station that 
includes overflow pipes to Recovery Pond 
number 5. Water will be conveyed by the new 
Effluent Pump Station through a new force 
main routed to the northeast side of the site 
and continue in W. Via Bello Drive to existing 
reservoir R5-2.

In the existing Filter Building, we will replace 
the existing UV Reactors with new UV Reactors 
(as described above), replace existing UV 
recovery pumps with new vertical turbine 
pumps, replace the existing GAC pumps with 
new split-case horizontal pumps, and replace 
the existing air blowers and air piping. 

We will install three Dissolved Air Flotation 
(DAF) units for solids removal. Existing piping 
will be modified so that water can be directed 
to the DAF units from Backwash Recovery 
Ponds 1 through 6 or from a sludge cycle at 
the pre-treatment facility. To accommodate 
fluctuations in the amount of water that are 
to be treated by the DAF units, water will be 
directed into a 50,000-gallon equalization 
tank and pumped from the tank to the inlet of 
the DAF units. Polymer will be stored in the 
vicinity of the DAF units and dosed upstream 
of the inlet to the DAF units, and mixed into 
the water using a static mixer.

We will also be replacing the pumps in several 
locations. The UV recovery pumps will be 
replaced with larger pumps sized to handle 
the new maximum flow. The GAC Influent 
Pumps will be replaced with new larger 
pumps with VFD control to divert one-third 
of the UV effluent to the GAC vessels. The 
decant pumps at Recovery Ponds 1-4 will be 
replaced, and similarly, the decant pumps at 
Recovery Ponds 5 and 6 will be replaced. 

EQUALIZATION TANK 

DAF EQUIPMENT
MODIFICATIONS AT 
PARSHALL FLUME

NEW GAC AND UV 
RECOVERY PUMPS IN 
EXISTING BUILDINGS

POLYMER 
EQUIPMENT

RETAINING 
WALL

NEW FILTER 
BUILDING

INFLUENT 
PUMP STATION

EFFLUENT 
PUMP STATION

RECYCLE POND 5-6 
MODIFICATIONS AND 
PUMP REPLACEMENT

RECYCLE POND 1-4 
MODIFICATIONS AND  
PUMP REPLACEMENT

Figure 3.1: Summary of Plant Improvements

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 48



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:3

TRIDENT CLARIFIER/FILTERS
The new Trident Clarifiers/Filter units will 
expand the existing plant capacity of 14.4 
MGD to 21.6 MGD and allow an additional 
increase with future Trident units to up to 30.4 
MGD total plant capacity. We will provide 
three Trident units consisting of an upflow 
clarifier section and a downflow filter section, 
similar to the existing Trident units already 
installed onsite. The new units will have the 
same per-unit capacity as the existing filters, 
with similar operation.

One difference between the existing Trident 
filters and the new filters provided is the 
backwash/surface wash function. A two-step 
process cleans the existing filters: first, a water 
surface wash uses pressurized water from 
the Surface Wash Pump Station for a surface 
scour of the filter media; and second, a filter 
backwash delivers reverse flow through the 
filter media. Instead, the new filters will use an 
air scour for the surface wash, followed by a 
water backwash reverse-flow cycle.

Our design approach recognizes that in 
order for the design of the new filters to be 
complete, the pre-engineered building and 
the building footing must be progressed far 
enough to avoid conflicts between the piping 

and the footing and allow access space 
between the building and the instruments 
and piping. This is why our design approach 
will prioritize finalizing the filter arrangement 
and requirements with manufacturer and also 
prioritizing the design of the pre-fabricated 
building. These two activities will begin as 
soon as possible after receiving the Notice 
To Proceed. We will use the information from 
the pre-fabricated building supplier to finalize 
the foundation requirements, and then adjust 
or finalize our preliminary underground pipe 
layout to coordinate with structural slab and 
footing requirements.

The underground piping is one of the crucial 
elements of the filter design, with four 
significant design considerations:

1. The underground piping will be designed 
to allow an above-ground piping layout 
that allows access to valves, meters, and 
other equipment.

2. The underground piping will be designed 
so that is not underneath the building 
footing.

3. The piping will be designed to be 
accessed and modified in the future to 
accommodate future filters.

4. The effluent piping will tie into the existing 
filter effluent.

SUCCESSFUL TRIDENT 
FILTER INSTALLATION
Stantec provided urban land engineering services 
to the construction and commissioning of a 4.0 
ML/d (1.06 USMGD) water treatment plant for the 
City of Enderby. 

The plant was designed to incorporate absorption 
clarification and rapid rate filtration via a 
packaged treatment plant. Initially one plant 
consisting of an upflow clarifier followed by 
filtration was installed. The building and clear well 
were designed to incorporate a second packaged 
plant, with a building addition planned for a third 
plant to bring the total capacity to 12 ML/d. 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 49



R
O

EM
ER

 W
AT

ER
 F

IL
TR

AT
IO

N
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y 
20

22
 U

PG
R

A
D

ES
 A

N
D

 E
XP

A
N

SI
O

N

III
:4

SH
EE

T 
KE

YN
O

TE
S

 Fi
lte

r s
up

pl
y 

fro
m

 In
flu

en
t P

um
p

St
at

io
n

Fu
tu

re
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f f

ilt
er

 s
up

pl
y 

Tr
id

en
t f

ilt
er

 u
ni

t (
ty

p 
of

 3
)

Fu
tu

re
 T

rid
en

t f
ilt

er
 u

ni
t

Ai
r s

co
ur

 s
up

pl
y

Fi
lte

r b
ac

kw
as

h 
su

pp
ly

Fi
lte

r b
ac

kw
as

h 
dr

ai
n

Ba
ck

w
as

h 
su

pp
ly

 fr
om

 E
ffl

ue
nt

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n

Pr
es

su
re

 R
ed

uc
in

g/
Fl

ow
 C

on
tro

l
va

lv
e

Ex
is

tin
g 

dr
ai

n 
to

 R
ec

ov
er

 P
on

ds
5 

& 
6

Fi
lte

r t
o 

w
as

te
 s

um
p

N
ew

 fi
lte

r b
ui

ld
in

g

O
ffi

ce
 a

re
a 

in
 n

ew
 F

ilt
er

 B
ui

ld
in

g

Fr
om

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ba

ck
w

as
h 

su
pp

ly

O
ve

rh
ea

d 
cr

an
e

Fu
tu

re

Ac
ce

ss
 p

la
tfo

rm

Fi
lte

r e
ffl

ue
nt

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

N
EW

 F
IL

TE
R

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
EC

TI
O

N

N
EW

 F
IL

TE
R

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N

1

1

2

3

3

4

4
4

5
5

6

11

7

7

8

9

10

12

12

13

14

15

16

16

17

17

17

6

18

EX
H

IB
IT

 3
: N

EW
 F

IL
TE

R
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 P

LA
N

 A
N

D
 S

EC
TI

O
N

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 50



R
O

EM
ER

 W
AT

ER
 F

IL
TR

AT
IO

N
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y 
20

22
 U

PG
R

A
D

ES
 A

N
D

 E
XP

A
N

SI
O

N

III
:5

N
EW

 A
N

D
 F

U
TU

R
E 

FI
LT

ER
S 

(B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EM

O
VE

D
)

N
EW

 A
N

D
 F

U
TU

R
E 

FI
LT

ER
S 

AN
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S

SH
EE

T 
KE

YN
O

TE
S

 Fi
lte

r s
up

pl
y 

fro
m

 In
flu

en
t P

um
p

St
at

io
n

Fu
tu

re
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f f

ilt
er

 s
up

pl
y 

Tr
id

en
t f

ilt
er

 u
ni

t (
ty

p 
of

 3
)

Fu
tu

re
 T

rid
en

t f
ilt

er
 u

ni
t

Ai
r s

co
ur

 s
up

pl
y

Fi
lte

r b
ac

kw
as

h 
su

pp
ly

Fi
lte

r b
ac

kw
as

h 
dr

ai
n

Ba
ck

w
as

h 
su

pp
ly

 fr
om

 E
ffl

ue
nt

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n

Pr
es

su
re

 R
ed

uc
in

g/
Fl

ow
 C

on
tro

l
va

lv
e

Ex
is

tin
g 

dr
ai

n 
to

 R
ec

ov
er

 P
on

ds
5 

& 
6

Ex
is

tin
g 

fil
te

r b
ui

ld
in

g

N
ew

 fi
lte

r b
ui

ld
in

g

O
ffi

ce
 a

re
a 

in
 n

ew
 F

ilt
er

 B
ui

ld
in

g

Fr
om

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ba

ck
w

as
h 

su
pp

ly

O
ve

rh
ea

d 
cr

an
e

Fu
tu

re

Ac
ce

ss
 p

la
tfo

rm

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

1

2

3

4
4

4

5

6

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16
16

16

17

1

2

3

4
4

4

5

7

8

9

10
16

16
16

17

EX
H

IB
IT

 4
: N

EW
 F

IL
TE

R
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 (3

D
 V

IE
W

)

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 51



R
O

EM
ER

 W
AT

ER
 F

IL
TR

AT
IO

N
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y 
20

22
 U

PG
R

A
D

ES
 A

N
D

 E
XP

A
N

SI
O

N

III
:6

SH
EE

T 
KE

YN
O

TE
S

 Fi
lte

r s
up

pl
y 

fro
m

 In
flu

en
t P

um
p

St
at

io
n

Fu
tu

re
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f f

ilt
er

 s
up

pl
y 

Tr
id

en
t f

ilt
er

 u
ni

t (
ty

p 
of

 3
)

Fu
tu

re
 T

rid
en

t f
ilt

er
 u

ni
t

Ai
r s

co
ur

 s
up

pl
y

Fi
lte

r b
ac

kw
as

h 
su

pp
ly

Fi
lte

r b
ac

kw
as

h 
dr

ai
n 

(b
eh

in
d)

Ba
ck

w
as

h 
su

pp
ly

 fr
om

 E
ffl

ue
nt

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n

Pr
es

su
re

 R
ed

uc
in

g/
Fl

ow
 C

on
tro

l
va

lv
e

Fi
lte

r e
ffl

ue
nt

 p
ip

in
g

C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

po
in

t t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

fil
te

r
ef

flu
en

t

Fr
om

 e
xi

st
in

g 
fil

te
rs

C
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 U
V 

tre
at

m
en

t

Fr
om

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ba

ck
w

as
h 

su
pp

ly

Fi
lte

r t
o 

w
as

te
 s

um
p

Fi
lte

re
d 

w
at

er

Fu
tu

re

Ac
ce

ss
 p

la
tfo

rm

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

N
EW

 A
N

D
 F

U
TU

R
E 

FI
LT

ER
S,

 E
FF

LU
EN

T 
SI

D
E

N
EW

 A
N

D
 F

U
TU

R
E 

FI
LT

ER
S,

 IN
FL

U
EN

T 
SI

D
E

18

18

1

2

7

3

3

4
4

4

444

5

5
6

8

9

10

11

12

13

13

14

15

16

16

16

17

17
17

17

EX
H

IB
IT

 5
: N

EW
 F

IL
TE

R
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 (3

D
 V

IE
W

 O
F 

IN
FL

U
EN

T 
A

N
D

 E
FF

LU
EN

T 
SI

D
ES

)

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 52



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:7

We evaluated the piping design in the DCR 
and have made some modifications for this 
proposal. Our design moves the 
Filter Influent and the Backwash 
Waste drain closer to the center 
of the building so that no pipes 
are located under the building 
footing. The backwash waste piping will be 
hard piped directly into a 24-inch drain, and 
a catch basin for the filter-to-waste piping will 
be installed on the effluent side of the filters. 
The filter-to-waste piping will discharge into a 
common header and then deposit water into 
the catch basin with an air gap to satisfy DDW 
requirements. We have confirmed with the 
manufacturer that this change will not restrict 
the performance of the filters.

We will design the new filters for longevity 
to maximize the useful life of the equipment. 
The oldest of the existing Trident filters have 
been in service for nearly 30 years, with more 
useful years of service likely. The filters and 
piping possibly have 30+ years of useful 
life. Valving is expected to have a useful life 
of at least 20 years before replacements or 
refurbishment is required. The instrumentation 
has a useful life of 15 years. West Valley can 
expect several decades of useful service life 
from the Trident filters with proper operation 
and upkeep.

UV REACTORS
New UV Reactors will replace the existing 
reactors located in the UV reactor gallery on 
the lower level of the existing Filter Building. 
The selected equipment is by Trojan SWIFT, 
the model number is 4L24, with a design 
flow up to 15.2 MGD. The lay length of the 
new reactors is the same as the existing 
reactors, which will facilitate placing the new 
reactors where the existing reactors are 
currently located.

In addition to the new reactor itself, we will 
replace the electrical panels and controls for 
the UV Reactors. The result will be entirely 
new UV treatment equipment with the capacity 

Design 
Enhancement

to treat current flows and future Phase 2 plant 
capacity without the need for any additional 
upgrades and also maintaining the 2 duty/1 
standby configuration of the reactors.

With regular maintenance of the UV Reactors, 
we can expect a lifespan of 25 to 30 years. 
See below for more information from the 
manufacturer regarding the useful life of 
consumables used in the UV system. Because 
of current supply chain issues, we recommend 
early discussion about procurement 
and storage of replacement UV lamps, 
sleeves, and other consumables to ensure 
uninterrupted service.

DISSOLVED AIR FLOTATION 
(DAF) AND EQUALIZATION 
BASIN
The DAF units will add a robust solids 
removal solution for the backwash 
wastewater and the waste from the sludge 
cycle of the pre-treatment system. In 
our conversations with the District, our 
understanding is that DAF has been an 
effective system for the District at another 
location. Therefore, we will install similar 
DAF units to the existing system at the 
Roemer facility.

The DAF will treat water from three sources. 
The first two water sources is backwash 
wastewater from either Recovery Ponds 
1-4 or Recovery Pond 5 and 6. This water 
consists of water from the Trident Filter 
backwash and filter-to-waste cycles. This 
water is collected in Recovery Ponds 1-5 
and will be pumped to the Equalization Tank 
from the Decant Pumps at Recovery Ponds 
1-4 and the Decant Pumps at Recovery 
Ponds 5 and 6. The third water source is 

UV System Lifecycle (Useful Life)

UV Lamp: 12,000 to 14,000 hours
UV Drivers: 10 to 15 years
Control Panel: 20+ years

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 53



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:8

the sludge cycle at the pre-treatment area. 
This will allow any pump or DAF unit to be 
out of service and still run the plant at the full 
design capacity.

The Equalization Tank will be a 50,000 
gallon concrete tank. This size will hold the 
water from two complete sludge cycles at 
the pre-treatment facility. Self-priming 
wastewater pumps located next to the 
Equalization Tank will pump water from the 
Equalization Tank to the inlet of the DAF 
units. The pump station will be a 2+1 
configuration, with each pump sized to 
match the flow required at the inlet of each 
of the DAF units. VFD will control these 

pumps. As we design the 
equalization pumps, we will 
leave space for a future fourth 
pump so the facility can be 
expanded to put all three DAF 

units into operation and still maintain a 
standby pump.

One of the challenges we anticipate with the 
equalization tank is the settling of solids. In 
this proposal we have proceeded with the 
50,000 gallon equalization tank required by 
the DCR to accommodate two sludge cycles 
from pre-treatment. During detailed design 
we will study the plant operational flows to 
confirm this size and reduce the volume 
if possible. A reduced volume will reduce 
settling time.

Design 
Enhancement

The arrangement between the equalization 
basin, the equalization pumps, 
and the DAF units will be 
designed to allow for flexibility. 
Each DAF unit will be fed by an 
individual supply pipe from the 
equalization pump station, and each pump 
will be able to feed to two of the DAF units. 
This will allow any pump to be out of service 
or any DAF unit to be out of service and still 
run the plant at the full design capacity. 

Each DAF unit will include two recycle 
pumps and one air saturation vessel to 
provide the dissolved air source. In addition, 
a single air compressor and receiver station 
will be installed at the DAF units that will 
provide air for all of the DAF units.

Our proposed DAF system will collect the 
sludge from each of these units by a gravity 
feed into a sump and then be pumped by a 
wastewater pump to the sludge 
drying beds. We are proposing 
this arrangement instead of the 
progressive cavity sludge pumps 
piped directly to the DAF outlets 
shown in the DCR because this will allow the 
units to be drained and cleaned without the 
progressive cavity pumps limiting the 
maximum flow rate out of the drain ports at 
the bottom of each DAF unit. This will 
provide both greater functionality and 
flexibility to operating staff.

Design 
Enhancement

Design 
Enhancement

Packaged DAF Thickeners under 
construction, designed by Stantec.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 54



R
O

EM
ER

 W
AT

ER
 F

IL
TR

AT
IO

N
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y 
20

22
 U

PG
R

A
D

ES
 A

N
D

 E
XP

A
N

SI
O

N

III
:9

SH
EE

T 
KE

YN
O

TE
S

 Eq
ua

liz
at

io
n 

Ta
nk

, 5
0,

00
0

ga
llo

ns
, c

on
cr

et
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n

D
is

so
lv

ed
 A

ir 
Fl

ot
at

io
n 

(D
AF

)
un

it 
(ty

p 
of

 3
)

D
AF

 In
flu

en
t p

um
ps

 (t
yp

 o
f 3

)

Fu
tu

re
 D

AF
 In

flu
en

t p
um

p

6"
 D

AF
 In

flu
en

t p
ip

e 
(ty

p 
of

 3
)

Sl
ud

ge
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
w

et
w

el
l a

nd
sl

ud
ge

 p
um

ps

Po
ly

m
er

 s
to

ra
ge

 ta
nk

Po
ly

m
er

 fe
ed

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t

10
" D

AF
 e

ffl
ue

nt

Sl
ud

ge
 p

ip
el

in
e 

to
 s

lu
dg

e
dr

yi
ng

 b
ed

s

Ac
ce

ss
 p

la
tfo

rm

Ai
r S

at
ur

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

cy
cl

e
pu

m
p 

sk
id

 (t
yp

 o
f 3

)

Ai
r c

om
pr

es
so

r 

W
af

er
 M

ix
er

 (t
yp

 o
f 3

)

In
flu

en
t f

lo
w

 m
et

er
 (t

yp
 o

f 3
)

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

D
AF

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
VI

EW
S

2

1

2

3

4
5

3

6

7
7

10

9

11

8

8

1

12

13

12

13

1

5
121514

EX
H

IB
IT

 6
: D

IS
SO

LV
ED

 A
IR

 F
LO

TA
TI

O
N

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
A

N
D

 E
Q

U
A

LI
ZA

TI
O

N
 T

A
N

K
 (3

D
 V

IE
W

S)

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 55



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:10

NEW PUMP STATIONS
Two new pump stations will be built - the 
Influent Pump Station and the Effluent 
Pump Station. These two pump stations 
will pump water to the new filters and pump 
effluent from the contact tank to reservoir 
R5-2. These two pump stations are crucial 
to maximizing the capacity of this plant 
expansion, so both pump stations will be 
designed to provide the capacity that is 
currently needed and have room to be 
expanded in the future up to the maximum 
future capacity.

INFLUENT PUMP STATION
The Influent Pump Station will be a canned, 
vertical turbine pump station located 
between the new Filter Building and the 
new retaining wall. We will approach the 
design of this pump station so it meets 
current flow requirements while allowing for 
future expansion and future increase in plant 
capacity with minimal disruption to the pump 
station demonstrated in Figure 3.2.

As we progress the design, we will evaluate 
the pump station performance at current 
and future conditions, which will require 
evaluating the pump selections at current 
and anticipated future conditions. We will 
pay attention to any impact that future 
expansion may have on the performance of 
the pumps that are currently installed. For 
example, the total head loss may be greater 
due to increased maximum flow into and out 
of the pipes.

Phase
Influent PS 

Capacity, Duty + 
Standby (MGD)

Effluent PS 
Capacity, Duty + 
Standby (MGD)

Number of Pumps 
at  each pump 

station

New Plant Capacity 
in This Phase 

(MGD)

Phase 1  
(current project) 8 + 4 8.4 + 4.2 2 + 1 7.2

Phase 2  
(future) 16 + 4 16.8 + 4.2 4 + 1 16.8

Figure 3.2: Influent & Effluent Pump Capacity

EFFLUENT PUMP STATION
The Effluent Pump Station receives water by 
gravity from the Chlorine Contact Tank and 
pumps to reservoir R5-2. In addition to the 
pumps themselves, this station provides an 
overflow function, so that excess water is 
relieved to Recovery Pond 5.

The Effluent Pump Station will also be 
designed to be expanded when the plant 
capacity is increased in the future. We 
will design the Effluent Pump Station by 
evaluating the pump so they perform well 
for the capacity requirements of this Project 
and the future capacity projections for 
Phase 2. The pump station will be designed 
to meet Hydraulic Institute standards and 
have the minimum footprint possible due 
to the low space available at the selected 
pump station location.

We will size the passive overflow, so the 
maximum overflow capacity is equal to the 
maximum Effluent Pump Station flow. In 
the event that this pump station is not in 
operation, the overflow will allow for 100% 
flow through the pump station.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 56



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:11

MODIFIED PUMP STATIONS
Four pump stations will be modified, and 
each has specific design requirements and 
considerations unique to that pump station. 
These modified pump stations consist of the 
UV recovery pump station, the GAC pump 
station, the Ponds 1-4 pump station and 
modifications to these ponds, and Ponds 5 
and 6 pump stations and the modifications to 
these ponds.

1. UV RECOVERY PUMP STATION
The UV recovery pumps will be replaced, 
so the total maximum capacity of the pump 
station equals the new maximum capacity 
of the treatment plant. The purpose of this 
pump station is to return non-compliant 
water to the influent blending ponds. The 
pump station will maintain the current 
process flow procedure: when water is 
determined to be non-compliant, valves 
dump water downstream of the UV Reactors 
into the existing wetwell of the UV pump 
station. The UV recovery pumps then 
convey water through a pipeline that can be 
directed to either or both Influent Blending 
Ponds 1 and 2.

The DCR indicates that the butterfly valve on 
the discharge is to modulate to maintain the 
pump discharge pressure at 13 psi (30 feet). 
This appears to be higher than necessary 
by about 15 feet, so we propose maintaining 

a pressure closer to 6.5 psi, which will 
improve the performance and longevity of 
the butterfly valve used to modulate the 
pressure. Additionally, the static lift of the 
existing conditions appears to be about 
18 feet from the lowest allowable pumping 
level to the pump discharge elevation, which 
pushes the total dynamic head requirement 
higher than indicated in the DCR to 34-
feet, which will require a larger impeller trim 
and motor. The asset register indicates the 
pumps should be Peerless 16HXB, and 
Appendix G of the DCR indicates a 17SPM. 
Our proposed UV recovery pump is the 
same Flowserve 17 SPM pump identified 
in the Appendix. However, we will equip 
this pump with a 50 HP motor instead of 
the 40HP motor indicated in the DCR to 
accommodate the anticipated higher total 
dynamic head requirements.

We will design the new pump station by 
confirming the existing dimensions of the 
pump support pad, discharge header, and 
wetwell depth. The new pumps will be 
installed with new 12-inch discharge pipe 
and fittings, and the design will reuse the 
existing 12-inch check valve and 2-inch air 
relief valve. The existing 24-inch header will 
remain.

Additionally, we will modify the header so 
that instead of leaving the building through 
the northeast wall of the Filter Building, the 
discharge header continues straight out the 
southeast side of the building and is routed 
underground to the tie in point where the 
flow splits to the two blending ponds. As we 
design this pipe segment, we will coordinate 
this pipe routing with the new retaining wall 
and the vehicle access route along the 
northeast side of the Filter Building.

2. GAC PUMP STATION
We will replace the existing GAC pumps in 
the lower level of the existing Filter Building 
with new pumps, valves, and associated 
piping. The existing pumps have a capacity 
of 2100 gpm each (per the Phase III We confirmed the fit of the new UV Recovery pumps 

in the existing pump station location

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 57



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:12

Expansion project). The new pumps will be 
3,500 gpm each, for a total flow of 7,000 
gpm (10 MGD). Each of the GAC vessels 
can treat up to 1 MGD, so all ten GAC 
vessels will be able to be in operation at the 
same time.

Our approach to designing this pump station 
will be to start with the flow requirement 
described above and then determine the 
total dynamic head these pumps will see 
at that design flow rate. The new pumps 
will increase the design flow rate at each 
of these pumps by over 50%, so we will 
carefully review the existing piping and 
the pump selection to ensure the new 

installation complies with the 
recommendations of Hydraulic 
Institute 9.6.6. We will carefully 
look at the suction piping and 
design, so the new suction 
piping uses the existing 12-

inch pipe penetrations and complies with 
hydraulic institute recommendations for 
suction piping.

The new pumps will require modification 
to the existing pump equipment pads, the 
suction and discharge valves, and piping. 
The new pumps will be equipped with 
variable speed drives to modulate flow 
through the GAC as the flow through the 
plant increases and decreases. 

3 AND 4 PUMP STATIONS AT RECOVERY 
PONDS 1-4 AND RECOVERY PONDS  
5 AND 6
We will replace the existing decant pumps at 
Recovery Ponds 1-4 and at Recovery Ponds 
5 and 6. Water from both of these ponds 
will be directed to one of three locations, 
depending on water quality and plant 
operation requirements. Our approach will be 
to evaluate the pumping requirements for all 
three of the destinations: Pretreatment, the 
DAF Equalization tank, or Sludge Ponds. Each 
of these three conditions will have separate 
total dynamic head conditions, so we will 
make the final pump selection based on that 

Design 
Enhancement

We confirmed the fit of the new GAC pumps in the 
existing pump station location

evaluation so that all modes of operation can 
be performed by the selected pumps.

4.4.2 HYDRAULIC 
CAPACITY
The addition of the new Trident filters will add 
an additional 7.2 MGD of treatment capacity 
to the existing 14.4 MGD treatment capacity. 
That additional capacity will be routed through 
the new Influent Pump Station, new filters, 
and the new Effluent Pump Station. Each 
of these systems will be designed for this 
current capacity of 7.2 MGD and will also 
be designed for future expansion to add an 
additional 9.6 MGD of treatment capacity. 
The new treatment loop and the existing 
treatment loop will pass through the UV 
Reactors and the Chlorine Contact Tank. The 
UV Reactors have a total capacity of 30.4 
MGD, which is enough to handle a future 
increase in capacity. The Chlorine Contact 
Tank currently operates as a treated water 
reservoir. It has a sufficient volume for the 
additional capacity that will be added with this 
Project and the future capacity.

The UV recovery pump station and the GAC 
pump station will be upgraded with this 
Project to be adequately sized for the new 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 58



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:13

Equipment New 
Capacity

Existing Capacity  
to Remain

Total Capacity After 
Project Completion

Additional 
Future Capacity

Clarifier/Filters 7.2 MGD 14.4 MGD 21.6 MGD 9.6 MGD

Influent Pumps 7.2 MGD 14.4 MGD 21.6 MGD 9.6 MGD

Effluent Pumps 7.2 MGD 14.4 MGD 21.6 MGD 9.6 MGD

UV Reactors 30.4 MGD – 30.4 MGD 0

UV Recover PS 21.6 MGD – 21.6 MGD 0

GAC Pump Station 10.0 MGD – 10 MGD 0

DAF 2.0 MGD – 2.0 MGD 0

Figure 3.3: Plant Hydraulic Capacity

capacity of the plant. In order to minimize 
pumping costs, most of the pumps will be 
equipped with variable speed drives. This 
will allow pumps to reduce the electrical 
power they draw as the flow through the 
plant decreases below the maximum flow. 
Pumps will be chosen with the best efficiency 
at their average operating point so that the 
pump operates at higher efficiencies more 
frequently.

Figure 3.3 indicates what the hydraulic 
capacity of the facility will be after 
this Project and after future projected 
expansions. It also illustrates how the 
various elements are sized to ensure the 
plant can operate at the maximum hydraulic 
capacity of the filtration treatment.

4.4.3 NON-PROCESS 
DESIGN AND 
AUXILIARY FACILITIES
CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCING
Initial site mobilization will have trailers for 
construction, owner space, and meeting 
space located between the new DAF unit 
site and the existing chemical building. This 
will allow the trailers to remain for the entire 
duration of the Project. Construction parking 

will be along Riverside Avenue. A temporary 
badge access point will be installed at the 
existing fence to control access to the site. 
Surveillance cameras will be installed to 
document the movement of workers. It is 
anticipated the construction Project Manager 
and Superintendent will have access to the 
existing gate along Riverside Avenue to 
allow access for material and equipment 
deliveries. There is ample room at the north 
fence line for the storage of materials. We 
do not anticipate any large spoil piles; major 
excavation material will be loaded and 
disposed of off-site. Spoil material related to 
underground utilities will be small enough to 
stay within the boundaries of the work. During 
the construction of work on the east side of 
the existing building, an access road will be 
put in place at the new Effluent Pump Station 
to allow access for the operators to the rest of 
the site. Once the retaining wall is complete, 
this access road will be restored. Stormwater 
management will follow the requirement of 
the approved SWPPP Plan and PCL’s Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) as part of our 
HSE Plan. 

See our detailed site logistics plan for the 
Roemer Water Filtration Facility Project in 
Appendix B. 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 59



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:14

Our overall approach to the Civil and 
Pipeline design will be to collect information 
on existing conditions and methodically lay 
out the facilities in a way that maximizes 
value and constructability. The grading and 
paving design will prioritize site accessibility 
while also accomplishing stormwater runoff 
management. Underground utility design will 
prioritize functional operation of new utilities, 
protection of existing utilities in place, and 
designing for future maintenance access. 
For the Roemer WFF design, yard piping 
design has been well established by the 
DCR. The yard piping design will be refined 
via onsite potholing explorations with backfill 
requirements dictated by site geotechnical 
exploration findings. New yard piping will be 
located outside of the zone of influence of 
new and existing structures where possible. 
The treated effluent pipeline alignment will 
be offset from the centerline of West Via 
Bella Drive to maintain adequate separation 
from the sewer that runs on the northern 
side of the road. Offsetting the pipeline 
alignment from the centerline also allows for 
public access to be maintained along the 
north side of the road, see Figure 3.4 for a 
graphic representation of where construction 

equipment, safety equipment, and access will 
be staged during construction.

Modifications to existing pipelines and other 
facilities will be designed and constructed to 
minimize service interruptions and maximize 
operator and owner access to the facilities 
for concurrent operation. Existing facilities to 
be abandoned will be thoroughly assessed to 
optimize constructability. It is anticipated that 
to-be-abandoned facilities will be filled with 
controlled low-strength material (CLSM).

The grading and surface drainage design for 
the Roemer WFF site is less defined by the 
DCR, so this will be developed by avoiding 
areas of ponding, maintaining drivable slopes 
in paved areas, directing runoff away from 
new and existing structures (above and below 
grade), and minimizing new storm drain 
piping. Stantec proposes to incorporate onsite 
management of stormwater where feasible, 
including the use of drywells, infiltration 
trenches, and other best management 
practices (BMPs). The expectations for 
pavement design are well established, with 
new pavement areas and replacement-of-
existing pavement areas being delineated in 

Figure 3.4: Anticipated Construction on W Via Bello Dr. 
(utility locations to be confirmed by potholing)

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 60



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:15

the DCR. Pavement design sections will be 
dictated by geotechnical findings. Roadway 
widths and turning radii will be optimized 
using AutoTurn software to ensure the 
necessary vehicles, including emergency 
service vehicles, can access the facilities 
safely and reliably. We understand the DCR 
documents are based on historical survey 
information, so we propose performing our 
own detailed field surveys to confirm site 
conditions and inform the grading, paving, 
and surface drainage design.

NEW FILTER BUILDING
The new Filter Building will be a pre-
engineered metal building located next to 
the existing Filter Building. The new Filter 
Building will be designed for continuity of 
appearance between the existing building and 
the new building and take into consideration 
the unique structural and code requirements 
involved with installing this new building 
adjacent to the existing building.

Our preliminary structural analysis indicates 
that a minimum structural gap between the 
buildings of 10-inches is required per CBC 
and ASCE7-16. This gap allows for separate 
structural movement in a seismic event. This 
gap will be made up of non-structural flashing 
between the new building and the gutter of 
the existing building. 

We performed a code analysis of the 
combined existing and new buildings, which 
indicates that the overall footprint of the 
existing and new buildings exceeds the 
maximum footprint allowed by the California 
Building Code. The cause of the restriction 
is the Sodium Hypochlorite stored in the 
chemical area of the existing Filter Building, 
which triggers an H-4 classification for the 
buildings when more than 500 gallons are 
present. This limits the overall footprint to 
30,875 SF, which is 700 SF less than the 
footprint indicated in the Design Criteria 
Report.

We will continue to investigate alternative 
methods to keep the buildings at the same 
overall footprint indicated in the Design 
Criteria Report, but if an alternative is not 
found, then the new building will be shortened 
by 12-feet to comply with the California 
Building Code. We studied the effect that 
shortening the building will have on the future 
treatment expansion to confirm that future 
expansion will still be possible. Refer to 
Figure 3.5 on the following page for details of 
the proposed arrangement within a shortened 
building and some of the other considerations 
we will make while designing and installing 
this building.

We anticipate that some cross bracing 
requirements in both the existing and new 
buildings may limit some of the access 
between the sides of the building, but we will 
work with you and the building manufacturer 
to maximize the open space and access 
way between the new and existing buildings. 
Our approach will be to work closely with the 
pre-engineered metal building supplier to 
ensure the design considerations described 
above are fully accounted for in the building’s 
design, and the other requirements described 
in the DCR are fully incorporated into the 
building design.

We reviewed the seismic design parameters 
indicated on the Structural Drawings in the 
DCR and assumed that some modifications 
will be required.  Our proposal is based on the 
following design parameters, based on CBC 
2019 (ASCE 7-16), and the U.S. seismic map 
information for the project location.

Proposed Structural Design Criteria
• Wind Speed: 100 MPH
• Wind Exposure: C
• Ss = 2.206
• S1 = 0.861

Design 
Enhancement

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 61



R
O

EM
ER

 W
AT

ER
 F

IL
TR

AT
IO

N
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y 
20

22
 U

PG
R

A
D

ES
 A

N
D

 E
XP

A
N

SI
O

N

III:
16

R
O

EM
ER

 W
AT

ER
 F

IL
TR

AT
IO

N
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y 
20

22
 U

PG
R

A
D

ES
 A

N
D

 E
XP

A
N

SI
O

N

III:
16

C
A
C
/
F
I
L
T
E
R

N
O
.
 
1

N
O
.
 
2

N
O
.
 
3

N
O
.
 
4

N
O
.
 
5

N
O
.
 
6

A
I
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
Y

R
O
O
M

C
H
L
O
R
I
N
E
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T

R
O
O
M

C
H
L
O
R
I
N
E
 
S
T
O
R
A
G
E

R
O
O
M

C
H
E
M
I
C
A
L

R
O
O
M

U
T
I
L
I
T
Y

R
O
O
M

L
O
C
K
E
R

R
O
O
M

O
F
F
I
C
E
/
L
A
B
O
R
A
T
O
R
Y

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
A
L

C
O
N
T
R
O
L

R
O
O
M

R
E
S
T

R
O
O
M

D
N

U
P

U
P

C
A
C
/
F
I
L
T
E
R

C
A
C
/
F
I
L
T
E
R

C
A
C
/
F
I
L
T
E
R

C
A
C
/
F
I
L
T
E
R

C
A
C
/
F
I
L
T
E
R

I
P
-
1

D
N

I
P
-
2

I
P
-
3

I
P
-
4

I
P
-
5

EL 1577.00

U
P

U
P

U
P

N
2

A EA

E1
N
3

E4
E5

E6
E7

E9

D

E8

B C

U
P

TR
U

C
K

 A
C

C
ES

S

N
ew

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
le

ng
th

 is
re

du
ce

d 
12

-fe
et

 fr
om

th
e 

D
C

R
 to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

C
BC

 fo
ot

pr
in

t
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r H
-4

oc
cu

pa
nc

y

Br
ac

in
g 

on
 th

e 
ne

w
 m

et
al

bu
ild

in
g 

w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e
co

or
di

na
te

d 
w

ith
 b

ra
ci

ng
 o

n
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

ild
in

g,
 e

xi
st

in
g

st
ai

rs
, t

o 
en

su
re

 a
re

a 
m

ee
ts

bo
th

 s
tru

ct
ur

al
 d

es
ig

n,
 O

SH
A

sa
fe

ty
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

nd
m

ax
im

iz
e 

th
e 

op
en

 a
re

a
sp

ac
e 

fo
r p

la
nt

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
.

(3
) F

U
TU

R
E 

FI
LT

ER
S

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
: F

IL
TE

R
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 D

ES
IG

N
 C

O
N

SI
D

ER
AT

IO
N

S

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 62



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:17

POWER SUPPLY & ELECTRICAL 
EQUIPMENT
Our approach to the electrical design will 
involve site data collection of the existing 
Main Service Center (MSC-C) and (MSC) 
switchboards, transformers, motor control 
centers (MCC), power panels nameplate data, 
and connected loads. We will compare this 
data against record-drawings, DCR drawings, 
and the modifications to the DCR in this 
proposal to make sure we have the latest 
electrical load data. We will also measure 
and confirm the existing electrical rooms and 
yard layouts to confirm working space and 
equipment clearances meet codes and SCE 
requirements. We observed that the DCR 
shows the 1500kW generator placed over the 
existing 30-inch effluent piping, which is not 
ideal for maintenance or future modifications 
to the piping. We will investigate 
alternate locations for this 
generator. We will also design 
for harmonic mitigation to 
address the effects of the 
significant number of new variable frequency 
drives (VFDs) added to the facility. 

Once we have all the existing and new loads 
tabulated, we will coordinate with SCE to 
submit a service application for the plant 
modifications. This will determine if SCE 
needs to upgrade its existing service switch 
and transformer. The load tabulation will also 
be used to confirm the existing switchboard’s 
capacity and confirm the size of the emergency 

Design 
Enhancement

standby generator and automatic transfer 
switch. The MCCs will be sized, and elevations 
confirmed with major manufacturers and 
system integrators to incorporate Toshiba 
VFDs. We will match existing site and building 
lighting systems utilizing LED light fixtures. The 
lighting calculations and lighting controls will be 
designed to meet current Title 24 requirements. 
Surge protection will be incorporated into 
service and distribution panels.

We intend to follow the DCR and will 
incorporate existing plant-preferred equipment 
and preferences where possible. 

INSTRUMENTATION & CONTROLS
While the treatment upgrades cover portions 
of the facility, the Supervisory Controls and 
Data Acquisition (SCADA) upgrades extend 
plant-wide. The existing Roemer WFF SCADA 
system is built on the AVEVA (formerly 
Wonderware) Intouch HMI platform, and a 
combination of Tesco and Allen-Bradley PLCs 
distributed across the facility networked over 
fiber. The main servers are located in the 
District Headquarter administration building’s 
SCADA control room, and they communicate 
with the Roemer Facility via radio. The 
Roemer Facility employs remote thin clients 
running Wonderware Runtime Application.

The instrumentation and control system will 
be designed in accordance with the industry 
codes while complying with all applicable 
project standards described in the Design 
Criteria Report. Design considerations will 
be made that reduce the long-term cost of 
ownership both in terms of energy use and 
equipment maintenance while improving 
the overall operability and maintenance of 
the facilities. The facilities will be designed 
with a high level of automation with remote 
monitoring and control. The control system 
will be automated to achieve maximum 
efficiency without undue complexity for 
operations or maintenance personnel.

Current Electrical Loads:
Anticipated New Loads:
Total Loads After Project:
Maximum Load of MSC-C:

Conclusion, no upgrade to MSC-C is 
required.

MSC-C Load Analysis
1,527 Amps
1,299 Amps
2,826 Amps
3,000 Amps

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 63



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:18








































Wonderware

Intouch

The proposed architecture will establish 
a high availability (HA) SCADA system 
providing redundancy and disaster recovery 
measures. Three converged rack servers 
with HA virtualization will be deployed at the 
Roemer WFF to eliminate reliance on the 
remote servers at the District Headquarter 
administration building. Due to the proprietary 
nature of the existing Tesco PLCs, the 
control system upgrade will replace all 
legacy Tesco panels. The main filter control 
panel will be upgraded to the ControlLogix 
Line or processors with considerations for 
redundancy. We recommend configuring the 
distributed PLCs in a ring configuration to best 
leverage the existing fiber infrastructure. 

All new process control systems will tie into 
the facility historian server, which serves as 
the master repository of all data collected by 

the system. The historian will receive data 
from both the new and existing equipment 
and will be capable of performing data 
analysis and automatic report generation 
with pre-arranged process data displayed. 
All plant I/O will be displayed on the plant 
HMI control screens and panel OITs with all 
analog data (as well as alarms and status 
points) historically collected, recorded, and 
trended. Control screens will be consistent 
in presentation, quality, color usage, symbol 
usage, font usage, and navigation options in 
accordance with the existing HMI standard. 
Additionally, we propose that all new starters 
will be networked over Ethernet/IP to their 
respective PLC, providing access to the 
multitude of available diagnostics and 
monitoring data points. However, critical 
control parameters will be hardwired to 
maintain the existing system resiliency.

Figure 3.6: Key Network Segmentation Topology

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 64



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:19

4.4.4 INNOVATION & DESIGN OPTIMIZATION
As we developed this proposal, we identified key elements that required additional design 
progression and analysis. We evaluated options and alternatives and progressed the design of 
certain elements to ensure that we have a thorough understanding of the design requirements 
for this Facility. This section discusses those elements for which we discovered ways to 
innovate or optimize the design.

DAF VS. GRAVITY THICKENERS

We evaluated alternatives to DAF for solids 
removal. In particular, our immediate thought 
was that gravity thickeners appeared to be 
a good alternative that would use fewer 
moving parts. Gravity thickeners are typically 
sized with a maximum surface loading rate 
of 0.15 gpm/SF, so each gravity thickener 
would need to be 80-feet in diameter. Three 
of these thickeners would be required to 
replace the three DAF units, which severely 
increases the footprint requirements and the 
construction costs. The gravity units would 
be this large because the filter washwater 
and clarification/sedimentation solids are 
almixed together, so this becomes a lot of 
water with low solids content. 

Xref .\X-11214029-M-INFLUENT 3D 2021.04.12.dwg

R45'

R25'

24.6' CLR

SHEET GENERAL NOTES

1.

(N) RETAINING WALL, TYP
SEE SHEET S-101

(N) EFFLUENT PUMP STATION

(N) INFLUENT PUMP STATION

0 80'40'20'

N

1. LOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES AND STRUCTURES ARE FROM INFORMATION AVAILABLE
AT THE TIME OF DESIGN. EXACT LOCATION AND COMPLETENESS ARE NOT GUARANTEED.
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER AND UNDERGROUND SERVICES ALERT
(800) 227-2600 A MINIMUM OF 72 HOURS PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION AND SHALL POTHOLE
FOR EXACT LOCATION. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING EXISTING
UTILITIES.

2. EXISTING TOPOGRAPHIC BACKGROUNDS FROM 2006 RECORD DRAWINGS ARE NOT A
PRODUCT OF SURVEY. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ACTUAL SITE CONDITIONS PRIOR TO
PERFORMING WORK.

3. SEE PAVING PLAN ON SHEET C-102 FOR LIMITS OF PAVING.

4. COORDINATE PLACEMENT OF (N) 18" SD ALONG (N) FILTER BUILDING WITH BUILDING
FOUNDATION AND BACKWASH LINE.

5. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE REMOVABLE BOLLARDS ALONG PERIMETER OF INFLUENT
AND EFFLUENT PUMP STATIONS, FIELD LOCATED WITH OWNER. ASSUME 10 BOLLARDS
EACH PUMP STATION, TOTAL 20.

SLUDGE POND NO . 1 SLUDGE POND NO. 2

BLENDING POND NO. 1

SLUDGE POND NO. 3

BLENDING POND NO. 2

PRETREATMENT
FACILITIES

BACKWASH WATER
RECYCLING POND

OLIVER P.
ROEMER WFF

CEDAR AVE

RI
VE

RS
ID

E 
AV

E

N 
AP

PL
E

AV
E

CHEMICAL
BUILDING

(N) CONC
CURB

(N) ROLLING GATE TO MATCH (E)
GATE. MODIFY (E) ELECTRICAL

AS REQUIRED AND RECONNECT

(N) WIDENED CONC
DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE (N) CONC CURB

AND GUTTER, TYP
BOTH SIDES

(N) FILTER BUILDING
FF = 1575.0±

GRADE TO
DRAIN, TYP

FL = 1574.8±

(N) VALLEY
GUTTER, TYP

RESTRIPE PARKING LOT
TO MATCH (E) STRIPING

1580

1575

1580

2

C-502

5
C-502 3

C-502

BEGIN RAMP AT
(E) SD CURB INLET

FL = 1574.2±
4

C-502

FL = 1573.9±

FL = 1574.3±
(N) 24"X36" SDCB

CALTRANS TYPE G1
ON (E) 18" SD
RIM = 1572.9±
INV = 1570.0±

APPROX LIMITS
OF GRADING

1575

(N) 24"X36" SDCB
CALTRANS TYPE G1
RIM = 1574.6±
INV = 1570.5±

(N) 24"X36" SDCB
CALTRANS TYPE G1
RIM = 1574.6±
INV = 1570.0±

(N) 12" HDPE SD

SLOPE
2:1, TYP

APPROX LIMITS OF GRADING

APPROX TOP OF BANK

(E) 18" SD

15811579
1578

15
7715

76

1580

1575

1575

FG = 1574.8±
TYP ALL CORNERS

FG = 1575.0±
TYP ALL CORNERS

FG = 1575.0±

TOE FG = 1575.0±

FG = 1575.8±
TYP ALL CORNERS

80-FT DIAMETER
GRAVITY THICKENER

(TYP OF 3)

GAC

FIGURE TO BE WHAT IS WITHIN THIS RED BORDER

The DAF units have much higher maximum 
surface loading rates, so they can deal with 
the water flowrate more efficiently given the 
configuration in this proposal. In order to get 
the gravity thickeners to a reasonable size, 
we would need to remove the filter backwash 
from the thickener influent. However, this 
would reduce the functionality of the plant 
because backwash water would not be able to 
be treated to a level where it meets the Filter 
Backwash Rule that requires the NTU in the 
water to be less than 2-inches order to return 
the water to the head of the plant.
Conclusion: After performing this analysis, 
we agree that the DAF solution looks like the 
appropriate solution for this application.

Figure 3.7: Gravity Thickener arrangement study

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 65



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:20

DAF REDUNDANCY AND INNOVATIONS

Our proposed layout of the Equalization Basin, 
DAF Influent Pumps, and DAF units uses a 
dedicated pipe from each DAF Influent Pump 
to feed one individual DAF unit. This will allow 
the flow through each of the DAF units to be 
individually controlled to ensure equal loading 
of the DAF units. This layout will include 
interconnecting piping and valving between 
each of the feeds so that one of the other 
DAF Influent Pumps can act as an operational 
backup for the supply to each DAF unit. Any 
combination of two DAF units can be in service 
with any combination of two DAF Influent 
Pumps. Our layout will also include space and 
a blind connection for an additional future DAF 
Influent pump. A future fourth pump will allow 
all three DAF units to be in service with one 
additional DAF Influent Pump on standby.

The DCR identifies the DAF Influent Pumps 
as submersible pumps with a design condition 
of 700 gpm @ 50 feet. One of the design 
challenges for these pumps is the total 
dynamic head requirement will be much lower 
than 50 feet because the total dynamic head 
will consist of the difference in head between 
the equalization tank and the DAF units, and 
the dynamic losses in the DAF Influent piping. 
Conclusion: Our proposed 
solution is to install self-priming 
wastewater pumps in a shallow 
dry pit adjacent to the equalization 
tank. The pumps will be more 
easily accessible, are better suited for the 
relatively high-flow/low-head operating 
condition of these pumps, and have robust 
solids handling ability.

Design 
Enhancement

Figure 3.8: Process Flow Diagram of Proposed DAF System with Multiple Feeds that Allow 
Operational Flexibility

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 66



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:21

DAF REDUNDANCY AND INNOVATIONS CONTINUED

An operational challenge we anticipate is 
solids settlement in the Equalization Basin. 
It is hard to know in advance if this will be 
a limiting factor, but we plan to address this 
from two angles:
1. Analyze the required size. We have 

assumed the requirements in the DCR, 
but if the size of the Equalization Tank can 
be reduced, that will reduce the amount of 
time solids have to settle. We will evaluate 
this by closely looking at the average and 
maximum volumes of water sent to the 
Equalization Tank based on current plant 
operation, extrapolating for the increased 
plant capacity from this project, and 

FILTER LAYOUT INNOVATIONS

Instead of installing a sump manhole at 
each Trident Filter, we will install a single 
sump manhole to collect the filter-to-waste 
discharge. The sump is required to provide 
an airgap that protects against a cross-
connection on the filter-to-waste side of the 
filter but is not required for the backwash 
waste connection. WesTech has confirmed 
the backwash waste connection can be 
hard piped directly to a properly sized drain. 
We reviewed the maximum backwash rate 
and sized the drain to handle this flowrate 

Design 
Enhancement

impacts of future plant expansion. 
 » Conclusion: We may be able to 

make the equalization tank smaller 
and improve the solids retention in the 
water by doing so.

2. Our pump and piping layout allows the 
option to add a recirculation line to 
the DAF Influent piping. In this way, the 
standby pump can be used to recirculate 
water and promote mixing. 

 » Conclusion: The standby pump 
would be used in this capacity if a 
recirculation system were added in the 
future.

by gravity without exceeding 50% fill in the 
drain pipe.

Conclusion: This improvement will make 
future expansion easier because additional 
sump manholes will not be required for 
future filters. The future filter-to-waste 
pipeline will tie into the filter-to-waste header 
that will be installed with this 
project, and the future backwash 
waste connections will tie 
directly into the drain header. 

Figure 3.9: Single Sump Configuration Simplifies Construction and Reduces Cost

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 67



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:22

We will design the new Filter Building as 
a seismically separate structure from the 
existing Filter Building.  This approach 
allows us to leave the existing Filter Building 
as is with only minor modifications, with 
no structural re-evaluation or redesign 
required.  The new Filter Building will be 
designed with the code-required separation 

10"
SEISMIC

GAP
SIDING OF EXISTING FILTER
BUILDING REMOVED TO
13-FEET ABOVE FLOOR

EXISTING FILTER
BUILDING ROOF

NEW FILTER 
BUILDING SIDING

NEW FILTER 
BUILDING COLUMN

EXISTING FILTER
BUILDING COLUMN

NEW GUTTER

between structural elements, so that the 
existing and new buildings will not interact 
with each other in a seismic event.  The 
interface between the two buildings will be 
accomplished with non-structural flashing 
and other architectural elements to create 
visual continuity between the two buildings.

FILTER BUILDING INNOVATIONS

Figure 3.10: Building Codes Require Siesmic Gap

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 68



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:23

The DCR requires replacement of the 
existing air piping as well as the new air 
piping for the new filters. These headers are 
8” size, except that we have increased the 
size of the header leaving the Air Supply 
Room to 10”, and we plan to include an 8” 
blind flange for future expansion that will 
allow the air to be routed as a pipe loop.

A pipe loop will provide added flexibility, 
redundancy, and reliability to the air supply. 
If one portion of the air supply piping has 
to be taken out of service in the future, the 
equipment downstream of that point won’t 
be stranded. This will also allow multiple 
air paths, reducing losses within the piping 
and allowing for the added flexibility to run 
multiple air scour cycles simultaneously.
The District may not be able to make full 
use of the enhancements from a pipe loop 

arrangement now, but there is the potential 
for much larger value when the plant is 
further expanded in the future. Our base 
bid includes the increased header size and 
additional outlet that will allow for that future 
enhancement to be easily accommodated 
without the need to replace any of the piping 
that will be installed with this project.

Figure 3.11 shows the preliminary design 
for the air piping system, with the conceptual 
design for a future addition to enhance the 
air piping into a loop system.

Conclusion: Adding the 
ability to expand the air piping 
into a pipe loop configuration 
provides future benefits to the 
redundancy and reliability of the 
air system.

AIR PIPING INNOVATIONS

Figure 3.11:  Preliminary Air Piping Design with Allowances for Future Enhancement

Design 
Enhancement

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 69



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:24

GAC PUMPS

The existing condition presents a design 
challenge for these new pumps. The existing 
wall penetrations are 12-inches, and at the 
design flow rate of 3,500 gpm, the velocity 
through the suction piping is close to 10 feet/
second, which exceeds hydraulic institute 
recommendations for suction piping. However, 
higher flow rates are allowed for the portion of 

straight pipe that is the same diameter as the 
pump suction. 
Conclusion: By selecting a new 
pump with a 12-inch inlet and 
installing full port ball valves for 
isolation (instead of a butterfly 
valve), the new installation will comply with the 
recommendations in Hydraulic Institute 9.6.6. 

Design 
Enhancement

1

2

3

HI 9.6.6.3.1 recommends that suction velocities be below 8 ft/sec, but higher
velocities are allowed in straight pipe the same size as the pump suction.

The selected pumps will have a 12" suction to maintain a straight run of suction
piping with no change in diameter to comply with Hydraulic Institute
recommendations.

Full port ball valves will replace the butterfly valves to eliminate obstructions in the
suction line.

1

32

Figure 3.12: GAC Pump Layout Meets Hydraulic Institute Recommendations

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 70



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

III:25

DESIGN SEQUENCING

In order to construct this plant expansion, we 
need to have a design in place. Therefore, our 
design schedule will support the procurement 
and construction of the plant, and we intend to 
develop the design in separate packages, so 
the design for each element is complete before 
construction begins.
In general, the design will progress in the 
same order as construction, beginning with 
underground piping, ductbanks, foundations, 
and below-ground structures. This will continue 
with above-ground structures, process 
mechanical, and the lower half of P&IDs. The 
architectural and electrical drawings will follow, 
and then the building mechanical and upper 

half of the P&IDs will be complete. 
Another benefit to developing and submitting 
the design as a number of smaller design 
packages is that the review process for the 
District will be easier, quicker, and more 
collaborative. 
Conclusion: One of the unique 
challenges of this project 
is the short overall project 
duration, which includes design, 
procurement, construction, and 
startup of the facilities. By dividing the design 
into smaller packages, our design schedule will 
help us to meet this goal. 

Design 
Enhancement

CASE STUDY
The PCL design-build team for 
the Miami-Dade WWTP Oxygen 
Production Facility proposed two 
design packages:
1. Foundation Design 
2. Building Design

The Master Permit allowed 
construction to begin on the 
foundations prior to the completion of 
the overall project. PCL was able to 
proceed with foundation construction while 
the design team completed and finalized the 
building design package.

In the case of the Oxygen Production Facility 
project, breaking up the design packages with 
the permitting Agency’s involvement resulted 
in reducing the overall construction project 
schedule by three months.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 71



PART IV 

CONSTRUCTION  
& START-UP  
PROCESS 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 72



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

IV:1

PART IV
CONSTRUCTION & 
START-UP PROCESS 

CONSTRUCTION PLAN AND 
SEQUENCING
Please see 4.5.3 Design-Build Schedule 
for a our detailed construction plan. A P6 
schedule is provided in Appendix C. 

WORK BREAKDOWN 
STRUCTURE/RESOURCE 
LIMITATIONS
Review, approval, and delivery of materials 
are critical to the completion of the project. 
We are comfortable the facility size and 
project scope are not large enough to warrant 
labor or equipment concerns. Self-perform 
crew sizes do not exceed two crews with 
a maximum make-up of six men. Activities 
have been resource loaded and adjusted to 
maintain project flow in regards to labor. 

The underground piping crew will be able to 
address the critical path items and schedule 
the remaining work with plant operations 
to coordinate road closures and other 
construction work. The weekly project meeting 
and three-week look-ahead schedule is the 
proper management tool to communicate this 
work. 

This project’s scope has a significant amount 
of subcontracted work, but the scopes 
are not large enough to warrant any labor 
or scheduling concerns. A majority of the 
subcontractors selected for this project have 
worked with PCL on previous projects and 

have good working relationships. Schedule 
adherence and understanding of the 
design-build process are key components 
to subcontractor selection and, ultimately, 
subcontractor participation in coordination and 
performance for this project. 

Long lead equipment has been identified 
in the project schedule submitted with the 
proposal.  We will utilize the early works 
package to advance the design and release 
the equipment to meet the project schedule.

Experience with Procurement and Delivery 
of Long Lead Materials
A procurement log will be used to prioritize 
materials and equipment and be able to 
determine the critical point when something 
is needed to be released into fabrication. This 
log will also be used to determine what design 
information needs to be developed in order to 
release the materials and equipment. This log 
will be part of the weekly meetings and will be 
a critical piece in the pull-planning sessions to 
further develop the design-build schedule.

In order to meet the project schedule, we 
have identified key fabricated material 
packages that are required for early release:

 � GAC Reroute Piping
 � Filter Bldg Underground Piping
 � Sheetpile Shoring Wall
 � Effluent PS Reinforcement
 � DAF EQ Tank Reinforcement

4.5.1 CONSTRUCTION 
PLANNING AND SEQUENCING

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 73



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

IV:2

Releasing these work packages as they relate 
to the critical path of the project will ensure the 
shortest period of fabrication and delivery to the 
site.

Optimization of Construction Progress and 
Cost Through Resource Leveling
Underground piping, Concrete, and Earthwork 
activities have been crew-linked to level out 
spikes in labor needed to complete the project. 

APPROACH TO SELF-
PERFORMANCE
PCL will self-perform demolition, clearing of the 
site, excavation, grading, and backfill for the 
installation of underground utilities, ductbanks, 
and concrete structures. Self-performing this 
scope will assist in getting work started in the 
field with early works packages. Temp shoring 
will be self-performed during excavation for 
the Influent and Effluent Pump Stations. PCL 
intends to subcontract the street pipeline work 
to Reservoir 5. PCL will also self-perform the 
installation of all mechanical equipment, pumps, 
exposed piping, work required for temporary 
construction, as well as start-up and testing.  

By self-performing a majority of the project 
components, we can control the project 
schedule, deliverables, and milestone 
requirements. Additionally, we believe a self-
perform contractor can offer a level of quality 
exceeding project expectations with seasoned 
craftsman, a skilled workforce, a single-
source of responsibility, communication, a 
cohesive team dedicated to successful project 
completion, and a world-class quality program.

When self-performing work on a project, PCL 
completes many of the challenging and critical 
path construction activities with its own skilled 
labor force. Much of the process equipment 
installation is specialty or technical work, and 
the risk of an improper installation, which 
typically will not be caught until start-up and 
testing, can be mitigated or eliminated by our 
internal skilled forces.

70%
PCL typically self-performs up 

to 70% of the direct scope of 
work on water filtration facility 

projects, regardless of delivery 
method.

EFFICIENT 
SCHEDULING. We 
leverage trade-specific 

experience to create 
accurate, efficient, and 
dependable schedules.

FASTER TEAM 
COALITION. We 
require less time to 
complete subcontractor 
selection and onboarding.

FLEXIBILITY. We have the 
option to supplement any 

subcontracted workforce with 
in-house skilled laborers to 

get the project back on track 
in the event delays occur.

MOTIVATION. We 
inherently have greater 
incentive to complete 
self-perform work on time 
and within budget than 
our subcontractors do.

CONTROL. We are 
better able to manage 
the schedule by using 

internal forces to 
perform the work.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 74



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

IV:3

SUBCONTRACTOR AND 
SUPPLIER LIST AND PLAN
A complete subcontractor and supplier list 
is included in Appendix D. The following 
subcontracts will be issued due to their 
specialty work and labor agreements:

 � Electrical and Instrumentation
 � Rebar Fabrication and Installation
 � Street Pipeline Work to Reservoir 5
 � Permanent Shoring Wall
 � CMU Retaining Wall and Veneer
 � Pre-Engineered Metal Building
 � Bridge Crane
 � Structural Steel Framing for Interior Office 

Area
 � Metal Decking for Office Area Mezzanine
 � Wall Framing and Drywall
 � HVAC
 � Fire Sprinklers
 � Exterior Windows, Doors, and Roll-up 

Doors
 � Painting and Coatings
 � Cabinetry, Flooring, and other Finishes
 � Asphalt, Curb & Gutter Concrete Work
 � Landscape and Irrigation

Subcontractor Prequalification
PCL commits to the success of our trade 
partners which directly translates to 
successful project delivery. PCL has a well-
established and formalized subcontractor 
prequalification and selection plan. This plan 
encompasses the experience, bonding and 
insurance capabilities, corporate structure, 
financial information, safety history, record of 
quality assurance, and supplier references 
of each subcontractor. Our comprehensive 
prequalification program ensures that only the 
best, most qualified subcontractors perform 
work on our projects.

EFFECTIVE APPROACH 
TO SCHEDULING AND 
COMMUNICATION WITH 
SUBCONTRACTORS 
Weekly coordination meetings are held 
on-site for PCL’s construction crews and 
for the project subcontractors. Using the 
schedule as a basis, the upcoming work is 
carefully planned and coordinated between 
construction crews and subcontractors. 
Management staff carefully reviews the 
manpower requirements as well as the 
necessary materials and equipment for the 
upcoming work and ensures the availability of 
PCL and subcontractor staff. 
 
The baseline schedule will be created with the 
entire project team including subcontractors 
and suppliers. By doing so, we achieve 
commitment from all parties which provides 
overall schedule control.  Upon award of the 
Project, the entire project team will meet to 
develop the project activities, sequence, and 
relationship between them. This ensures that 
the schedule is realistic with correct logic, 
durations, and most importantly, has buy-in 
from the entire project team. The baseline 
schedule is the primary tool for coordinating 
subcontractors and suppliers and provides 
guidance for you and the team regarding 
issues requiring their input. Establishing 
a partnership and promoting transparent 
communication with subcontractors and your 
project staff is paramount throughout the 
schedule development, especially at the early 
stages, to identify and incorporate critical 
milestone dates for permitting, construction, 
start-up, commissioning, and training.

WHY PCL-STANTEC?
Our project management process is interactive and involves sharing information; building 
relationships; engaging affected parties, including WVWD’s staff; establishing clear roles 
and responsibilities; managing risks for WVWD; supporting effective decision-making by 
WVWD; and creating a shared vision with WVWD to deliver a quality project.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 75



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

IV:4

EFFECTIVE COORDINATION WITH THE 
DESIGN TEAM, OE, DISTRICT AND 3RD PARTY 
STAKEHOLDERS
Both formal and informal communication among all members 
of the project team is critical to the success of the project. 
The free flow of information solves problems, creates 
opportunities, and bonds the team. Formal communication 
and reporting by the Contractor serves to maintain 
accountability, extend information to stakeholders beyond the 
immediate project team, and enhance your confidence in our 
ability to meet project objectives and deliverables. PCL offers 
the free use of our web-based Project Document Control 
program, PM4+, which allows team access to all project 
documents. It works as an excellent communication tool to 
provide access to shared information by all team members, 
including PCL, the owner, the engineer, subcontractors, and 
suppliers.

While formal communication and reporting is important, 
informal communication and collaboration is equally, if not 
more important. PCL believes that collaboration between 
team members cannot be isolated to occasions when the 
team has scheduled meetings. The purpose of routine project 
meetings should be to report and evaluate project progress; 
not to act as a forum for collaboration. True collaboration must 
happen behind the scenes with individuals from the engineer, 
contractor, and owner working together with their counterparts 
to advance progress of assigned tasks. For example, as 
PCL’s superintendents develop constructability ideas for 
the project, those ideas will be shared immediately with the 
engineer’s staff. Once the ideas are confirmed to be viable, 
the owner will be consulted for approval, the idea will be 
incorporated by the engineer into the design, and the change 
logged by PCL. By providing real-time input and not waiting 
to share these ideas until the next scheduled design review 
meeting, design of the project becomes more efficient and 
significant rework by the design engineer is avoided. 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 76



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

IV:5

4.5.2 APPROACH TO SAFETY

SAFETY IS OUR CULTURE
The PCL Health and Safety program reflects 
our commitment to providing a safe and 
healthy work environment. While our safety 
record is consistently better than industry 
standards, we constantly strive for our goal 
of Zero Accidents on 100% of our projects. 
PCL strives for safety excellence through 
consistently evaluating our programs and the 
processes governing our work. Leadership 
actively participates by modeling the HSE 
policies to our project staff and front line 
craftworkers.  
 
PCL’s Safety Management Center (SMC) 
records safety items and ranks their hazard 
category as A, B, and C. An A-category 
hazard is an immediate safety concern and 
will be resolved before leaving an area. 
B-category identifies a likely to serious injury. 
C-category are likely to cause a minor injury. 
The B and C categories are non-immediate 
concerns that allow the team to discuss 
appropriate measures for remedy. The SMC 
program allows members to document safety 
walks on their smart phones to communicate 
issues quicker with other team members.  
 
Alex Madrid is our Health, Safety, and 
Environmental Manager and will finalize our 
project safety review with all the project team 
members once mobilized onsite. All project 
staff are responsible for safety onsite. Monday 

mornings begin with safety meetings hosted 
by the superintendent and project manager 
with all self-perform crews and subcontractor 
crews to discuss safety specifics for the work 
taking place that week. Our foreman and crew 
leads are required to fill out pre-job safety 
instructions for work tasks being performed. 
The project team is required to perform a 
weekly safety inspection of the site and 
document hazards and positive observations. 
In the Monday morning meeting, these 
hazards and positive observations are 
communicated back to the crews. Each 
project staff member is required to perform 
and document their own safety inspection 
monthly.  
 
PCL intends to install a separate construction 
gate near the generation station. The 
entrance will be equipped with badge access 
to track all personnel onsite. It is anticipated 
material and equipment deliveries will stage 
in the gravel area along Riverside Avenue 
and be escorted onsite through the existing 
entrance gate on Riverside Avenue. Working 
inside an active facility and managing vehicle 
and personnel traffic will need to be reviewed 
and discussed with Operations on a regular 
basis to keep construction work going while 
maintaining plant operations. A project-specific 
safety plan can be found in Appendix E.

ONE OF THE 
BEST SAFETY 
RECORDS 
IN THE 
INDUSTRY

.62 
EMR

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 77



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

IV:6

4.5.3 DESIGN-BUILD 
SCHEDULE
The proposed schedule, an executive summary that includes 
key milestones, government approval durations, design 
durations, procurement, construction, start-up and project 
turnover activities, is included in Appendix F.  A brief roll-up is 
provided below.

The design schedule has been broken out to identify early 
works and overall works that will assist in the release of long 
lead items (LLI). Further development of these activities will 
need District involvement to incorporate any alternates or 
changes from what has been proposed.

Major equipment, underground piping, and selective 
construction areas are tied to the early works design, 
indicated below, and are due to long lead procurement 
durations and the limited design work needed to develop 
construction documents. Work in the field to assist the design 
will encompass investigative borings, potholing, and gathering 
asbuilt information to prepare the project geotechnical report. 
Construction will start with relocating existing underground 
utilities that conflict with the new retaining wall. Once 
existing underground utilities are relocated, the sheet pile 
installation can begin. A temporary road will be installed at the 
Effluent Pump Station to allow the CMU retaining wall to be 
installed without interrupting plant operations. Excavation will 
commence, bringing the grade down and re-establishing plant 
access from the parking lot to the ponds. Work will then move 
over to the Effluent Pump Station to shore, excavate, and 
construct the wet well tank and underground utility work at the 
new Filter Building.  

TOP 
THREE
Benefits of Our Approach  
to the Project Schedule

1. Supports WVWD 
decision-making 
processes, procedures, 
and level of involvement 
expectations.

2. Uses a foward-looking 
approach to manage 
and mitigate potential 
schedule risks.

3. Engages operators 
early to avoid surprises 
during start up and 
commissioning.

NTP 8/2022

DESIGN PHASE

CONSTRUCTION PHASE

Procurement

N D J J JF F FM MA AM MJ JJ JA AS SO ON ND D
2022 2023 2024 2025

Substantial Completion 1/15/2025

OS
Roemer WFF Upgrades & Expansion 
ROLL-UP SCHEDULE A

Early Works Design 11/2022

Release of LLI 1/2023

*Pursuant to the collaborative one-on-one RFP meeting with the District on May 27, 2022, PCL’s team 
relayed that due to the current and uncertainty of the procurement supply chain climate, our proposed 
schedule will be adjusted to illustrate a more realistic timeline for successful completion. 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 78



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

IV:7

 
Underground utility construction will continue 
as work is further planned out with operations 
and access through the site. The major 
concrete work will move from the Effluent 
Pump Station to the Filter Building slab and 
then to DAF. The Influent Pump Station 
excavation and construction will begin once 
the pump can delivery is confirmed and the 
crew’s sequencing of work is confirmed. The 
Filter Building will continue with installing the 
building, filters, mechanical, interior offices, and 
electrical work. This is the critical path on the 
project and represents the majority of the work.  
 
The DAF, pump station, generator, and 
pond work will be scheduled as materials, 
equipment, crew loading, and plant 
operations are further coordinated. Sitework 
improvements will occur toward the latter part 
of the schedule as the need for construction 
parking on Riverside Avenue increases. 
Overall site asphalt work will be sequenced 
with operations. Functional testing and training 
will take place for each separate area prior to 
the full plant testing and final acceptance test.

We have analyzed the District’s request to 
design and construct the project by August 
2024. Due to the current market conditions 
of material delivery and obtaining schedule 
commitments from subcontractors, vendor, 
manufactures during the development of this 
schedule we have determined a 28-month 
duration is realistic to complete the design and 
construction. 

The initiation of the project needs to be taken 
into consideration from formal announcement 
of successful respondent. Project set-up, staff 
allocation and certain activities can begin 
once formal announcement of successful 
respondent is received. However, execution 
of consultant agreements, subcontracts and 
purchase orders will be dependent on an 
executed DBIA agreement. We have seen 
other projects with two notices to proceed. 
NTP No. 1 would allow for the execution of 

CASE STUDY 
Tesla Water Treatment Facility, 

Tracy, CA

PCL implemented a construction plan 
to shorten the schedule and save costs 

at the San Francisco Public Utilities 
Commission (SFPUC) Tesla Treatment 

Facility project.

One of the main schedule constraints for 
this project involved five individual critical 

tie-ins that needed to be completed 
during an annual 35-calendar-day 

shutdown window. The original plan 
required these tie-ins to be completed in 
two separate shutdowns over two years. 
During preconstruction, PCL developed 

a detailed execution plan and day-by-
day shutdown schedule that allowed the 
team to complete all five tie-ins during a 

single shutdown period. PCL successfully 
executed the plan during construction, 
reducing the project schedule by one 
year and saving nearly $25 million in 

project costs for the owner.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 79



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

IV:8

agreements, project setup, permit processing, 
etc. NTP No. 2 would allow for the mobilization of 
labor and equipment to the site. 

Underground piping material procurement 
remains a long lead item and fabrication times 
vary greatly due to project orders received at the 
pipe supply facilities. Portions of underground 
piping are directly tied to the critical path of the 
project, and require full coordination with the 
packaged filters. Early procurement of materials 
will help mitigate long lead item concerns. This 
solution also applies to electrical equipment, 
control, and SCADA systems. 

DBIA 535 section 9.5 has been revised to 
address escalation of cost and time. Cost 
impacts have been adequately addressed for 
fair allocation of risk. However, schedule impacts 
are not as clearly defined. A price index does not 
contain schedule information and therefore the 
burden of proof will rely heavily on the contractor, 
or supplier to prove schedule delays due to 
unknown market changes.With the project set-
up and supply chain concerns, we are proposing 
a 28-month schedule from NTP to Substantial 
Completion to properly design, schedule and 
react to market changes. We believe this time 
frame will allow for proper coordination with the 
District on market changes and ensure delivery of a 
high-quality project.

KEYS TO MAINTAIN 
SCHEDULE 
COMPLIANCE
Our focus during design will be: 

 Finalize any changes of the major 
equipment from the initial proposal as 
well as any design changes identified 
during the selection process

 Confirm early design package scope to 
accommodate the release of equipment, 
materials, and other documents to 
accommodate the construction schedule

 Implement field dimensions and detail 
as-built information into the design 
documents to alleviate changes to the 
design in the field

 Implement construction sequence 
activities into the design process. 
Implement construction tie-in sequence 
activities into the design drawings

 Maintain coordination of the overall 
design drawing with the procurement 
log to maintain the relationship 
between finalized design and releasing 
the remaining materials that will be 
dependent upon the final design. 
Exposed pipe fabrication, valves, 
instruments are some of the remaining 
items that will become critical if not 
released on time

 Maintain DDW involvement for timely 
issuance of Temporary Permit to 
Operate

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 80



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

IV:9

Our team has put together a cash flow chart and graph  
separately in the Fixed Fee attachment. The graph 
represents the anticipated monthly billings during phase 1 
design and phase 2 construction. The impact of long lead 
equipment has been taken into account and represents the 
larger monthly percentages July thru October 2023. 

Upon issuance of the notice to proceed, the Team will 
update the CPM schedule in Appendix C with the most 
current delivery dates based on market conditions. The 
CPM schedule will be cost loaded and used for the 
project schedule of values. The schedule will be reviewed 
and updated monthly. After review with the District and 
agreement of percent complete, a monthly billing will be 
generated and submitted for payment.  

4.5.4 CASH FLOW

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 81



IV:10

Our approach to startup and testing begins 
prior to issuing major purchase order and 
subcontracts. An initial kickoff meeting will 
be held with all stakeholders to understand 
training availability of operations, required 
number of training sessions, hey hold-
points such as factory testing, and roles 
and responsibilities during startup, testing, 
and commissioning of systems. The details 
and expectations will be written into each 
subcontract and purchase order. At this 
time we will also coordinate with design 
activities to ensure proper fittings and other 
items required for startup are included in 
the design and drawings. 

Prior to 25% completion, a second 
meeting will be held to review a global 
plan indicating proprietary equipment 
including MCC’s, AFD’s, PLC’s, influent 
pumps, filters, UV vessels, effluent pumps, 
DAF units and the standby generator. We 
will discuss certification of installation, 
initial testing, functional testing and 
commissioning of all equipment. The 
expected outcome is the agreement 
on the general direction of startup and 
commissioning of the plant. A refined plan 
will be completed prior to the kickoff of 
startup activities. 

Startup activities will begin once 
programming is complete, all electrical 
gear is ready for energizing and all lines 
have been pressure tested. The general 
procedures are outlined in on the left and 
startup activities will follow the below path:

 � Vendor certification of installation on all 
electrical components and the standby 
generator. We will energize each 
system individually as each system 
becomes available for startup activities. 
Also, any remaining tie-in work outlined 
in Appendix F will be coordinated 
with operations staff and completed as 
required to startup the major systems. 

4.5.5 APPROACH TO 
START-UP & TESTING

ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

STEP 1
MANUFACTURER CERTIFICATION OF INSTALLATION
Not only will PCL have each major process 
equipment manufacturer on-site to inspect 
their equipment, we will have them review 
associated pipe and appurtenances and 
verify that these do not present an issue 
with their equipment.

STEP 2
LOOP TESTING
PCL will verify signals from the point of 
origin back to SCADA via loop-by-loop 
checkout prior to testing for functionality.

STEP 3
FUNCTIONAL TESTING (ACCEPTANCE TESTING)
Following loop-by-loop checkouts, PCL 
will check the functionality of all process 
equipment prior to introducing flows. 
Each system will be checked to verify 
that it reacts as intended under varying 
flow characteristics. Filters 7, 8, and 9 will 
be run one at a time in “filter to waste” to 
ensure each unit is meeting water quality 
requirements.

STEP 4
PERFORMANCE / ACCEPTANCE TEST
Once functional testing is complete and 
the District receives the Temporary Permit 
to Operate the 30-day performance and 
acceptance test will begin.

STEP BY STEP

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 82



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

IV:11

and programing of the filter control panel. 
Upon completion of local testing, signals 
and alarms will be verified with SCADA. 
Each filter will be tested in the filter to 
waste mode and water will flow through 
the filters to backwash ponds 5 & 6. Each 
filter will be tested independently during 
the functional testing. Once temporary 
permit to operate is received from DDW, 
all the filters will be put online and the 
Acceptance Test will begin. 

During the Acceptance test and all processes 
are running, the backup generator will be 
tested to ensure backup power for the facility.

 � The UV reactors will be removed one 
at a time and replaced with new. New 
reactors will be run for a minimum 
duration as agreed with operations to 
prove functionality. UV recovery pumps 
and GAC pumps will also be removed and 
replaced one at a time. 

 � Similar to the GAC and UV recovery 
pumps, each backwash recovery pump 
will be removed/replaced one at a time 
and placed into service for an agreed 
upon time. 

 � Other miscellaneous startup activities 
such as the Lytle Creek Parshall Flume 
and hypochlorite system will be completed 
during the same time as major systems. 

Upon completion of the turnover of spare 
parts, operation and maintenance manuals, 
and other documentation, we will place the 
system into fully automatic operation and 
commence the commissioning period. Refer 
to Appendix F for preliminary start-up and 
commissioning plan.

 � The next task will include vendor 
certification and startup of individual 
components including instrumentation, 
motor operated valves and gates 
throughout the facility, the overhead 
crane in filter building and other ancillary 
items such as motorized overhead 
doors. Functionality will be verified with 
SCADA and other startup items such as 
set points, torque, and scaling will be 
completed. 

 � The DAF facilities are currently showing 
to be the first major system that can be 
started-up. Depending on operational 
needs in the facility, this area could be 
started up and acceptance testing begin 
independently of the other areas.

 � The next major system to be started-up is 
the effluent pump station to the reservoir. 
Depending on the operations of the 
plant and current flows, the start-up and 
turnover of the effluent pump station and 
acceptance test could begin prior to the 
filter startup.

 � The startup of the filter building will be 
begin with the startup of the influent pump 
station. We anticipate rotating a fitting 
on the 30” filter influent line and routing 
of temporary pipe back to the influent 
blending pond to create a loop to allow 
verification of flow along the pump curve. 
Other alarms such as temperature and 
pressure will be manipulated to verify 
proper functionality. Moving into the Filter 
Building, media installation will begin after 
the overhead crane startup is complete. 
The filter vendor will complete startup 
of the valves and instruments provided 
with their system and verify functionality 

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 83



OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 2022 UPGRADES AND EXPANSION

IV:12

Operator training will start during the 
installation of the mechanical equipment 
and setting gear so the Operations staff can 
get a deeper understanding of the specifics 
to the project. The team will discuss how 
operations would like to conduct the training 
sessions and a training plan will be produced 
and submitted for approval. Training will 
commence during the startup and functional 
testing period for operation of individual 
systems.

Transitional Training
Overall SCADA system cutover, new Control 
and Laboratory area, analyzer cutover 
will have to be in conjunction with Plant 
Operations considering this is an active facility 
with new and expanded systems. Detailed 
meetings will address current operations and 
switching to a new control room.

Spare Parts
During the submittal phase, recommended 
spare parts will be proposed and 
recommended. Spare parts will be packaged 
separately during shipment and turned over to 
Plant Operations once received. A tracking log 
will be maintained in the event owner spare 
parts are needed during startup. This will 
allow proper replacement of inventory.

Warranty
Draft warranties will be submitted prior to the 
acceptance period to ensure timely deliver 
and approval of equipment warranties. Once 
substantial completion date is determined. 
Warranties will be finalized and submitted as 
a requirement to final acceptance.

4.5.6 ACCEPTANCE AND TRAINING PERIOD 
APPROACH

O&M Manuals
Draft operations and maintenance (O&M) 
manuals will be submitted for general 
conformance to the design. The manuals will 
be used during Functional and Acceptance 
Training. The startup and commissioning 
manager will track and document changes 
and additions flagged during testing and 
training to ensure O&M Manuals properly 
address site conditions that will be valuable 
for future plant operators.

Operations Plan
A final compliance check of regulatory 
changes will be conducted to ensure the final 
Plant Operations Plan meets all regulatory 
requirements.

3.2.a

Packet Pg. 84



 

EXHIBIT B 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 85



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002  

  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  

 
STANDARD FORM OF GENERAL 
CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND 
DESIGN-BUILDER 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Document No. 535 
Second Edition, 2010 
© Design-Build Institute of America 
Washington, DC

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 86



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002  

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Article Name            Page 
 
Article 1 ........................................................................................................................... 2 

General ........................................................................................................................... 2 

Article 2 ........................................................................................................................... 5 

Design-Builder’s Services and Responsibilities ............................................................... 5 

Article 3 ......................................................................................................................... 24 

Owner’s Services and Responsibilities .......................................................................... 24 

Article 4 ......................................................................................................................... 26 

Hazardous Conditions and Differing Site Conditions ..................................................... 26 

Article 5 ......................................................................................................................... 28 

Insurance and Bonds .................................................................................................... 28 

Article 6 ......................................................................................................................... 29 

Payment ........................................................................................................................ 29 

Article 7 ......................................................................................................................... 34 

Indemnification .............................................................................................................. 34 

Article 8 ......................................................................................................................... 36 

Time  ........................................................................................................................... 36 

Article 9 ......................................................................................................................... 40 

Changes to the Contract Price and Time ...................................................................... 40 

Article 10 ....................................................................................................................... 45 

Contract Adjustments and Disputes .............................................................................. 45 

Article 11 ....................................................................................................................... 48 

Suspension and Termination for Cause ........................................................................ 48 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 87



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 1  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

Article 12 ....................................................................................................................... 52 

Electronic Data .............................................................................................................. 52 

Article 13 ....................................................................................................................... 53 

Miscellaneous ............................................................................................................... 53 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 88



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 2  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

Article 1 

General 

1.1 Mutual Obligations 

1.1.1 Owner and Design-Builder commit at all times to cooperate fully with each other, and 
proceed on the basis of trust and good faith, to permit each party to realize the benefits afforded 
under the Contract Documents. 

1.2 Basic Definitions 

1.2.1 Agreement or Contract refers to the executed contract between Owner and Design-
Builder and includes DBIA Document No. 535, Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract 
Between Owner and Design-Builder (2010 Edition) and DBIA Document No. 545, Design-Build 
Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects (2016 Edition), and all Exhibits and documents 
incorporated therein. 

1.2.1 Allowance is an amount established by the District for a scope of work which has been 
identified, but which has not yet been fully defined. 

1.2.2 Basis of Design Documents are as follows: Exhibit A “Design Criteria Report”, and 
those documents specifically listed in, as applicable, in Exhibit C “List of Reference Documents”. 

1.2.3 Change Directive is a directive issued by the Owner, at the Owner’s sole discretion, to 
the Design-Builder to recognize that there is a potential Change Order to the Contract and 
provide the Design-Builder with direction on a path forward on the potential changed work. 

1.2.4 Change Order is a contractually binding amendment to the Contract, which shall comply 
with the Change Order provisions of the Contract Documents.  

1.2.5 Construction Documents are the documents, consisting of Drawings and 
Specifications, to be prepared or assembled by the Design-Builder consistent with the Design-
Builder's accepted proposal and the Basis of Design Documents unless a deviation from the 
Basis of Design Documents is processed as a Change in accordance with Article 9 herein, as 
part of the design review process contemplated by Section 2.4 of these General Conditions of 
Contract. 

1.2.6 Construction Services include construction, testing, commissioning, and acceptance for 
the Project, and all other work as needed to complete the Work as provided for in the 
Construction Documents. 

1.2.7 Contract Documents are those documents identified in Article 3 of the DBIA Document 
No. 545. 

1.2.8 Contract Price or Design-Build Price refers to the amounts set forth in Article 7 of the 
DBIA Document No. 545. 

1.2.9 Contract Time refers to the time periods set forth in Article 6 of the DBIA Document No. 
545. 

1.2.10 Contractor's Construction Schedule is the Design-Builder's schedule for the 
Construction Services scope of work that complies with the scheduling requirements of the 
Contract Documents and clearly identifies the Critical Path of the Work.  

 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 89



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 3  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

1.2.11 Date of Commencement – As defined in Article 6 of the DBIA Document No. 545. 

1.2.12 Day or Days shall mean calendar days unless otherwise specifically noted in the 
Contract Documents. 

1.2.13 Design-Builder is the party to the Contract that is responsible for design, construction, 
commissioning and acceptance testing, and training and other services as defined by the 
Contract Documents. Any and all references to Contractor and Contractor's obligations are 
applicable to the Design-Builder. 

1.2.14 Design-Build Team is comprised of the Design-Builder, the Design Consultant, and key 
Subcontractors identified by the Design-Builder. 

1.2.15 Design Consultant is a qualified, licensed in the State of California design professional 
who is not an employee of Design-Builder, but is retained by Design-Builder, or employed or 
retained by anyone under contract with Design-Builder, to furnish design services required under 
the Contract Documents. A Design Sub-Consultant is a qualified, licensed in the State of 
California design professional who is not an employee of the Design Consultant, but is retained 
by the Design Consultant or employed or retained by anyone under contract to Design 
Consultant, to furnish design services required under the Contract Documents. 

1.2.16 Design Criteria Report describes the Owner’s program requirements and objectives for 
the Project, including use, space, price, time, site and expandability requirements, as well as 
submittal requirements and other requirements governing Design-Builder’s performance of the 
Work. The Design Criteria Report is attached as Exhibit “A” and may include conceptual 
documents, design criteria, design performance specifications, design specifications, and LEED® 

or other sustainable design criteria and other Project-specific technical materials and 
requirements. 

1.2.17 Design Services are those services as defined in Article 2 of the General Conditions and 
in the Contract Documents. 

1.2.18 Not Used  

1.2.19 Final Acceptance occurs once all requirements of Final Completion have occurred and 
the Owner issues a Letter of Final Acceptance. 

1.2.20 Final Application for Payment is the Design-Builder's request for final payment after 
Final Acceptance has occurred and a Letter of Final Acceptance has been issued by the Owner. 

1.2.21 Final Completion is the date on which all Work is complete in accordance with the 
Contract Documents, including but not limited to, any items identified in the punch list prepared 
under General Conditions Section 6.6 and the submission of all documents and satisfaction of all 
requirements therein.   

1.2.22 Force Majeure Events are those events set forth in Article 8 of the General Conditions. 

1.2.23 General Conditions of Contract refer to this DBIA Document No. 535, Standard Form 
of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder (2010 Edition). 

1.2.24 Hazardous Conditions are any materials, wastes, substances and chemicals deemed to 
be hazardous under applicable Legal Requirements, or the handling, storage, remediation, or 
disposal of which are regulated by applicable Legal Requirements. 

1.2.25 Holiday(s) - The day upon which the Owner is closed during normal business hours in 
observance of one of its holidays. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 90



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 4  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

1.2.25 Legal Requirements are all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, 
rules, regulations, orders and decrees of any government or quasi-government entity having 
jurisdiction over the Project or Site, the practices involved in the Project or Site, or any Work. 

1.2.26 Notice to Proceed is the written notice from the Owner to the Design-Builder 
establishing the dates for Design Services and/or Construction Services, and which authorizes 
the Design-Builder to commence with Design Services and/or Construction Services. The 
effective date of the Notice to Proceed shall be no later than the date the Kick-Off meeting is held. 

1.2.27 Other Contractors shall mean any contractors, service providers, suppliers or vendors 
performing construction, maintenance, operations, or repairs in and around the Project Site who 
are not in contractual privity with Design-Builder.   

1.2.28 Owner (or District) shall mean the West Valley Water District, acting through its Board 
of Directors. Owner may include Owner's Representative, where appropriate delegation has 
occurred.. 

1.2.29 Owner’s Representative shall mean person, persons, or entity to whom the Owner may 
delegate responsibilities to, to fulfill the duties of Owner as identified in Contract Documents.   

1.2.30 Project shall mean the West Valley Water District Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration 
Facility Upgrades and Expansion Project, and includes the total design, construction, and testing 
and commissioning of the Work under the Contract and all other work, labor, equipment, and 
materials necessary to accomplish the Project. 

1.2.31 Proposal is the Design-Builder’s submittal in response to the Owner’s Request for 
Proposal, which includes the Design-Builder’s progressed design submittal and upon which the 
Design-Builder based its fixed Design-Build Price. 

1.2.32 Site or Project Site is the land or premises on which the Project is located, and includes 
all areas designated for staging, storage, parking and temporary offices as indicated in the 
Contract Documents. 

1.2.33 Subcontractor is any person or entity retained by Design-Builder as an independent 
contractor to perform a portion of the Work and shall include materialmen and suppliers.  

1.2.34 Sub-Subcontractor is any person or entity retained by a Subcontractor as an 
independent contractor to perform any portion of a Subcontractor’s Work and shall include 
materialmen and suppliers. 

1.2.35 Substantial Completion or Substantially Complete means the date on which Design-
Builder has satisfied all of the requirements for Substantial Completion under the Contract 
Documents, and the Work, or an agreed upon portion of the Work, is sufficiently complete in 
accordance with the Contract Documents so that Owner can occupy and use the Project for its 
intended purposes. 

1.2.36 Work is comprised of all Design-Builder’s design, construction and other services 
required by the Contract Documents, including procuring and furnishing all materials, equipment, 
services and labor reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents. 
 
1.2.37 Work Products are all works, tangible or not, created under the Contract for the Owner, 
as defined under Article 5 of the DBIA Document No. 545. 
 
 
 

 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 91



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 5  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

Article 2 

Design-Builder’s Services and Responsibilities 

2.1 General Services 
 

2.1.1 The Design-Builder will designate in writing a contact person ("Design-Builder's 
Representative") for coordination and communication with Owner. The Design-Builder's 
Representative shall have the authority to make decisions for the Design-Builder firm and shall 
have binding signatory power for changes in work. The Design-Builder's Representative and/or 
his or her designee shall be on the Project Site at all times during work activity. Design-Builder’s 
Representative shall be reasonably available to Owner and shall have the necessary expertise 
and experience required to supervise the Work. Design-Builder’s Representative shall 
communicate regularly with Owner and shall be vested with the authority to act on behalf of 
Design-Builder. Design-Builder’s Representative may be replaced only with the mutual 
agreement of Owner and Design-Builder. 
 
2.1.2 An orderly system for communication between Owner and the Design-Builder is essential 
to the satisfactory completion of the Work. Owner will transmit, directly or through others, written 
instructions, responses or other communications to the Design-Builder's Representative or other 
persons identified in writing by the Design-Builder to receive such communications. The Design-
Builder shall, by a letter to Owner, designate (by name) one or more staff members to receive 
oral and written field communications when the Design-Builder's Representative is away from the 
Project Site and to act as the designated representative. During the times that the Design-
Builder's Representative may be temporarily absent, a staff member shall be authorized to act 
immediately on orders or instructions issued by Owner. If Owner finds it necessary to 
communicate with the Design-Builder Personnel authorized to receive such communications and 
none are available to receive such communications, Owner may suspend all or a portion of the 
Design-Builder's operations at the Project Site to the extent affected by such communications 
until such communications can be accomplished. Formal communications from the Design-
Builder to Owner that are necessary for the performance of the Contract, including documents 
described in the Contract Documents, and any other written communications, will be addressed 
to Owner, unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents. All written communications or 
submittals shall be signed by the Design-Builder's Representative or designee in serialized 
format, and Design-Builder shall maintain logs available to Owner for review and reconciliation 
upon request.  
 
2.1.3 The Design-Builder represents it has the proper business and professional background, 
knowledge, experience and expertise necessary to provide all Design Services and Construction 
Services for the Project. Design-Builder further represents that it and all Design-Builder’s 
subcontractors possess all required licenses in the State of California to provide all Design 
Services and Construction Services necessary for the Project. 
 
2.1.4 Design-Builder makes certain representations in the Contract Documents, including 
without limitation, the representations in this clause. Design-Builder is deemed to make these 
representations by and as a condition of submission of Design-Builder’s proposal. Design-Builder 
agrees that it has single point responsibility for the design and construction of this Project. 
Following award and execution of the Contract, these representations are deemed republished 
throughout the performance of the Work of the Contract and shall also be treated as express 
warranties. 

2.1.5 Design-Builder has at the time of Proposal, and will throughout performance, carefully 
and adequately reviewed the Contract Documents and acknowledges that these Contract 
Documents establish the scope, level of quality, construction intent and the procedures for the 
Design-Builder’s design and construction of the Work to a state of Final Completion. Design-
Builder shall carefully study and compare each of the Contract Documents with the others and 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 92



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 6  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

with information furnished by Owner, and shall report in writing to Owner any errors, 
inconsistencies, or omissions in the Contract Documents or inconsistencies with program 
performance requirements or applicable Code requirements observed by Design-Builder.  

2.1.6 Design-Builder has at the time of Proposal, and will throughout performance, carefully 
examine the Project Site and the adjacent areas, has adequately investigated the nature and 
location of the Work to be performed and has satisfied itself and will continue to satisfy itself as to 
the general and local conditions which will be applicable, including but not limited to: 

2.1.6.1 Conditions related to Project Site access and topography, and to the 
transportation, disposal, handling and storage of materials; 

2.1.6.2 The availability of labor, water, power and roads; 

2.1.6.3 Observable physical conditions at the Project Site and existing Project Site 
conditions, including seasons and climate; 

2.1.6.4 Size, utility capacities and connection options of external utilities;   

2.1.6.5 The surface conditions of the ground, including normal and usual soil conditions;  

2.1.6.6 The character and availability of the equipment and facilities which will be 
needed prior to and during the performance of the construction work; and  

2.1.6.7 All other conditions which may be material to the Design-Builder's performance of 
its obligations under this Contract. 

2.1.7 Design-Builder has at the time of Proposal, and will throughout performance, have the 
experience and capability to efficiently and expeditiously accomplish the Work required under this 
Contract in a timely and satisfactory manner and at the standard of practice of a Design-Builder 
with substantial experience in the Work of the Contract. 

2.1.8 Design-Builder shall supervise, coordinate, and direct the Work using Design-Builder's 
best skill and attention.  Design-Builder shall be solely responsible for, and have control over the 
entire design effort, construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures, and the 
coordination of all portions of the Work, including, but without limitation, site work, utilities, and 
building process systems. 

2.1.9 The Design-Builder shall coordinate, sequence, and organize its work so as to minimize 
the inconvenience and disruption to both the Owner and general public to the greatest extent 
reasonable. Such coordination and mitigation shall include dissemination of information and 
meeting with or notification to the parties who will be affected by the Work, as appropriate, and 
shall be undertaken in cooperation with Owner, and in accordance with any specific Contract 
Document provisions or direction from Owner. Prior to commencement of the Work, the Design-
Builder shall hold pre-installation coordination meetings and prepare coordination drawings that 
document the preplanning of the Work. This process shall ensure the installation of the Work is 
undertaken in an efficient and professional manner in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
In the event that the Owner in good faith determines that the Design-Builder has not complied 
with this provision, or has failed to properly address the inconvenience and/or a disruption to the 
general public or Owner, the Owner shall have the right to change the sequence of the Work by 
providing the Design-Builder with 48 hours' notice, and the Design-Builder will not be entitled to 
any additional time or compensation resulting from the change in the sequence of the Work. The 
Design-Builder's coordination shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

2.1.9.1 Coordinate use of Project space and sequence of installation of equipment or 
other work that is indicated on the Contract Documents. Utilize space efficiently to 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 93



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 7  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

eliminate conflicts in the installation of the Work and to maximize accessibility for 
maintenance and repairs. 

2.1.9.2 When necessary, prepare memoranda for distribution to each party involved in 
the Work outlining special procedures required for coordination and construction. Include 
such items as required notices, reports, construction restraints and attendance at 
meetings. 

2.1.9.3 Coordinate schedule and timing of required administrative procedures with other 
construction activities to avoid conflicts and ensure orderly progress of the Work. 

2.1.9.4 The Design-Builder shall obtain the approval of Owner and notify all other 
affected persons or "Other Contractors" at least forty-eight (48) hours before starting 
work which may block access or otherwise cause undue difficulty to occupants or users 
of property affected, and shall restore such access to a usable condition or, with Owner's 
permission, provide replacement access as soon as possible. 

2.1.9.5 The Design-Builder shall obtain necessary information and identify equipment 
locations and other layouts, as available, to avoid interface conflicts and shall be familiar 
with applicable codes and requirements and perform its work in compliance therewith. 

2.1.9.6 Coordinate execution of the Work with those public utilities, governmental bodies, 
private utilities and Other Contractors performing work on and adjacent to the worksites. 
Eliminate or minimize delays in the Work and conflicts with those utilities, bodies and 
Other Contractors. 

2.1.10 Design-Builder shall be responsible for inspection of all portions of the Work, including 
those portions already performed under this Contract, to determine that such portions conform to 
the requirements of the Contract Documents and are ready to receive subsequent Work. 

2.1.11 The Design-Builder shall be solely responsible for the costs to reperform any Work or 
Services resulting from any and all design that fails to conform to the Design Standard of Care 
including errors, inconsistencies or omissions in the Construction Documents. Design-Builder 
shall take field measurements, verify field conditions, and carefully compare with the Contract 
Documents such field measurements, conditions, and other information known to Design-Builder 
before commencing the construction. Errors, inconsistencies, or omissions discovered at any time 
shall be promptly reported in writing to Owner. 

2.1.12 Design-Builder further represents and warrants it will continuously furnish the necessary 
personnel to complete the Project on a timely basis as required in this Contract and that such 
personnel have the experience and expertise levels to adequately perform the work. Design-
Builder’s representations and warranties stated herein, shall also apply to Design-Builder’s 
subcontractors. 
 
2.1.13 Design-Builder shall provide Owner with a monthly status report detailing the progress of 
the Work, including (i) whether the Work is proceeding according to schedule, (ii) whether 
discrepancies, conflicts, or ambiguities exist in the Contract Documents that require resolution, 
(iii) whether health and safety issues exist in connection with the Work; and (iv) other items that 
require resolution so as not to jeopardize Design-Builder’s ability to complete the Work for the 
Contract Price and within the Contract Time(s). 
 
2.1.14 Within seven (7) days after execution of the Agreement, Design-Builder shall coordinate 

a “Kickoff Meeting” with the Owner to discuss issues affecting the administration of the Work and 
to implement the necessary procedures, including those relating to schedule, submittals and 

payment, to facilitate the ability of the parties to perform their obligations under the Contract 
Documents. At this Kickoff Meeting, Design-Builder shall submit a comprehensive project 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 94



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 8  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

schedule covering all activities from the time of the Kickoff Meeting to Final Completion, which 
clearly identifies the Critical Path throughout the course of the Work. The schedule shall be 

subsequently revised as required by conditions and progress of the Work, but such revisions shall 
not relieve Design-Builder of its obligations to complete the Work within the Contract Time(s), as 

such dates may be adjusted in accordance with the Contract Documents. Owner’s review of, and 
response to, the schedule shall not be construed as relieving Design-Builder of its complete and 
exclusive control over the means, methods, sequences and techniques for executing the Work. 

Owner will issue Notice to Proceed for Design Services with the effective date being the same 
date as the Kickoff Meeting. 

2.1.16 The Design-Builder shall conduct progress meetings in compliance with the Contract 
Documents, unless otherwise agreed in writing. The Design-Builder shall schedule a 
Preconstruction Conference following receipt of the Notice to Proceed for Construction Services 
to discuss the Design-Builder's construction and scheduling requirements in Section 2.12 of the 
General Conditions. For all meetings, the Design-Builder shall make arrangements for meetings 
and prepare agendas with copies for participants. For meetings between Owner and the Design-
Builder, Owner will record minutes and distribute. The Design-Builder shall be advised of and 
shall attend Contract meetings as deemed necessary by Owner and at no additional cost. The 
Design-Builder shall inform Owner at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of any Project-related 
meeting(s) where Design-Builder intends to have a lawyer present. 

2.2 Design Professional Services 

2.2.1 Design-Builder shall, consistent with applicable state licensing laws, provide through 
qualified, licensed design professionals employed by Design-Builder, or procured from qualified, 
independent licensed Design Consultants, the necessary design services, including architectural, 
engineering and other design professional services, for the preparation of the required drawings, 
specifications and other design submittals to permit Design-Builder to complete the Work 
consistent with the Contract Documents. Nothing in the Contract Documents is intended or 
deemed to create any legal or contractual relationship between Owner and any Design 
Consultant. 

2.3 Standard of Care for Design Professional Services 

2.3.1 The standard of care for all design professional services performed to execute the Work 
shall be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the design profession practicing under 
similar conditions at the same time and locality of the Project. Design-Builder agrees to provide its 
professional services in a manner that is in the Owner’s economic and governmental best 
interests, consistent with this standard of care and the Design-Builder’s professional obligations. 

2.4 Design Development Services 

2.4.1 Upon receipt of the Notice to Proceed for Design Services, the Design-Builder shall 
commence the design and the preparation of the Construction Documents per the terms of the 
Contract and as provided in Exhibit B, Scope of Services. The Construction Documents shall 
provide information customarily necessary in documents for projects of similar size, complexity, 
and quality. The Construction Documents shall include all information required to complete the 
construction of the Project, other than such details customarily developed by others during 
construction. 

2.4.2 Contract Schedule shall indicate the times for Owner to review the completion of each 
such portion of the Construction Documents and a reasonable time but not less than 14 days for 
review of same. Design-Builder and Owner shall, consistent with any applicable provision of the 
Contract Documents, agree upon any interim design submissions that Owner may wish to review, 
which interim design submissions may include design criteria, drawings, diagrams and 
specifications setting forth the Project requirements. Interim design submissions shall be 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 95



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 9  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

consistent with the Basis of Design Documents, as the Basis of Design Documents may have 
been changed through the design process set forth in this Section. On or about the time of the 
scheduled submissions, Design-Builder and Owner shall meet and confer about the submissions, 
with Design-Builder identifying during such meetings, among other things, the evolution of the 
design and any changes to the Basis of Design Documents, or, if applicable, previously submitted 
design submissions. Changes to the Basis of Design Documents, including those that are 
deemed minor changes under Section 9.3.1, shall be processed in accordance with Article 9. 
Minutes of the meetings, including a full listing of all changes, will be maintained by Design-
Builder and provided to all attendees for review. Following the design review meeting, Owner 
shall review and either approve, or state what modifications need to be made before such 
approval is given, the interim design submissions and meeting minutes in a time that is consistent 
with the turnaround times set forth in Design-Builder’s schedule.  

2.4.3 Design-Builder shall submit Construction Documents to Owner setting forth in detail 
drawings and specifications describing the requirements for construction of the Work. The 
Construction Documents shall be consistent with the latest set of interim design submissions, as 
such submissions may have been modified in a design review meeting and recorded in the 
meetings minutes. The parties shall have a design review meeting to discuss, and Owner shall 
review and either approve or state what modifications need to be made before such approval is 
given, the Construction Documents in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 2.4.1 
above. Design-Builder shall proceed with construction in accordance with the approved 
Construction Documents and shall submit one set of approved Construction Documents to Owner 
prior to commencement of construction.  

2.4.4 Owner’s review and approval of interim design submissions, meeting minutes, and the 
Construction Documents is for the purpose of mutually establishing a conformed set of Contract 
Documents compatible with the requirements of the Work. Neither Owner’s review nor approval 
of any interim design submissions, meeting minutes, and Construction Documents shall be 
deemed to transfer any design liability from Design-Builder to Owner, nor shall it relieve the 
Design-Builder from its duty to utilize the Design Standard of Care in the performance of its 
duties. 

2.4.5 To the extent not prohibited by the Contract Documents or Legal Requirements, the 
Owner may request that the Design-Builder prepare interim design submissions and Construction 
Documents for a portion of the Work to permit construction to proceed on that portion of the Work 
prior to completion of the Construction Documents for the entire Work. Interim design 
submissions shall be consistent with the Basis of Design Documents, as the Basis of Design 
Documents may have been changed through the design process set forth in this Section.  On or 
about the time of the scheduled submissions, Design-Builder and Owner shall meet and confer 
about the submissions, with Design-Builder identifying during such meetings, among other things, 
the evolution of the design and any changes to the Basis of Design Documents, or, if applicable, 
previously submitted design submissions. Following the design review meeting, Owner shall 
review and either approve, or state what modifications need to be made before such approval is 
given, the interim design submissions and meeting minutes in a time that is consistent with the 
turnaround times set forth in Design-Builder’s schedule. 

2.5 Legal Requirements 

2.5.1 Design-Builder shall perform the Work in accordance with all Legal Requirements and 
shall provide all notices applicable to the Work as required by the Legal Requirements. 

2.5.2 Subject to notice and scheduling provisions, where revisions are required to be made to 
the Construction Documents resulting in a change in the construction because of changes in 
Legal Requirements, the Contract Price and/or Contract Time(s) may be adjusted to compensate 
Design-Builder for the effects of any changes in the Legal Requirements enacted after the date of 
the Agreement.  This Article 2.5.2 shall not apply where there is a Force Majeure event resulting 
in changes to the Legal Requirements, in which case, Article 8.3 will apply. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 96



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 10  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

2.6 Government Approvals and Permits 

2.6.1 Except as identified in Exhibit E to the Agreement (Permits and Approvals), Design-
Builder shall obtain and pay for all necessary permits, approvals, licenses, government charges 
and inspection fees required for the prosecution of the Work by any government or quasi-
government entity having jurisdiction over the Project.  

2.6.2 Design-Builder shall provide reasonable assistance to Owner in obtaining those permits, 
approvals and licenses that are Owner’s responsibility. 

2.7 Design-Builder’s Construction Services 

2.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of Owner or 
a separate contractor, Design-Builder shall provide through itself or Subcontractors the necessary 
supervision, labor, inspection, testing, start-up, material, equipment, machinery, temporary 
utilities and other temporary facilities to permit Design-Builder to complete construction of the 
Project consistent with the Contract Documents. If a request to the Owner is made to provide 
water service, Owner will provide water in accordance with its prevailing policies and practices. 

2.7.2 Design-Builder shall perform all construction activities efficiently and with the requisite 
expertise, skill and competence to satisfy the requirements of the Contract Documents. Design-
Builder shall at all times exercise complete and exclusive control over the means, methods, 
sequences and techniques of construction. 

2.7.3 Design-Builder shall employ only Subcontractors who are responsible, duly licensed and 
qualified to perform the Work consistent with the Contract Documents. Owner may reasonably  
object to Design-Builder’s selection of any Subcontractor or request removal of the Subcontractor 
on the basis that the Subcontractor is not responsible or has not satisfied the Contract 
requirements. If the Owner does not consent to the selection of any subcontractor or requests 
removal, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or removal unreasonably requested, 
then the Design-Builder shall select or replace the subcontractor in compliance with the Contract 
requirement, at no cost or time impact to the Owner. 

2.7.4 Design-Builder assumes responsibility to Owner for the proper performance of the Work 
of Subcontractors and any acts and omissions in connection with such performance. Nothing in 
the Contract Documents is intended or deemed to create any legal or contractual relationship 
between Owner and any Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor, including but not limited to any 
third-party beneficiary rights. 

2.7.5 Design-Builder shall coordinate the activities of all Subcontractors. If Owner performs 
other work on the Project or at the Site with separate contractors under Owner’s control, Design-
Builder agrees to reasonably cooperate and coordinate its activities with those of such separate 
contractors so that the Project can be completed in an orderly and coordinated manner without 
unreasonable disruption. 

2.7.6 Design-Builder shall keep the Site reasonably free from debris, trash and construction 
wastes to permit Design-Builder to perform its construction services efficiently, safely and without 
interfering with the use of adjacent land areas. Upon Substantial Completion of the Work, or a 
portion of the Work, Design-Builder shall remove all debris, trash, construction wastes, materials, 
equipment, machinery and tools arising from the Work or applicable portions thereof to permit 
Owner to occupy the Project or a portion of the Project for its intended use. 

2.7.7 Except in connection with the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at 
the site or adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise indicated in the Contract Documents, 
Design-Builder shall perform all Work at the site during regular working hours, and do not permit 
overtime work or the performance of work on Saturday, Sunday, or any Holiday observed by the 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 97



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 11  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

Owner, without the Owner's written consent. It shall apply for this consent through the Owner's 
Representative. The Owner's Representative shall approve working on Holidays, weekends, or 
overtime, at no additional cost to the Owner if such work was requested by the Design-Builder. 
Design-Builder shall reimburse the Owner for all costs to provide inspection services required to 
monitor the Holiday, weekend or overtime work. The Owner shall charge its direct hourly cost 
plus the Owner’s overhead cost to Design-Builder, and a deductive change order will be written 
and Design-Builder shall sign it to cover this cost. 

2.8 Design-Builder Subcontracts 

  2.8.1 Design-Builder shall use only Responsible (as defined by California Public Contract Code 
section 1103) and qualified Subcontractors and material suppliers.  Unless previously identified in 
Design-Builder’s Proposal, before making an award to a Subcontractor or material supplier, the 
Design-Builder shall identify in writing to the Owner the name, qualifications, experience, contact 
and licensing information, and scope of work for each proposed Subcontractor or material 
supplier.  The Design-Builder shall provide the Owner with a letter which provides all necessary 
information demonstrating that the proposed subcontractor or material supplier satisfies the 
Contract requirements, including but not limited to, insurance provisions.  If requested, Design-
Builder will promptly provide additional information requested by Owner pending concurrence 
from Owner. The Owner reserves the right, which shall be exercised in good faith, to reasonably 
deny or remove a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, or material supplier in the event the Owner 
determines that the Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, or material supplier is not Responsible, or 
that the subcontractor or material supplier fails to satisfy or violates the requirements under the 
Contract Documents.  Nothing herein shall be construed to relieve the Design-Builder from its 
obligations to properly manage, supervise, schedule, or coordinate its Subcontractors and 
material suppliers.  

  2.8.2 All subcontracts will be between the Design-Builder and the Subcontractors. 
Subcontracts should be written to protect Owner from impacts and claims arising from the Work. 
A copy of every subcontract shall be furnished to Owner at least five (5) calendar days prior to 
execution of the subcontract by Design-Builder. The Design-Builder shall be responsible to 
Owner for the acts and omissions of its agents and employees, suppliers, Subcontractors, and 
Sub-subcontractors performing work under a contract with the Design-Builder, and of its lower tier 
subcontractors, agents or employees. The Design-Builder shall require each Subcontractor to be 
bound to the Design-Builder by the terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward the 
Design-Builder all applicable obligations and responsibilities which the Design-Builder, by these 
Contract Documents, assumes toward Owner. Said Contract shall preserve and protect the rights 
of Owner under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the 
Subcontractors that the subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights. Where appropriate, 
the Design-Builder shall require each Subcontractor to enter into similar Contracts with the Sub-
subcontractors. The Design-Builder shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to 
the execution of the subcontract, copies of the Contract Documents and the Contractor’s 
Construction Schedule, to which the Subcontractor shall similarly make copies of such Contract 
Documents available to their Sub-subcontractors. Each Subcontractor will be bound by this 
Article. Subcontractors also shall be provided access to all Requests for Information (RFI’s), 
Schedule Updates, and any other information that arises during the performance of the Work. No 
subcontract or purchase order shall bind or purport to bind Owner. Each subcontract or purchase 
order shall provide, without requiring the prior consent of the relevant Subcontractor or supplier, 
for assignment and delegation of such subcontract or purchase order by Design-Builder to Owner 
in the event of a default by the Design-Builder. If Owner elects to assume by assignment any 
subcontract or purchase order as described in this Article, then Design-Builder shall enter into 
reasonable assignment documentation requested by Owner which may be required to effect such 
assignment. 

2.8.3 The Design-Builder shall make no substitution for any Subcontractor, person or entity 
previously selected without the prior written concurrence of Owner, which concurrence will be 
provided at the Owner’s sole discretion.  

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 98



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 12  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

2.9 Design-Builder’s Responsibility for Project Safety 

2.9.1 Design-Builder recognizes the importance of performing the Work in a safe manner so as 
to prevent damage, injury or loss to (i) all individuals at the Site, whether working or visiting, (ii) 
the Work, including materials and equipment incorporated into the Work or stored on-Site or off-
Site, and (iii) all other property at the Site or adjacent thereto. Design-Builder assumes 
responsibility for implementing and monitoring all safety precautions and programs related to the 
performance of the Work. Design-Builder shall, prior to commencing construction, designate in 
writing a Safety Representative with the necessary qualifications and experience to supervise the 
implementation and monitoring of all safety precautions and programs related to the Work. 
Unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents, Design-Builder’s Safety Representative 
shall be an individual stationed at the Site who may have responsibilities on the Project in 
addition to safety. The Safety Representative shall make routine daily inspections of the Site and 
shall hold weekly safety meetings with Design-Builder’s personnel, Subcontractors and others as 
applicable. 

2.9.2 Design-Builder and Subcontractors shall comply with all Legal Requirements relating to 
safety, including but not limited to, all pertinent safety laws and regulations and orders of the 
State of California, Department of Industrial Relations, Division of Industrial Safety, and U.S. 
Department of Labor, OSHA, as well as any Owner-specific safety requirements set forth in the 
Contract Documents, provided that such Owner-specific requirements do not violate any 
applicable Legal Requirement. Design-Builder will immediately report in writing any safety-related 
injury, loss, damage or accident arising from the Work to Owner’s Representative and, to the 
extent mandated by Legal Requirements, to all government or quasi-government authorities 
having jurisdiction over safety-related matters involving the Project or the Work. 
 
2.9.3 Design-Builder’s responsibility for safety under this Section is not intended in any way to 
relieve Subcontractors and Sub-Subcontractors of their own contractual and legal obligations and 
responsibility for (i) complying with all Legal Requirements, including those related to health and 
safety matters, and (ii) taking all necessary measures to implement and monitor all safety 
precautions and programs to guard against injuries, losses, damages or accidents resulting from 
their performance of the Work. 
 
2.9.4 The Design-Builder shall conduct all operations in a manner that will cause no 
interference with normal operations of the Owner. In all operations, the Design-Builder shall be 
governed by the regulations and rules of Owner and shall cooperate fully with Owner. All 
temporary blockages for the movement of construction materials or equipment shall be 
coordinated with and approved by Owner at least forty-eight (48) working hours in advance of any 
closure. The Design-Builder shall provide and maintain temporary and permanent fences, 
barriers, lights, bridges, and signs and provide such flaggers and guards as necessary to give 
adequate warning to the public and all individuals on or using the premises. 
 
2.9.5 Within ten (10) Days after the date of the Notice to Proceed and before moving vehicles 
onto the Project Site, the Design-Builder shall submit to Owner the proposed Plan for vehicular 
and pedestrian traffic circulation, including the location and types of signs to be used. Thereafter, 
and not later than fifteen (15) Days prior to subsequent changes required by Owner for said 
circulation, sign locations and types, the Design-Builder shall submit revised plans to Owner. 
 
2.9.6 The Design-Builder shall conduct the operations in a manner that avoids injury or 
damage to adjacent property and improvements. Property such as, but not limited to, buildings, 
trees, shrubbery, lawns, pole lines, fences, guard rails, guide posts, culvert and Project markers, 
signs, structures, and other objects on or adjacent to the Project Site, that are not designated for 
removal, shall be protected from injury or damage. If damaged or removed due to Design-
Builder's operations, they shall be restored or replaced in as nearly, but not less than, the original 
condition and location as is reasonably possible. When ordered by Owner, the Design-Builder 
shall provide and install suitable safeguards to protect any object from injury or damage. 
 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 99



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 13  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

2.9.7 If the Design-Builder causes damage to the Work, property, or person of any other 
contractor utilized by the Owner, or if any claim arising out of the Design-Builder's 
performance of the Work is made against the Design-Builder by any other contractor, the 
Owner, or any other person, Design-Builder shall promptly attempt to settle and resolve 
the dispute. 

 
2.10 Design-Builder’s Warranty 
 

2.10.1 Design-Builder warrants to Owner that the construction, including all materials and 
equipment furnished as part of the construction, shall be new unless otherwise specified in the 
Contract Documents, of good quality, in conformance with the Contract Documents and free of 
defects in materials and workmanship.  

2.10.2 All Work shall be warranted by the Design-Builder against defective workmanship and 
materials for the warranty period of one year after Substantial Completion by Design Builder, or 
as covered by special warranties, whichever is longer.  In the event that an element of work is 
scheduled to be and is completed and is in beneficial use prior to Substantial Completion, with 
the Owner's express written concurrence, the warranty for the equipment in each completed 
element of work shall begin once that element of work has been achieved by the Design-Builder, 
accepted and placed into use and operation by the Owner.  Neither Final Acceptance nor the final 
payment nor any provision in the Contract Documents shall relieve the Design-Builder of 
responsibility for faulty material or quality of Work. The Design-Builder shall replace or repair any 
such defective Work in a manner satisfactory to Owner, after notice to do so from Owner and 
within the time specified in the notice. 

2.10.3 Disclaimers and Limitations: Manufacturer’s disclaimers and limitations on product 
warranties do not relieve Design-Builder of warranty on work that incorporates products. 
Manufacturer’s disclaimers and limitations on product warranties do not relieve suppliers, 
manufacturers, and subcontractors required to countersign special warranties with Design-
Builder. 

2.10.4 Related Damages and Losses: When correcting failed or damaged warranted 
construction, remove and replace construction that has been damaged as a result of such failure 
or must be removed and replaced to provide access for correction of warranted construction. 

2.10.5 Reinstatement of Warranty: When work covered by warranty has failed and been 
corrected by replacement or rebuilding, reinstate warranty by written endorsement. Reinstated 
warranty shall be equal to original warranty with equitable adjustment for depreciation. 

2.10.6 Replacement Cost: Upon determination that work covered by warranty has failed, replace 
or rebuild work to acceptable condition complying with requirements of Contract Documents. 
Design-Builder is responsible for cost of replacing or rebuilding defective work regardless of 
whether Owner has benefited from use of work through portion of its anticipated useful service 
life. 

2.10.7 Warranty for labor and materials required by the Contract Documents shall have their 
warranty period begin on the date of Substantial Completion for a period of one (1) year or as 
covered by special warranties, whichever is longer. The Design-Builder shall provide any and all 
technical support necessary to provide oversight, training and coordination of Owner personnel 
who perform the maintenance for installations performed under these specifications such that the 
Warranty durations specified in those sections and elsewhere in the Contract Documents will not 
begin until Substantial Completion of the Project . All arrangements required to be made with any 
supplier shall be made by the Design-Builder. 

2.10.8 The Design-Builder shall replace or repair any such defective work in a manner 
satisfactory to Owner, after notice to do so from Owner and within the time specified in the notice. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 100



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 14  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

2.10.9 Expressed warranties made to Owner are in addition to implied warranties and shall not 
limit duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise available under law. Expressed warranty 
periods shall not be interpreted as limitations on time in which Owner can enforce such other 
duties, obligations, rights, or remedies. 

2.10.10 Expressed warranties made to Owner shall not deprive Owner of other rights Owner may 
have under other provisions of Contract Documents and are in addition to and run concurrent with 
other warranties made by Design-Builder under requirements of Contract Documents. 

2.10.11 Rejection of Warranties: Owner reserves right to reject warranties and to limit selection to 
products with warranties not in conflict with requirements of Contract Documents. 

2.10.12 Where Contract Documents require special warranty, or similar commitment on work or 
part of work, Owner reserves right to refuse to accept work, until Design-Builder presents written 
evidence that entities required to countersign such commitments have done so or are willing to do 
so. 

2.10.13 Warranty Submittals: Submit written warranties to Owner prior to date certified for 
Substantial Completion, or prior to the date that the warranty for a completed element of work 
begins. 
. 
  
 

2.10.14 When Contract Documents require Design-Builder, or Design-Builder and subcontractor, 
supplier or manufacturer to execute special warranty, prepare written document that contains 
appropriate terms and identification, ready for execution by required parties. Submit draft to 
Owner, for approval prior to final execution. 

2.10.15 Form of Submittal: : At Substantial Completion or prior to the date that the warranty for a 
completed element of work begins, compile two (2) copies of each required warranty properly 
organized and executed by Design-Builder, or by Design-Builder, subcontractor, supplier, or 
manufacturer. 

2.11 Correction of Non-Conforming Work 

2.11.1 Design-Builder agrees to correct any Work that is found to not be in conformance with the 
Contract Documents, including that part of the Work subject to Section 2.10 hereof, within a 
period of one year from the date of Substantial Completion of the Work, or within one year after 
the date that the warranty for a completed element of work begins, or within such longer period to 
the extent required by any specific warranty included in the Contract Documents. 

2.11.2 Design-Builder shall, within seven (7) days of receipt of written notice from Owner that 
the Work is not in conformance with the Contract Documents, take meaningful steps to 
commence correction of such nonconforming Work, including the correction, removal or 
replacement of the nonconforming Work and any damage caused to other parts of the Work 
affected by the nonconforming Work. If Design-Builder fails to commence the necessary steps 
within such seven (7) day period, Owner, in addition to any other remedies provided under the 
Contract Documents, may provide Design-Builder with written notice that Owner will commence 
correction of such nonconforming Work with its own forces. If Owner does perform such 
corrective Work, Design-Builder shall be responsible for all reasonable costs incurred by Owner 
in performing such correction. If the nonconforming Work creates an emergency requiring an 
immediate response, the seven (7) day period identified herein shall be deemed inapplicable. 

2.11.3 The one-year period referenced in Section 2.10 above applies only to Design-Builder’s 
obligation to correct nonconforming Work and is not intended to constitute a period of limitations 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 101



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 15  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

for any other rights or remedies Owner may have regarding Design-Builder’s other obligations 
under the Contract Documents. 
 

2.12 Construction Coordination and Schedule  

2.12.1 General 
 

A. Administrative and procedural requirements for planning, monitoring, and documenting 
the progress of construction during performance of the Work, including the following: 

1. 60-day startup construction schedule; 

2. Contractor’s Construction Schedule; and 

3. Construction Progress Schedule reports. 

2.12.2 Definitions 

A. Activity: A discrete part of a project that can be identified for planning, scheduling, 
monitoring, and controlling the construction project. Activities included in a construction 
schedule consume time and resources. 

1. Critical Activity: An activity on the critical path that must start and finish on the 
planned early start and finish times. 

2. Predecessor Activity: An activity that precedes another activity in the network. 

3. Successor Activity: An activity that follows another activity in the network. 

B. Cost Loading: The allocation of the schedule of values for the completion of an activity 
as scheduled. The sum of costs for all activities must equal the total Contract Sum unless 
otherwise accepted by the Owner. 

C. CPM: Critical path method, which is a method of planning and scheduling a 
construction project where activities are arranged based on activity relationships. 
Network calculations determine when activities can be performed and the critical path of 
Project. 

D. Critical Path: The longest connected chain of interdependent activities through the 
network schedule that establishes the minimum overall Project duration and contains no 
float. 

E. Day: Calendar Day unless specifically noted as Work Day. 

F. Event: The starting or ending point of an activity. 

G. Float: The measure of leeway in starting and completing an activity. 

1. Float time is not for the exclusive use or benefit of either District or Contractor, 
but is a jointly owned, expiring Project resource available to both parties as 
needed to meet schedule milestones and Contract completion date. 

2. Free float is the amount of time an activity can be delayed without adversely 
affecting the early start of the successor activity. 

3. Total float is the measure of leeway in starting or completing an activity without 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 102



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 16  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

adversely affecting the planned Project completion date. 

4. Use of float suppression techniques such as software constraints, preferential 
sequencing, special lead/lag logic restraints, extended activity times, or imposed 
dates, other than as required by the Contract, shall be cause for the rejection of 
any schedule submitted by the Contractor. 

H. Fragnet:  A fragnet is defined as the sequence of new activities that are proposed to 
be added to the existing schedule. The fragnet shall identify the predecessors to the new 
activities and demonstrate the impacts to successor activities.  A fragnet may be inserted 
into the Construction Schedule to estimate a delay, if any.    

I. Resource Loading: The allocation of manpower and equipment necessary for the 
completion of an activity as scheduled. 

2.12.3 Submittals 

A. Submittals shall include shop drawings and a schedule for delivery, including 
fabrication time. 

B. Format for Submittals: Submit required submittals in the following format: 

1. PDF electronic schedule file. 

2. Working electronic copy of schedule file. 

3. PDF file of narrative reports. 

C. Submit a startup construction schedule within 15 days after receipt of the Owner's 
Notice to Proceed for Phase 2 Services, submit a preliminary schedule indicating planned 
operations during first 60 days of Phase 2. 

1. Include cost of activities expected to be completed before submission and 
acceptance of the complete schedule. 

2. Acceptance of cost-loaded, construction startup schedule will not constitute 
acceptance of schedule of values for cost-loaded activities. 

3. The startup schedule shall include a schedule for the procurement of materials 
and equipment and a schedule for Submittals. 

D. Submit a complete Contractor’s Construction Schedule (Baseline) in compliance with 
Section 2.12.6 with a network diagram within 30 days after receipt of the Owner's Notice 
to Proceed for Construction Services. Show the complete network analysis system with 
logic ties for all major activities. 

1. Size: as required to display entire network for entire construction period. 

2. This schedule submittal will be reviewed by the Owner and returned to the 
Design-Builder within thirty (30) Days after submission.  After receipt of review 
comments, Design-Builder shall resubmit a mutually acceptable system. 

E. Submit a working electronic copy Contractor's Construction Schedule using software 
indicated in this Section, and labeled to comply with requirements for submittals. Provide 
hard copy in size able to display entire schedule for entire construction period. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 103



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 17  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

F. Submit each of the reports listed following concurrent with CPM schedule. For each 
activity in reports include activity number, activity description, cost, original duration, 
remaining duration, early start date, early finish date, late start date, late finish date, and 
total float in calendar days. 

1. Activity Report: List of all activities sorted by activity number and then early 
start date, or actual start date if known. 

2. Logic Report: List of preceding and succeeding activities for all activities, 
sorted in ascending order by activity number and then early start date, or actual 
start date if known. 

3. Total Float Report: List of all activities sorted in ascending order of total float. 

4. Earnings Report: Compilation of Contractor's total earnings from the Notice to 
Proceed until most recent Application for Payment. 

5. Critical path layout and report. 

G. Submit a Narrative Report with each schedule submittal describing the following: 

1. Project duration and variation from schedule; 

2. Schedule status; 

3. Milestone summary; 

4. Critical Path Analysis; 

5. Schedule progress; 

6. Started, in-progress, and completed activities; 

7. Change Notices and RFI’s; 

8. Delays and Impacts; 

9. Weather conditions; 

10. Progress photos. 

H. Submit updated CPM Construction Progress Schedule with each Application for 
Payment indicating progress on all activities and implications on overall schedule. 
Construction Progress Schedule (monthly schedule update) is meant to only monitor the 
actual progress of work relative to the approved Baseline Schedule. It is not a substitute 
to the approved Baseline Schedule. Any schedule update that changes logic and duration 
or Contract Completion Date of the approved Baseline Schedule is not acceptable. 
Approved Baseline Schedule shall only be revised or superseded by a dully executed 
Revised Baseline Schedule Change Order. 

I. Submit Recovery Schedule when periodic update indicates the Work is 14 or more 
calendar days behind the current accepted schedule, indicating means by which 
Contractor intends to regain compliance with the schedule. 

1. The Contractor shall take all necessary measures to make up for such delay 
either by increasing staff, plant or facilities, or by amending its Work methods, 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 104



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 18  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

whichever is applicable, with no change to the Contract Price. 

2. Indicate changes to working hours, working days, crew sizes, and equipment 
required to achieve compliance, and date by which recovery will be 
accomplished. 

2.12.4 Quality Assurance: 

A. Comply with the requirements specified in the Contract Documents for Quality 
Assurance and Quality Control Requirements. 

B. Scheduler Qualifications: An experienced scheduler in CPM scheduling and reporting, 
with capability of producing CPM reports and diagrams within 24 hours of Owner's 
request. 

C. Preconstruction Conference: Refer to Section 2.1.16.. Review methods and 
procedures related to the preliminary construction schedule and Contractor's construction 
schedule, including the following: 

1. Review software limitations and content and format for reports. 

2. Verify availability of qualified personnel needed to develop and update 
schedule. 

3. Discuss scheduling and critical path, constraints, including phasing, interim 
milestones and maintaining District water deliveries. 

4. Review delivery dates for District-furnished products. 

5. Review schedule for work of District's separate contracts. 

6. Review submittal requirements and procedures. 

7. Review time required for review of submittals and resubmittals. 

8. Review requirements for tests and inspections by independent testing and 
inspecting agencies. 

9. Review time required for Project closeout and District startup and 
commissioning activities. 

10. Review and finalize list of construction activities to be included in schedule. 

11. Review procedures for updating schedule. 

12. Review site safety, security, site access, operation hours, environmental 
monitoring, permits and requirements. 

2.12.5 Coordination: 

A. The Contractor has the obligation and responsibility at all times to plan and monitor all 
of its activities, anticipating and scheduling its staff, subcontractors at all tiers, materials, 
plant and Work methods in a manner that is likely to ensure completion of the Work in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 105



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 19  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

B. Contractor will coordinate preparation and processing of schedules and reports with 
performance of construction activities and with scheduling and reporting of separate 
contractors. Contractor must notify Owner when equipment of components arrive, or are 
expected to arrive; their assistance may be needed in uncrating or exposing materials for 
inspection. 

C. Coordinate Contractor's Construction Schedule with the Schedule of Values, submittal 
schedule, progress reports, payment requests, and other required schedules and reports. 

1. Secure time commitments for performing critical elements of the Work from 
entities involved. 

2. Coordinate each construction activity in the network with other activities and 
schedule them in proper sequence. 

D. The Contractor must have the scheduler onsite regularly or in collaboration with 
someone onsite. The Project Manager or Project Engineer can serve this role for the 
Contractor. 

2.12.6 Contractor’s Construction Schedule: 

A. Time Frame: Extend schedule from date established for Notice to Proceed for Phase 2 
to date of Substantial Completion. 

1. Contract completion date shall not be changed by submission of a schedule 
that shows an early completion date, unless specifically authorized by Change 
Order. 

B. Activities: Establish a separate numbered activity for each main element of the Work. 
Comply with the following: 

1. Activity Duration: Define activities so no activity is longer than 20 days, unless 
specifically allowed by Owner. The durations shall be determined based upon 
resource planning under contractually-defined on-site work conditions. The 
Owner may require that the duration of major activities be calculated by the 
scheduling software based on of the planned rate of daily production. In 
calculating activity durations, normal inclement weather shall be considered. 

2. Critical Path Activities: Include procurement process activities for long lead 
items and major items, requiring a cycle of more than 60 days, as separate 
activities in schedule. Critical path cycle activities include, but are not limited to, 
submittals, acceptance, purchasing, fabrication, and delivery. 

3. Submittal Review Time: Include review and resubmittal times indicated in 
Submittal Requirements in accordance with the Design Criteria Report, in 
schedule. Coordinate submittal review times in Contractor’s construction 
schedule with submittal schedule. Contractor must submit all submittals 90 days 
prior to startup to allow for review and approval by the Owner, unless another 
time frame is specified elsewhere in the Contract Documents. 

4. Startup and Testing Time: Include no fewer than 30 days for startup and 
testing. Include a pre-commissioning meeting to discuss plan with the Owner 3 to 
6 months before startup and testing is scheduled to begin. 

5. Substantial Completion: Indicate completion in advance of date established for 
Substantial Completion, and allow no fewer than 30 days for Owner’s 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 106



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 20  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

administrative procedures necessary for certification of Substantial Completion. 

6. Punch List and Final Completion: Include not more than 45 days for 
completion of punch list items and final completion. 

C. Constraints: Include constraints and work restrictions indicated in the Contract 
Documents and as follows in schedule, and show how the sequence of the Work is 
affected. 

1. Phasing: Arrange list of activities on schedule by phase. 

2. Products Ordered in Advance: Include a separate activity for each product, 
including delivery dates. Delivery dates should stipulate the earliest possible 
delivery date. 

3. Work Restrictions: Show the effect of the following items on the schedule: 

(a) Coordination with existing construction; 

(b) Limitations of continued occupancies; 

(c) Uninterruptible services; 

(d) Partial occupancy before Substantial Completion; 

(e) Use of premises restrictions; 

(f) Provisions for future construction; 

(g) Seasonal variations and inclement weather; 

(h) Environmental control/ permitting; 

(i) Specified work sequences and constraints; and 

(j) Site access, security, and rights of adjacent neighbors. 

4. Work Stages: Indicate important stages of construction for each major portion 
of the Work, including, but not limited to, the following: 

(a) Subcontract awards; 

(b) Submittals; 

(c) Purchases; 

(d) Mockups; 

(e) Fabrication; 

(f) Sample testing; 

(g) Deliveries; 

(h) Installation; 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 107



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 21  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

(i) Functional testing; 

(j) Start-up; 

(k) Commissioning; 

(l) Performance testing; 

(m) Training; 

(n) Tests and inspections; 

(o) Adjusting; 

(p) Curing; 

(q) Startup and placement into final use and operation; 

(r) Project closeout and final cleaning; and 

(s) Demobilization. 

5. Construction Areas: Identify each major area of construction for each major 
portion of the Work. Indicate where each construction activity within a major area 
must be sequenced or integrated with other construction activities to provide for 
the following: 

(a) Earthworks and excavation; 

(b) Structural completion; 

(c) Completion of mechanical installation; 

(d) Completion of electrical and instrumentation installation; 

(e) Completion of SCADA integration; 

(f) Functional testing; 

(g) Start-up; 

(h) Commissioning; 

(i) Performance testing; 

(j) Training; and 

(k) Substantial Completion. 

6. Other constraints and Work Restrictions. 

D. Milestones: Include milestones indicated in the Contract Documents in schedule, 
including, but not limited to, the Notice to Proceed, proposed Shutdowns, Substantial 
Completion, and Final Completion, and the appropriate interim milestones. 

E. Computer Scheduling Software: Prepare schedules using current version of a program 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 108



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 22  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

that has been developed specifically to manage construction schedules. 

1. Use Primavera P6. 

2. Settings: The Contractor is required to provide to the Owner all of the software 
settings it has used in the baseline schedules and updates. Examples of the 
information required are: Calendar settings, User Preferences, Administrative 
Preferences, Schedule Settings, etc. 

3. Contractor must incorporate separate calendars as appropriate to identify all 
tasks subject to permits and work restrictions described in the specifications. 

F. Contract Modifications: 

1. For each proposed contract modification that may impact the overall schedule, 
prepare a time-impact analysis using a network fragnet to demonstrate the effect 
of the proposed change on the overall project schedule. Logically connect 
approved Contract changes into the CPM schedule. Each change will be 
identified by number and description, and activities/milestones will be added to 
record the following: 

(a) Date the change was identified; 

(b) Date the change was priced (if applicable); and 

(c) Start and finish dates of the changed Work. 

2. Extensions of the Contract Times must be substantiated by a complete 
schedule demonstration showing the cause and effect of the relevant issue on 
the then-current critical path. 

3. Contract modification proposals must be submitted by the contractor within 5 
working days or the next weekly meeting. Contract modification proposals must 
be submitted in writing and documented via email or letter. 

G. Initial Issue of Schedule: Prepare initial network diagram from a sorted activity list 
indicating straight "early start-total float." Identify critical activities. Prepare tabulated 
reports showing the following: 

1. Contractor or subcontractor and the Work or activity; 

2. Description of activity; 

3. Main events of activity; 

4. Immediately preceding and succeeding activities; 

5. Early and late start dates; 

6. Early and late finish dates; 

7. Activity duration in workdays; 

8. Total float or slack time; 

9. Average size of workforce; and 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 109



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 23  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

10. Dollar value of activity (coordinated with the schedule of pay items). 

H. Schedule Updating: The CPM Progress Schedule shall show the projected completion 
date of the Work based on the progress information inserted into it, without changes to 
the schedule logic or the original duration of any activity. The Contractor shall use the 
retained logic option when executing schedule calculation. The Contractor shall update 
the schedule monthly to reflect changes and show accurate timelines. Concurrent with 
making revisions to schedule, prepare tabulated reports showing the following: 

1. Identification of activities that have changed; 

2. Changes in early and late start dates; 

3. Changes in early and late finish dates; 

4. Changes in activity durations in workdays; 

5. Changes in the critical path; 

6. Changes in total float or slack time; and 

7. Changes in the Contract Time. 

I. Value Summaries: Prepare two cumulative value lists, sorted by finish dates. 

1. In first list, tabulate activity number, early finish date, dollar value, and 
cumulative dollar value. 

2. In second list, tabulate activity number, late finish date, dollar value, and 
cumulative dollar value. 

3. In subsequent issues of both lists, substitute actual finish dates for activities 
completed as of list date. 

4. Prepare list for ease of comparison with payment requests; coordinate timing 
with progress meetings. 

(a) In both value summary lists, tabulate "actual percent complete" and 
"cumulative value completed" with total at bottom. 

2.12.7 Contractor’s Look-Ahead Schedules: 

A. Contractor will develop and maintain a detailed look-ahead schedule and follow the 
following procedures: 

1. Contractor shall list all completed, in progress, and upcoming activities for 
previous week, the current week, and the next two weeks upcoming; 

2. Contractor shall show significant activities with actual start and completion 
dates; 

3. Contractor shall present the look-ahead schedule at the weekly progress 
meetings as described in Project Meetings. 

2.12.8 Acceptance of Schedules: 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 110



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 24  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

 1. Owner review and acceptance of schedules does not waive any contract 
 requirements and does not relieve the Design-Builder of any obligation or responsibility 
 for submitting complete and accurate information. 

 2 If the Design-Builder fails to submit any of the schedule submittals, or to meet the 
 scheduling requirements, including but not limited to update requirements, for a period of 
 thirty (30) Days or more beyond the required submittal date, progress payments may be 
 withheld until such time as the Design-Builder submits the required scheduling submittals 
 in compliance with the Contract Documents. 

 
Article 3 

Owner’s Services and Responsibilities 

3.1 Duty to Cooperate 

3.1.1 Owner shall, throughout the performance of the Work, cooperate with Design-Builder and 
perform its responsibilities, obligations and services. 

3.1.2 In accordance with the Design Criteria Report, Owner, within 30 days, shall review and 
either approve or reject and state reasons for such rejection interim design submissions and 
Construction Documents. On items resubmitted after rejection, Owner shall also be provided 30 
days to review the resubmittal and either approve or reject and state reasons for such rejections.  
 
3.1.3 Owner shall give Design-Builder timely notice of any Work that Owner notices to be 
defective or not in compliance with the Contract Documents. 
 

3.2 Furnishing of Services and Information 

3.2.1 Notwithstanding the provision of certain documents from the Owner, The Design-Builder 
shall investigate the Project Site to ascertain conditions affecting necessary procedure and 
sequence of work operations for execution of the Contract, and to ascertain Project Site 
conditions, character, quality and quantity of surface and subsurface materials that will be 
encountered. The Design-Builder shall verify all dimensions in the field and shall check field 
conditions continuously during construction. Owner assumes no responsibility whatsoever in 
respect to the Design-Builder's interpretation of subsurface investigations. There is no guarantee 
or warranty, either expressed or implied, that conditions indicated in the Contract Documents, are 
representative of those existing throughout the Work, or any part of it, or that unexpected 
developments may not occur.  

 3.2.2 All soil and test hole data, groundwater elevations, and soil analyses shown on the Plans 
or included in the Contract Documents apply only at the location of the test holes and to the 
depths indicated. Soil test reports for test holes which have been drilled are available for 
inspection at the office of Owner. Additional subsurface exploration may be performed by the 
Design-Builder at its own expense. 

3.2.3 The indicated groundwater elevation is that which existed on the date specified in the 
data. It is the Design-Builder’s responsibility to determine and allow for the groundwater elevation 
on the date the Work is performed. A difference in groundwater elevation between what is shown 
in the soil boring logs and what is actually encountered during construction will not be considered 
as a basis for extra work. 

3.2.4 If discovery is made of items of archaeological or paleontological interest, the Design-
Builder shall immediately cease excavation in the area of discovery and shall not continue until 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 111



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 25  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

ordered by Owner. When resumed, excavation operations within the area of discovery shall be as 
directed by Owner. Discoveries which may be encountered may include, but not be limited to, 
dwelling sites, stone implementations or other artifacts, animal bones, human bones, and fossils.  

3.2.5 Rights of entry for the Work will be provided by Owner pursuant to the Contract 
Documents. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Design-Builder shall 
make arrangements, pay for, and assume all responsibility for acquiring, using, and disposing of 
additional work areas and facilities that may be temporarily required to perform the Work. The 
Design-Builder shall indemnify and hold Owner harmless from all claims for damages caused by 
such actions. 
 

3.3 Financial Information 

3.3.1 Design-Builder shall cooperate with the reasonable requirements of Owner’s lenders or 
other financial sources. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, after execution of the 
Agreement Design-Builder shall have no obligation to execute for Owner or Owner’s lenders or 
other financial sources any documents or agreements that require Design-Builder to assume 
obligations or responsibilities greater than those existing obligations Design-Builder has under the 
Contract Documents. 

3.4 Owner’s Representative 

3.4.1 Owner’s Representative shall be responsible for providing Owner-supplied information 
and approvals in a timely manner to permit Design-Builder to fulfill its obligations under the 
Contract Documents. Owner’s Representative shall also provide Design-Builder with prompt 
notice if it observes any failure on the part of Design-Builder to fulfill its contractual obligations, 
including any errors, omissions or defects in the performance of the Work. Owner’s 
Representative shall communicate regularly with Design-Builder and shall be vested with the 
authority to act on behalf of Owner.  

3.5 Government Approvals and Permits 

3.5.1 Owner shall obtain and pay for all necessary permits, approvals, licenses, government 
charges and inspection fees set forth in the Permits and Approvals, attached as Exhibit E to the 
Agreement.  

3.5.2 Owner shall provide reasonable assistance to Design-Builder in obtaining those permits, 
approvals and licenses that are Design-Builder’s responsibility. 

3.6 Owner’s Other Contractors 

3.6.1 Subject to the Design-Builder’s coordination responsibilities of Other Contractors 
pursuant to Article 2.1.9, Owner is responsible for all work performed on the Project or at the Site 
by Other Contractors under Owner’s control. In addition to Design-Builder’s coordination 
obligations, Owner shall assist the Design-Builder and request that Other Contractors cooperate 
with, and coordinate their activities so as to enable Design-Builder to timely complete the Work 
consistent with the Contract Documents.  

 
 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 112



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 26  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

Article 4 

Hazardous Conditions and Differing Site Conditions 

4.1 Hazardous Conditions 

4.1.1 Except as otherwise permitted in the Contract Documents, the Design-Builder agrees to 
accept sole responsibility for full compliance with any and all applicable present and future rules, 
regulations, restrictions, ordinances, statutes, laws and/or other orders of any governmental entity 
regarding the use, storage, handling, distribution, processing and/or disposal of hazardous 
wastes, extremely hazardous wastes, hazardous substances, hazardous materials, hazardous 
chemicals, toxic chemicals, toxic substances, pollutants, contaminants, or other similarly 
regulated substances (hereinafter referred to as "hazardous substances") regardless of whether 
the obligation for such compliance or responsibility is placed on the Owner of the land, on the 
Owner of any improvements on the premises, on the user of the land, or on the user of the 
improvements. Said hazardous substances shall include, but shall not be limited to gasoline, 
diesel and other fuels, lubricating oils and solvents. 

4.1.2 Except for claims arising from Owner’s sole or active negligence or willful misconduct, the 
Design-Builder agrees that any damages, penalties or fines levied against Owner and/or the 
Design-Builder as a result of noncompliance with any of the above shall be the sole responsibility 
of the Design-Builder and, further, that the Design-Builder shall indemnify and pay and/or 
reimburse Owner for any damages, penalties or fines that Owner incurs, or pays, as a result of 
noncompliance with this General Condition. 

4.1.3 In the case of any hazardous substance spill, leak, discharge or improper storage on the 
premises, or contamination of same, by action or inaction of the Design-Builder, or anyone 
directly or indirectly employed or under contract to the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder agrees 
to make, or cause to be made, any necessary repairs or corrective actions, as well as to clean up 
and remove any leakage, contamination or contaminated ground. In the case of any hazardous 
substance spill, leak, discharge or contamination caused in whole or part by the Design-Builder, 
or by any of its subcontractors, employees, or agents, which affects Owner’s property, or property 
(ies) of Owner's tenant(s), the Design-Builder agrees to make, or cause to be made, any 
necessary repairs, or take corrective actions, to clean-up and remove any such spill, leakage or 
contamination to the extent required by applicable law or regulation. 

4.1.4 If, after reasonable notice, the Design-Builder fails to repair, clean-up, properly dispose 
of, or take any other corrective action(s) as required by the Contract Documents, Owner may (but 
shall not be required to) take all steps it deems reasonably necessary to properly repair, clean-up 
or otherwise correct the condition(s) resulting from the spill, leak or contamination. Any such 
repair, clean-up or corrective action(s) taken by Owner shall be at Design-Builder's sole cost and 
expense, including any and all costs (including any administrative costs) which Owner incurs, or 
pays, as a result of any repair, clean-up or corrective action it takes. 

4.1.5 If the Design-Builder installs or uses already installed underground storage tanks, 
pipelines or other improvements on the specified premises for the storage, distribution, use, 
treatment or disposal of any hazardous substances, the Design-Builder agrees, upon the 
expiration and/or termination of this Contract, to remove and/or clean up, at the sole option of 
Owner, the above-referred to improvements. Said removal and/or clean-up shall be at Design-
Builder's sole cost and expense, and shall be undertaken and completed in full compliance with 
all federal, state and local laws and regulations, as well as in compliance with the reasonable 
directions of Owner4.1.6Design-Builder shall promptly supply Owner with copies of all notices, 
reports, correspondence and submissions made by the Design-Builder to any governmental entity 
regarding any hazardous substance spill, leak, discharge or clean-up, including all tests results. 

4.1.6 Notwithstanding the foregoing sections of this General Condition: 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 113



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 27  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

 4.1.6.1 Design-Builder shall not be held responsible for the presence or remediation of 
asbestos, asbestos-related materials, or any other hazardous substance, in any form 
whatsoever, as such materials and substances are defined by the Environmental 
Protection Agency or any other public authority, found on any property or structure that is 
the subject of services performed by Design-Builder under the Contract. 

 4.1.6.2 The Design-Builder’s obligation to remediate hazardous substances is limited to 
the Work identified in the Contract Documents. The Design-Builder has no obligation to 
identify, abate and/or remediate hazardous substances not directly affected by the Work; 
however, the Design-Builder will identify, abate and/or remediate hazardous substances 
not included in the scope of work as directed in writing by Owner. 

 4.1.6.3 The Design-Builder will be compensated for approved additional costs resulting 
from changes in regulations, restrictions, ordinances, statutes, laws and/or other orders 
of any governmental entity regarding the use, storage, handling, distribution, processing 
and/or disposal of hazardous wastes, extremely hazardous wastes, hazardous 
substances, hazardous materials, hazardous chemicals, toxic chemicals, toxic 
substances, pollutants, contaminants, or other similarly regulated substances. 

4.1.6.4 Owner will retain title to all pre-existing hazardous substances removed as part of 
the Design-Builder’s work, and title shall not transfer to the Design-Builder. Owner agrees 
to sign all manifests as Owner of all such pre-existing hazardous substances. Hazardous 
substances introduced onto the Project Site by the Design-Builder shall remain titled to 
the Design-Builder. 

4.1.7 This General Condition and the obligation(s) contained therein, shall survive the 
expiration or earlier termination of this Contract. 

4.2 Differing Site Conditions 

4.2.1 Concealed or latent physical conditions or subsurface conditions at the Site that (i) 
materially differ from the conditions indicated in the Contract Documents or (ii) are of an unknown 
and unusual nature, differing materially from the conditions ordinarily encountered and generally 
recognized as inherent in the Work are collectively referred to herein as “Differing Site 
Conditions” The Design-Builder shall immediately, and before any of the following conditions are 
disturbed, notify Owner, first verbally and later within seven (7) days of the verbal notification, with 
a properly documented notice. 

4.2.2 Owner shall investigate such conditions, and if it finds that such conditions do materially 
differ and could not have been discovered, or reasonably inferred, from the Contract Documents 
or a thorough inspection of the Project Site by the Design-Builder, and such conditions cause an 
impact to the Contract pricing, or Work Completion Time, Owner and Design-Builder shall 
promptly and good faith negotiate a Change Order. 

4.2.3  If the Design-Builder has not fully complied with the documentation and submittal 
requirements of the Contractor Potential Change Notice in accordance with the Contract, the 
Design-Builder shall be deemed to have waived its right to assert a claim for any adjustment to 
the Contract pricing, or Work Completion Time arising out of such differing Project Site 
conditions. 

4.2.4 Should an agreement not be reached on a Change Order, pursuant to Article 9, the 
Owner may issue a Change Directive to have the Work performed. Such an Order is unilateral 
and the Work will be performed on a Time and Material basis. The Design-Builder shall be 
required to keep detailed records of all costs related to performing the Work and compensation 
for said work will be reconciled in a Change Order upon agreement of a lump sum price or 
completion of the Work, whichever occurs first. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 114



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 28  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

 
Article 5 

Insurance and Bonds  

5.1 Design-Builder’s Insurance Requirements 
 

5.1.1 Design-Builder is responsible for procuring and maintaining the insurance for the 
coverage amounts all as set forth in the Insurance Exhibit H to the Agreement. Coverage shall be 
secured from insurance companies authorized to do business in the state in which the Project is 
located, and with a minimum rating set forth in the Insurance Exhibit __. 

5.1.2 Design-Builder’s insurance policies shall specifically delete any design-build or similar 
exclusions that could compromise coverage’s because of the design-build delivery of the Project. 

5.1.3 Prior to commencing any design and construction services hereunder, Design-Builder 
shall provide Owner with certificates and pertinent additional insured and other endorsements 
evidencing that (i) all insurance obligations required by the Contract Documents are in full force 
and in effect and will remain in effect for the duration required by the Contract Documents and (ii) 
no insurance coverage will be canceled, renewal refused, or materially changed unless at least 
thirty (30) days prior written notice is given to Owner and all other insureds. If any of the foregoing 
insurance coverage’s is required to remain in force after final payment, additional certificate(s) 
and endorsement(s) evidencing continuation of such coverage shall be submitted with the Final 
Application for Payment. 

5.1.4 Owner and Design-Builder waive against each other and Owner’s separate contractors, 
Design Consultants, Subcontractors, agents and employees of each and all of them, all damages 
covered by property insurance provided herein, except such rights as they may have to the 
proceeds of such insurance. Design-Builder and Owner shall, where appropriate, require similar 
waivers of subrogation from Owner’s separate contractors, Design Consultants and 
Subcontractors and shall require each of them to include similar waivers in their contracts. These 
waivers of subrogation shall not contain any restriction or limitation that will impair the full and 
complete extent of its applicability to any person or entity unless agreed to in writing prior to the 
execution of this Agreement. 

5.2 Bonds and Other Performance Security 

5.2.1 The Design-Builder shall file surety bonds with Owner to be approved by the District 
and/or its counsel in the amount and for the purposes noted below. Bonds issued by a surety who 
is listed in the latest version of U.S. Department of Treasury Circular 570, who is authorized to 
issue bonds in California, and whose bonding limitation shown in said circular is sufficient to 
provide bonds in the amount required by the Contract. Bonds from all other sureties shall be 
accompanied by all of the documents enumerated in Code of Civil Procedure 995.660(a). The 
Design-Builder shall pay all bond premiums, costs, and incidentals. 

5.2.2 The Design-Builder shall provide Payment and Performance bonds on forms provided by 
Owner. The “Payment Bond” (Material and Labor bond) shall be for 100 percent (100%) of the 
Contract price, as amended from time to time, to satisfy claims of material suppliers and 
mechanics and laborers employed by it on the Work. 

5.2.3 The Performance Bond shall be for one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract price as 
amended from time to time. The Design-Builder shall submit all bonds within fifteen (15) calendar 
days of the award of Contract. 

5.2.4 Should any bond become insufficient, the Design-Builder shall renew the bond within 10 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 115



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 29  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

days after receiving notice from Owner. 

5.2.5 Should any surety at any time be unsatisfactory to the Owner, notice will be given the 
Design-Builder to that effect. No further payment shall be deemed due or will be made under the 
Contract until a new surety shall qualify and be accepted by the Owner. 

5.2.6 Changes in the Work or extensions of time made pursuant to the Contract shall in no way 
release the Design-Builder or surety from its obligations. Notice of such changes or extensions 
shall be waived by the surety. 

 

Article 6 

Payment 

6.1 Schedule of Values 

6.1.1 Unless required by the Owner upon execution of this Agreement, within ten (10) days of 
execution of the Agreement, Design-Builder shall submit for Owner’s review and approval a 
schedule of values for all of the Work. The Schedule of Values will (i) subdivide the Work into its 
respective parts, (ii) include values for all items comprising the Work and (iii) serve as the basis 
for monthly progress payments made to Design-Builder throughout the Work. 

6.1.2 The Owner will be provided 14 days to review and either approve or reject with reasons 
stated the schedule of values so as not to delay the submission of the Design-Builder’s first 
application for payment. If rejected, Design Builder shall promptly resubmit the schedule of values 
and provide Owner 7 days to review and either approve or reject with reasons stated the 
resubmittal. 

6.2 Monthly Progress Payments 

6.2.1 , Design-Builder shall submit for Owner’s review and approval its Application for Payment 
(Exhibit __) requesting payment for all Work performed as of the date of the Application for 
Payment. The Application for Payment shall be accompanied by all supporting documentation 
required by the Contract Documents, including but not limited to: 

6.2.1.1 Unconditional releases of lien in the statutory form for all subcontractors and 
suppliers, through the prior payment application. 

6.2.1.2 Actual invoices for materials and equipment must be submitted with the 
Application for Payment (for Change Orders and cost reimbursable contracts). 

i. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, up to eighty 
percent (80%) of the invoiced amount may be paid on account of 
materials and equipment delivered and suitably stored at the Project Site 
for subsequent incorporation in the Work, provided that (i) Owner is 
satisfied that the equipment and materials are suitably stored at either 
the Site or another acceptable location, (ii) the equipment and materials 
are protected by suitable insurance and (iii) upon payment, Owner will 
receive the equipment and materials free and clear of all liens and 
encumbrances. . 

ii.  Notwithstanding section 6.2.1.2(i), payment will not be made for any 
materials or equipment unless each individual piece of the material or 
equipment becomes a permanent part of the Work or the material or 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 116



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 30  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

equipment is required by the Contract Documents and is specifically 
manufactured for the Project and could not be readily utilized or diverted 
to another job. Actual invoices for materials and equipment must be 
submitted with the Application for Payment 

6.2.1.3 Updated CPM Construction Progress Schedule 

Failure to submit any of the supporting documentation shall be cause for the Application 
for Payment to be rejected by the Owner, in which case, the Design-Builder will be 
required to resubmit the Application Payment and supporting documentation.  

  6.2.2 Owner may withhold a payment in whole or in part to the extent reasonably necessary to  
  protect Owner due to Owner’s determination that the Work has not progressed to the point  
  indicated in the Application for Payment or that the quality of work is not in accordance with the  
  Contract Documents. Owner may also withhold a payment because of subsequently discovered  
  evidence which may nullify the whole or a part of an Application for Payment previously issued to  
  such extent as may be necessary to protect Owner from loss for which the Design-Builder is  
  responsible. 

  6.2.3 Owner may refuse to make payment of the full amount of the Application for  
  Payment to the extent reasonably necessary to protect Owner because:  

6.2.3.1. claims have been made against Owner on account of Design Builder's 
performance or furnishing of the Work;  

6.2.3.2. there are other items entitling Owner to a set-off against the amount 
recommended; or  

6.2.3.3. Owner has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events 
Defective Work or Termination for Cause 

If Owner refuses to make payment of the full amount recommended by Owner or Owner's 
Representative, Owner shall give Design-Builder  immediate written notice stating the 
reasons for such action and promptly pay Design-Builder any amount remaining after 
deduction of the amount so withheld. Owner shall promptly pay Design-Builder the 
amount so withheld, or any adjustment thereto agreed to by Owner and Design-Builder, 
when Design-Builder corrects to Owner’s satisfaction the reasons for such action.  

6.2.4 Rejection of Payment for Defective Work.  The Owner's Representative may also refuse 
to recommend any such payment or, because of subsequently discovered evidence or the 
results of subsequent inspections or tests, nullify any such payment previously recommended, to 
such extent as may be necessary in the Owner's Representative opinion to protect Owner from 
loss because:  

6.2.4.1 The work is defective, or completed work has been damaged requiring 
correction or replacement,  

6.2.4.2. The Contract Price has been reduced by written amendment or Change 
Order,  

6.2.4.3. The Owner has been required to correct defective work or complete work  

6.2.4.4. The Owner has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events 
justifying a Suspension or Termination for Cause.  

6.2.5 Not Used.  

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 117



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 31  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

6.2.6 Where Allowances have been used, the Design-Builder may be paid for Allowance items 
on either a cost reimbursable or lump sum basis. The Design-Builder's mark-up shall be all-
inclusive of supervision and coordination and no additional compensation shall be allowed. An 
Allowance shall not be considered a change for the purposes of granting time extensions. 
Unused portions of a stipulated Allowance will not be paid to the Design-Builder and shall be 
deducted from the contract value at the completion of the Project via a deductive Change Order. 

6.2.8 The Application for Payment shall constitute Design-Builder’s representation that the 
Work described herein has been performed consistent with the Contract Documents, has 
progressed to the point indicated in the Application for Payment, and that title to all Work will pass 
to Owner free and clear of all claims, liens, encumbrances, and security interests upon the 
incorporation of the Work into the Project, or upon Design-Builder’s receipt of payment, whichever 
occurs earlier. 

6.2.9 The Application for Payment shall identify, as a sub-total, the amount of the Design-
Builder's total earnings to date, plus the value of materials stored at the Site which have not yet 
been incorporated in the Work, less a deductive adjustment for materials previously paid for by 
the Owner. Payment for such material shall not be construed as acceptance of the material. 

6.3 Withholding of Payments 

6.3.1 On or before the date established in the Agreement, subject to the Retention provisions, 
Owner shall pay Design-Builder all amounts properly due. If Owner determines that Design-
Builder is not entitled to all or part of an Application for Payment as a result of Design-Builder’s 
failure to meet its obligations hereunder, it will notify Design-Builder. The notice shall indicate the 
specific amounts Owner intends to withhold, the reasons and contractual basis for the 
withholding, and the specific measures Design-Builder must take to rectify Owner’s concerns. 
Design-Builder and Owner will attempt to resolve Owner’s concerns.  

6.3.2 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Contract Documents, Owner shall pay 
Design-Builder all undisputed amounts in an Application for Payment within the times required by 
the Agreement. 

6.4 Design-Builder’s Payment Obligations 

6.4.1 Design-Builder will pay Design Consultants and Subcontractors, in accordance with its 
contractual obligations to such parties. Design-Builder will impose similar requirements on Design 
Consultants and Subcontractors to pay those parties with whom they have contracted. Design-
Builder will indemnify and defend Owner against any claims for payment, stop payment notices, 
and mechanic’s liens as set forth in Section 7.3 hereof. 

6.5 Substantial Completion  

6.5.1 Design-Builder shall notify Owner when it believes the Work, or to the extent permitted in 
the Contract Documents, a portion of the Work, is Substantially Complete. Within five (5) days of 
Owner’s receipt of Design-Builder’s notice, Owner and Design-Builder will jointly inspect such 
Work to verify that it is Substantially Complete in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents. If such Work is Substantially Complete, Owner shall prepare and issue a 
Certificate of Substantial Completion that will set forth (i) the date of Substantial Completion of the 
Work or portion thereof, (ii) the remaining items of Work that have to be completed before final 
payment, (iii) provisions (to the extent not already provided in the Contract Documents) 
establishing Owner’s and Design-Builder’s responsibility for the Project’s security, maintenance, 
utilities and insurance pending final payment, and (iv) an acknowledgment that warranties 
commence to run on the date of Substantial Completion, except as may otherwise be noted in the 
Certificate of Substantial Completion. The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall not relieve 
the Design-Builder of the responsibility to complete all work in accordance with the Contract 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 118



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 32  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

Documents. Failure to include any items on the punch list shall not alter the responsibility of the 
Design-Builder to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

6.5.2 Substantial Completion occurs when all of the following conditions have been met: 

6.5.2.1 The Design-Builder has submitted and Owner has approved in writing, such 
approval not to be unreasonably withheld, a certification by the Design-Builder and the 
lead Design Firm that construction of the Project, excepting the items on the Final Punch 
List, is complete and in all respects is in compliance with this Agreement. 
 
6.5.2.2 A preliminary or temporary certificate of occupancy has been issued for the 
Project, where required by applicable law 

6.5.2.3 The Design-Builder has delivered to Owner a red-lined set of “as-built” 
construction record drawings as required by the Contract Documents 

6.5.2.4 All Utilities specified or required under this Agreement to be arranged for by the 
Design-Builder are connected and functioning properly 

6.5.2.5 Design-Builder has successfully completed start-up, commissioning and 
performance testing and has additionally provided the required training to the Owner 
along with all operational and maintenance manuals. 

6.5.2.6 The Design-Builder and Owner have agreed in writing upon the Final Punch List 
(or, if they are unable to agree, Owner shall have prepared and issued the Final Punch 
List to the Design-Builder within 15 business days of the Design-Builder having submitted 
its proposed Final Punch List to Owner) 

6.5.2.7 The Design-Builder has delivered to Owner written certification from the 
equipment manufacturers (including information technology systems and instrumentation 
and controls) that all major items of machinery and equipment included in the Project 
have been properly installed, performance tested, and commissioned in accordance with 
the manufacturers’ recommendations, warranties, and requirements 

6.5.2.8 The Design-Builder has submitted written certification that all of the foregoing 
conditions have been satisfied and Owner has approved the Design-Builder’s 
certification, which approval shall be effective as of the date of the Design-Builder’s 
certification. 

6.5.3 Upon Substantial Completion of the entire Work or, if applicable, any portion of the Work, 
Owner may at its sole discretion per DBIA Agreement No. 545, Section 8.3 release to Design-
Builder portions of the retained amounts relating, as applicable, to the entire Work or completed 
portion of the Work, less an amount equal to the reasonable value of all remaining or incomplete 
items of Work as noted in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.  

6.5.4 Owner, at its option, may use a portion of the Work which has been determined to be 
Substantially Complete, provided, however, that (i) a Certificate of Substantial Completion has 
been issued for the portion of Work addressing the items set forth in Section 6.5.1 above, (ii) 
Design-Builder and Owner have obtained the consent of their sureties and insurers, and to the 
extent applicable, the appropriate government authorities having jurisdiction over the Project, and 
(iii) Owner and Design-Builder agree that Owner’s use or occupancy will not interfere with 
Design-Builder’s completion of the remaining Work. 

6.6 Final Completion and Final Payment 

6.6.1 When the Design-Builder considers that the Work is complete and ready for final 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 119



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 33  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

inspection, it shall submit a Notice of Final Completion to Owner for inspection with certification 
that: 
 

6.6.1.1 Work has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents and 
Certificate of Occupancy issued. 
 
6.6.1.2 Work has been inspected by the Design-Builder for compliance with Contract 
Documents and all Punch List work has been completed. 

6.6.1.3 All damaged or destroyed real, personal, public or private property has been 
repaired or replaced. 

6.6.1.4 All required as-builts and close out documents have been submitted and 
accepted. 

6.6.1.5 All warranties have been submitted and accepted and all training and 
commissioning has been completed. 

6.6.1.6 Work is ready for final inspection by Owner. 

6.6.2 Owner will inspect to verify the status of completion with reasonable promptness after 
receipt of such certifications. The inspection of the Work will be done in accordance with the 
Contract provisions. 

6.6.3 If Owner finds incomplete or defective work: 

6.6.3.1 Owner may, at Owner’s sole discretion, either terminate the inspection or prepare 
a punch list and notify the Design-Builder in writing, listing incomplete or defective work. 

6.6.3.2 The Design-Builder shall take immediate steps to remedy stated deficiencies. 
Upon completion and correction of all stated deficiencies, the Design-Builder shall send a 
subsequent written certification to Owner that work is complete. 

6.6.3.3 Owner will then re-inspect the Work. 

6.6.3.4 Owner may, at Owner’s sole discretion, have a separate contractor make 
corrections and deduct the cost of the corrections from the Design-Builder’s final payment 
if the work is not promptly corrected. 

6.6.4  Final Acceptance 

6.6.4.1 Within 120 days after Substantial Completion, and after Design-Builder has 
reached Final Completion and has made written request for final inspection, Owner will 
perform final inspection and if Owner is satisfied that the Work has been completed in 
accordance with the Agreement, and is satisfied that all submittals have been made and 
accepted, all as-builts and record documents have been completed and accepted, all 
Change Orders executed, all final quantities agreed to, and all other Contract 
requirements, except for possible future warranty and guarantee work have been 
accomplished, Owner shall issue a document evidencing Final Acceptance. 

6.6.4.2 If Owner finds the Work to be complete, Owner will issue a letter of Final 
Acceptance to the Design-Builder. 

6.6.4.3 The Work shall be under the charge and care of the Design-Builder until Owner 
issues the letter of Final Acceptance unless otherwise approved by Owner. The Design-
Builder shall take every precaution against injury or damage to the Work from the action 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 120



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 34  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

of the elements or any other cause, whether arising from the execution or non-execution 
of the Work. The Design-Builder shall rebuild, repair, restore, and make good, at the 
Design-Builder's expense, all injuries or damage to the Work occurring before 
acceptance of the Work. 

6.6.5 Upon issuance of a letter of Final Acceptance, the Design-Builder shall submit a Final 
Application for Payment, and Owner shall make final payment by the time required in the 
Agreement, provided that Design-Builder has achieved Final Completion. 
  
6.6.6 At the time of submission of its Final Application for Payment, Design-Builder shall 
provide the following information:  

6.6.6.1 An affidavit that there are no claims, obligations or liens outstanding or 
unsatisfied for labor, services, material, equipment, taxes or other items performed, 
furnished or incurred for or in connection with the Work which will in any way affect 
Owner’s interests;  

6.6.6.2 A general release executed by Design-Builder waiving, upon receipt of final 
payment by Design-Builder, all claims, except those claims previously made in writing to 
Owner and remaining unsettled at the time of final payment;  

6.6.6.3 Consent of Design-Builder’s surety, if any, to final payment; 

6.6.6.4 All operating manuals, warranties and other deliverables required by the Contract 
Documents; and  

6.6.6.5 Certificates of insurance confirming that required coverage’s will remain in effect 
consistent with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

6.6.7 Upon making final payment, Owner waives all claims against Design-Builder except 
claims relating to (i) Design-Builder’s failure to satisfy its payment obligations, if such failure 
affects Owner’s interests, (ii) Design-Builder’s failure to complete the Work consistent with the 
Contract Documents, including defects appearing after Substantial Completion and (iii) the terms 
of any warranties required by the Contract Documents. After the date of Final Acceptance of the 
Work by Owner, no additional claims or change requests may be submitted by Design-Builder. 

6.6.8 Deficiencies in the Work discovered after Substantial Completion, whether or not such 
deficiencies would have been included on the Punch List if discovered earlier, shall be deemed 
warranty Work. Such deficiencies shall be corrected by Design-Builder under Sections 2.10 and 
2.11 herein, and shall not be a reason to withhold final payment from Design-Builder, provided, 
however, that Owner shall be entitled to withhold from the Final Payment the reasonable value of 
completion of such deficient work until such work is completed. 

 
 

Article 7 

Indemnification 

7.1 Patent and Copyright Infringement 

7.1.1 Design-Builder shall defend any action or proceeding brought against Owner based on 
any claim that the Work, or any part thereof, or the operation or use of the Work or any part 
thereof, constitutes infringement of any United States patent or copyright, now or hereafter 
issued. Owner shall give prompt written notice to Design-Builder of any such action or proceeding 
and will reasonably provide authority, information and assistance in the defense of same. Design-

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 121



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 35  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

Builder shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner from and against all damages and costs, 
including but not limited to attorneys’ fees and expenses awarded against Owner or Design-
Builder in any such action or proceeding. Design-Builder agrees to keep Owner informed of all 
developments in the defense of such actions.  

7.1.2 If Owner is enjoined from the operation or use of the Work, or any part thereof, as the 
result of any patent or copyright suit, claim, or proceeding, Design-Builder shall at its sole 
expense take reasonable steps to procure the right to operate or use the Work. If Design-Builder 
cannot so procure such right within a reasonable time, Design-Builder shall promptly, at Design-
Builder’s option and at Design-Builder’s expense, (i) modify the Work so as to avoid infringement 
of any such patent or copyright or (ii) replace said Work with Work that does not infringe or violate 
any such patent or copyright. 

7.1.3 Sections 7.1.1 and 7.1.2 above shall not be applicable to any suit, claim or proceeding 
based on infringement or violation of a patent or copyright (i) relating solely to a particular process 
or product of a particular manufacturer specified by Owner and not offered or recommended by 
Design-Builder to Owner or (ii) arising from modifications to the Work by Owner or its agents after 
acceptance of the Work. If the suit, claim or proceeding is based upon events set forth in the 
preceding sentence, Owner shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Design-Builder to the 
same extent Design-Builder is obligated to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Owner in 
Section 7.1.1 above. 

7.1.4 The obligations set forth in this Section 7.1 shall constitute the sole agreement between 
the parties relating to liability for infringement of violation of any patent or copyright.  

7.2 Tax Claim Indemnification 

7.2.1 If, in accordance with Owner’s direction, an exemption for all or part of the Work is 
claimed for taxes, Owner shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Design-Builder from and 
against any liability, penalty, interest, fine, tax assessment, attorneys’ fees or other expenses or 
costs incurred by Design-Builder as a result of any action taken by Design-Builder in accordance 
with Owner’s directive. Owner shall furnish Design-Builder with any applicable tax exemption 
certificates necessary to obtain such exemption, upon which Design-Builder may rely. 

7.3 Payment Claim Indemnification 

7.3.1 Provided that Owner is not in breach of its contractual obligation to make payments to 
Design-Builder for the Work, Design-Builder shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Owner 
from any claims or mechanic’s liens brought against Owner or against the Project as a result of 
the failure of Design-Builder, or those for whose acts it is responsible, to pay for any services, 
materials, labor, equipment, taxes or other items or obligations furnished or incurred for or in 
connection with the Work. Within three (3) days of receiving written notice from Owner that such a 
claim or mechanic’s lien has been filed, Design-Builder shall commence to take the steps 
necessary to discharge said claim or lien, including, if necessary, the furnishing of a mechanic’s 
lien bond. If Design-Builder fails to do so, Owner will have the right to discharge the claim or lien 
and hold Design-Builder liable for costs and expenses incurred, including attorneys’ fees. 

7.4 Design-Builder’s General Indemnification 

7.4.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Design-Builder shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless Owner and any and all of Owner’s Council, Boards, officers, agents, employees, 
assigns and successors in interest from and against any and all suits, claims, causes of action, 
liability, losses, damages, demands or expenses (including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and 
costs of litigation), (collectively, “Loss”) claimed by anyone (including Design-Builder and/or 
Design-Builder’s agents or employees) by reason of injury to, or death of, any person(s) 
(including Design-Builder and/or Design-Builder’s agents or employees), or for damage to, or 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 122



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 36  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

destruction of, any property (including property of Design-Builder and/or Design-Builder’s agents 
or employees) or for any and all other losses, founded upon or alleged to arise out of, pertain to, 
or relate to the Design-Builder’s and/or subcontractor’s performance of the Work on the Project, 
whether or not contributed to by any act or omission of Owner, or of any of Owner's Council, 
Boards, officers, agents or employees; Provided, however, that where such suits, claims, causes 
of action, liability, losses, damages, demands or expenses arise from or relate to Design-Builder’s 
performance of a “Construction Contract” as defined by California Civil Code section 2783, this 
paragraph shall not be construed to require Design-Builder to indemnify or hold Owner harmless 
to the extent such suits, causes of action, claims, losses, demands and expenses are caused by 
the Owner’s sole negligence, willful misconduct or active negligence; Provided further that where 
such suits, claims, causes of action, liability, losses, damages, demands or expenses arise from 
Design-Builder’s design professional services as defined by California Civil Code section 2782.8, 
Design-Builder’s indemnity obligations shall not include an up-front duty to defend and shall be 
limited to allegations, suits, claims, causes of action, liability, losses, damages, demands or 
expenses to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to the Design-Builder’s negligence, 
recklessness or willful misconduct in the performance of the Agreement.  

7.4.2 If an employee of Design-Builder, Design Consultants, Subcontractors, anyone employed 
directly or indirectly by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable has a 
claim against Owner, its officers, directors, employees, or agents, Design-Builder’s indemnity 
obligation set forth in Section 7.4.1 above shall not be limited by any limitation on the amount of 
damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for Design-Builder, Design Consultants, 
Subcontractors, or other entity under any employee benefit acts, including workers’ compensation 
or disability acts. 

7.4.3 Design-Builder’s obligation to defend and indemnify the Owner and the other referenced 
indemnitees arises at the time such Loss is tendered to Design-Builder by the Owner and 
continues at all times until finally resolved, and/or decided by an adjudicatory body or a court of 
competent jurisdiction.  

7.5 Owner’s General Indemnification 

7.5.1 Owner, to the fullest extent permitted by law, shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend 
Design-Builder and any of Design-Builder’s officers, directors, and employees, from and against 
claims, losses, damages, liabilities, including attorneys’ fees and expenses, for bodily injury, or 
death, and property damage or destruction (other than to the Work itself) but only in proportion to 
and to the extent resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of Owner, or Owner’s employees 
or agents who are directly under Owner’s authority or control (separate and distinct from Design-
Builder or others under Design-Builder’s authority or control) and  for whose acts Owner may be 
liable. 
 

7.6 Survival of Indemnities 

7.6.1 The provisions of this Article 7 shall remain operative following a termination of all other 
performance under this Agreement unless specifically extinguished in a writing signed as 
approved by the Design-Builder, the Owner and its attorney. 

 
Article 8 

Time 

8.1 Obligation to Achieve the Contract Times 

8.1.1 Design-Builder agrees that it will commence performance of the Work and achieve the 
Contract Time(s) in accordance with Article 6 of the Agreement. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 123



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 37  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

8.1.2 The Design-Builder shall be permitted reasonable, uninterrupted access to the Project 
Site subject to the operational protocols in place and as revised from time to time. The Design-
Builder shall cooperate with Owner to reasonably accommodate Owner's other work on the 
Project Site. Design-Builder shall actively schedule plan and coordinate the sequence of the Work 
and shall not delegate such responsibility for coordination to subcontractors but rather shall 
actively and proactively schedule and lead subcontractor coordination. 

8.1.3 The Design-Builder shall diligently prosecute the Work to completion. If Owner 
determines that the Design-Builder is failing to prosecute the Work in accordance with its 
approved schedule or the Project milestones, the Design-Builder shall  immediately take steps to 
remedy the situation 

8.1.4 All work performed and services provided hereunder by the Design-Builder shall conform 
to the standard of care ordinarily exercised by the construction industry in the State of California 
as applicable to a Design-Builder with prior successful experience in work similar in size and 
scope and complexity as the Work of the Contract Documents. 

8.1.5 The Design-Builder shall give Owner full information in advance as to its plans for 
performing each part of its work. If at any time, Design-Builder’s actual progress is inadequate to 
meet the requirements of this Agreement, Owner may so notify Design-Builder who shall 
thereupon take such steps as may be necessary to improve its progress. A Recovery Schedule is 
required along with the submission of a monthly Progress Schedule Update if the monthly 
Progress Schedule Update shows a delay of more than two (2) weeks to the Contract Milestones. 
If within a reasonable period as determined by Owner, the Design-Builder does not improve 
performance to meet the currently approved Construction Schedule; Owner may require an 
increase in the Design-Builder’s labor force, the number of shifts, overtime operations, and 
additional days of work per week, all without additional cost to Owner. Neither such notice by 
Owner nor Owner’s failure to issue such notice shall relieve Design-Builder of its obligation to 
achieve the quality of work and rate of progress required by this Agreement. 

8.2 Delays to the Work 

8.2.1 If Design-Builder is delayed in the performance of the Work due to acts, omissions, 
conditions, events, or circumstances beyond its control and due to no fault of its own or those for 
whom Design-Builder is responsible, subject to compliance with Section 2.12, the Contract 
Time(s) for performance may be reasonably extended by Change Order only to the extent that 
such delay impacts the critical path. Subject to section 8.3 and 9.5.4, an excusable delay is a 
delay to the critical path of the Project and meets all of the following requirements: 

8.2.1.1 It was not the responsibility of the Design-Builder under the Contract Documents 
and was beyond the control of Design-Builder; 

   8.2.1.2 It could not have been foreseen or avoided by Design-Builder; 

  8.2.1.3 the extent of the delay claimed was not caused by Design-Builder, its 
subcontractors or agents; 

8.2.1.4 Design-Builder has provided written notice to Owner of the delay act or event 
within seven (7) calendar days of its occurrence and thereafter satisfies all requirements 
in the Contract Documents for making a request for extension to the Project Schedules 
and Contract milestones. Pursuant to California Civil Code section 1511, the Parties 
agree that any failure to submit a timely and properly documented notice of delay or a 
request for extension of to the Project Schedules and Contract Milestones shall constitute 
a waiver by Design-Builder of any claim for additional compensation, time or impact costs 
from Owner. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 124



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 38  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

8.2.2 In addition to Design-Builder’s right to a time extension for those events set forth in 
Section 8.2.1 above, Design-Builder may be entitled to an appropriate adjustment of the Contract 
Price. A delay which is excusable must also meet the requirements for a compensable delay in 
order to be compensable. A Force Majeure delay is an excusable non-compensable delay. A 
delay due to financial issues of Design-Builder or any of its subcontractors or suppliers, including 
bankruptcy or insolvency, is not an excusable delay. A non-excusable delay is also non-
compensable. A compensable delay must be excusable and meet all of the following 
requirements: 
 

8.2.2.1 The costs of delay requested could not be mitigated; 
 

8.2.2.2 It was a result of a change directed by Owner, a material breach of the 
Agreement by Owner or resulting from the active negligence of Owner or other parties 
under Owner’s control; 

 
8.2.2.3 The Contract Documents do not preclude the claim for compensation; 

 
8.2.2.4 The delay is not concurrent with a delay caused by Design-Builder; 

 
8.2.2.5 Design-Builder has satisfied all requirements in the Contract Documents for 
making a claim for compensation pursuant to a compensable delay in a timely manner. 

 
8.2.3 If the Contractor Change Request is based in whole or in part on a delay of any kind or 
nature, the complete itemized proposal shall include the following information in addition to all 
other required information: 
 

8.2.3.1 The date, nature and circumstances of each event regarded as a cause of the 
delay; 
 
8.2.3.2 If the Design-Builder claims acceleration costs of scheduled performance or 
delivery, the basis upon which acceleration arose; 

 
8.2.3.3 The identification of any documents and the substance of any oral 
communication known to the Design-Builder which substantiate, refute or concern such 
delay; 

 
8.2.3.4 A Critical Path Method (CPM) schedule, including design, construction and 
commissioning corrected to reflect actual performance, showing delay impacts as 
separate tasks and Design-Builder’s mitigation of such impacts; and 

 
8.2.3.5 The specific elements of Contract performance for which the Design-Builder may 
seek an equitable adjustment, including: 
 

i. Identification of each Contract or schedule line item which has been or 
may be affected by such delay; 

ii. To the extent practicable, identification of the delay and disruption in the 
manner and sequence of performance, and the effect on continued 
performance, which have been or may be caused by such delay; 

iii. Identification of labor, materials, or both, or other cost items including 
overhead and subcontractor costs, which have been or may be added, 
deleted or wasted by such delay, and a statement that the Design-
Builder is maintaining records by some generally accepted accounting 
procedure which allows the separately identifiable direct costs due to the 
delay, and those not incurred as a result of the delay, to be readily 
identified and segregated; and 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 125



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 39  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

iv. Estimates of the necessary adjustments to Contract Amount, Contract 
Time and any other Contract provisions affected by the delay. 

 
8.2.4 Claims for a compensable delay shall not be allowed for any costs incurred if the Design-
Builder fails to notify Owner in writing within seven (7) calendar days of the act or event causing 
the delay. The Design-Builder will have the burden of proving that the delay is both an excusable 
delay and a compensable delay. If an excusable delay is found to be a compensable delay, 
Owner will by Change Order extend the Work Completion Time for the increase in the time of 
performance and will adjust the total Contract Price. The Change Order will be the Design-
Builder’s sole remedy arising out of the compensable delay. Pursuant to California Civil Code 
section 1511, the Parties agree that any failure to submit a timely and properly documented 
notice of excusable or compensable delay shall constitute a waiver by Design-Builder of any 
claim for additional compensation, time or impact costs from Owner. 
 

8.3 Force Majeure 
 
8.3.1 The term "Force Majeure" as employed herein shall mean an excusable, non-
compensable delay which is one of the below listed types, to the extent that the event(s) delays 
the progress of critical path activities, are beyond the Design-Builder's control, were not 
anticipatable by Design-Builder: acts of God (except as excluded herein), strikes (except those 
determined by Owner to be within the control of the Design-Builder), lockouts, or other industrial 
disturbances, acts of public enemies, terrorist acts, wars, blockades, insurrections, riots, 
epidemics, pandemics, earthquakes, hurricanes, tornadoes, orders by any court, board, 
department, commission or city or county of the United States or of any State, civil disturbances, 
explosions, rain or other adverse weather conditions, including fire (except fire which was the 
responsibility of the Design-Builder). 
 
8.3.2 The Design-Builder's observance of non-sanctioned picket lines or other similar labor 
actions shall be considered a non-excusable delay under this Contract and, as such, is not a 
Force Majeure event. 
 
8.3.3 Should either party be rendered unable, either wholly or in part, by an event of Force 
Majeure to fulfill its obligations under the Contract, the obligation(s) affected by such event of 
Force Majeure shall be suspended only during the continuance of the Force Majeure event. 
Suspension of Work is not required for a Force Majeure event. The party so affected shall give 
notice of the existence, extent and nature of such Force Majeure in writing to the other party 
within forty-eight (48) hours after the commencement of the Force Majeure event. The party so 
affected shall remedy such inability with all reasonable dispatch and shall use due diligence in 
this regard. Failure to give such notice shall result in the continuance of such party's obligation 
regardless of the extent of any existing Force Majeure event. Pursuant to California Civil Code 
section 1511, the Parties agree that any failure to submit a timely and properly documented 
notice and description of a Force Majeure event shall constitute a waiver by Design-Builder of any 
claim for additional compensation, time or impact costs from Owner. 
 
8.3.4 Nothing within this Article shall restrict the Owner's rights to pursue a termination or 
suspension pursuant to the Contract Documents. 
 

8.5 Liquidated Damages 
 

8.5.1 Liquidated Damages are the specified dollar amount the Design-Builder shall pay to the 
Owner due to the Design-Builder's failure to complete the Work within the Work Completion Time 
or within Contract Milestones. Unless provided otherwise in the Contract Documents. Liquidated 
Damages are intended to cover Owner's administrative, inspection, project management, and 
professional services costs in the period of extended construction and shall not be construed to 
cover or apply to costs of completion of the Work, costs or delays resulting from defective work, 
property damage or any costs or damages covered by insurance of any type. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 126



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 40  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

 
8.5.2 The parties recognize and agree that time is of the essence for this Contract. If 
Substantial Completion has not occurred on or before the scheduled Substantial Completion 
date, or Work is not completed within the shutdown constraints as described in  the DBIA 
Document No. 545, Owner will assess Liquidated Damages, as it is and will be impractical and 
extremely difficult to ascertain the actual damages which Owner will sustain in the event of and by 
reason of such delay. Liquidated Damages will be assessed for each missed shutdown constraint 
or failure to timely achieve Substantial Completion and thus may be cumulative. Owner shall have 
the right to deduct said Liquidated Damages from any amount due or that may become due the 
Design-Builder, or to collect such Liquidated Damages from the Design-Builder or its surety. 
These Liquidated Damages shall not be construed as a penalty. 
 
8.5.3 Execution of the Contract shall constitute agreement by Owner and Design-Builder that 
the amount specified in the Contract Documents is the minimum value of the costs and actual 
damage caused by the failure of the Design-Builder to complete the Work within the allotted time. 
Such sum is Liquidated Damages and may be deducted from payments due the Design-Builder if 
such delay occurs. 
 
8.5.4 Owner expressly denies that any progress payments made after the scheduled 
completion date constitute a waiver of Liquidated Damages. 
 
8.5.5 These provisions shall not prevent Owner, in the case of the Design-Builder's default 
under this Contract, from terminating the right of the Design-Builder to proceed as provided in the 
Contract Documents and seeking all damages and other remedies available to Owner under this 
Contract or by Law. 

 
 

Article 9 

Changes to the Contract Price and Time 

9.1 Change Orders 

9.1.1 A Change Order is a written instrument issued after execution of the Agreement signed 
by Owner and Design-Builder, stating their agreement upon all of the following: 

9.1.1.1 The scope of the change in the Work; 

9.1.1.2 The amount of the adjustment to the Contract Price; and 

9.1.1.3 The extent of the adjustment to the Contract Time(s). 

9.1.2 All changes in the Work authorized by applicable Change Order shall be performed under 
the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents. Owner and Design-Builder shall negotiate in 
good faith and as expeditiously as possible the appropriate adjustments for such changes. 

9.1.3 The Contract Pricing and Work Completion Time may only be changed by executed 
Change Order. Change Orders are generally bilateral signed by the Design-Builder and by 
Owner. Owner may also issue unilateral Change Orders, should there be an impasse on 
executing a bilateral agreement or time does not permit further negotiations.  

9.1.4 No extra work or change in the Contract Documents shall be made unless by a written 
Change Order approved by Owner. No claim for any change to the Contract Pricing or Work 
Completion Time shall be valid unless so ordered. A Change Order signed by the Design-Builder 
conclusively establishes the Design-Builder's agreement therewith, including the adjustment in 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 127



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 41  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

the Contract Pricing and the Work Completion Time. Owner reserves the right to contract with 
any person or firm other than the Design-Builder for any or all changed work. 

9.1.5 Accord and Satisfaction. It is the intent of Owner to settle each Change Order full and 
final at the time the Change Order is issued. Therefore, the following language will be deemed 
incorporated into all Change Orders: 
"The undersigned hereby proposes and agrees to furnish any and all labor, material and 
equipment, including all overhead and profit, in strict accordance with the requirements of the 
original Contract Documents except as specifically above noted otherwise for the sum stated 
above, and that are required in connection with the above proposed change. 
By signing the Change Order, the Design-Builder acknowledges and agrees, on behalf of himself, 
all subcontractors, and all suppliers, that the stipulated compensation includes payment for all 
work contained in the Change Order, plus all payment for the interruption of schedules, extended 
overhead costs, delay, all impacts, and ripple effect of cumulative impact on all other work under 
this Contract. The signing of the Change Order indicates that the Change Order constitutes the 
compensation (time and cost) set forth in the Change Order and comprises the total 
compensation due the Design-Builder, all subcontractors, and all suppliers, for the Work or 
change defined in the Change Order, including impact on unchanged work. The Design-Builder is 
in full mutual accord and satisfaction with the change, and that the time and /or cost under the 
Change Order constitute the total equitable adjustment owed the Design-Builder, all 
subcontractors, and all suppliers, as a result of the changes. The Design-Builder. on behalf of the 
Design-Builder, all subcontractors, and all suppliers, agrees to waive all right, without exception 
or reservation of any kind whatsoever, to file any further Claim related to this Change Order No 
further Claim or request for equitable adjustment of any type shall arise out of or as a result of this 
Change Order or the impact of this Change Order on the remainder of the Work under the 
Contract. The Design-Builder further agrees to indemnify and hold the Owner and its agents 
harmless from any further Claims, requests for equitable adjustment, or damages raised by 
subcontractors or suppliers at any tier, as a result of the Work under this Contract. The Design-
Builder, on behalf of the Design-Builder, all subcontractors, and all suppliers, expressly waives 
the benefits of the provisions of Section 1542 of the Civil Code, which reads as follows: "A 
GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT 
KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE 
RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS 
OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR." The Owner and the Design-Builder hereby agree 
that this Change Order constitutes full mutual accord and satisfaction for all time, all costs, and all 
impacts related directly to this Change Order." 
 
9.1.6 Unilateral Change Order. In case of failure on the part of Owner and the Design-Builder 
to arrive at an agreement on the amount of a credit or an extra cost for a proposed change to the 
Contract Documents, a unilateral Change Order will be processed in the amount believed by 
Owner to be reasonable and the Design-Builder shall proceed with the Work. If the Design-
Builder believes that the amount set forth in the unilateral Change Order is not a reasonable 
payment for the Work required the Design-Builder may file a Claim and request for review in 
accordance with Article 10.  
 
9.1.7 No oral statement of any person including the Design-Builder's personnel shall in any 
manner or degree, modify or otherwise affect the terms of this Contract. 
 
9.1.8 Contractor’s Overhead and Profit Limitation - For all negotiated Change Orders the 
allowance for overhead and profit shall include full compensation for extended overhead, home 
office overhead, and all other items of expense or cost not included in the cost of labor (rates to 
be negotiated), materials (based on invoice), or equipment provided (based on blue book) for in 
this Article. The allowance for overhead and profit shall not exceed the following schedule:  
 
  Overhead   Profit  
 
Labor =  10 percent    15 percent  

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 128



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 42  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

Materials =  10 percent    5 percent  
Equipment =  10 percent    10 percent  

9.1.9 Subcontractor Mark Up - It is understood that labor, materials, and equipment may be 
furnished by the Design-Builder or by a Subcontractor on behalf of the Design-Builder. When all 
or any part of the extra work is performed by a Subcontractor, the allowance specified herein 
shall be applied to the labor, materials, and equipment costs of the Subcontractor, to which the 
Design-Builder may add  percent of the Subcontractor's total cost for the extra work. Regardless 
of the number of hierarchical tiers of Subcontractors, the  percent increase above the performing 
subcontractor's total cost which includes the allowances for overhead and profit may be applied 
one time only.  

9.1.10 Equipment Rental Rates – Rental equipment required specifically for the Additional Work. 
Whenever possible, changed work will be accomplished using equipment available on-site or 
owned by the Design-Builder. If no on-site equipment can be used and a specific piece of 
equipment must be rented to be used exclusively for the changed work, the rental rate that will 

apply will be the rate shown on the supplier’s invoice.  In the event that equipment used is owned 
by the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder may use the current rental rates per the State of 
California Department of Transportation Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates. 

9.1.11 Design-Builder's Extra Work Report - In order to be paid for extra work based on 
time and materials, the Design-Builder must submit a daily Extra Work Report on a form 
provided by the Owner's Representative. The form must be completely filled out based on 
the provisions of this Article and signed by the Design-Builder and Owner's 
Representative at the end of each work day. Failure to complete the form and obtain 
appropriate signatures by the next working day after the Work was completed will result in 
Design-Builder's costs for extra work being disallowed until such form is completed and 
agreed to by the Owner's Representative. Delay in submitting the form beyond seven (7) 
days will result in the Owner's records becoming the official record for payment purposes.  

9.1.12 Except as otherwise provided in this Article, Change Orders shall not include" 

a. Overhead Costs - Payroll costs and other compensation of Design-Builder's officers, 
executives, principals, general manager, engineers, architects, estimators, attorneys, 
auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, timekeepers, clerks and other 
personnel employed by Design-Builder whether at the site or in Design-Builder's principal 
office, a branch office or material yard and ship for general administration of the Work or not 
specifically covered by this Article all of which are to be considered administrative costs 
covered by the Design-Builder's allowance for overhead and profit.  

b. Office Expense - Expenses of Design-Builder's principal and branch offices.  

c. Capital Expenses - Any part of Design-Builder's capital expenses, including interest on 
Design-Builder's capital employed for the Work and charges against Design-Builder for 
delinquent payments.  

d. Premiums - Cost of premiums for all Bonds and for all insurance whether or not Design-
Builder is required by the Contract Documents to purchase and maintain the same.  

e. Negligence - Costs due to the negligence of Design-Builder, any Subcontractor, or 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be 
liable, including but not limited to the correction of defective work, disposal of materials or 
equipment wrongly supplied, and making good any damage to property.  

f. Other - Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the cost of any item not 
specifically and expressly included in this Article.  

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 129



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 43  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

g. Small Tools - Cost of small tools valued at less than $500 and that remain the property of 
the Design-Builder.  

h. Administrative Costs - Costs associated with the preparation of Change Orders (whether 
or not ultimately authorized), cost estimates, or the preparation or filing of claims.  

i. Anticipated Lost Profits - Expenses of the Design-Builder associated with anticipated lost 
profits or lost revenues, lost income or earnings, lost interest on earnings or unpaid 
retainage 

j. Home Office Overhead - Costs derived from the computation of a "home office overhead" 
rate by application of the Eichleay, Allegheny, Burden Fluctuation, or other similar methods.  

k. Special Consultants and Attorneys - Costs of special consultants or attorneys, whether or 
not in the direct employ of the Design-Builder, employed for services specifically related to 
the resolution of a claim, dispute, or other matter relating to the acceptability of the Work. 

9.1.12 No Additional Compensation for Overtime - Except as otherwise provided in this Article, 
the Design-Builder shall receive no additional compensation for overtime Work (i.e., work in 
excess of 8 hours in any one calendar day or 40 hours in any one calendar week), even though 
such overtime Work may be required under emergency conditions and may be ordered by the 
Owner in writing. Owner will pay additional compensation to the Design-Builder for overtime 
Work only in the event extra Work is ordered by the Owner, and the Change Order specifically 
authorizes the use of overtime Work and then only to such extent as overtime wages are 
regularly being paid by the Design-Builder for overtime Work of a similar nature in the same 
locality. 
 
 

9.2 Work Change Directives. 

9.2.1 Owner and Design-Builder shall negotiate in good faith and as expeditiously as possible 
the appropriate adjustments for the Work Change Directive. Upon reaching an agreement, the 
parties shall prepare and execute an appropriate Change Order reflecting the terms of the 
agreement. 

9.3 Minor Changes in the Work. 

9.3.1 Minor changes in the Work do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Price and/or 
Contract Time(s) and do not materially and adversely affect the Work, including the design, 
quality, performance and workmanship required by the Contract Documents. Design-Builder may 
request in writing minor changes in the Work consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents 
and may proceed with such changes upon receiving written concurrence from the Owner. 

9.4 Contract Price Adjustments. 

9.4.1 The increase or decrease in Contract Price resulting from a change in the Work shall be 
determined by one or more of the following methods: 

9.4.1.1 Unit prices set forth in the Agreement or as subsequently agreed to between the 
parties; 

9.4.1.2 A mutually accepted lump sum, properly itemized and supported by sufficient 
substantiating data to permit evaluation by Owner; 

9.4.1.3 Costs, fees and any other markups set forth in the Agreement; or 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 130



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 44  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

9.4.1.4 If an increase or decrease cannot be agreed to as set forth in items 9.4.1.1 
through 9.4.1.3 above and Owner may issue a Work Change Directive, the cost of the 
change of the Work shall be determined by the reasonable expense and savings in the 
performance of the Work resulting from the change, including a reasonable overhead and 
profit, as may be set forth in the Agreement.  

9.4.2 If unit prices are set forth in the Contract Documents or are subsequently agreed to by 
the parties, but application of such unit prices will cause substantial inequity to Owner or Design-
Builder because of differences in the character or quantity of such unit items as originally 
contemplated, such unit prices shall be equitably adjusted. 

9.5 Escalation of Cost 
 
 9.5.1 Potential Time and Price-Impacted Material.  Certain markets providing essential 
materials to the Project may experience industry-wide economic fluctuation during the 
performance of this Agreement that may impact price, availability and deliver time frames 
("Potential Time and Price-Impacted Material").  This Agreement provides for a fair allocation of 
the risk of such market conditions between the Owner and the Design-Builder and shall only 
apply to the Potential Time and Price-Impacted material(s) listed in Schedule __ to this 
Agreement.  The conditions and requirements of this section shall also apply to the Design-
Builder's subcontractors and suppliers at any tier, including but not limited to, any sole sourced 
vendors or material suppliers that were provided or recommended by the Owner. 
  
 9.5.2  Baseline Price and Time.  The Owner and Design-Builder shall use a current 
agreed upon industry price index to establish the market price as of the date of this Agreement 
("Baseline Price"), and the method for calculating an adjustment in the pricing for a Potential Time 
and Price-Impacted Material listed in Schedule __ to this Agreement.  The Design-Builder shall 
identify in Schedule __ which price indices are recommended for use in establishing the Baseline 
Price for each commodity, however it is acknowledged that different industry acceptable price 
indices may be considered by the Owner in determining and agreeing to the Baseline Price. 
 

 9.5.2.1  Compensation for any Potential Time and Price-Impacted Material shall 
not be duplicated in any contingency amounts established under the terms of the 
Agreement. 

 
 9.5.3  Adjustment In Baseline Price. If during the course of the Project a Potential Time 
and Price-Impacted Material item experiences an increase or decrease in its Baseline Price of 
20% over 180 days as a result of unanticipated and significant industry wide price fluctuation, 
either party may notify the other in writing within thirty (30) days from the date the basis for 
equitable adjustment arises and shall provide appropriate documentation.  Material shall not 
include any amount for overhead and profit.  Eligibility under this Section shall apply only for a 
specific commodity for a specific procurement item, as identified in Schedule __.  Adjustments 
are not available for the same commodity over the life of the Project, which may be procured on 
more than one occasion. 
  

 9.5.3.1  In the event of a decrease in a Baseline Price, the Contract Price shall 
be equitably adjusted to reflect such decrease, subject to Article 9 of this Agreement, but 
only for those Potential Time and Price-Impacted Materials delivered on or after the date 
on which written notice of the adjustment in Baseline Price is given. 
 
 9.5.3.2  In the event of an increase in a Baseline Price, the Contract Price shall 
be equitably adjusted to reflect such increase, subject to Article 9 of this Agreement, but 
only for those Potentially Time and Price-Impacted Materials delivered on or after the 
date on which notice of the adjustment in Baseline Price is given. 
 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 131



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 45  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

 9.5.3.3  The Contract Price shall not be adjusted by more than three (3%) 
percent of the original Contract Price for the aggregate of the increases or decreases in 
Baseline Price for Potentially Time and Price-Impacted Materials. 
 
 9.5.3.4  No adjustment shall be made for quantities of Potentially Time and Price-
Impacted Materials scheduled for delivery under the terms of this Agreement prior to the 
date on which written notice of the adjustment in Baseline Price is given, unless the 
failure to deliver such quantities before that date is beyond the control of and without the 
fault of the Contractor, its Subcontractors and Material Suppliers. 
 
 9.5.3.5  Payment, if any, for an adjustment shall be made in accordance with the 
terms of the Agreement. 
 

 9.5.4  Time Impact and Availability.  If the Contract is delayed at any time in the 
commencement or progress of the Work due to a delay in the delivery of, or unavailability of, a 
Potentially Time and Price-Impacted Material, beyond the control of and without the fault of the 
Contractor, its Subcontractors and Material Suppliers, including but not limited to delays due to 
force majeure, the Contractor shall be entitled to an excusable, non-compensable delay subject 
to the requirements of Article 2.12 and Article 8.2 of the General Conditions.  The Owner and 
Design-Builder shall undertake reasonable steps to mitigate the effect of such delays.   
 

9.6 Emergencies 

9.5.1 In any emergency affecting the safety of persons and/or property, Design-Builder shall 
act, at its discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any change in the Contract 
Price and/or Contract Time(s) on account of emergency work shall be determined as provided in 
this Article 9. 

 
 

Article 10 

Contract Adjustments and Disputes 

10.1 Requests for Contract Adjustments and Relief 

10.1.1 Claims. For purposes of this Article, “Claim” means a separate demand by the Design-
Builder for one of more of the following: (A) a time extension, (B) payment of money or damages 
arising from Work done by or on behalf of the Design-Builder pursuant to the Contract, or (C) an 
amount the payment of which is disputed by the Owner. In accordance with California Public 
Contract Code Section 20104.2 and Public Contract Code Section 9204, presuming Design-
Builder has diligently pursued and exhausted the administrative procedures of the Contract, the 
procedures in this Article apply to claims between the Design-Builder and the Owner. 

10.1.2 If the Design-Builder believes that it is entitled to relief against the Owner for any event 
arising out of or related to the Work or Project, Design-Builder shall provide written notice to the 
Owner of the basis for its claim for relief, as provided for in Articles 8 and 9. In the event that the 
Design-Builder does not accept the Owner's decision on a Change Order Request, the Design-
Builder must within 30 calendar days of a written rejection submit in writing and in electronic form 
to the Owner with all documentation which it believes relate to the issues it is raising ("Dispute 
Submittal"). All disputes and negotiations shall be documented by each Party in writing in 
accordance with the Agreement and shall state each claim specifically, show the calculation and 
basis for each claim for compensation and the schedule (including fragnet) analysis for each 
schedule demand. Any claim that lacks specific calculation or documentary support will not be 
considered,. Pursuant to California Civil Code section 1511, the Parties agree that any failure to 
submit a timely Contractor Change Request or Dispute Submittal shall constitute a waiver by 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 132



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 46  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

Design-Builder of any claim for additional compensation, time or impact costs from Owner.  

10.1.3 Certification of Dispute Submittal. Any claim, including without limitation any claim filed on 
behalf of or having its source in a claim by subcontractor, sub-subcontractor, or supplier, at any 
tier, which the Design-Builder chooses to make to Owner, shall be accompanied by the 
certification language set forth below signed by a responsible managing officer of the Design-
Builder's organization, who has the authority to sign subcontracts or Purchase Orders on behalf 
of the Design-Builder, and who has personally investigated and confirmed the truth and accuracy 
of the matters set forth in such certification. Submission of certification in accordance herewith is 
a condition precedent to Owner's consideration of or decision on the claim and to the filing and 
maintenance of any legal action or proceeding to enforce or recover monies under such claim. 
Failure to submit such a certification along with the claim shall result in the claim being returned 
to the Design-Builder without any decision, and shall waive the Design-Builder’s right to pursue 
the claim either on its own behalf or on behalf of such subcontractor or supplier.  

10.1.4 The certification shall state: “I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that I am a 
managing officer of (Design-Builder’s name) and that I have reviewed the Claim presented 
herewith on Design-Builder’s behalf and/or on behalf of (subcontractor’s/supplier's name(s)) and 
that the following statements are true and correct: 

The facts alleged in or that form the basis for the Claim are true and accurate; and, 
Design-Builder does not know of any facts or circumstances, not alleged in the Claim, 
that by reason of their not being alleged render any fact or statement alleged in the Claim 
materially misleading; and, 

Design-Builder has, with respect to any request for money or damages alleged in or that 
forms the basis for the Claim, reviewed the job cost records (including those maintained 
by Design-Builder and by any subcontractor or supplier, of any tier, that is asserting all or 
any portion of the Claim) and confirmed with mathematical certainty that the losses or 
damages suffered by Design-Builder and /or such subcontractor or supplier were in fact 
suffered in the amounts and for the reasons alleged in the Claim; and, 

Design-Builder has, with respect to any request for extension of time or claim of delay, 
disruption, hindrance or interference alleged in or that forms the basis for the Claim, 
reviewed the job schedules(including those maintained by Design-Builder and by any 
subcontractor or supplier, of any tier, that is asserting all or any portion of the Claim) and 
confirmed on an event-by-event basis that the delays or disruption suffered by Design-
Builder and /or such subcontractor or supplier were in fact experienced for the durations, 
in the manner, and with the consequent effects on the time and/or sequence of 
performance of the Work, as alleged in the Claim; and, 

Design-Builder has not received payment from Owner for, nor has Design-Builder 
previously released Owner from any portion of the Claim." 

Design-Builder Signature Line_______________ 

10.1.5 Owner's Response. Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this Article, the Owner shall 
conduct a reasonable review of the claim and provide a written response to the Design-Builder 
within 45 days of the date of the claim, identifying the portion of the claim that is disputed and the 
portion that is undisputed. Upon receipt of a claim, the Owner and the Design-Builder may, by 
mutual agreement, extend the time period provided in this subdivision. 

10.1.5.1 All amounts that the Owner identifies in its response as undisputed must be 
processed and paid within 60 days of the Owner’s response. Pursuant to Public Contract 
Code section 9204(d)(4), if the Owner fails to pay within 60 days, undisputed amounts 
not paid will bear interest at 7 percent per annum.  

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 133



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 47  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

10.1.5.2 If the Owner needs approval from its governing body to provide the Design-
Builder a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion of 
the claim, and the Owner’s governing body does not meet within the 45 days or within the 
mutually agreed to extension of time following receipt of a claim sent by registered mail or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, the Owner shall have up to (3) three days 
following the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the Owner’s governing body after the 
45-day period, or extension, expires to provide the Design-Builder a written statement 
identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion. 

10.1.6 Meet and Confer. If the Design-Builder disputes the Owner’s written response, or the 
Owner fails to respond within the time prescribed, the Design-Builder may so notify the Owner, in 
writing, either within 15 days of receipt of the Owner’s response or within 15 days of the Owner’s 
failure to respond within the time prescribed, respectively, and demand an informal conference to 
meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute.  Upon receipt of a demand, the Owner 
shall schedule a meet and confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute.   

10.1.7 Mediation. Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet and confer 
conference, if the claim or any portion of the claim remains in dispute, the Owner shall provide the 
Design-Builder a written statement identifying the portion of the claim that remains in dispute and 
the portion that is undisputed. Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be 
processed and made within 60 days after the Owner issues its written statement. If the Owner 
fails to pay within 60 days, undisputed amounts not paid will bear interest at 7 percent per annum. 
Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by the Design-Builder in writing, shall be submitted 
to nonbinding mediation, with the Owner and the Design-Builder sharing the associated costs 
equally. The Owner and Design-Builder shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business 
days after the disputed portion of the claim has been identified in writing, unless the parties agree 
to select a mediator at a later time.  

10.1.7.1 If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a mediator 
and those mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard to 
the disputed portion of the claim. Each party shall bear the fees and costs charged by its 
respective mediator in connection with the selection of the neutral mediator. 

10.1.7.2 For purposes of this section, mediation includes any nonbinding process, 
including, but not limited to, neutral evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an 
independent third party or board assists the parties in dispute resolution through 
negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any mediation utilized shall conform to the 
timeframes in this section. 

10.1.7.3 Unless otherwise agreed to by the Owner and the Design-Builder in writing, the 
mediation conducted pursuant to this section shall excuse any further obligation under 
Public Contract Code Section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has been commenced. 

10.1.7.4 This section does not preclude the Owner from requiring arbitration of disputes 
under private arbitration or the Public Works Contract Arbitration Program, if mediation 
under this section does not resolve the parties’ dispute. 

10.1.7.5 The mediation shall be held no earlier than the date the Design-Builder 
completes the Work or the date that the Design-Builder last performs Work, whichever is 
earlier. All unresolved claims shall be considered jointly in a single mediation, unless a 
new unrelated claim arises after mediation is complete. 

 

10.2 Legal Proceedings 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 134



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 48  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

10.2.1 Civil Actions. Procedures for civil actions to resolve claims of $375,000 or less between 
the District and the Design-Builder are governed pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 
20104.4. 

10.2.2 Government Code Claims. In addition to any and all contract requirements pertaining to 
notices of and requests for compensation or payment for extra Work, disputed Work, construction 
claims and/or changed conditions, the Design-Builder must comply with the claim procedures set 
forth in Government Code Sections 900, et seq. prior to filing any lawsuit against the Owner. 
Such Government Code claims and any subsequent lawsuit based upon the Government Code 
claims shall be limited to those matters that remain unresolved after all procedures pertaining to 
the extra Work, disputed Work, construction claims, and/or changed conditions have been 
followed by the Design-Builder. If no such Government Code claim is submitted, or if the 
prerequisite contractual requirements are not satisfied, no action against the Owner may be filed. 
A Government Code claim must be filed no earlier than the date the Work is completed or the 
date the Design-Builder last performs Work on the Project, whichever occurs first. A Government 
Code claim shall be inclusive of all unresolved claims unless a new unrelated claim arises after 
the Government Code claim is submitted.  
 
10.2.3 Non-Waiver. The Owner’s failure to respond to a claim from the Design-Builder within the 
time periods described in this Article or to otherwise meet the time requirements of this Article 
shall result in the claim being deemed rejected in its entirety. A claim that is denied by reason of 
the Owner's failure to have responded to a claim, or its failure to otherwise meet the time 
requirements of this section, shall not constitute an adverse finding with regard to the merits of 
the claim or the responsibility or qualifications of the Design-Builder. 
 
10.2.4 Forum for Dispute Resolution. It is the express intention of the parties that all legal 
proceedings related to this Agreement or to the Project or to any rights or any relationship 
between the parties arising therefrom shall be solely and exclusively initiated and maintained in 
San Bernardino County Superior Court. The Design-Builder and Owner each irrevocably 
consents to the jurisdiction of such courts in any such legal proceeding and waives any objection 
it may have to the laying of the jurisdiction of any such legal proceeding. 

10.2.5 The prevailing party in any legal action or proceeding, or any other final, binding dispute 
proceeding upon which the parties may agree, shall be entitled to recover from the other party 
actual attorneys’ fees and expenses incurred by the prevailing party. 

10.3 Duty to Continue Performance 

10.3.1 Unless provided to the contrary in the Contract Documents, Design-Builder shall continue 
to perform the Work and Owner shall continue to satisfy its payment obligations to Design-
Builder, pending the final resolution of any dispute or disagreement between Design-Builder and 
Owner.  

 

Article 11 

Suspension and Termination for Cause 

11.1 Owner’s Right to Suspend Work 

11.1.1 Owner may suspend all or any part of the Work by written order signed by Owner 
("Suspension Order"), without invalidating the Agreement, for such period or periods as it may 
deem necessary due to: 

   11.1.1.1 Any reason for the convenience of the Owner, with or without cause; 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 135



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 49  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

   11.1.1.2 An order from a state or federal court or a government administrative agency; or 

   11.1.1.3 The Design-Builder's failure to perform any provision of the Contract Documents. 

11.1.2 Upon receipt from Owner of a Suspension Order, the Design-Builder shall, unless the 
notice requires otherwise: 

11.1.2.1 Immediately discontinue work on the date and to the extent specified in the 
notice; 

11.1.2.2 Place no further orders or subcontracts for material, services, or facilities with 
respect to suspended work other than to the extent required in the notice;, 

11.1.2.3 Promptly make every reasonable effort to obtain suspension in terms 
satisfactory to Owner of all orders, subcontracts and rental agreements to the extent they 
relate to performance of suspended work; 

 11.1.2.4 Continue to protect and maintain the Work including those portions on which 
work has been suspended; if the Design-Builder fails to properly provide for public safety, 
traffic, and protection of the Work during periods of suspension, Owner may elect to do 
so and back charge or deduct the cost thereof from monies due the Design-Builder. Such 
actions will not relieve the Design-Builder from liability. 

 11.1.2.5 Within three (3) days of the receipt of the Suspension Order, submit a 
suspension plan to Owner for acceptance. The plan shall describe how the Design-
Builder will store all materials in a manner so that the materials will not become an 
obstruction or become damaged in any way, what cost effective methods it will employ to 
prevent damage to or deterioration of the Work and otherwise protect the Work, how 
suitable drainage will be provided, what temporary structures will be necessary, and how 
the Design-Builder will prepare for resuming the Work for the least possible 
remobilization cost. After the plan is accepted, the Design-Builder shall implement it in 
accordance with instructions received from Owner; and 

   11.1.2.6 Take any and all measures to minimize costs associated with such suspension. 

  11.1.3 Under no circumstance shall a suspension absolve the Design-Builder or the Design-
Builder's sureties of the duties and responsibilities guaranteed under the performance and 
payment bond(s). The Design-Builder shall again proceed with the Work when it is ordered to do 
so in writing by Owner. 

  11.1.4 Design-Builder is entitled to seek an adjustment of the Contract Price and/or Contract 
Time(s) if its cost or time to perform the Work has been adversely impacted by any suspension of 
stoppage of the Work by Owner. If the Design-Builder intends to assert a claim for compensation 
or time extension under this Article, it must, and not withstanding any time limitations specified 
elsewhere in the Contract Documents, within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of notice to 
resume work, submit to Owner a Contractor Change Request setting forth the schedule impact 
and monetary impact of the suspension in sufficient detail to permit thorough analysis. 
Adjustment of work Completion Time, if appropriate, will be made pursuant to the provisions of 
the Contract Documents. Adjustment of the not to exceed contract amount, if any, will be within 
the Owner’s sole discretion and shall not in any event, exceed the cost of the extra work resulting 
from such suspension. Such cost, if any, shall be determined in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. Pursuant to California Civil Code section 1511, the Parties agree that any failure to 
submit a timely and properly documented Contractor Change Request shall constitute a waiver 
by Design-Builder of any claim for additional compensation, time or impact costs from Owner. 

  11.1.5 Suspension due to a ruling of City, State or Federal Court -- The Suspension Order will 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 136



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 50  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

identify the court or agency ruling which caused the suspension, and subject to Owner approval, 
may extend the Work Completion Time by the stated amount of time specified by the court or 
agency order. If the ruling causes suspension for an indefinite period of time and as a result a 
time extension cannot be established, the Suspension Order may also be for an indefinite period 
of time, subject to Owner approval. If the Suspension Order is issued because of acts or 
omissions of the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall not be entitled to a time extension or 
payment for any additional costs it incurs. 

  11.1.6 Suspension Resulting from Design-Builder’s Failure to Perform -- If a Suspension Order 
results from the Design-Builder's failure to satisfactorily perform any of the provisions of the 
Agreement, including but not limited to faulty workmanship, safety concerns, improper or 
inadequate manpower, equipment, supplies or supervision, or failure to perform the Work or pay 
employees, subcontractors or suppliers in a timely manner, the Suspension Order will identify the 
reason, or reasons, for the order. In this circumstance, no time extension will be authorized for 
the Design-Builder and any costs to the Design-Builder resulting from such Suspension Order will 
not be reimbursed by Owner. A Suspension Order issued under these circumstances will remain 
in effect until the Design-Builder has removed or corrected the grounds for the suspension, or the 
Suspension Order expires by its terms. 

 11.2 Owner’s Right to Perform and Terminate for Cause 

11.2.1 If Design-Builder persistently fails to (i) provide a sufficient number of skilled workers, (ii) 
supply the materials required by the Contract Documents, (iii) comply with applicable Legal 
Requirements, (iv) timely pay, without cause, Design Consultants or Subcontractors, (v) 
prosecute the Work with promptness and diligence to ensure that the Work is completed by the 
Contract Time(s), as such times may be adjusted, or (vi) perform material obligations under the 
Contract Documents, then Owner, in addition to any other rights and remedies provided in the 
Contract Documents or by law, shall have the rights set forth in Sections 11.2.2 and 11.2.3 below.  

11.2.2 Upon the occurrence of an event set forth in Section 11.2.1 above, Owner may provide 
written notice to Design-Builder that it intends to terminate the Design-Builder's performance 
unless the problem cited is cured, or commenced to be cured, within seven (7) days of Design-
Builder’s receipt of such notice. If Design-Builder fails to cure, or reasonably commence to cure, 
such problem, then Owner may give a second written notice to Design-Builder of its intent to 
terminate within an additional seven (7) day period. If Design-Builder, within such second seven 
(7) day period, fails to cure, or reasonably commence to cure, such problem, then Owner may 
declare the Agreement terminated for default by providing written notice to Design-Builder of such 
declaration.  

11.2.3 Upon declaring the Agreement terminated pursuant to Section 11.2.2 above, Owner may 
elect to: 

11.2.3.1 Enter upon the premises and take possession, for the purpose of completing the 
Work, of all materials, equipment, scaffolds, tools, appliances and other items thereon, 
which have been purchased or provided for the performance of the Work, all of which 
Design-Builder hereby transfers, assigns and sets over to Owner for such purpose, and 
to employ any person or persons to complete the Work and provide all of the required 
labor, services, materials, equipment and other items. In the event of such termination, 
Design-Builder shall not be entitled to receive any further payments under the Contract 
Documents until the Work shall be finally completed in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. At such time, if the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds the cost 
and expense incurred by Owner in completing the Work, such excess shall be paid by 
Owner to Design-Builder. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, if the Agreement 
establishes a Guaranteed Maximum Price, Design-Builder will only be entitled to be paid 
for Work performed prior to its default. If Owner’s cost and expense of completing the 
Work exceeds the unpaid balance of the Contract Price, then Design-Builder shall be 
obligated to pay the difference to Owner. Such costs and expense shall include not only 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 137



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 51  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

the cost of completing the Work, but also losses, damages, costs and expense, including 
attorneys’ fees and expenses, incurred by Owner in connection with the re-procurement 
and defense of claims arising from Design-Builder’s default, subject to the waiver of 
consequential damages set forth in Article 13 in the 545 Design Build Agreement hereof; 
or 

11.2.3.2 Serve written notice upon the Design-Builder and its surety on its performance 
bond demanding satisfactory compliance with the Contract. 

i. If the surety assumes the Contract, all money which may become due 
the Design-Builder shall be payable to the surety as the Work 
progresses, subject to the terms of the Contract. 

ii. If the surety does not assume the Contract and commence performance 
of the Work within twenty-one (21) days after receiving the Executive 
Director’s notice and demand, or fails to continue to comply, the 
Executive Director may remove the surety from the premises. If the 
surety bond has provisions contrary to this right, then the 60 day time 
limit stated elsewhere in this Contract shall apply. 

iii. Upon any Surety default, Owner may then take possession of all material 
and equipment and complete the Work by use of its own forces, by 
letting the unfinished work to another Design-Builder, or by a 
combination of such methods. In any event, the cost of completing the 
Work shall be charged against the Design-Builder and its surety and may 
be deducted from any money due or becoming due from the Design-
Builder. If the amount unpaid under the Agreement is insufficient for 
completion, the Design-Builder or surety shall pay to Owner within five 
(5) days after the completion and an itemized demand for payment from 
Owner, all costs and damages incurred by Owner in excess of the 
amount unpaid under the Agreement. 

11.2.4 If Owner improperly terminates the Agreement for cause, the termination for cause will be 
converted to a termination for convenience in accordance with the provisions of Article 8 of the 
Agreement. 

11.5 Bankruptcy of Owner or Design-Builder 

11.5.1 If either Owner or Design-Builder institutes or has instituted against it a case under the 
United States Bankruptcy Code (such party being referred to as the “Bankrupt Party”), such event 
may impair or frustrate the Bankrupt Party’s ability to perform its obligations under the Contract 
Documents. Accordingly, should such event occur: 

11.5.1.1 The Bankrupt Party, its trustee or other successor, shall furnish, upon request 
of the non-Bankrupt Party, adequate assurance of the ability of the Bankrupt Party to 
perform all future material obligations under the Contract Documents, which assurances 
shall be provided within ten (10) days after receiving notice of the request; and 

11.5.1.2 The Bankrupt Party shall file an appropriate action within the bankruptcy court 
to seek assumption or rejection of the Agreement within sixty (60) days of the institution 
of the bankruptcy filing and shall diligently prosecute such action. 

If the Bankrupt Party fails to comply with its foregoing obligations, the non-Bankrupt Party shall be 
entitled to request the bankruptcy court to reject the Agreement, declare the Agreement 
terminated and pursue any other recourse available to the non-Bankrupt Party under this Article 
11. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 138



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 52  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

11.5.2 The rights and remedies under Section 11.5.1 above shall not be deemed to limit the 
ability of the non-Bankrupt Party to seek any other rights and remedies provided by the Contract 
Documents or by law, including its ability to seek relief from any automatic stays under the United 
States Bankruptcy Code or the right of Design-Builder to stop Work under any applicable 
provision of these General Conditions of Agreement. 

 

 
Article 12 

Electronic Data 

 
12.1 Electronic Data  
 

12.1.1 The parties recognize that Contract Documents, including drawings, specifications and 
three-dimensional modeling (such as Building Information Models) and other Work Product may 
be transmitted among Owner, Design-Builder and others in electronic media as an alternative to 
paper hard copies (collectively “Electronic Data”).  

 
12.2 Transmission of Electronic Data 
 

12.2.1 Owner and Design-Builder shall agree upon the software and the format for the 
transmission of Electronic Data. Each party shall be responsible for securing the legal rights to 
access the agreed-upon format, including, if necessary, obtaining appropriately licensed copies of 
the applicable software or electronic program to display, interpret and/or generate the Electronic 
Data. 
 
12.2.2 Neither party makes any representations or warranties to the other with respect to the 
functionality of the software or computer program associated with the electronic transmission of 
Work Product. Unless specifically set forth in the Agreement, ownership of the Electronic Data 
does not include ownership of the software or computer program with which it is associated, 
transmitted, generated or interpreted. 
 
12.2.3 By transmitting Work Product in electronic form, the transmitting party does not transfer 
or assign its rights in the Work Product. The rights in the Electronic Data shall be as set forth in 
Article 5 of the Agreement. Under no circumstances shall the transfer of ownership of Electronic 
Data be deemed to be a sale by the transmitting party of tangible goods. 

 
12.3 Electronic Data Protocol 
 

12.3.1 The parties acknowledge that Electronic Data may be altered or corrupted, intentionally 
or otherwise, due to occurrences beyond their reasonable control or knowledge, including but not 
limited to compatibility issues with user software, manipulation by the recipient, errors in 
transcription or transmission, machine error, environmental factors, and operator error. 
Consequently, the parties understand that there is some level of increased risk in the use of 
Electronic Data for the communication of design and construction information and, in 
consideration of this, agree, and shall require their independent contractors, Subcontractors and 
Design Consultants to agree, to the following protocols, terms and conditions set forth in this 
Section 12.3. 
 
12.3.2 Electronic Data will be transmitted in the format agreed upon in Section 12.2.1 above, 
including file conventions and document properties, unless prior arrangements are made in 
advance in writing. 
 
12.3.3 The Electronic Data represents the information at a particular point in time and is subject 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 139



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 53  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

to change. Therefore, the parties shall agree upon protocols for notification by the author to the 
recipient of any changes which may thereafter be made to the Electronic Data, which protocol 
shall also address the duty, if any, to update such information, data or other information contained 
in the electronic media if such information changes prior to Final Completion of the Project. 
 
12.3.4 The transmitting party specifically disclaims all warranties, expressed or implied, 
including, but not limited to, implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular 
purpose, with respect to the media transmitting the Electronic Data. In the event of conflicts or 
inconsistencies in the Electronic Data and the corresponding signed hard copy of the Work 
Product, the hard copy of the Work Product shall prevail. Other than to extent limited by the 
foregoing, transmission of the Electronic Data via electronic means shall not invalidate or negate 
any duties pursuant to the applicable standard of care with respect to the creation of the 
Electronic Data, unless such data is materially changed or altered after it is transmitted to the 
receiving party, and the transmitting party did not participate in such change or alteration.  

 
 

Article 13 

Miscellaneous 

13.1 Confidential Information  
 

13.1.1 Confidential Information is defined as information which is determined by the transmitting 
party to be of a confidential or proprietary nature and: (i) the transmitting party identifies as either 
confidential or proprietary; (ii) the transmitting party takes steps to maintain the confidential or 
proprietary nature of the information; and (iii) the document is not otherwise available in or 
considered to be in the public domain. The receiving party agrees to maintain the confidentiality 
of the Confidential Information and agrees to use the Confidential Information solely in connection 
with the Project. 
 
13.1.2 The parties understand that all the material provided or produced under this Agreement 
may be subject to the California Public Records Act, Cal. Government Code section 6250, et 
seq., and that in the event of a request to the Owner for disclosure of such information, the Owner 
shall advise the Design-Builder of such request in order to give the Design-Builder the opportunity 
to object to the disclosure of any of its proprietary or confidential material. In the event of the filing 
of a lawsuit to compel such disclosure, the Owner will tender all such material to the court for 
judicial determination of the issue of disclosure and the Design-Builder agrees to intervene in 
such lawsuit to protect and assert its claims of privilege against disclosure of such material. The 
Design-Builder further agrees to defend, indemnify and save and hold harmless the Owner, its 
council, officers, agents and employees, from any claim, damages, expense, loss or costs arising 
out of the Design-Builder’s intervention to protect and assert its claims of privilege against 
disclosure under this Article including, but not limited to, prompt reimbursement to the Owner of 
all reasonable attorney fees, costs and damages that the Owner may incur directly or may be 
ordered to pay by such court. 

 
13.2 Assignment 

13.2.1 Neither Design-Builder nor Owner shall, without the written consent of the other assign, 
transfer or sublet any portion or part of the Work or the obligations required by the Contract 
Documents. 

13.2.2 For purposes of this Contract, the terms “transfer” and “assign” shall include, but not be 
limited to, the following: 

13.2.2.1 If the Design-Builder is a joint venture, a limited liability company, or a 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 140



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 54  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

partnership, the transfer of fifty percent (50%) or more of the interest or membership in 
the joint venture, the limited liability company, or the partnership; 

13.2.2.2 If the Design-Builder is a corporation, any cumulative or aggregate sale, transfer, 
merger, assignment, or hypothecation of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting shares 
of the Design/Builder; 

 13.2.2.3 The dissolution by any means of Design-Builder; and 

13.2.2.4 A change in business or corporate structure. Any such transfer, assignment, 
mortgaging, pledging, or encumbering of Design/Builder without the written consent of 
the Owner is a violation of this Contract and shall be voidable at Owner’s option and shall 
confer no right, title, or interest in or to this Contract upon the assignee, mortgagee, 
pledgee, encumbrance, or other lien holder, successor, or purchaser. 

 
13.3 Successorship 

13.3.1 Design-Builder and Owner intend that the provisions of the Contract Documents are 
binding upon the parties, their employees, agents, heirs, successors and assigns. 

 
13.4 Governing Law 

 
13.4.1 The Agreement and all Contract Documents shall be governed by the laws of the place of 
the Project, without giving effect to its conflict of law principles. 
 

13.5 Severability 
 

13.5.1 If any provision or any part of a provision of the Contract Documents shall be finally 
determined to be superseded, invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable pursuant to any 
applicable Legal Requirements, such determination shall not impair or otherwise affect the 
validity, legality, or enforceability of the remaining provision or parts of the provision of the 
Contract Documents, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the unenforceable provision 
or part were deleted. 
  

13.6 No Waiver 

13.6.1 The failure of either Design-Builder or Owner to insist, in any one or more instances, on 
the performance of any of the obligations required by the other under the Contract Documents 
shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of such obligation or right with respect to 
future performance. 

13.7 Headings 

13.7.1 The headings used in these General Conditions of Contract, or any other Contract 
Document, are for ease of reference only and shall not in any way be construed to limit or alter 
the meaning of any provision. 
 

13.8 Notice 

13.8.1 Whenever the Contract Documents require that notice be provided to the other party, 
notice will be deemed to have been validly given (i) if delivered in person to the individual 
intended to receive such notice, (ii) four (4) days after being sent by registered or certified mail, 
postage prepaid to the address indicated in the Agreement, or (iii) if transmitted by facsimile, by 
the time stated in a machine generated confirmation that notice was received at the facsimile 
number of the intended recipient. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 141



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 55  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

13.9 Amendments 

13.9.1 The Contract Documents may not be changed, altered, or amended in any way except in 
writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each party. 

13.10 No Third Party Beneficiary 

13.10.1 It is expressly understood and agreed that the enforcement of the terms and conditions of 
the Contract, and all rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the 
Owner and the Design-Builder, and that nothing contained in the Contract shall give or allow any 
claim or right of action by any other or third person under the Contract. It is the express intention 
of the Owner and the Design-Builder that any member of the public, subcontractor, supplier, 
material man, tradesman, vendor or other person or entity other than the Owner or the Design-
Builder receiving services or benefits under the Contract shall be deemed to be an incidental 
beneficiary only. The foregoing shall not, however, impair Owner's status as a third party 
beneficiary of subcontracts of any tier for the performance of work or delivery of services, material 
or equipment to the Project. 

13.11 Labor and Prevailing Wages 

13.11.1 The Design-Builder, its agents, and employees shall be bound by and comply with 
applicable provisions of the California Labor Code and Federal, State, and local laws related to 
labor. The Design-Builder shall strictly adhere to the provisions of the California Labor Code. The 
Design-Builder shall forfeit to the Owner the penalties prescribed in the California Labor Code for 
violations. In accordance with the California Labor Code, the District has on file and will publish a 
schedule of prevailing wage rates for the types of work to be done under the Contract. The 
Design-Builder shall not pay less than these rates. 

13.11.2 Each worker shall be paid subsistence and travel as required by the collective bargaining 
agreements on file with the State of California Department of Industrial Relations. The Design-
Builder's attention is directed to Section 1776 of the California Labor Code which imposes 
responsibility upon the Design-Builder for the maintenance, certification, and availability for 
inspection of such records for all persons employed by the Design-Builder or subcontractor in 
connection with the project. The Design-Builder shall agree through the Contract to comply with 
this Section 1776 and the remaining provisions of the California Labor Code. The Design-Builder 
shall comply with all DIR regulations, including but not limited to, DIR registration. 

13.12 Payroll Records 

13.12.1 Design-Builder and each subcontractor performing any portion of the Work under this 
Contract shall keep an accurate record, showing the name, address, social security number, work 
classification, straight time and overtime hours for each day and week, and the actual per diem 
wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, professional, salaried, or other employee 
employed by him or her in connection with the Work. 

13.12.2 The payroll records of Design-Builder and each subcontractor (including payroll records 
for professional or salaried employees) shall be certified and shall be available for inspection at 
the principal office of Design-Builder. 

13.12.3 Design-Builder shall file a certified copy of the payroll records (including those applicable 
to professional and salaried employees) with Owner within ten (10) days after receipt of a written 
request from Owner. 

13.12.4 Design-Builder shall inform Owner of the location of said payroll records, including the 
street address, City and County, and shall, within five (5) working days, provide a notice of 
change of location and address of said payroll records. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 142



 

1372444.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 535  Page 56  
Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder 
© 2010 Design-Build Institute of America 

13.12.5 In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this clause, Design-Builder shall 
have ten (10) days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice specifying in what 
respect it must comply. Should noncompliance exist after said ten (10) day period, Design-Builder 
shall, be subject to a fee of Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for 
each worker to whom the noncompliance pertains, until strict compliance is effectuated. Design-
Builder acknowledges that, without limitation as to other remedies of enforcement available to 
Owner, upon the request of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards or the Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement of the California Department of Industrial Relations, such penalties shall 
be withheld from progress payments then due Design-Builder.  The Design-Builder shall comply 
with all laws regarding requirements for certified payrolls, including but not limited to, uploading of 
certified payrolls. 

13.13 Local Hiring 

13.13.1 Design-Builder and Subcontractors shall comply with the local codes, which is 
incorporated into the contract by reference. The SBMC Chapter____ specifically requires the 
District's contractors and their subcontractors to make good faith efforts to hire qualified 
individuals who are local residents, as workers on District public works projects valued greater 
than the limit for formal bidding (as set forth in Laws and Regulations) unless prohibited by Laws 
or Regulations. 
 
13.13.2 Design-Builder and listed Subcontractors in the Subcontractor's Form must complete and 
submit to the Owner, after the award of the Contract and prior to Owner's issuance of the Notice 
to Proceed, the form entitled, "Good Faith Effort Statement for Local Hire," as contained in the 
Bidding Documents. 
 
13.13.3 Design-Builder must also complete and submit to the Owner, on a weekly basis, 
documentation of local hiring. The “Local Hire Residency Compliance” for (Attachment D in the 
RFP) must be submitted with certified payrolls. 
 
13.13.4 Failure to comply with any of the provisions of SBMC Chapter ____, including the 
maintenance of records, shall be deemed a breach of the contract and may result in the 
Contractor being declared “non-responsible” by the Owner and ineligible for the award of future 
Owner contracts. 
 

13.14 Labor Discrimination 
 

13.14.1 Attention is directed to the following sections of the Labor Code: 
 

13.14.1.1 Section 1735. No discrimination shall be made in the employment of persons 
upon Public Works because of race, color, national origin or ancestry, or religion of such 
persons and every Contractor for Public Works violating this section is subject to all the 
penalties imposed for a violation of this chapter. 
 
13.14.1.2 Section 1420. It shall be unlawful employment practice, unless based upon a 
bona fide occupational qualification, or except where based upon applicable security 
regulations established by the United States or the States or the State of California: for 
an employer, because of the race, religious creed, color, national origin, or ancestry of 
any person, to refuse to hire to employ him/her or to bar or to discharge from employment 
such person, or to discriminate against such person in compensation or in terms, 
conditions or privileges of employment.  

 
 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 143



 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

This Design Build Agreement  
has been developed in conjunction with  

and endorsed by the  
Water Design Build Council.  

 

 

 
  
 
 
 

DESIGN-BUILD AGREEMENT FOR 
WATER AND WASTEWATER 
PROJECTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Document No. 545 
First Edition 2016 
© Design-Build Institute of America 
Washington, DC

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 144



 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002 DBIA Document No. 545     
Progressive Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects  
© 2016 Design-Build Institute of America   

 
 

 

Design-Build Agreement  
for Water and Wastewater Projects 

 
This document has important legal consequences. Consultation with 

an attorney is recommended with respect to its completion or modification. 

 

 
 
This AGREEMENT is made as of the        day of     in the year 
of 2022   , by and between the following parties, for services in connection with the Project identified below: 
 
OWNER: 
(Name and address) 

 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line Road 
Rialto, California 92376 
 
 
DESIGN-BUILDER: 
(Name and address) 

 
 
PROJECT: 
(Include Project name and location as it will appear in the Contract Documents) 

Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrades and Expansion Project 
Contract No.: 
 
ADDRESS: 
 
3010 N. Cedar Avenue 
Rialto, California 92377 
 
 
In consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained herein, Owner and Design-Builder agree as set 
forth herein. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 145



 

 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002  
DBIA Document No. 545           Page 2 
Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects 
© 2016 Design-Build Institute of America 

Article 1 

General 

1.1 Duty to Cooperate. Owner and Design-Builder commit at all times to cooperate fully with each 
other, and proceed on the basis of trust and good faith to permit each party to realize the benefits 
afforded under this Agreement. 
 

1.2 Definitions. Terms, words and phrases used in this Agreement shall have the meanings given 
them in DBIA Document No. 535, Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between 
Owner and Design-Builder (2010 Edition) ("General Conditions of Contract"). 
 

1.3 Design Services. Design-Builder shall, consistent with applicable state licensing laws, provide 
design services, including architectural, engineering, and other design professional services 
required by this Agreement. Such design services shall be provided through qualified, licensed 
design professionals who are either (i) employed by Design-Builder, or (ii) procured by Design-
Builder from independent sources. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to create any legal or 
contractual relationship between Owner and any independent design professional. 
 

Article 2 

Design-Builder's Services and Responsibilities 

2.1 General Services. 
 

2.1.1 Owner has provided Design-Builder with Project background documents, including but 
not limited to, the Design Criteria Report and 30% Design Drawings, (Exhibit __) depicting the 
Owner's program requirements and objectives for the Project, collectively referred to as the Basis 

of Design Documents. Owner's Basis of Design Documents include conceptual documents, 
design specifications, design performance specifications, and other technical materials and 
requirements prepared by or for Owner.  

 
2.1.2 Prior to the execution of Contract, Design-Builder has advanced the Owners' 30% 
Design, and has provided additional, different and innovative approaches to the design and 
construction of the Project, upon which the Design-Builder has provided a fixed Design-Build 
price.  

 
2.1.3 Design-Builder shall have the sole and exclusive responsibility and liability for the design, 
construction and performance of the Project, notwithstanding the information contained in the 
Owner's Project background documents, and to ensure compliance with all applicable 
Governmental Rules, Regulations, and Requirements. 

 
2.1.4 Design-Builder shall supervise, coordinate, and direct the Work using Design-Builder's 
best skill and attention. Design-Builder shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, the 
entire design effort, construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures, and the 
coordination of all portions of the Work.  

 
2.1.5 Design-Builder shall be responsible for inspection of all portions of the Work and to 
determine that such portions conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and are 
ready to receive subsequent Work. 

 
2.1.6  Design-Builder shall take field measurements, verify field conditions, and carefully 
compare with the Contract Documents such field measurements, conditions, and other 
information known to Design-Builder before commencing the Work. Errors, inconsistencies, or 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 146



 

 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002  
DBIA Document No. 545           Page 3 
Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects 
© 2016 Design-Build Institute of America 

omissions discovered at any time shall be promptly reported in writing to the Owner.  By 
proceeding with the Project the Design-Builder accepts the conditions of the Project.  
 
2.1.7 All work performed in connection with this Contract shall be performed in a manner 
consistent with the standard of care ordinarily exercised by those who provide architectural, 
engineering, planning and design services for projects of similar size, scope and complexity for 
water treatment facilities in the United States, and consistent with the standard of care ordinarily 
exercised by those who specialize in such specialty services. In addition, all work is to be 
performed within the standard of care for California architects, engineers, planners and 
designers. Neither review nor approval of Design-Builder’s work by Owner, any employee, any 
agent/consultant of Owner, or any other person shall in any way relieve Design-Builder from its 
duty to utilize this standard of care in the performance of its duties. Design-Builder agrees to 
provide its professional services in a manner that is in the Owner’s economic and governmental 
best interests, consistent with this standard of care and the Design-Builder’s professional 
obligations. 

 
2.2 Phased Services.  
 

2.2.1  Design Services. Design-Builder shall perform the services of design and other services 
for the Project based on the Basis of Design Documents and the Design-Builder's progressed 
design submitted and accepted by Owner, upon which the fixed Design-Build price is based.    
Design-Builder shall perform such services to the level of completion required for Design-Builder 
to complete the Project.   

 

2.2.2 Construction Services. Design-Builder’s construction services shall consist of the 
completion of design services for the Project, the procurement of all materials and equipment for 
the Project, the performance of construction services for the Project, the start-up, testing, and 
commissioning of the Project, the provision of warranty services, and all other services necessary 
to complete the Project.  

 
2.3 Proposal. Design-Builder has provided a proposal to Owner (the "Proposal") for the completion 

of the design and construction for the Project for the Contract Price, attached as Exhibit __, and is 
made a part of this Agreement.  

 

Article 3 

Contract Documents 

3.1 The Contract Documents are comprised of the following: 
 

3.1.1  

3.1.2 Permits 

3.1.3 Properly Executed Change Orders  

3.1.4 Addenda 

3.1.5 Executed Design-Build Agreement (DBIA Document No. 545), including Exhibits 

3.1.6 General Conditions (DBIA Document No. 535) 

3.1.7 Design-Builder’s Proposal / Fixed Design-Build Price Proposal  

3.1.8 Technical Specifications 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 147



 

 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002  
DBIA Document No. 545           Page 4 
Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects 
© 2016 Design-Build Institute of America 

3.1.9 Design Criteria Report  

3.1.10 Project Plans/Drawings (detailed plans having greater precedence) 

3.1.11 Request for Proposals 

 

Article 4 

Interpretation and Intent 

4.1 Design-Builder has carefully reviewed all the Contract Documents, including the various 
documents comprising the Owner's Project background documents for any conflicts or 
ambiguities. Design-Builder and Owner will discuss and resolve any identified conflicts or 
ambiguities prior to execution of the Agreement. 

 
4.2 The Contract Documents are intended to permit the parties to complete the Work and all 

obligations required by the Contract Documents within the Contract Time(s) for the Contract 
Price. The Contract Documents are intended to be complementary and interpreted in harmony so 
as to avoid conflict, with words and phrases interpreted in a manner consistent with construction 
and design industry standards. In the event inconsistencies, conflicts, or ambiguities between or 
among the Contract Documents are discovered after Owner’s acceptance of the Proposal, 
Design-Builder and Owner shall attempt to resolve any ambiguity, conflict, or inconsistency 
informally, recognizing that the Contract Documents shall take precedence in the order in which 
they are listed in Section 3.1 hereof. In case of a conflict within a part of a Contract Document, 
the provision with the more restrictive/most stringent interpretation shall govern. 

 
4.3 Terms, words, and phrases used in the Contract Documents, including this Agreement, shall 

have the meanings given them in the General Conditions of Contract.  
  
4.4 The Contract Documents form the entire agreement between Owner and Design-Builder and by 

incorporation herein are as fully binding on the parties as if repeated herein. No oral 
representations or other agreements have been made by the parties except as specifically stated 
in the Contract Documents. 

  
Article 5 

Ownership of Work Product 

5.1 Ownership. All Work Products originated and prepared by Design-Builder or its sub-contractors 
of any tier under this Contract shall be and remain the property of Owner for its use in any 
manner it deems appropriate.  However, any use unintended under the Contract, or modification 
or alteration of the Work Products without the direct involvement of the Design-Builder shall be 
without Liability to Design-/Builder. Work Products are all works, tangible or not, created under 
this Contract for Owner including, without limitation, documents, material, data, reports, manuals, 
specifications, artwork, drawings, sketches, computer programs and databases, schematics, 
photographs, video and audiovisual recordings, sound recordings, marks, logos, graphic designs, 
notes, websites, domain names, inventions, processes, formulas, matters and combinations 
thereof, and all forms of intellectual property therein. To the extent applicable under the U.S. 
Copyright Act, all works created by Design-Builder under this Contract are work-made-for-hire 
created for the sole benefit and ownership of Owner. Owner hereby grants to Design-Builder a 
license, revocable at will of Owner, to use and copy such documents during the term of this 
Contract for the sole purpose of performing the Services. All copies of tangible materials or 
writings embodying such intellectual properties shall be turned over to Owner upon termination of 
this Contract or completion of work pursuant to this Contract. Design-Builder hereby assigns, and 
agrees to assign to Owner, all goodwill, copyrights and trademarks in all Work Products 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 148



 

 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002  
DBIA Document No. 545           Page 5 
Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects 
© 2016 Design-Build Institute of America 

originated and prepared by Design-Builder under this Contract. Design-Builder further agrees to 
execute any documents necessary for Owner to perfect, memorialize, or record Owner’s 
ownership of rights provided herein. This paragraph shall survive expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 

 
5.2 Obligations on Subcontractor. Any sub-contract entered into by Design-Builder relating to this 

Contract, to the extent allowed hereunder, shall include a like provision (on Owner’s ownership in 
Work Products) for work to be performed under this Contract to Contractually bind or otherwise 
oblige its subcontractor performing work under this Contract such that Owner’s ownership rights 
of all Work Products are preserved and protected as intended herein. Failure of Design-Builder to 
comply with this requirement or to obtain the compliance of its subcontractor with such obligations 
shall subject Design-Builder to all remedies allowed under law and termination of this Contract.  

 
5.3 Use of Work Products and Trade Secrets by Third Parties. Design-Builder shall not make 

available, provide or disclose any Work Product to any third party without prior written consent of 
Owner. Design-Builder further agrees that it will not disclose nor cause others to disclose any of 
Owner’s trade secrets or other potentially patentable matters including inventions, discoveries, 
improvements, and methods, developed during the performance of this Contract. Design-Builder 
shall be liable for any loss of patentable rights as a result of such disclosure whether such 
disclosure is inadvertent or not. 

 

5.4 Non-Infringement Warranty. Design-Builder hereby represents and warrants that performance 
of all obligations under this Contract does not infringe in any way, directly or contributorily, upon 
any third party’s intellectual property rights, including, without limitation, patents, copyrights, 
trademarks, trade secrets, right of publicity and proprietary information. This section shall survive 
expiration or termination of this Contract. 

 
5.5 In Design-Builder’s defense of the Owner Defendants, negotiation, compromise, and settlement 

of any such infringement Action, the Owner shall retain discretion in and control of the litigation, 
negotiation, compromise, settlement, and appeals therefrom. 

 
5.6 Where any Work Product furnished by Design-Builder is in a form of software of firmware 

(“Vehicle”), and if any part of the such Vehicle (a) becomes the subject of an Action, (b) is 
adjudicated as infringing a third party’s Intellectual Property right, or (c) has its use enjoined or 
license terminated; Design-Builder shall, with the Owner’s consent, do one of the following 
immediately. Design-Builder shall at its expense either: 

 

1. Procure for the Owner the right to continue using said part of the Vehicle; OR 

2. Replace the Vehicle with a functionally equivalent, non-infringing product. 
 

Exercise of any of the above-mentioned options shall not cause undue business interruption to 
the Owner or diminish the intended benefits and use of the Work Product by the Owner under the 
specifications herein. 

 
5.7 Rights and remedies available to the Owner hereinabove shall survive the expiration or other 

termination of this Contract. Further, the rights and remedies are cumulative of those provided for 
elsewhere in this Contract and those allowed under the laws of the United States, the State of 
California, and the County of San Bernardino. This Paragraph shall survive the expiration or other 
termination of this Contract. 

 
5.8 Unless expressly stated otherwise, for all pre-existing third-party and Design-Builder’s intellectual 

property (if any), including software, required to operate or use any Work Product delivered by 
Design-Builder, Design-Builder hereby grants and will cause others to grant Owner (including its 
agents and consultants) an irrevocable license to use such pre-exiting intellectual property 
internally by Owner (including its agents and consultants). 

 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 149



 

 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002  
DBIA Document No. 545           Page 6 
Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects 
© 2016 Design-Build Institute of America 

Article 6 

Contract Time 

6.1 Date of Commencement. The Design Services shall commence within five (5) days of Design-
Builder’s receipt of Owner’s Notice to Proceed for Design Services unless the parties mutually 
agree otherwise in writing. The Construction Services shall commence within five (5) days of 
Design-Builder’s receipt of Owner’s Notice to Proceed for Construction Services (“Date of 
Commencement”).    

 
6.2 Substantial Completion and Final Completion. 
 

6.2.1 Substantial Completion of the entire Work shall be achieved no later than    
(   ) calendar days after the Date of Commencement (“Scheduled Substantial Completion 
Date”).  The parties agree that the definition for Substantial Completion set forth in Section 1.2.37 
of the General Conditions of Contract applies.  
 
6.2.2 Final Completion of the Work or identified portions of the Work shall be achieved as 
expeditiously as reasonably practicable. Final Completion is the date when all Work is complete 
pursuant to the definition of Final Completion set forth in Section 1.2.19 of the General Conditions 
of Contract. 
 
6.2.3 All of the dates set forth in this Article 6 (“Contract Time(s)”) shall be subject to 
adjustment in accordance with the General Conditions of Contract. 

 
6.3 Time is of the Essence. Owner and Design-Builder mutually agree that time is of the essence 

with respect to the dates and times set forth in the Contract Documents. 
 
6.4 Liquidated Damages. Design-Builder understands that if Substantial Completion is not attained 

by the Scheduled Substantial Completion Date, Owner will suffer damages which are difficult to 
determine and accurately specify. Design-Builder agrees that if Substantial Completion is not 
attained by the Scheduled Substantial Completion Date (the “LD Date”), Design-Builder shall pay 
Owner three thousand nine hundred dollars ($3,900) as liquidated damages for each calendar 
day that Substantial Completion extends beyond the LD Date.  

 
 6.4.1 Scheduled Plant Shutdowns.  In addition to the Substantial Completion date, the 

Design-Builder understands and agrees that achieving and adhering to scheduled plant 
shutdowns are of the essence, and the Owner shall assess Liquidated Damages, as it is and will 
be impractical and extremely difficult to ascertain the actual damages which the Owner will 
sustain in the event of and by reason of such delay.  Liquidated Damages will be assessed for 
each day or partial day beyond the scheduled plant shutdown as follows: for each day or partial 
day beyond the scheduled plant shutdown in June, July, August, or September, the LD amount 
shall be six thousand two hundred dollars ($6,200);  for all other days or partial days beyond the 
scheduled plant shutdown, the LD amount shall be four thousand six hundred ($4,600).  Owner 
shall have the right to deduct said Liquidated Damages from any amount due or that may become 
due the Design-Builder, or to collect such Liquidated Damages from the Design-Builder, its 
Guarantor, or its surety.  These Liquidated Damages shall not be construed as a penalty.  
Design-Builder agrees that any progress payment made after a scheduled plant shutdown, or 
Substantial Completion, shall not constitute a waiver of Liquidated Damages. 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 150



 

 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002  
DBIA Document No. 545           Page 7 
Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects 
© 2016 Design-Build Institute of America 

Article 7 

Contract Price 

7.1 Contract Price.  
 

7.1.1 Owner shall pay Design-Builder a total fixed Design-Build price in accordance with Article 
6 of the General Conditions of Contract the sum of _____________________________________ 
Dollars ($   ), subject to adjustments made in accordance with the General Conditions of 
Contract.  The Contract Price is deemed to include all sales, use, consumer and other taxes 
mandated by applicable Legal Requirements. 

7.2 Allowance Items and Allowance Values. 
 

7.2.1 Any and all Allowance Items, as well as their corresponding Allowance Values, are set 
forth in the Contract Price Amendment or the Proposal. 
 
7.2.2 Design-Builder and Owner have worked together to review the Allowance Items and 
Allowance Values based on design information then available to determine that the Allowance 
Values constitute reasonable amounts for the Allowance Items. Design-Builder and Owner will 
continue working closely together during the preparation of the design to develop Construction 
Documents consistent with the Allowance Values.  
 
7.2.3 No work shall be performed on any Allowance Item without Design-Builder first obtaining 
in writing advanced authorization to proceed from Owner. Where Allowance Item work authorized 
by the Owner exceed the Allowance Value, Owner and Design-Builder shall execute a Change 
Order. 
 
7.2.4 The Allowance Value includes the direct cost of labor, materials, equipment, 
transportation, taxes, and insurance associated with the applicable Allowance Item. All other 
costs, including design fees, Design-Builder’s overall project management and general conditions 
costs, overhead and Fee, are deemed to be included in the original Contract Price, and are not 
subject to adjustment notwithstanding the actual amount of the Allowance Item. 
 

 7.2.5 Price proposals, and for scopes of work requested by Owner for each allowance item of 
work, shall be provided to and approved by Owner prior to the Design-Builder commencing such 
work. The Design-Builder shall provide price quotes within seven (7) days of receipt of request by 
Owner. Price proposals should clearly indicate if the Allowance Item will be performed on a lump 
sum, unit price, time and materials, or combination thereof, basis. Further, the price proposals 
shall be provided in a format that clearly itemizes all labor quantities and labor rates, material 
quantities and material rates, equipment costs, general conditions and fee to perform the work of 
the Allowance. Any work performed by subcontractors to the Design-Builder shall also be 
itemized as above. Price quotes shall be obtained from Owner-selected subcontractors and/or 
vendors by the Design-Builder in a format that clearly itemizes all labor quantities and labor rates, 
material quantities and material rates, equipment costs, general conditions and fee to perform the 
Allowance scope of work. Any work performed by subcontractors to Owner selected 
subcontractor and/or Vendor shall also be itemized. 

 
 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 151



 

 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002  
DBIA Document No. 545           Page 8 
Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects 
© 2016 Design-Build Institute of America 

Article 8 

Procedure for Payment 

8.1 Contract Price Progress Payments. 
 

8.1.1 Design-Builder shall submit to Owner on the      (  ) day of each 
month, beginning with the first month after the Date of Commencement, Design-Builder’s 
Application for Payment in accordance with Article 6 of the General Conditions of Contract and an 
updated project schedule showing all project activity (past, present, and future). 
 
8.1.2 Owner shall make payment within thirty (30) days after Owner’s receipt of each properly 
submitted, accurate, and approved by the Owner Application for Payment in accordance with 
Article 6 of the General Conditions of Contract, but in each case less the total of payments 
previously made, and less amounts properly withheld under Section 6.3 of the General 
Conditions of Contract. Except as provided for under the California prompt pay statutes, the 
Design-Builder shall not charge and the Owner shall not be liable for any late fees or interest.  

 
8.2 Retainage on Progress Payments.  
 

8.2.1 Five percent (5%) of each Progress Payment will be retained until the Design Build Work 
has been completed and accepted by Owner per the Contract Documents. After fifty percent 
(50%) of the Design Build Work has been completed, including approved Change Orders, the 
Design-Builder may request a reduction in the withholding of retention. Owner will review the 
progress to date and the remaining Work. If it appears that the Design Build Work will be 
successfully completed and is progressing on schedule, Owner may at its sole discretion, reduce 
the retention on subsequent Design Build Work. Thereafter, Owner may, at its complete 
discretion, and in a fashion which protects the interest of Owner, increase the retention but in no 
event, to more than a 5% retention.  

 

8.2.2 Substitution of Securities. At the request and expense of the Design-Builder, in accordance 
with California Public Contract Code Section 22300, in lieu of Owner withholding the five percent 
(5%) retention, the Design-Builder may: (1) substitute a deposit of securities at least equivalent to 
the retention to be paid, or (2) request Owner to pay retention directly to an escrow agent. If the 
Design-Builder requests that retention be paid into an escrow account, the Design-Builder and 
Owner shall enter into an escrow agreement in the exact form set forth in the Public Contract 
Code Section 22300. All forms or correspondence pertaining to Security Deposit in Lieu of 
Withhold shall be addressed to Owner for review by the legal counsel for Owner.  
 

8.3 Final Payment. Design-Builder shall submit its Final Application for Payment to Owner in 
accordance with Section 6.6 of the General Conditions of Contract. Owner shall make payment 
on Design-Builder’s properly submitted and accurate Final Application for Payment (less any 
amount the parties may have agreed to set aside for warranty work) in accordance with prevailing 
law, provided that: (a) Design-Builder has satisfied the requirements for final payment set forth in 
Section 6.6.6 of the General Conditions of Contract. 

 
8.4 Record Keeping and Finance Controls.  Design-Builder shall keep full and detailed accounts 

and exercise such controls as may be necessary for proper financial management, using 
accounting and control systems in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and 
as may be provided in the Contract Documents. During the performance of the Work and for a 
period of three (3) years after Final Payment, Owner and Owner’s accountants shall be afforded 
access to, and the right to audit from time to time, upon reasonable notice, Design-Builder’s 
records, books, correspondence, receipts, subcontracts, purchase orders, vouchers, memoranda, 
and other data relating to the Work, all of which Design-Builder shall preserve for a period of 
three (3) years after Final Payment. Such inspection shall take place at Design-Builder’s offices 
during normal business hours unless another location and time is agreed to by the parties.  

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 152



 

 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002  
DBIA Document No. 545           Page 9 
Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects 
© 2016 Design-Build Institute of America 

Article 9 

Termination for Convenience 

9.1 The Owner, through its Board of Directors, may terminate for convenience any part of the 
remaining work under the Contract at any time, or from time to time, by written notice to the 
Design-Builder. Such notice shall specify the extent to which the performance of work is 
terminated and the effective date of such termination. 

 
9.1.1 Upon receipt of such notice, the Design-Builder shall: 

 
9.1.1.1 Immediately discontinue work on the date and to the extent specified in the 
notice and place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, services, or facilities, 
other than as may be required for completion of such portion of work that is not 
terminated; 
 
9.1.1.2 Promptly obtain cancellation upon terms satisfactory to Owner of all purchase 
orders, subcontracts, rentals or any other contracts existing for the performance of the 
terminated work or assign those contracts to Owner as directed; 
 
9.1.1.3 Assist Owner in the maintenance, protection, and disposition of work in progress, 
plant, tools, equipment, property, and materials acquired by the Design-Builder or 
furnished by the Design-Builder under this Contract; and 
 

  9.1.1.4 Complete performance of the Work which is not terminated. 
 
  9.1.2 Upon any such termination, the Design-Builder shall waive any claims for damages on 

account thereof; but as the sole right and remedy of the Design-Builder, Owner shall pay Design-
Builder substantiated costs in accordance with the following: 

 

9.1.2.1 All amounts due and not previously paid to the Design-Builder for work completed 
in accordance with the Contract prior to such notice of termination, and for work 
thereafter completed as specified in such notice, up to but not exceeding the contract 
value for the work using the progress schedule, schedule of values and other project 
controls as applicable; 
 
9.1.2.2 Reasonable costs incurred in demobilization and the disposition of residual 
material, plant and equipment; and 
 
9.1.2.3 There shall be no claim or right to lost profits on unperformed work under any 
theory or any circumstances. There shall be no other right or claim for loss, cost, 
damage, expense or liability. These limits apply to a termination for convenience and also 
to any termination for default subsequently determined wrongful and therefore treated as 
a termination for convenience. 

 
  9.1.3 Design-Builder shall submit within twenty-one (21) days after receipt of notice of 

termination a proposal for an adjustment to its compensation including all incurred costs 
described herein. Should the logistics of such a termination preclude pricing any item of cost, the 
Design-Builder shall estimate costs to the best of its ability. Owner shall review, analyze, and 
verify such proposal, and negotiate an equitable adjustment, subject to Board of Director approval 
as needed, and the Contract shall be amended in writing accordingly. 

 
  9.1.4 No compensation will be paid to the Design/Builder for unabsorbed or under absorbed 

overhead, nor shall the Design-Builder be paid for loss of anticipated profits in any form. 
 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 153



 

 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002  
DBIA Document No. 545           Page 10 
Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects 
© 2016 Design-Build Institute of America 

  9.1.5 If an agreement cannot be reached concerning an equitable adjustment, Owner may 
issue a unilateral Change Order. 

Article 10 

Representatives of the Parties 

10.1 Owner’s Representatives. 
 

10.1.1 Owner designates the individual listed below as its Senior Representative (“Owner Senior 
Representative”), which individual has the authority and responsibility for avoiding and resolving 
disputes under Section 10.2.3 of the General Conditions of Contract: (Identify individual’s name, title, 
address, and telephone numbers.) 

 
10.1.2 Owner designates the individual listed below as its Owner’s Representative, which 
individual has the authority and responsibility set forth in Section 3.4 of the General Conditions of 
Contract: (Identify individual’s name, title, address, and telephone numbers.) 
 

10.2 Design-Builder’s Representatives. 
 

10.2.1 Design-Builder designates the individual listed below as its Senior Representative 
(“Design-Builder’s Senior Representative”), which individual has the authority and responsibility 
for avoiding and resolving disputes under Section 10.2.3 of the General Conditions of Contract: 
(Identify individual’s name, title, address, and telephone numbers.) 
 
10.2.2 Design-Builder designates the individual listed below as its Design-Builder’s 
Representative, which individual has the authority and responsibility set forth in Section 2.1.1 of 
the General Conditions of Contract: (Identify individual’s name, title, address, and telephone numbers.) 

 

Article 11 

Bonds and Insurance 

11.1 Insurance. Design-Builder and Owner shall procure the insurance coverages set forth in the 
Insurance Exhibit attached hereto and in accordance with Article 5 of the General Conditions of 
Contract.  

 
11.2 Bonds and Other Performance Security. Design-Builder shall provide the following 

performance bond and labor and material payment bond or other performance security: 
  
 Performance Bond.  
  

   Required    Not Required  
 
 Payment Bond.  
  

   Required    Not Required  

 

  

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 154



 

 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002  
DBIA Document No. 545           Page 11 
Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects 
© 2016 Design-Build Institute of America 

Article 12 

Other Provisions 

12.1 Listing of Exhibits and documents incorporated herein as part of this Agreement: 
 
 Exhibit A – Design Criteria Report 
 Exhibit B – Scope of Services – Section 1.4 of the RFP 

Exhibit C - List of Reference Documents – Section 1.5 of the RFP 
Exhibit D – Design-Builder's Proposal and fixed Design-Build Price  
Exhibit E - Permits and Approvals 
Exhibit F - Supporting Pricing Information 
Exhibit G - Key Firms and Key Personnel 
Exhibit H - Insurance Terms 
Exhibit I – Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Loan Requirements 
Exhibit J – Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) Requirements  
Exhibit K - Form of Performance Bond 
Exhibit L - Form of Payment Bond 
Exhibit M – Wage Determination Schedules 
Exhibit N –  Project Labor Agreement 
 
DBIA Document No. 535, Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and 
Design-Builder (2010 Edition) ("General Conditions of Contract") 

  

Article 13 

Limitation of Liability 
 
13.1 Limitation of Consequential Damages. Except as otherwise provided in the Section 6.4 

"Liquidated Damages " and 535 General Conditions Article 7 “Indemnification” and reserving to 
Owner any rights it may have therefore, the Design-Builder and the Owner agree that they 
mutually waive any claims for consequential damages. This mutual waiver includes: 

 
  13.1.1 Damages incurred by Owner for rental expenses; for losses of use, income, profit, 

financing, business and reputation; and for loss of management or employee productivity or for 
the services of such persons.  

 
  13.1.2 Damages incurred by the Design-Builder for home and/or principal office expenses of 

every sort whatsoever, including, without limitation, the compensation of personnel stationed 
there; for loss of financing; impairment of bonding capacity; loss of business and reputation; loss 
related to goodwill; and for loss of profit. 

 
  13.1.3 This Section is not a limitation on Design-Builder's indemnity obligations or damages 

covered by insurance. 
 
 

OWNER:      DESIGN-BUILDER: 
 

        ______________________________ 
(Name of Owner)     (Name of Design-Builder) 
 
              
(Signature)      (Signature) 
 
              

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 155



 

 

1372443.4 RM 7473.002  
DBIA Document No. 545           Page 12 
Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects 
© 2016 Design-Build Institute of America 

(Printed Name)      (Printed Name) 
 
              
(Title)       (Title) 
 
Date:        Date:       
 

 

3.2.b

Packet Pg. 156



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: October 12, 2022 

TO: Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The West Valley Water District (“District”) Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility (“Roemer”) 
Upgrade and Expansion project will need to construct a 30-inch water main from the facility to the 
Zone 5 Reservoir. A private property located at 3450 N. Riverside Avenue, in the City of Rialto is 
between Via Bello Drive and the Zone 5 Reservoir as shown on the attached Exhibit A. The 
District is requesting to record an easement for the new 30-inch water main. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On April 1, 2021, an Appraisal Report was prepared to determine the fair market value of the 
easement and estimated compensation for the proposed acquisition in the amount of $4,300.00.  
 
The private property owner (“Owner”) will provide a Grant of Easement to the District for the 
proposed 30-inch water main to supply water from the Roemer facility to the Zone 5 Reservoir for 
the price of $4,300.00. Attached as Exhibit B is the Easement Agreement, showing the full extent 
of the easement and legal description. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost of the Grant of Easement is $4,300.00.  This item is included in the Fiscal Year 2022/23 
Capital Improvement Budget under the W19041 Roemer Expansion Project and sufficient funds are 
available to cover the cost. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to authorize entering into the Easement 
Agreement with the Owner for the cost of the Grant of Easement of $4,300 and authorize the 
Acting General Manager to execute all necessary documents. 
 
 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: GRANT OF EASEMENT FOR THE OLIVER P. ROEMER UPGRADE 
AND EXPANSION PROJECT 

3.3

Packet Pg. 157



 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
BP:ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Private Property 

2. Exhibit B - Easement Agreement 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
10/12/22 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee    

3.3

Packet Pg. 158



EXHIBIT A 

3.3.a

Packet Pg. 159



 
Subject Property 

 

 
Neighborhood 

  

ZONE 5
RESEROVIR

VIA BELLO DRIVE

OLIVER P. ROEMER
WATER

FILTRATION
FACILITY

PRIVATE
PROPERTY

ZONE 5
RESERVOIR

PRIVATE
PROPERTY

LOCATION OF
PROPOSED
EASEMENT

3.3.a

Packet Pg. 160



EXHIBIT  

3.3.b

Packet Pg. 161



BOARD OF DIRECTORS ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

Channing Hawkins 
President – Division 4 

Greg Young 
Vice President – Division 5 

Angela Garcia 
Director – Division 1 

Dan Jenkins 
Director -Division 2 

Kelvin Moore 
Director – Division 3 

ESTABLISHED AS A PUBLIC AGENCY IN 1952 
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT'S MISSION IS TO PROVIDE 

OUR CUSTOMERS WITH SAFE, HIGH QUALITY AND RELIABLE 
WATER SERVICE AT A REASONABLE RATE AND IN A 

SUSTAINABLE MANNER. 

Van M. Jew 
Acting General Manager 

September 27, 2022 

Ms. Rosario Quevedo 

3450 N. Riverside Ave. 

Rialto, CA 92377 

RE: 3450 N. Riverside Grant of Easement 

Dear Ms. Quevedo, 

This Easement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into and effective as of September 27, 2022, by and between West 

Valley Water District (“Grantee”) and Rosario Quevedo (“Grantor”) who agree as follows: 

1. Grantor is the owner of a real property located at 3450 N. Riverside Drive, Rialto in the County of San

Bernardino, State of California, as described on Exhibit A of the attached Grant of Easement (“Easement”). 

2. Grantor agrees to sell Easement and grant to Grantee and Grantee agrees to purchase from Grantor a

perpetual non-exclusive easement as described on the attached Easement showing the full extent of the easement and legal 

description. 

3. The purchase price for the Easement is for the amount of Four Thousand Three Hundred Dollars and

00/100 ($4,300.00).  Payment shall occur on or before thirty (30) days following recording of the Easement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Agreement. 

GRANTEE:  

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

By: _______________________________ Date: ___________________ 

       Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

GRANTOR: 

By: __________________________________ Date: ___________________ 

       Rosario Quevedo 

855 W. Base Line Rd., P.O. Box 920 / Rialto, CA 92377-0920 FAX (909) 875-7284 Administration 
Ph: (909)875-1804 / Fax: (909) 875-1849 FAX (909) 875-1361 Engineering 

FAX (909) 875-1849 Customer Service 

3.3.b

Packet Pg. 162



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
P.O. BOX 920 
RIALTO, CA 92377-0920 
 
ATTENTION: GENERAL MANAGER 
  
THIS DOCUMENT MUST BE SIGNED  
IN THE PRSENCE OF NOTARY & 
NOTARIZED 
 

No Recording Fee required Pursuant to Government Code Section 27383 

APN: _0239-182-60 
 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 
 

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged Rosario Quevedo 
(“GRANTOR”) does hereby grant to WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, a county water district, its 
successors and assigns (“GRANTEE”) a perpetual non-exclusive easement and right of way to construct, enlarge, 
reconstruct, remove and replace, operate, inspect, maintain, repair, improve and relocate for pipelines for the 
transmission of water, connections, devises and appurtenances in, on, over, under, upon, along, through and across 
the property hereinafter described, together with reasonable right of access to and from said easement for purposes 
of exercising the rights granted in said easement.  
 
Said easement shall be in, under, over, and across that certain property situated in the County of San Bernardino, 
State of California, described as follows: 
 
(SEE EXHIBITS “A” & “B” ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF) 
 
The foregoing easement shall include: 
 

(a) The temporary use of such adjacent land of Grantor as is necessary to install the facilities provided for 
under the term of the easement granted herein; and 
  

(b) The right to enter upon and pass and repass over and along said strip or strips of land, and to deposit 
tools, implements and other materials thereon by Grantee, its officers, agents and employees, and by 
persons under contract to construct said pipeline or pipelines, and their employees, whenever necessary 
for the purpose of exercising the rights herein granted.  
 

Grantor retains the right to the use of the land described herein except as to any use in derogation of the easement 
contained herein, and specifically agrees that no trees shall be planted thereon and, no buildings or other structures 
of any kind will be placed, constructed, or maintained over the real property described herein. Any work by 
Grantor, or any one working through or under Grantor, affecting the surface or subsurface of the ground subject to 
this easement shall be performed only after giving written notice by certified mail, postage paid, addressed to 
Grantee as its business office setting forth the proposed changes in detail. Such notice is to be given to the Grantee 
at least thirty (30) business days prior to commencement of such work and is subject to approval by Grantee.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the surface of the ground with respect to the distance from the ground surface to 
the top of any pipes, as of the date of this easement, shall not be changed by any party other than Grantee, if it 
results in: 
 

(a) “Cutting or removing the soil which leave less than thirty (30) inches of soil over the top of any pipe; 
and 

3.3.b

Packet Pg. 163



 
(b) “Hauling” in of soil or “filling” which will leave more than ten (10) feet of soil over the top of any pipe. 

 
 
It is understood that the permanent easements and the rights of way above described shall be acquired subject to 
the rights of the Grantor, Grantor’s successors, heir and assigns, to use the surface of the real property within the 
boundaries of such easements and rights of way.  It is understood that any use of the surface rights by Grantor, 
and Grantor’s successors, heirs and assigns, shall be deemed a continuing permissive use allowed by Grantee, its 
successors, heirs and assigns, and each successor-in-interest of the Grantor, by acceptance of a conveyance of said 
property or interest therein admits and agrees that any such use is a continuing permissive use.  It is understood 
that each and every right and privilege hereby granted is free and alienable.  
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is understood and agreed that this Grant of Easement shall not be construed as a 
Grant of fee title.  
 
Grantee, its successors and assigns, shall restore, or cause to be restored, the surface or subsurface of the real 
property hereinabove described to the condition said property was in as of the time of performance of any 
enlargement, construction, reconstruction, removal and replacement, operation, inspection, maintenance, repair, 
improvement and relocation, and such restoration shall be performed with due diligence and dispatch.  
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, this instrument has been executed the    day of   , 2022. 
 

GRANTOR(S):  Rosario Quevedo       
 
 

    BY:          
 
 
    NAME:         
 
 
 

3.3.b

Packet Pg. 164



ALL CAPACITY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 
validity of that document. 

 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  
COUNTY OF ____________________________________  
 
On _______________________, before me, ____________________________________________________,  
                                                                                                                   (Name and title of the officer) 
 
 

personally appeared________________________________________________________________who proved to 
me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity (ies), 
and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the 
person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
Signature_____________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

(SEAL) 
 

 

3.3.b

Packet Pg. 165



3.3.b

Packet Pg. 166



3.3.b

Packet Pg. 167



3.3.b

Packet Pg. 168



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: October 12, 2022 

TO: Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The West Valley Water District (“District”) requested proposals from expert groundwater 
consultants (“Consultants”) to provide professional hydrogeological services related to performing a 
comprehensive well siting evaluation for Phase 2 of the Bunker Hill Well Siting Evaluation 
(“Project”).  The District is interested in drilling and constructing new groundwater supply wells in 
the Bunker Hill Groundwater Basin to enhance groundwater production supply.  
 
A comprehensive well site evaluation will focus on potential sites outside of the Management Zone 
Area (“MZA”) of the US EPA 2004 Consent Decree for the Newmark and Muscoy Groundwater 
Contamination Superfund Site.  This evaluation is required to ensure any new groundwater 
production well maximizes production potential as well as meets water quality objectives. The 
comprehensive geological evaluation, designated Phase 2, will identify production well sites outside 
the MZA that have the highest probability of success in meeting the District’s water supply goals. 
Attached as Exhibit A is a copy of the MZA map. As part of the preliminary phase to this work, 
Phase 1 of the Bunker Hill Well Siting Evaluation identified potential well sites within the MZA and 
has been completed. In preparation of the well siting evaluation for Phase 2, the consultant will 
obtain and review all relevant geohydrologic data and other available background information 
regarding the well site areas included in Phase 1. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
District Staff posted the Request for Proposal (“RFP”) on PlanetBids and sent out the RFP to 
consulting firms who specialize in groundwater resource management. Two (2) consulting firms – 
Geoscience Support Services, Inc. (“Geoscience”) and Wood Rodgers submitted proposals in 
response to the RFP.   
 
The written proposals were reviewed by a committee comprised of District Staff and were evaluated 
based on the following criteria: 
 

• Past performance and qualifications of the proposal team members on similar projects. 
• Familiarity with a company to handle all aspects of the work. 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: BUNKER HILL WELL SITE EVALUATION PH2 

3.4

Packet Pg. 169



• Ability to complete the project within an expedited time frame. 
• The proposed project approach, scope, manner, and thoroughness in which it is presented in 

the proposal. 
• Firm’s experience, staff availability, and stability. 
• Consultant fees. 

 
The proposal costs for professional hydrogeological services related to Bunker Hill well siting 
evaluation are shown below: 
 
 

Consultant Cost 

Geoscience $32,567.00 

Wood Rodgers $80,413.00 

 
 
To determine the best value for the District, Staff first ensured that all proposals received met the 
minimum requirements in the scope of work by conducting a systematic proposal evaluation.  Based 
on technical qualifications, overall evaluation, and costs, Staff concluded that Geoscience provided 
the best value for the District’s needs.  The firm’s design approach, overall understanding of the 
project’s goals, and the completion of Bunker Hill Well Siting Evaluation for Phase 1 further aided 
in the selection process for the RFP. Attached as Exhibit B is a copy of the proposal submitted by 
Geoscience. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The cost to provide the services for the Project as proposed by Geoscience is $32,567.00.  This item 
is included in the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Capital Improvement Budget under the W20001 Property 
Investigation for Bunker Hills Wells and Pump Station. Sufficient funds are available in the project 
budget to cover the cost.   
    
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to authorize entering into a contract with 
Geoscience in the amount of $32,567.00 for the hydrogeological services for the Bunker Hill Well 
Siting Evaluation Project Phase 2. 
 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 

3.4

Packet Pg. 170



RMG:ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Management Zones Area Map 

2. Exhibit B - Proposal Submitted by Geoscience 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
10/12/22 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee    

3.4

Packet Pg. 171



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3.4.a

Packet Pg. 172



£¥

210

§̈¦215

§̈¦259

£¥

210

§̈¦215

Exhibit A - Modification
3.4.a

Packet Pg. 173

rgutierrez
Image

rgutierrez
Text Box
West Valley Water District Boundary



 

EXHIBIT B 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 174



gssiwater.com

main office
160 Via Verde, Suite 150, San Dimas, CA 91773 

main | 909.451.6650

Presented to: 
West Valley Water District

September 29, 2022

Proposal for

PROFESSIONAL 
HYDROGEOLOGICAL 

SERVICES  
for Bunker Hill Well Siting Evaluation 

Phase 2 (Project W20001)

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 175



gssiwater.com

COVER LETTER ........................................................................................................................................ 1

BACKGROUND ON FIRM ................................................................................................................ 2

STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING & APPROACH ............................................... 15

SCOPE OF WORK ................................................................................................................................ 16

PROJECT SCHEDULE ...................................................................................................................... 20

REFERENCES .......................................................................................................................................... 21

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION .................................................................................................. 23

COST ESTIMATES OF CONSULTING FEE ............................................ SEPARATE FILE

          

ContentsContents

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 176



P.O. Box 220
Claremont, CA 91711

September 29, 2022

Al Robles, Purchasing Supervisor
West Valley Water District
855 W. Baseline Rd.   
Rialto, CA 92376     

RE: Proposal to Provide Professional Hydrogeological Services Related to the Bunker Hill Well Siting 
Evaluation Phase 2

Dear Mr. Robles, 
Geoscience Support Services, Inc. (Geoscience) is pleased to submit this proposal to West Valley Water District 
(WVWD) to provide professional hydrogeological services for Phase 2 of a comprehensive well site evaluation 
that identifies potential production well sites outside of WVWD’s Management Zone Area, that have the highest 
probability of success in meeting district water supply goals. WVWD requires a cost-efficient, knowledgeable, 
and reliable team to provide this phase of the siting evaluation. Since Geoscience prepared the Phase 1 of this 
siting evaluation, you know that we utilize an internally developed and well-established process for well siting, 
that includes the use of our in-house GIS-based analysis tool. As evidence of the success of our typical approach, 
successful supply and production wells have been completed for more than 100 wells over the past decade. As such, 
we have closely considered the needs of your project and have assembled a team and approach that will help you 
successfully complete this project on schedule. Our team offers WVWD the following benefits:

• A qualified and experienced team to provide comprehensive hydrogeological services 
For more than 40 years, Geoscience has focused solely on groundwater consulting and production well design 
and rehabilitation. We have a long history in the industry having completed more than 1,000 well projects, 
including well siting, design, development, and groundwater modeling and studies. Additionally, as our assigned 
project manager I have worked on and supported more than 350 well projects and provided third-party review. 
Both the extensive experience of our project manager and project team, combined with our knowledge and familiarity of the basin, will provide 
you with a comprehensive production well siting report to help you meet your water supply needs. 

• The use of our in-house GIS-based analysis tool can provide a rapid assessment of many of your project 
criteria saving considerable time comparing potential sites
A tool commonly utilized by Geoscience to accomplish well site evaluation studies combines static suitability 
factors with a framework to incorporate dynamic model results, allowing all potential sites to be evaluated at 
once. Our customizable tool allow us to save a sizable amount of time comparing potential sites allowing for additional alternative scenarios to 
be considered and will help you make better-informed decisions for your future water supply.

• Using a proven project approach will help deliver a successful project
Our team members have conducted numerous well siting studies for many of our current clients and we will 
continue using the same approach that has successfully delivered numerous well development projects. Because we 
have successfully completed more than 100 production and supply well siting reports, designs, construction, and development projects in the last 
decade, we can provide more certainty on a successful project outcome. 

• Our knowledge of the local area can improve project efficiency and reduce long-term costs
At Geoscience, we focus on getting it right the first time. Our familiarity with the local basins and recent, 
relevant experience enables us to eliminate the learning curve, improving project efficiency. Our knowledge of the local 
groundwater basins, our track record of successfully providing identical services, and our focus on long-term cost savings will help you keep your 
project on schedule and reduce long term costs.

We are committed to continuing our relationship with WVWD and the experience acquired during our history 
of working with you and other California water districts and agencies allows us to provide the hydrogeological 
capabilities that you require to achieve your goals. If you have any questions regarding our submittal or need any 
additional information, please contact me at (909) 667-4057, or via email at twatkins@geoscience-water.com.

Regards, 

Terry Watkins, PG, CHG
Project Manager

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 177



gssiwater.com 2

Background on Firm
Geoscience Support Services Inc. (Geoscience) is 
a leading groundwater consulting firm, working 
with water utilities, government agencies, and 
private industry to overcome their most complex 
challenges in developing, managing, and 
preserving groundwater resources. 
Founded in 1978 by Dr. Dennis Williams, 
Geoscience was one of the first hydrogeology 
firms in California established to provide 
consulting services to the groundwater industry. 
Our firm is a trusted advisor to industry 
professionals and stakeholders—delivering 
solutions to groundwater supply, development, 
management, and protection challenges that 
meet the changing needs of our clients.
For more than 43 years, Geoscience has been 
serving the water districts and municipalities 
of Southern California, performing work in 
nearly every basin, and completing more than 
2,000 groundwater projects. Geoscience is 
one of the first, and today is one of the largest, 
groundwater-focused consultancies in the state. 
We are world renowned for well expertise, having 
helped to develop the national standards for well 
design and completed work on more than 1,000 
wells in Southern California and worldwide.

OUR QUALIFICATIONS
Well siting, design and supervision of 
construction are part of our day-to-day 
business at Geoscience. Our expertise comes 
from practical, hands-on experience designing 
and working on hundreds of municipal, high 
capacity water wells. We also site, design, and 
supervise construction of injection, extraction, 
and irrigation supply wells for municipalities, 
irrigation districts, and other water purveyors.
Geoscience handles all phases of well projects—
from evaluating geohydrologic data and 
developing and calibrating groundwater flow 
models for well siting, to borehole drilling and 
design and construction supervision of new wells. 
Our well design methods, quality of construction 
supervision, and experience have led to our wells 
being known for their high efficiency, low sand 

MORE THAN 350
Wells designed and installed by 
our assigned project manager

Our project manager’s extensive experience provides 
you with unparalleled expertise in well development 

and a successful project.

MORE THAN 1,000
Wells developed by Geoscience

Demonstrated ability to successfully design your 
project based on our experience with hundreds of 

similar projects

GEOSCIENCE by the Numbers

Company Headquarters:
160 Via Verde, Suite 150  
San Dimas, CA 91773
P: 909.451.6650 
E: email@geoscience-water.com

Branch Offices:
Tucson, AZ
Modesto, CA

Contact:
Terry Watkins, PG, CHG
P: 909.667.4057
E: twatkins@geoscience-water.com

Type of Organization: Corporation (CA),  
Small Business Certified
Number of years in business: 43
Number of staff: 28

Company Owners/Officers: 
 6 Dennis Williams, PhD, PG, CHG and 

Virginia Williams - Owners
 6 Dennis Williams - President
 6 Mark Williams, PhD, PE - CEO, CFO, 

and Secretary

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 178



gssiwater.com 3

will be supported by two technical advisors, 
Brian Villalobos, PG, CHG, CEG and Chris 
Coppinger, PG, CHG. Each have experience 
completing production and supply wells in 
similar conditions. Brian and Chris are available 
to provide backup support to Terry if needed.
The organization chart below lists our assigned 
staff and their role on this project. We have 
also included detailed biographies and a listing 
of our project team’s relevant experience on 
the following pages. In addition, personnel 
assigned to this project will not be changed for 
the duration of the project without the advance 
written approval of WVWD. Detailed key team 
resumes are available at the end of this section.

KEY TEAM MEMBERS
Terry Watkins, PG, CHG
Project Manager

Terry has more than 18 years 
of experience in a variety of 
groundwater projects, including 
geohydrologic investigations, 
groundwater quality studies, 

artificial recharge projects, site feasibility and 
test drilling programs, sea water desalination 
programs, in addition to water well construction 

production, and long lifetime with minimal 
maintenance—helping clients meet their goals of 
installing wells that produce the most water with 
the lowest lifecycle costs.
The Geoscience team is also often called upon 
to look into increasing efficiencies in water 
production and troubleshoot and test existing 
wells for water quality and other issues. We 
work closely with the professionals at our public 
and private clients to make sure our client’s 
objectives are met, and are well versed in project 
management and stakeholder communications.
Our extensive experience in all phases of water 
well projects has earned Geoscience a reputation 
as a leader in the groundwater industry. Members 
of our staff serve on national committees, 
including the Well Standards Committee of the 
American Water Works Association (AWWA), 
among others. Members of the Geoscience team 
are frequently sought after speakers on topics 
related to well siting, design, construction, 
testing, and maintenance. For more than four 
decades, Geoscience has focused solely on 
groundwater wells and consulting, resulting 
in a team with extensive experience in well 
development and inspection. Our assigned team 
has more than 100 years of combined well siting, 
development, and construction experience, and 
have recently completed seven new production 
wells in various counties throughout Southern 
California. 
We also specialize in groundwater modeling 
and studies, and well rehabilitation. With this 
experience, we are able to leverage Geoscience’s 
modeling knowledge to provide additional provide additional 
information to help you accurately assess information to help you accurately assess 
potential water quality issues on potential well potential water quality issues on potential well 
sites. sites. 

ASSIGNED STAFF
Terry Watkins, PG, CHG will serve as our 
assigned project manager. He has served as the 
project manager and senior geohydrologist in 
the completion of more than 350 well projects, 
including production wells, monitoring wells, 
injection wells, and extraction wells. Terry 

Technical Advisors
Chris Coppinger, PG, CHG

Brian Villalobos, PG, CHG, CEG

Project Manager
Terry Watkins, PG, CHG

Terry Watkins, PG, CHG

Logan Wicks, PG

Coral Shaw, GIT

Alex Arita
Lindsay Mota

Siting/Groundwater Study

Proposed Team Organization Chart

WEST VALLEY 
WATER DISTRICT

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 179



gssiwater.com 4

supervision and management. Terry has 
completed more than 350 well projects over 
the course of his career. He is currently a Senior 
Geohydrologist at Geoscience and manages 
our well construction group, overseeing project 
aspects ranging from site evaluation and 
selection, preliminary well design, development 
of technical specifications, final well design, 
aquifer pump test analysis, development of 
well rehabilitation programs, and providing 
construction management. Terry has performed 
project management and well construction 
management and supervision on several multi-
well projects throughout California including 
municipal water supply wells, ASR wells, 
injection wells, and monitoring wells.

Relevant Experience:
• Bunker Hill Well Siting Evaluation Phase 1, West 

Valley Water District: Terry led efforts to site a 
production well in an area near known plumes, other 
production wells, river channel, and a highly industrial 
populated area. He and his team used an in-house GIS 
analysis tool to help locate potential sites suitable for 
up to two wells near their future mainline.

• Well Site Evaluation and Construction of New 
Miragrand Well, Three Valley Municipal Water 
District: Terry oversaw and managed a detailed site 
assessment and evaluation study with the purpose of 
identifying potential location for future groundwater 
wells that would maximize production and not require 
treatment. This task was performed using in-house GIS 
based software to identify potential locations. Once 
completed, Terry was the project manager for a new 
potable supply well. 

• Well No. 28, City of Lakewood: Terry was the 
project manager for a new well constructed for the 
City of Lakewood, designated Well No. 28. The well 
was completed under budget, ahead of schedule, and 
exceeded production expectations, producing 2,500 
gpm with a specific capacity over 100 gmp/ft.

Brian Villalobos, PG, CHG, CEG
Technical Advisor

Brian has more than 32 years 
of professional experience in 
geohydrology and environmental 
geology throughout the Southern 
California region. His specific areas 

of expertise are in hydrogeologic investigations 
to support indirect potable reuse, groundwater 
recharge, and groundwater basin characterization 
projects. He has studied and modeled 
groundwater basins across the State and has led 
efforts to develop studies and reports including, 
monitoring well networks, groundwater recharge 
projects, sustainable yield, water budgets, and 
more. He currently serves several cities and 
water districts to develop and assess groundwater 
recharge projects, including the City of 
Oceanside, Elsinore Valley Municipal Water 
District, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water 
District, Yucaipa Valley Water District, and 
others. Brian has also supported 20 groundwater 
related litigation cases serving as either the lead 
technical advisor or in a support role.

Relevant Experience:
• Hydrogeological Investigation of the Warm Springs 

Subbasin, Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District: 
Brian led a hydrogeologic investigation to quantify the 
groundwater storage and safe yield of the Warm Springs 
Subbasin, estimate yield for future municipal supply 
well, determine water quality in the subbasin, identify 
needed potable water conveyance infrastructure, and 
plan environmental and permitting requirements.

• Evaluation of Potential Locations for Ground Water 
Recharge at the East and West Dam Sites, Diamond 
Valley Lake, Riverside County: Brian assessed water 
quality and water level trends and other considerations 
to evaluate impacts from proposed recharge scenarios. 

Chris Coppinger, PG, CHG
Technical Advisor

Chris has more than 18 years of 
professional experience on more 
than 50 municipal supply wells 
and has completed more than 150 
well field assessments. As a senior 

Geohydrologist for Geoscience, Chris provides 
oversight for multiple projects involving well 
construction and deconstruction, design and 
construction oversight, permitting and working 
with county and state agencies, interpreting 
pump tests, drilling process and fluids, analysis 
in well productions, and well rehabilitation. 
As a project manager, Chris pulls from his 
depth of knowledge to recognize and mitigate 

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 180



gssiwater.com 5

potential project issues early in the project. He 
is experienced in interacting with all levels of 
management and professionals to help his team 
and external contractors to keep the project on 
schedule and within budget. Chris excels at task 
and time tracking and how it affects the project’s 
overall success. He has helped many clients find 
long-term solutions that help reduce future 
maintenance and operational costs well after the 
project is completed.

Relevant Experience:
• North Torrance Wellfield, Well Nos. 10 & 11, City 

of Torrance: Chris was the Project Manager for design-
build services for Wells No. 10 and 11 in the North 
Torrance Wellfield (NTWF), as well as demolition 
services for Well No. 6. Our team provided technical 
specifications and preliminary design for review and 
approval by the City. 

• Groundwater Supply Study, California Water Service 
Company: Chris developed a strategy to maximize 
groundwater production to fully utilize pumping 
allotment across two adjudicated basins. He compiled 
and reviewed historical pumping and water level data in 
district wells, and located data from other nearby wells. 
Chris then developed rehabilitation schedules, long 
term average flow rates, and provided areas to target for 
future well siting.

• Well Rehabilitation and Groundwater Monitoring 
Program, City of Riverside: Chris managed efforts 
to compile and review historical well data for 60 
potable water supply wells owned and operated 
by the city. The project developed a well ranking 
system to prioritize well rehabilitation and repair. To 
complete the assessment, Chris reviewed video surveys, 
driller’s logs, construction information, historical 
pumping, performance, ground water elevations, 
and past rehabilitation/redevelopment measures. 
Chris helped develop a priority ranking matrix for 
well rehabilitations/replacement that included the 
well’s estimated remaining useful life , and estimated 
rehabilitation costs over five, ten and twenty years. 
At the conclusion of the review Chris developed 
presentations and attended project workshops to present 
and discuss findings to key project personnel.

Logan Wicks, PG
Siting Study Project Geohydrologist

Logan has more than 15 years 
of professional experience on 
more than 27 municipal direct 
or alternative supply wells and 
has completed more than 70 well 

field assessments and groundwater studies. His 
experience includes many different types of 
projects, such as geohydrologic investigations, 
groundwater quality studies, artificial recharge 
projects, water well test drilling programs, 
sea water desalination programs, and the 
management and supervision of water well 
projects including: siting, design, aquifer 
pumping test analyses and well construction. 
He has managed numerous well projects 
including water supply wells, injection wells, 
and monitoring wells. He has performed various 
aquifer pump tests analyses and help developed 
water quality sampling protocols including 
specialized depth specific sampling and analysis. 
He is also part of a team developing new 
methodologies for collecting real time flow and 
water quality data for better and more accurate 
well design and quality control. 
Relevant Experience:
• Bunker Hill Well Siting Evaluation Phase 1, West 

Valley Water District: Logan assisted with efforts to site 
a production well in an area near known plumes, other 
production wells, river channel, and a highly industrial 
populated area. An in-house GIS analysis tool was 
used to help locate potential sites suitable for up to two 
wells near their future mainline.

• New Well No. 28,  City of Lakewood: Logan helped 
lead efforts to develop the technical specifications for 
the City of Lakewood Well 28 Project. He drafted the 
preliminary design and construction sheets for the 
design phase. 

• Miragrand Well, Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District: Logan conducted a detailed site assessment 
and evaluation study with the purpose of identifying 
potential location for future groundwater wells that 
would maximize production and not require treatment. 
This task was performed using in-house GIS based 
software to identify potential locations. Once 
completed, a new potable supply well was designed, 
developed, and constructed.

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 181



gssiwater.com 6

Coral Shaw, GIT
Siting Study Field Support

Coral has more than eight years 
of geohydrological experience in 
water supply well development and 
construction. Coral has performed 
well construction inspection for 

tasks such as pilot borehole drilling and reaming, 
casing inspection and installation, air lifting 
and swabbing, development by pumping, and 
down-hole video logging. She has also performed 
various pumping test analyses, including large 
scale pumping tests and water quality sample 
collection. In addition, Coral prepares well 
designs based on data collected during the 
drilling process, provided final pump design 
recommendations, and final summary reports. 

Relevant Experience:
• Ph. 3 Well II-10 & II-11, Chino Basin Desalter 

Authority: Coral developed pre-bid meeting notes, 
reviewed technical specifications, and bid contracts. She 
also provided on-site observation during constant rate 
testing and pump development.

• Miragrand Well, Three Valley Municipal Water 
District: Coral support design efforts and was the 
lead inspector for a new potable supply well. This 
project provided unique challenges in that it is in an 
affluent residential community whose neighbors do 
not want construction activity to disturb them. Close 
coordination and additional noise mitigation procedures 
were required to complete this work. 

• New Well No. 28, City of Lakewood: Coral supported 
efforts to design and construct a new production well 
for the City. She also led coordination efforts with the 
City and the drilling contractor, and observed pilot and 
conductor borehole drilling and casing installation. 

• Groundwater Well Evaluation and Rehabilitation, 
City of Pomona: Coral supported efforts to 
evaluate the city’s existing well network and 
develop a rehabilitation ranking plan to improve 
groundwater productions. To support the project, 
Coral collected and analyzed available well data 
and helped develop a well criteria matrix to 
prioritize well rehabilitation activities.

Alex Arita
Siting Study Field Support

Alex has five years of experience 
and has been involved in many 
different types of well projects, 
well assessments, groundwater 
level monitoring, water well test 

drilling programs, well rehabilitation, and new 
construction. He performs field supervision 
during well design and construction, water 
quality sampling and analyses, and well 
rehabilitation/redevelopment.
Relevant Experience:
• Phase II Characterization, West Valley Water 

District (WVWD): Our team helped West Valley 
Water District to evaluate the production potential and 
water quality several potential well sites. After the sites 
were acquired, Alex supported field rehabilitation and 
helped optimize water production for the wells. He 
supported well development, oversaw aquifer pump 
tests, spinner survey, and performed composite and 
depth-specific groundwater quality sampling. Alex then 
verified production data and made recommendations to 
improve well production and efficiency. 

• Miragrand Well, Three Valley Municipal Water 
District: Alex supported the permitting efforts to 
design and permit a new production well. He developed 
the Drinking Water Source Assessment and Protection 
(DWSAP) documentation to calculate distance and 
transit times from potential contamination sources. 
Alex also calculated fixed radius and physical barrier 
effectiveness, generated shape files for capture zones, 
and developed K tables to rank potential risks.

• Well No. 102, Rancho California Water District: 
Alex completed comprehensive Drinking Water Source 
Assessment and Protection documentation for Well 
No. 102. Initially, the well was only contributing to 
the district’s recycled water system. The types of tests 
conducted by Alex included: calculations for the fix 
radius and physical barrier effectiveness. He generated 
shape files for the capture zones, which identified the 
types of Possible Contaminating Activities (PCA) that 
occurred within the ground water protection areas 
surrounding the well. He also worked on K tables to 
rank PCA risks. 

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 182



gssiwater.com 7

Years of Experience: 18 
Years with GEOSCIENCE: 16

Education and ProfEssional rEgistrations/
cErtifications: 

 6 BS, Geology, Cal Poly Pomona
 6 California Professional Geologist (No. 9046)
 6 Certified California Hydrogeologist (No. 1038)

Terry has more than 18 years of experience in a variety 
of groundwater projects, including geohydrologic 
investigations, groundwater quality studies, artificial 
recharge projects, site feasibility and test drilling programs, 
sea water desalination programs, in addition to water 
well construction supervision and management. Terry has 
completed more than 350 well projects over the course 
of his career. He is currently a Senior Geohydrologist at 
Geoscience and manages our well construction group, 
overseeing project aspects ranging from site evaluation 
and selection, preliminary well design, development of 
technical specifications, final well design, aquifer pump test 
analysis, development of well rehabilitation programs, and 
providing construction management. Terry has performed 
project management and well construction management 
and supervision on several multi-well projects throughout 
California including municipal water supply wells, ASR 
wells, injection wells, and monitoring wells.
Summary of ExpEriEncE:
West Valley Water District: Bunker Hill Well Siting 
Evaluation Phase I
Terry led efforts to site a production well in an area near 
known plumes, other production wells, river channel, and 
a highly industrial populated area. He and his team used 
an inhouse GIS analysis tool to help locate potential sites 
suitable for up to two wells near their future mainline.
West Valley Water District: Lytle Creek and 
Bloomington Area Preliminary Feasibility Study for 
Artificial Recharge
Terry was the project manager and oversaw two feasibility 
studies using the existing Rialto-Colton and Riverside-
Arlington groundwater models to determine the benefits 
of artificial recharge using capture stormwater to district 
wells. 
West Valley Water District: Rialto-Colton Monitoring 
Well
Terry was the project manager to drill, design, construct, 
and develop a 910 ft stainless steel monitoring well to 
monitor perchlorate migration. 

Terry Watkins, PG, CHG
Senior Geohydrologist / Project Manager

43+
Terry has provided well  

construction management 
services for more than 43 of 

our clients.

350+
Terry has completed more than 

350 well projects.

 6 Superior relationship with 
drillers —maximizing well 
capacity and performance.

 6 Experience with more 
than 350 well projects—
no learning curve, can 
efficiently complete the 
project—potentially 
reducing schedule delays 
and cost overruns.

 
KEY QUALIFICATIONS...

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 183



gssiwater.com 8

Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District: Multiple Well Projects, On-Call Hydrogeology 
Services Contract
As part of this on-call contract, Terry led efforts involving several EVMWD wells, including 
evaluation of the Lincoln Well’s suitability for rehabilitation, development of a rehabilitation plan, 
and construction management for the Joy Street Well, and evaluations and recommendations 
associated with the Diamond Well pump failure.
Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District: Near Term Water Supply Program
Terry led the efforts to develop rehabilitation plans and provide construction management 
services for the rehabilitation of five EVMWD wells, including Flagler Wells 2A and 3A, Cereal Wells 
1 and 3, and the Terra Cotta Well. He also provided preliminary design, final design, construction 
management, and testing services during the construction of the two new Lee Lake Wells. He also 
provided peer review for construction and pump design recommendations for the Palomar Well. 
City of South Pasadena: Rehabilitation of Wilson Well #2 
Terry developed rehabilitation recommendations and contractor work plan to rehabilitate Wilson 
Well #2. As the project and construction manager, Terry oversaw well redevelopment and testing, 
and as a result of his efforts, doubled well production capability.
Bedford Coldwater: Monitoring Wells 
Terry recently completed designs for two new monitoring wells to help a groundwater 
sustainability agency implement their groundwater sustainability plan. This work included 
oversight during well drilling, final design, and reporting.
Chino Basin Desalter Authority: Monitoring Wells 
Terry provided field oversight and construction management for monitoring well installation. The 
wells were to support an inland desalting facility to monitor salt concentrations and provide data 
to plan for future desalter expansion. 
Chino Basin Desalter Authority: CDA Wells II-10, II-11, and II-12
Terry oversaw the technical specifications, drilling, construction, design, development, and testing 
of three, 450-foot deep, large diameter, high capacity municipal production wells. The wells had 
initial production goals of 2,500 gpm, however once completed the wells produced more than 
3,500 gpm. 
City of Lakewood: Well No. 28
Terry was the project manager for a new well constructed for the City of Lakewood, designated 
Well No. 28. Tasks included in this work included preliminary design, development of contract 
documents, contractor bid support, construction management and field supervision, draft 
preliminary and final DWSAP documents, aquifer pump test analysis, and reporting. The well was 
completed under budget, ahead of schedule, and exceeded production expectations, producing 
2,500 gpm with a specific capacity over 100 gmp/ft.
Three Valley Municipal Water District: Well Site Evaluation and Construction of New 
Miragrand Well 
Terry oversaw and managed a detailed site assessment and evaluation study with the purpose 
of identifying potential location for future groundwater wells that would maximize production 
and not require treatment. This task was performed using in-house GIS based software to identify 
potential locations. Once completed, Terry was the project manager for a new potable supply 
well that was completed at the end of 2020. This project provided unique challenges in that it is in 
an affluent residential community whose neighbors do not want construction activity to disturb 
them. Close coordination and additional noise mitigation procedures were required to complete 
this work.
Stirling Airports International: Geohydrologic Evaluation of Potential Discharge Basins 
Terry performed field supervision for exploratory borehole drilling and single-ring infiltrometer 
testing at the test site.

Terry Watkins, PG, CHG
Senior Geohydrologist

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 184



gssiwater.com 9

Years of Experience: 32 
Years with GEOSCIENCE: 14

Education and ProfEssional rEgistrations/
cErtifications: 

 6 BS, Geology, California State University, Los Angeles
 6 California Professional Geologist (No. 4153)
 6 Certified California Hydrogeologist (No. 794)
 6 Certified California Engineering Geologist (No. 1298)

Brian has more than 32 years of professional experience in 
geohydrology and environmental geology throughout the 
Southern California region. His specific areas of expertise 
are in hydrogeologic investigations to support indirect 
potable reuse, groundwater recharge, and groundwater 
basin characterization projects. He has studied and 
modeled groundwater basins across the State and has 
led efforts to develop studies and reports including, 
monitoring well networks, groundwater recharge projects, 
sustainable yield, water budgets, and more. He currently 
serves several cities and water districts to develop and 
assess groundwater recharge projects, including the City 
of Oceanside, Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District, San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District, Yucaipa Valley 
Water District, and others. Brian has also supported 20 
groundwater related litigation cases serving as either the 
lead technical advisor or in a support role.
summary of ExPEriEncE:
Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District: 
Hydrogeological Investigation of the Warm Springs 
Subbasin
Warm Springs Groundwater Subbasin is a small, 
sedimentary groundwater subbasin located within 
Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District’s service area. To 
meet long‐term population growth and increasing water 
demand, the District is exploring options to develop water 
resources within the Warm Springs Subbasin. Brian led 
our team and to complete a hydrogeologic investigation 
to quantify the groundwater storage and safe yield of the 
Warm Springs Subbasin, estimate yield for future municipal 

Brian Villalobos, PG, CHG, CEG
Principal Geohydrologist / Technical Advisor

 6 More than 30 years of 
groundwater resource 
studies and reports

 6 Specializes in groundwater 
recharge and water reuse

 6 Certified Hydrogeologist 
and Engineering Geologist

 6 Experience supporting 
more than 20 groundwater-
related litigation cases.

 
KEY QUALIFICATIONS...

30+
Brian has more than 30 years 

of experience providing 
specialized groundwater 

resource studies and reports.
supply well, determine water quality in the subbasin, identify 
needed potable water conveyance infrastructure, and plan 
environmental and permitting requirements.
Western Municipal Water District: Riverside-Arlington Basin Groundwater Sustainability 
Plan
Brian is leading efforts to develop a GSP for the Riverside-Arlington Basin. The Basin is classified 
by DWR as a medium-priority basin and is one of the district’s primary sources of local water 
supply. Brian and our team are working in conjunction with the district to complete all studies 

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 185



gssiwater.com 10

and investigations necessary to complete a compliant GSP. Specific activities include supporting 
grant administration and stakeholder engagement, assessing and developing a data management 
system, reviewing monitoring networks and providing recommendations, and defining the plan 
area. 
Yucaipa Valley Water District: Oak Valley Town Center Recharge Project
Brian is leading efforts to complete a feasibility study for a recycled water recharge project. To 
complete the study, our team developed a focused groundwater model, a 3-D lithologic model, 
and developed a test infiltration basin.
Yucaipa Valley Water District: Recycled Water Use Evaluation using the Gateway Sub-basin 
Focused Groundwater Model 
Brian managed efforts to develop a geologic and hydrologic conceptual model and a groundwater 
flow and solute transport model for a 10 square mile area of the Gateway sub-basin and portions 
of five additional sub-basins. The model is being used to evaluate potential movement of recycled 
water from the Wilson Creek Spreading Basin.
San Bernardino County: Active Recharge Project from Tributaries of the Santa Ana River
Brian led our team to develop a watershed model to estimate potential stormwater capture from 
13 tributary Creeks to the Santa Ana River in the San Bernardino Valley. The project included 
preparing conceptual designs for stormwater capture facilities and estimating potential new 
conservation water added to the ground water system from urban run-off capture.
Castaic Lake Water Agency: Santa Clara River Valley Salt and Nutrient Management Plan
Brian led efforts to determine ambient water quality conditions and develop a plan to confirm 
that water management practices were consistent with the agency’s water quality objectives. 
The completed plan provided a framework to protect groundwater and improve groundwater 
resource sustainability. Brian led our team to develop a monitoring plan, and evaluate the effect 
that proposed projects would have on groundwater quality.
Riverside County: Hydrogeologic Evaluation of the Riverside Aquifer Storage and Recovery 
Project 
Brian identified available Santa Ana River surface flows to use in On-Channel and Off-Channel 
recharge basins and evaluated recharge impacts on the ground water surface.
Riverside County: Evaluation of Potential Locations for Ground Water Recharge at the East 
and West Dam Sites, Diamond Valley Lake 
Brian assessed water quality and water level trends and other considerations to evaluate impacts 
from proposed recharge scenarios.
San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District: Recharge Investigation of the Yucaipa 
Groundwater Basin 
Brian led efforts to complete a hydrogeologic investigation at eleven potential sites within the 
Yucaipa Groundwater Basin for potential artificial recharge. Recommendations for subsequent 
phases of investigation were provided for each site.
San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District and Partners: Determination of the Usable 
Capacity and Safe Yield for each Sub-basin within the Yucaipa Basin Area
Brian led efforts to reevaluate sub-basin boundaries in the Yucaipa Groundwater Basin to assess 
the “safe yield” and storage capacity of each sub-basin. He developed a watershed model of the 
Yucaipa Valley to determine water balance terms previously not calculated. 
City of Moreno Valley: Groundwater Basin Assessment for the Box Springs Mutual Water 
Company Service Area Rezoning 
Brian helped evaluate available long-term water supplies from the San Jacinto Groundwater Basin 
to support future City development plans. 

Brian Villalobos, PG, CHG, CEG
Principal Geohydrologist

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 186



gssiwater.com 11

Years of Experience: 18 
Years with GEOSCIENCE: 17

Education and ProfEssional rEgistrations/
cErtifications: 

 6 BS, Geology, College of William & Mary
 6 California Professional Geologist (No. 9093)
 6 Certified California Hydrogeologist (No. 1040)

Chris has more than 18 years of professional experience 
on more than 50 municipal supply wells and has 
completed more than 150 well field assessments. As a 
senior Geohydrologist for Geoscience, Chris provides 
oversight for multiple projects involving well construction 
and deconstruction, design and construction oversight, 
permitting and working with county and state agencies, 
interpreting pump tests, drilling process and fluids, analysis 
in well productions, and well rehabilitation. As a project 
manager, Chris pulls from his depth of knowledge to 
recognize and mitigate potential project issues early in 
the project. He is experienced in interacting with all levels 
of management and professionals to help his team and 
external contractors to keep the project on schedule and 
within budget. Chris excels at task and time tracking and 
how it affects the project’s overall success. He has helped 
many clients find long-term solutions that help reduce 
future maintenance and operational costs well after the 
project is completed.
summary of ExPEriEncE:
California Water Service Company: Groundwater 
Supply Study
Chris developed a strategy to maximize groundwater 
production to fully utilize pumping allotment across two 
adjudicated basins. He compiled and reviewed historical 
pumping and water level data in district wells, and located 
data from other nearby wells. Chris then developed 
rehabilitation schedules, long term average flow rates, and 
provided areas to target for future well siting. 
Hillwood Properties/City of Riverside: Well 
Replacement Project
Chris served as project manager for the well replacement 
for Hillwood Properties. Three production wells were 
replaced for the City of Riverside as part of two land lease 
projects. Thirteen existing wells were destroyed as part 
of the effort. For both projects, Geoscience provided 
specifications, plans, and bid support, along with field 
services including logging, isolated aquifer zone testing, 
final well design, and aquifer testing. In one project, 

Christofer Coppinger, PG, CHG
Senior Geohydrologist / Technical Advisor

 6 More than 15 years of well 
design and inspection 
experience  —increasing 
project efficiency

 6 Expertise in water supply, 
injection, banking, and 
monitoring wells  —helping 
to identify and resolve 
issues

 6 Experience with projects 
that contain multiple 
wells  —helping to manage 
different schedules and 
budgets, as well as identify 
project inefficiencies

 
KEY QUALIFICATIONS...

15+
Chris has more than 15 years 
of experience designing and 

inspecting water supply wells.

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 187



gssiwater.com 12

production from the new wells exceeded design requirements by more than 50%. In the other 
project, Geoscience identified multiple constituents above MCL during isolated aquifer zone 
testing and provided support for determining a new location for the replacement well. 
City of Torrance: North Torrance Wellfield, Well Nos. 10 & 11 
Chris was the Project Manager for design-build services for Wells No. 10 and 11 in the North 
Torrance Wellfield (NTWF), as well as demolition services for Well No. 6. Geoscience previously 
provided design and construction services for NTWF Well No. 9, which replaced Well No. 6 in 2009. 
Our team provided technical specifications and preliminary design for review and approval by the 
City. NTWF Well No. 10 construction included the installation of the conductor casing and drilling 
and testing the pilot borehole conducted in 2009. The Well No. 10 pilot borehole was backfilled in 
2009 pending the decision made by City of Torrance to ream the borehole and complete the Well 
No. 10 construction during 2019 to 2020. NTWF Well No. 11 construction included pilot borehole 
drilling, isolated aquifer zone testing, borehole reaming, well construction, well development and 
pump testing.
City of Riverside: Well Rehabilitation and Groundwater Monitoring Program
Chris managed efforts to compile and review historical well data for 60 potable water supply 
wells owned and operated by the city. The project developed a well ranking system to prioritize 
well rehabilitation and repair. To complete the assessment, Chris reviewed video surveys, driller’s 
logs, construction information, historical pumping, performance, ground water elevations, and 
past rehabilitation/redevelopment measures. Chris helped develop a priority ranking matrix for 
well rehabilitations/replacement that included the well’s estimated remaining useful life , and 
estimated rehabilitation costs over five, ten and twenty years. At the conclusion of the review Chris 
developed presentations and attended project workshops to present and discuss findings to key 
project personnel.
City of Riverside: 2015 Well Rehabilitation
Upon completion of the Well Rehabilitation and Groundwater Monitoring Program, the city 
selected 4 wells for rehabilitation. Chris led efforts to, repair, rehabilitate, and return to service, a 
well drilled in 1927. He also provided recommendations to modify existing technical specifications 
to allow needed repairs, and oversaw field inspection during repair. All wells were successfully 
rehabilitated with two achieving major increases in efficiency. 
Rancho California Water District: Replacement of Nine Municipal Wells
As one of the Project Managers, Chris assisted in leading efforts to prepare large reports and plans 
to install nine new production wells that would replace failing supply wells. Since 2013, eight 
wells have been completed, one was abandoned due to water quality issues, the last two were 
completed early 2019. Our team provided well design, technical specifications, and helped the 
assigned district engineer to prepare bid packages. Our drilling phase work included zone testing, 
data analysis, and preparing multiple design options for water quality and production rates.
Orange County Water District: Alamitos Barrier Improvement Project 
This project constructed 17 new injection wells, four (4) nested monitoring wells, and two (2) 
piezometers. The injection wells serve to increase the capacity and effectiveness of the existing 
seawater barrier system. Chris maintained effective control of project scope, schedule, and budget 
while providing construction management services. 
Confidential Client: Deep Completion Monitoring Well Network
Chris worked closely with Orange County Water District and California Division of Oil Gas and 
Geothermal Resources to site, drill, and install deep (up to 1,400 ft) monitoring wells. The wells are 
currently monitored monthly to determine if water-flood injection stimulated oil production is 
affecting groundwater gradient and quality in the upper aquifers.

Christofer Coppinger, PG, CHG
Senior Geohydrologist

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 188



gssiwater.com 13

Years of Experience: 15 
Years with GEOSCIENCE: 7

Education and ProfEssional rEgistrations/
cErtifications: 

 6 BS, Geology, Cal Poly Pomona
 6 BS, Biology, Cal Poly Pomona
 6 MS Geology, Cal Poly Pomona
 6 California Professional Geologist (No. 9580)

Logan has more than 15 years of professional experience 
on more than 27 municipal direct or alternative supply 
wells and has completed more than 70 well field 
assessments and groundwater studies. His experience 
includes many different types of projects, such as 
geohydrologic investigations, groundwater quality 
studies, artificial recharge projects, water well test drilling 
programs, sea water desalination programs, and the 
management and supervision of water well projects 
including: siting, design, aquifer pumping test analyses 
and well construction. He has managed numerous well 
projects including water supply wells, injection wells, and 
monitoring wells. He has performed various aquifer pump 
tests analyses and help developed water quality sampling 
protocols including specialized depth specific sampling 
and analysis. He is also part of a team developing new 
methodologies for collecting real time flow and water 
quality data for better and more accurate well design and 
quality control.
summary of ExPEriEncE:
West Valley Water District: Bunker Hill Well Siting 
Evaluation Phase I
Logan assisted with efforts to site a production well in an 
area near known plumes, other production wells, river 
channel, and a highly industrial populated area. Our team 
used an inhouse GIS analysis tool to help locate potential 
sites suitable for up to two wells near their future mainline.
West Valley Water District: Sentinel Well 1 Construction
Logan performed site field supervision, field work, 
on site supervision during reaming, caliper logging, 
casing installation, and assisted with NPDES discharge 
requirements. 
West Valley Water District: Quarterly Depth Specific 
Sampling
Logan procured and developed depth specific Snap 
Samplers in three (3) WVWD Wells. He then provided on 
site supervision for depth specific sampling and water 
quality analysis.

Logan Wicks, PG
Project Geohydrologist

 6 More than a decade of 
experience supporting the 
design of municipal supply 
wells

 6 Experience and familiarity 
with groundwater 
production and monitoring 
well installation—
helping to maximize well 
production and efficiency

 6 Proficient in interpreting 
well pump tests and well 
productions analyses, and 
troubleshooting drilling 
issues

 
KEY QUALIFICATIONS...

25+
Logan has supported the 

design of more than 25 
municipal water supply wells.

70+
Logan has completed more 

than 70 well field assessments 
and groundwater studies.

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 189



gssiwater.com 14

City of Lakewood: New Well No. 28 Design and Technical Specifications 
Logan helped lead efforts to develop the technical specifications for the City of Lakewood Well 28 
Project. He drafted the preliminary design and construction sheets for the design phase. 
City of South Pasadena: Rehabilitation of Wilson Well #2
Logan reviewed and evaluated video survey, production and pumping performance, hydrographs, 
water quality data, and side wall scraping results for Wilson Well #2. He helped prepare technical 
specifications for well rehabilitation, which included: cleaning of well casing and screen by 
brushing, applying dispersing agents, airlifting and swabbing, pumping and surging, aquifer 
pump tests, flowmeter survey, post-development video survey, and final well disinfection. 
Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District: Multiple Projects
As part of an on-call contract, Logan led field efforts to rehabilitate six existing wells ranging 
in depth from 105 ft to 1,700 ft. Our team performed an initial site assessment, developed well 
designs, and oversaw production well construction. 
Rancho California Water District: Replacement of Nine Municipal Wells
Logan assisted in leading efforts to prepare large reports and plans to install nine new production 
wells that would replace failing supply wells. Since 2013, eight wells have been completed, one 
was abandoned due to water quality issues, the last two were completed early 2019. Our team 
provided well design, technical specifications, and helped the assigned district engineer to 
prepare bid packages. Our drilling phase work included zone testing, data analysis, and preparing 
multiple design options for water quality and production rates. 
Imperial Irrigation District: Monitoring Wells 1 & 2 
Logan provided onsite well construction observation and data analysis. He helped develop the 
final well design, pump design and water quality analysis. 
Chino Basin Desalter Authority: CDA Monitoring Well
Logan oversaw technical specifications, drilling, construction, design, development, and testing of 
500-foot deep, monitoring well. The well will be used to monitor groundwater quality for a near-by 
treatment facility well field.
City of Huntington Beach: Well 1 Replacement 
Logan performed well destruction and replacement for the City of Huntington Beach. He 
supported design efforts for well casing, screen, filter pack, and annular seal. During construction, 
he attended field meetings and worked with the contractor to inspect conductor bore hole 
drilling, casing installation, and the sanitary seal. He also sampled and logged soil cuttings, 
inspected aquifer zone testing for yield and water quality, and performed mechanical grading 
analyses. Once constructed, Logan inspected final development by pumping and surging and 
aquifer pumping tests.
Pico Water District: Well Number 11
Logan oversaw efforts to drafted technical plans and specifications, perform contractor bid 
assistance, and support permitting with regulatory agencies. Site selection for the project was 
challenging because of economic feasibility considerations. Working with the district Logan and 
our team successfully found solutions to integrate the new well into the existing system and meet 
the project completion dates and production goals set for early 2018. 
Bellflower-Somerset Mutual Water Company: Leahy Avenue Well
Due to permitting issues this project was delayed for several years, Logan helped manage 
schedule and budget to get the project back on track and completed. The project successfully met 
the new schedule and budget and produces more than 3,500 gpm, with a specific capacity of 60 
gpm/ft—meeting and surpassing project goals. 

Logan Wicks, PG
Project Geohydrologist

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 190



gssiwater.com 15

Statement of UnderStanding & 
approach

desired production, be of acceptable water 
quality, and minimize interference with existing 
wells.

PRIMARY METHODOLOGY
One of the primary tools commonly utilized by 
Geoscience to accomplish well site evaluation 
studies is our geographical information system 
(GIS) based analysis tool. This tool allows 
Geoscience to rapidly assess many of the 
criterion necessary when evaluating potential 
sites. By combining static suitability factors (such 
as depth to bedrock, parcel zoning, and distance 
from infrastructure) with a solid framework 
to incorporate dynamic model results (such as 
recharge and extraction volumes, travel times, 
and saturated thickness), all of your potential 
sites can be evaluated at once. In addition, 
our GIS tool is coupled with model input 
parameters and scenario results of the Bunker 
Hill groundwater model previously developed by 
Geoscience.
This method saves a significant amount of 
time compared to considering potential sites 
on a parcel-by-parcel basis, which will enable 
you to consider more alternative scenarios and 
make better-informed decisions in the siting 

process. This approach is well-
suited for a project such as this, 
where a relatively large area is being 
considered.

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING
West Valley Water District (WVWD) provides 
water service to thousands of people throughout  
Southwestern San Bernardino County and a 
small part of Northern Riverside County. In 
order to bolster its groundwater supply and 
diminish reliance from imported water sources, 
WVWD wishes to develop additional assets in 
the Bunker Hill Groundwater Subbasin of the 
Upper Santa Ana Valley Groundwater Basin 
which underlies the San Bernardino Valley. The 
Bunker Hill Groundwater Subbasin contains 
some of the most productive and prolific 
groundwater aquifers within the Upper Santa 
Ana Groundwater Basin. However, groundwater 
contamination and over pumping is of concern. 
In order to drill and construct new groundwater 
wells that maximize production potential while 
meeting water quality objectives, WVWD wishes 
to perform a comprehensive well site evaluation 
to identify the most advantageous locations 
in the Bunker Hill Subbasin. This evaluation, 
designated Phase II, will focus on potential sites 
outside of the Management Zone of the US EPA 
2004 Consent Decree for the Newmark and 
Muscoy Groundwater Contamination Superfund 
Site. Candidate sites will meet the WVWD 

GIS Site Suitability: 
The example heat map on the left illustrates 
the most suitable well sites (shown in blue) 
and least favorable locations (shown in red). 

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 191



gssiwater.com 16

The Geoscience Project Manager will review 
the study area and generally assess existing 
conditions and data requirements prior to 
attending the kick-off meeting. Other objectives 
of the kick-off meeting include (but are not 
necessarily limited to):

 6 Clarification of key issues for the project,
 6 Clarification and refinement of the scope of 

work based on the key issues,
 6 Clarification of the data needs to address the 

scope of work,
 6 Discussion of the project schedule.

A request for additional geohydrologic data 
and information not currently in Geoscience’s 
database will be submitted and discussed at the 
kick-off meeting. 
Following the Data review and processing (Task 
2.1) Geoscience will issue DRAFT potential 
site location map and preliminary evaluation 
matrix.  Geoscience will attend one (1) meeting 
with WVWD personnel to review and refine 
the potential site list, evaluation matrix, and 
weighting of each criteria.  This meeting will 
establish the final potential sites and the criteria 
by which they shall be evaluated.
Finally, following submittal of the FINAL well 
site evaluation report, Geoscience will prepare 
for and participate in one (1) meeting with 
WVWD personnel to present the findings and to 
answer any questions that may arise.  

TASK 2. WELL SITE EVALUATION
2.1. Data Collection and Processing
In preparation of the well siting evaluation, 
Geoscience will obtain and review all relevant 
geohydrologic data and other available 
background information regarding the well site 
areas. Key criteria for evaluating potential well 
sites include:

 6 Ability of aquifers to yield sufficient 
quantities of groundwater to meet WVWD’s 
objectives,

 6 Production of groundwater quality that is 
acceptable to WVWD’s standards,

TASK 1. PROJECT MANAGEMENT & 
MEETINGS 
1.1. Project Management 
Effective control of a project’s scope, schedule, 
and budget is fundamental to achieving a 
quality project. Our Project Team knows 
that understanding and managing the 
interrelationship of these three elements largely 
determines the project’s success with respect 
to budget.  Scope creep increases cost and 
produces delay.  Delays increase costs and cause 
critical milestones to be missed. Geoscience 
understands these issues and has demonstrated 
ability to organize tasks, manage level of effort, 
develop and monitor critical-path schedules, 
and compare actual costs to planned costs at 
key milestones. By using these organizational 
techniques as well as good communication 
and coordination, a quality, on-time, and on-
schedule project is ensured.
Geoscience will provide project management 
services throughout the entire project to ensure 
that all aspects are carried out in a proper and 
efficient manner.  Project management activities 
will include (but not necessarily be limited to) 
coordination and correspondence with WVWD, 
project schedule updates, project budget 
monitoring, project status updates, and quality 
control and assurance.  This task will also include 
availability to assist with any unforeseen issues 
which may arise throughout the course of the 
project.
1.2. Project Meetings
The primary objective of the project kick-off 
meeting will be to meet face-to-face with key 
project individuals from WVWD to make 
sure that everyone understands the intent, 
objectives, tasks, budgets, schedules, milestones, 
and deliverables of this project. The kick-off 
meeting also identifies any individuals outside 
of Geoscience that may be responsible for 
implementing any part of the work. This meeting 
provides a forum for discussion of critical path 
tasks, such as data collection, such that those 
tasks can be efficiently expedited.

Scope of Work

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 192



gssiwater.com 17

 6 Minimization of potential pumping 
interference with nearby existing wells,

 6 Avoidance of excessive groundwater 
level drawdown and potential adverse 
environmental impacts to nearby wells,

 6 Compliance with regulatory requirements for 
distance from sewer lines or other utilities,

 6 Proximity to existing WVWD infrastructure 
for conveyance and treatment of water,

 6 Availability of undeveloped property for 
construction.

Geoscience has a long history of working within 
the Bunker Hill Groundwater Subbasin, and 
in the Upper Santa Ana Groundwater Basin as 
a whole, and has a thorough understanding of 
the geohydrology and maintains an extensive 
in-house well database. As part of the recently 
completed integrated Santa Ana River Model, we 
have compiled a comprehensive geohydrologic 
data base.  In addition, a 3D lithologic model 
was developed using geophysical logs from for 
than 400 wells in the Bunker Hill Groundwater 
Subbasin. This data will be utilized for the 
construction of a GIS based analysis tool which 
will allow for the evaluation of multiple site. 

Nevertheless, it will be necessary to update our 
database with the latest geohydrologic and well 
operational information.  This data includes, but 
is not necessarily limited to, the following:

 6  Construction details for production wells 
drilled within WVWD’s boundary;

 6  Lithologic and geophysical logs from existing 
wells and any other exploratory boreholes 
that have been drilled in the area;

 6  All relevant pumping and aquifer test data, 
including well performance characteristics;

 6 Updated historical ground water elevation 
data;

 6 Updated ground water production histories; 
and

 6 Updated ground water quality information 
(depth-specific, if available).

2.2. Well Siting Evaluation
The purpose of the well siting evaluation is 
to provide WVWD with a comprehensive 
geohydrological evaluation that identifies 
production well sites that have the highest 
probability of success in meeting WVWD’s water 
supply goals. 

An example of a hydrogeologic cross-section that can help demonstrate the lateral extent (if any) of a regional aquifer system.

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 193



gssiwater.com 18

Geoscience will evaluate the geohydrology of 
the project area for the purpose of identifying 
areas or zones favorable for new production 
wells. Specific data to be used to assess these 
areas will include subsurface geology, aquifer 
thickness, aquifer permeability, groundwater 
levels and flow direction, point sources of 
groundwater contamination, non-point 
sources of contamination, location of existing 
infrastructure, and the location of available 
property for construction.  All of this data 
will be shown in relation to existing land use, 
production wells, utilities, and transmission 
pipelines.
The final product of the evaluation will be a 
map showing the areas favorable for a new well 
and an evaluation matrix scoring the potential 
sites in order of most favorable.  It is anticipated 
that eight (8) to ten (10) sites will be identified 
and evaluated. After review with WVWD, each 
recommended site will be ranked according to 
favorability utilizing a decision matrix.  Several 
criteria will be assessed including, but not limited 
to: 

 6 Geohydrologic: production potential, 
anticipated water quality, and water level 
interference

 6 Environmental: proximity to point-source 
sites of ground water contamination and 
surface water bodies

 6 Logistical: available access and area for 
drilling, appropriate setbacks from electrical 
and sanitary facilities, and disturbance to 
nearby businesses and/or residents

 6 Engineering: proximity to existing water 
transmission system and adequacy of that 
system

 6 Cost: project cost, including property 
acquisition, etc.

Each of the criteria will be weighted and 
evaluated in a quantitative manner according 
to importance.  The criteria and corresponding 
weighting values will be prepared based on 
Geoscience recommendations in consideration of 
the WVWD’s goals.
The results of the well site assessment will be 
presented to WVWD as a report.  The 60% 
and 90% DRAFT reports will be presented 
to WVWD in electronic format (i.e., PDF).  
Geoscience will meet with the District and 
discuss comments to the report.  Comments 
will be incorporated and Geoscience will issue 
a 100% FINAL report in electronic and six (6) 
bound hard copies.

Our evaluation will include an evaluation matrix (example shown above) that presents the scores of potential sites in order of the 
most favorable.

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 194



gssiwater.com 19

COST ASSUMPTIONS & BASIS OF 
PROPOSAL
1.  Geoscience’s Schedule and Consultants Fee 

included with this bid are valid for a period 
of 1 year assuming the starting date shown in 
the baseline Schedule.

2.  Geoscience will manage work hours between 
employee classifications or utilize other 
employee classifications provided that the 
total project fee is not exceeded without prior 
approval of the Owner. Geoscience will first 
request approval from the Owner before work 
hours are managed between Tasks as listed in 
the Consultants Fee Schedule.

3.  Services not Specifically Identified in the 
Scope of Work are not included in this 
Agreement for Professional Services.

4.  Owner and/or Stakeholders will provide data 
on: Site Plans, Utility Record Drawings, 
Nearby Well Locations, Nearby Well 
Construction Details, Well Production 
History, Water Level History, Water 
Quality History, Well Maintenance History, 
Lithologic Logs, Geophysical Logs, Land Use 
Data, Known Contamination Sites  Known 
Contamination Sites, Climatological Data, 
Site Ownership/Parcel Information, Gaging 
Station Data,  Authorization Letters, Facility 
Details, Discharge History, or Model Files. 
Owner and/or Stakeholder provided data is 
assumed to be in an editable electronic format 
(eg., Excel, AutoCad GIS).   

5.  All owner/stakeholder furnished data 
required for a given Task will be provided to 
Consultant within a time-frame agreed upon 
between Consultant and Client, or as shown 
in the project schedule. Owner-furnished 
data that is received after the agreed-upon 
Collection Time Frame, and that necessitates 
a revision of analyses, calculations, design, or 
written deliverable, may necessitate a contract 
amendment.

6.  Consultant assumes that data assembled 
and provided by the Client and/or Project 
Stakeholders is accurate, complete and 
can be used as it is.  Verification of Owner 
furnished-data accuracy from primary 
source(s) is outside the scope of work.

7. One (1) round of comments and resulting 
deliverable revision is budgeted for each draft 
design deliverable as listed in the Project 
Deliverable Schedule. Owner will review and 
provide comments on the deliverable at the 
60% and 90% level. Review of the 100% 
documents will be made to determine that 
changes from the 90% documents have been 
addressed. Responses to comments will be 
developed in a comment response log.

8. For review of draft deliverables, Owner 
will provide consolidated, written, and 
non-contradictory review comments to 
Consultant’s Deliverables in an electronic, 
matrix format. All written review comments 
will be provided within a time frame as 
agreed upon by the Owner/Stakeholders and 
Consultant, or as indicated in the baseline 
project schedule. Owner and/or Stakeholder 
comments that are received after the agreed-
upon deliverable review Time Frame, and 
that necessitate an additional revision of 
the deliverable, will be incorporated upon 
consultation with the Owner and through a 
contract modification.

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 195



20gssiwater.com

Project Schedule

ID Task Name Duration Start Finish
1 BUNKER HILL WELL SITING EVALUATION PHASE 2 63 days Fri 10/21/22 Wed 1/18/23

2 Award Contract 0 days Fri 10/21/22 Fri 10/21/22

3 Kick-off Meeting 0 days Wed 10/26/22 Wed 10/26/22

4 Data Collection and Review, Preliminary Site Selection and Ranking Criteria 15 days Thu 10/27/22 Wed 11/16/22

5 Meeting with District to Review Sites and Ranking Criteria 0 days Wed 11/16/22 Wed 11/16/22

6 60% Draft Well Siting Evaluation 10 days Thu 11/17/22 Wed 11/30/22

7 District Review 60% Draft 5 days Thu 12/1/22 Wed 12/7/22

8 90% Draft Well Siting Evaluation 10 days Thu 12/8/22 Wed 12/21/22

9 District Review 90% Draft 5 days Thu 12/22/22 Wed 12/28/22

10 100% Final Well Siting Evaluation 10 days Thu 12/29/22 Wed 1/11/23

11 Wrap-up and Presentation of Findings Meeting 0 days Wed 1/18/23 Wed 1/18/23

10/21

10/26 Kick‐Off

11/16 Sites & Criteria Ranking Meeting

1/18
Presentation of Findings

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022 January 2023

Schedule for Professional Hydrogeological Services Related to Bunker Hill Well Siting Evaluation Phase 2
West Valley Water District

West Valley Water District GEOSCIENCE Support Services, Inc.

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 196



gssiwater.com 21

reFerenceS

Rancho California Water District (RCWD) was 
seeking parcels to perform multiple groundwater 
recharge projects within their service area, 
principally in the form of surface spreading 
basins. Rather than only evaluating potentially 
desirable parcels individually and approaching 
owners to purchase property, RCWD also 
wanted the ability to evaluate and respond to 
market opportunities as desirable parcels become 
available. This required an understanding of all 
the parcels in the service area in terms of their 
suitability for groundwater recharge projects. 
Manual evaluation of parcels for such projects 
has been used previously, but the utilization of 
GIS allows for a more thorough, basin-wide 
quantitative approach. GIS-based evaluation also 
allows for quick and easy adjustment of rankings 
and weights, such as when new information 
about aquifer characteristics becomes available, 
as well as adding additional factors or removing 
factors. This increase in capabilities has the 
potential for saving both time and money by 
streamlining the process of locating new areas for 
optimal groundwater recharge.
Parcels within the RCWD service area 
were evaluated as to their suitability for the 
installation of a new recharge project in terms 
of geohydrology, permitting, and infrastructure 

factors. Data in these three categories were 
processed in a site suitability model constructed 
to calculate a unique total score for each 
parcel. Hydrogeology factors such as hydraulic 
conductivity and unsaturated thickness were 
taken from a calibrated groundwater model in 
the basin and scored based on the potential for 
recharge storage. Permitting factors such as the 
location of wetlands and conservation easements 
were used to exclude areas from consideration. 
Infrastructure factors such as the location of 
existing production wells and water mains 
were scored based on proximity. Factors in all 
three categories such as geology, FEMA flood 
zones, and parcel land use were scored based 
on desirable elements. Parcels that received the 
highest calculated scores were then evaluated via 
a site visit to confirm model results and identify 
possible pitfalls that were not identified by the 
GIS model.

rancho caliFornia Water diStrict, diStrict BaSin Siting Study
Torrance, CA

Client: Rancho California Water District
Client Contact: Rich Ottolini, Operations Mgr
Address: 42135 Winchester Rd., Temecula, CA 
92590
Phone: (951) 269-6954
Project Date: July 2021 - January 2022
Scope of Services:

• Basin-wide Siting Evaluation
• GIS-based analysis

 
Project Data

Site suitability matrix

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 197



gssiwater.com 22

Geoscience was retained by Three Valleys 
Municipal Water District (TVMWD) to provide 
design-build services for a new municipal water 
supply well, referred to as the Miragrand Well, 
located in the Upper Claremont Heights basin, 
one of six small adjacent and interconnected 
basins located on the northern edge of the Chino 
Basin.
Geoscience provided well siting, technical 
specifications, and preliminary and final design 
for the drilling, construction, development, 
and testing of the Miragrand Well. Once the 
design was completed, we provided construction 
management and observation to drill the 
initial borehole. A 48-inch diameter conductor 
borehole was drilled to a depth of approximately 
51 ft bgs using a rig equipped with a solid stem 
auger. Below the bottom of the conductor casing, 
a 17 1/2-inch diameter pilot borehole was drilled 
using a fluid reverse circulation rotary drilling rig 

to a final depth of 770 ft bgs. Geoscience also 
provided observation to conduct and complete 
the isolated aquifer zone testing. The purpose 
of isolated aquifer zone testing is to determine 
both yield and water quality from the potential 
completion interval(s) before determining the 
final design of the well. Three (3) zones were 
selected for testing prior to preparing the final 
recommended well design, which included the 
selection of the screened interval, slot size, and 
filter pack gradation. The selection of the zone 
test intervals was based upon visual examination 
of the formation samples and analysis of the 
geophysical logs. In addition to the pilot 
borehole drilling, and isolated aquifer zone 
testing, construction of the Miragrand Well also 
included  borehole reaming, well construction, 
well development, and pump testing.
Once completed, the well successfully produced 
600 gallons per minute (gpm). 

miragrand Well deSign & conStruction 
City of Claremont, CA

Client: Three Valleys Municipal Water District
Client Contact: Benjamin Peralta
Address: 1021 E Miramar Ave, Claremont, CA 
91711
Phone: (909) 621-5568
Project Date: March 2020 - December 2021

Scope of Services:
• Well Siting
• Well Preliminary Design Reports
• New Well Design and Construction
• Quality Assurance/Quality Control
• Project Administration

 
Project Data

Borehole reaming for the Miragrand Well

Auger drilling for the conductor casing placement

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 198



gssiwater.com 23

additional inFormation
For more than 40 years, Geoscience has focused 
on only one thing; groundwater. We were one 
of the first firms in the State to focus solely on 
groundwater modeling, studies, and groundwater 
production wells. During this time, we have 
completed more than 2,000 groundwater studies 
and more than 1,000 well design projects.
Our expertise comes from practical, hands-on 
experience designing and working on numerous 
municipal high capacity water wells. We also 
design and supervise well construction for 
municipal and private clients and are often 
called upon to help increase water production 
efficiency, and troubleshoot and test existing 
wells for water quality and other issues. We 
routinely assist agencies in assessing and 
managing well infrastructure to prolong well life, 
minimize long term expenses, and improve water 
supply reliability.
The tables below illustrates our other recent 
experience in siting, designing, developing and 
constructing production wells. We have listed the 
beginning and end dates, and our client contacts 
for each project. Detailed descriptions have been 
provided for a few of the projects listed below.

Geoscience Team Project and Client Project 
Dates Project Reference

W
el

l S
iti

ng
 &

 D
es

ig
n

W
el

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 O

n 
Sc

he
du

le

Bunker Hill Well Siting Evaluation Phase 1 
(Siting only) 2019 - 2020 West Valley Water District, 855 W. Baseline Rd., Rialto, CA 

92376; Linda Jadeski, (909) 820-3713 x x

Extraction Well Nos. CDA II-10, CDA II-11,  
& CDA-II-12 2017 - 2021 Chino Basin Desalter Authority, 3550 E Philadelphia St Suite 

170, Ontario, CA 91761; Tom O’Neill, (909) 218-3729 x x x

Well No. 28 2019 - 2020 City of Lakewood, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, CA 90712; 
Derwin Dy, (562) 866-9771 x x x

North Torrance Well Field Well Nos. 10 & 11 2019 - 2021 City of Torrance, 3031 Torrance Blvd., Torrance, CA 90503;  
John Dettle, (310) 618-3059 x x x

Exploratory Drilling in the Lee Lake Groundwater 
Basin and Lee Lake Well Nos. 1 & 2 2018 - 2022 Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District, 31315 Chaney St., 

Lake Elsinore, CA 92530;  Jesus Gastelum, (760) 518-6266 x x x

Well Destruction & Replacement - Warren Well 2018 - 2019 Hillwood Properties, 901 Via Piemonte, Ontario, CA 91764; 
John Grace, (909) 256-5924 x x x

MORE THAN 100
Municipal production wells
completed by Geoscience in the last decade - 

demonstrating proven experience that we can 
maximize well production, while minimizing project 

delays and cost overruns

MORE THAN 20
Well projects represented

in the list of projects presented on the following 
page - exhibiting our relevant, recent experience that 

proves we can handle this project

OUR EXPERIENCE by the Numbers

MORE THAN 2,000
Groundwater studies & modeling 

projects completed
proven consulting expertise in groundwater modeling 

and hydrogeologic studies

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 199



gssiwater.com 24

WeSt Valley Water diStrict, Bunker 
hill SuBBaSin Well Siting Study
San Bernardino County, CA
West Valley Water District (WVWD) provides 
water service to approximately 82,000 people 
through 22,000 service connections. To bolster 
its groundwater supply and reduce reliance upon 
imported water sources, WVWD investigated 
the develop additional assets in the Bunker Hill 
Groundwater Subbasin of the Upper Santa Ana 
Valley Groundwater Basin that underlies the San 
Bernardino Valley. The Bunker Hill Groundwater 
Subbasin contains some of the most productive and 
prolific groundwater aquifers within the Upper Santa 
Ana Groundwater Basin. However, groundwater 
contamination and over-pumping are of concern. 
To drill and construct new groundwater wells that 
maximize production potential while meeting 
water quality objectives, WVWD commissioned 
a comprehensive well site evaluation to identify 
the most advantageous locations in the Bunker 
Hill Subbasin. Geoscience was retained to prepare 
Phase 1 of a well site evaluation to identify the 
viable candidate locations for future groundwater 
extraction. The purpose of the Phase 1 site evaluation 
report was to conduct an initial assessment and 
evaluate and rank each potential well site. Each site 
was evaluated based specific factors to determine 
its suitability for the installation of a municipal 
groundwater supply well. 
Before starting the well site evaluation and ranking 
process, our team developed a preliminary list of 36 
parcels in coordination with WVWD utilizing GIS-
based software that fulfilled the initial criteria. Many 
of these parcels are located adjacent to each other and 
therefore were lumped together for consideration as 
one site. Based on this, the total number of parcels 
was reduced to nine potential sites for consideration 
for the future construction of new municipal 
groundwater supply wells. Each of the potential 
well sites were evaluated for its geohydrologic and 
engineering suitability as a construction site for 
new municipal groundwater supply well(s). The 
geohydrologic evaluation relied previous work 
performed by Geoscience in the Bunker Hill 
Subbasin and other published physical and chemical 
data, whereas the engineering evaluation primarily 
relied on aerial and street-level photography. In 
particular, this evaluation included an assessment of 
the following criteria:
Geohydrology:

 6  Production potential
 6  Interference with existing production wells

 6  Groundwater quality
 6  Proximity to open-case sites of environmental 

concern
 6  Proximity to EPA remediation wells

Engineering:
 6  Site access and constraints
 6  Construction impacts
 6  Proximity to main water transmission line
 6 Access to storm drains or other discharge points
 6 Access to construction water source
 6 Site security
 6 Proximity to sanitary hazards and setbacks
 6 Current land use and ownership
 6 Land for two wells

Each of the nine potential well sites were then 
ranked in order of favorability, with one being the 
most favorable, according to Geoscience’s proven 
methodology. All fourteen criteria were assessed for 
each site using a three-point scale, where one point 
indicates the least suitable site and a score of three 
points indicates the most suitable. Weighting factors 
were then assigned to each criterion, with factor 
values ranging from one (1) to five (5) indicates the 
greatest significance). The products of each site’s 
criteria scores and the corresponding weights were 
added to obtain the total weighted scores and site 
rankings.
Based on our evaluation, Potential Well Site 9 
was ranked the highest and was considered the 
best suited location for one or two new municipal 
production wells. According to the results of the 
siting study, a well constructed on this property 
could potentially produce the desired groundwater 
volumes and was expected to have favorable water 
quality while meeting production expectations. The 
good production potential of this site, combined 
with its excellent access, availability of construction 
water, and sufficient area to drill two wells, makes 
it a good site to construct new groundwater well(s). 
Three other potential well sites were also presented as 
Alternative Sites.

 

Client: West Valley Water District
Project Date: 2019 - 2020

Scope of Services:
• Well Siting Evaluation
• GIS-based analysis

 
Project Data

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 200



gssiwater.com 25

The Chino Basin Desalter Authority (CDA) 
selected a team including Geoscience to 
provide design, construction management, 
and inspection services for three groundwater 
extraction wells in the southern portion of the 
Chino Basin, where complex water-bearing zones 
consisting of interlayered sands, gravels, silts, and 
clays comprise the aquifer system. 
Geoscience provided technical specifications 
and design for the drilling, construction, 
development, and testing of all three ground 
water extraction wells, referred to as CDA Well 
Nos., II-10, II-11, and II-12 located in the Cities 
of Eastvale and Ontario, California. All three 
wells provided feed water to the CDA Desalter 
II plant, with II-12 also serving as a mitigation 
measure for the cleanup of the South Archibald 
TCE plume. This work required additional effort 
in coordination with the Santa Ana Regional 
Water Quality Control Board who oversaw the 
cleanup of the plume.
Once the design was completed, Geoscience 
provided construction management and field 
supervision during drilling and construction of 
all three wells. The wells were drilled using the 
fluid reverse circulation rotary drilling method. 
Construction each well included pilot borehole 
drilling, isolated aquifer zone testing, borehole 

reaming, well construction, well development, 
and pump testing.
Following completion II-12, the well was 
modified so that production from only the 
upper screened interval could be possible. 
The purpose of this was to produce only 
contaminated groundwater containing TCE, 
thereby maximizing the cleanup effort, but 
maintaining access to the lower, clean water 
once the contaminant plume was mitigated. This 
modification was accomplished by backfilling 
the lower casing and screened interval of the well 
with gravel and placing a thin cement cap above 
that. The modification was performed to allow 
for the easy removal of the backfill material at 
a future date when production from the lower 
screened interval is desired.

cda extraction Well noS. ii-10, ii-
11, and ii-12 
Riverside, CA

Pilot borehole drilling for CDA-II-12

Zone testing at CDA-II-11

Client: Chino Basin Desalter Authority
Project Date: 2014 - 2021

Scope of Services:
• Well Siting & Preliminary Design Report
• Well Development & Construction
• Well CM & Inspection 
• Point Source Contamination

 
Project Data

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 201



gssiwater.com 26

As part of their near-term water supply program, 
Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District 
(EVMWD) wished to develop groundwater 
resources in the Lee Lake Groundwater Basin to 
meet the anticipated increase in potable water 
demand due to rapid population growth over 
the next 20 years. Their intent was to optimize 
their groundwater resources in the next two 
to three years in order to increase the potable 
supply while also reducing their dependence 
on imported water sources. One of the projects 
for this program was the drilling and testing of 
suitable sites previously identified for two new 
groundwater production wells. 
After identifying a suitable location for the 
drilling and testing of two new groundwater 
production wells, a test borehole was drilled to 
verify the site suitability by use of the air rotary 
casing hammer (ARCH) drilling method. The 
ARCH drilling method was selected due to 
the poorly consolidated coarse-grained alluvial 
material in which the borehole was drilled. 
This method was also selected for its ability 
to provide representative formation samples 
critical to the investigation, as well as reliable 
groundwater elevation data. Once the total 
depth of the borehole was achieved, drilling 
mud was introduced to the borehole, the casing 
was removed, and a suit of geophysical log was 
performed. Based on the data obtained from the 
investigation, a very accurate preliminary design 
of the production wells was developed.
This test borehole was one component of a 
much larger, multi-phase project throughout 
the EVMWD service area. Geoscience was 
responsible for the development of a work plan 
for the test drilling, field inspection during 
drilling and testing, and the development of 

the preliminary well designs for the municipal 
groundwater supply wells. 
Geoscience was then selected to provide 
final design, construction management, 
and observation support for the two new 
groundwater production wells – referred to as 
EVMWD Lee Lake Well Nos. 1 and 2. Once 
the final design was completed, Geoscience staff 
provided bid support, construction management 
and observation to drill the initial borehole and 
complete isolated aquifer zone testing. Based 
on the results of the zone testing, we completed 
the final design and observed well completion 
including well development by airlifting and 
swabbing, aquifer testing, and final down-hole 
video inspection. 

elSinore Valley municipal Water 
diStrict, exploratory drilling and Final 
Well deSign and conStruction in the 
lee lake groundWater BaSin - lee lake 
Well noS. 1 and 2 
Riverside County, CA

Client: Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District
Project Date: July 2018 - February 2022

Scope of Services:
• Well Siting
• Well Preliminary Design Reports
• New Well Design and Construction
• Quality Assurance/Quality Control
• Project Administration

 
Project Data

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 202



gssiwater.com 27

city oF lakeWood, Well no. 28
Lakewood, CA
The City of Lakewood relies on groundwater 
for its municipal water supply and currently 
uses a network of 10 active production wells. To 
improve supply reliability and meet increased 
demand in the future, the City installed a new 
well (Well No. 28) at the City public works yard. 
Our team previously completed several wells 
adjacent to Well No. 28, and helped the City 
assess the suitability of the selected site. 
Geoscience was then selected to develop a 
Preliminary Design Report (PDR), provide 
final design, and construction management and 
observation support. 
To develop the PDR, we reviewed existing 
data, assessed contaminant sources, developed 
a preliminary design, reviewed construction 
constraints including site layouts, and developed 
an initial cost estimate. Because server 
production wells were within close vicinity of 
the project area, we assess well drawdown and 
interference on the proposed well. 

Once the PDR was completed, we provided bid 
support and provided construction management 
and observation to drill the initial borehole 
and complete isolated aquifer zone testing. The 
zone testing helped identify well screen depths 
to maximize groundwater quality since the area 
had historically high levels of arsenic. Also, 
the project site was typical of the Los Angeles 
Basin and had extremely fine-grained sediments, 
making filter pack and well screen design critical 
to reduce sand production and turbidity. Based 
on the results of the zone testing, we completed 
the final design and observed well completion 
including well development by airlifting and 
swabbing, aquifer testing, and final down-hole 
video inspection. 
Once completed, the well successfully produced 
2,500 gallons per minute (gpm). The zone 
testing efforts were extremely successful and 
helped the well meet and exceed water quality 
standards in an area with known water quality 
issues. 

Installation of conductor.

Client: City of Lakewood
Project Date: 2019 - 2020

Scope of Services:
• Well Siting
• Well Preliminary Design Reports
• New Well Design and Construction
• Quality Assurance/Quality Control
• Project Administration

 
Project Data

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 203



gssiwater.com 28

The City of Torrance selected a team including 
Geoscience to provide design-build services for 
Wells No. 10 and 11 in the North Torrance 
Wellfield (NTWF), as well as demolition services 
for Well No. 6. Geoscience previously provided 
design and construction services for NTWF Well 
No. 9, which replaced Well No. 6 in 2009.  
We provided technical specifications and 
preliminary design for review and approval 
by the City. Once the design was completed, 
we provided construction management and 
observation to drill the initial boreholes and 
complete isolated aquifer zone testing. The zone 
testing helped identify well screen depths to 
maximize groundwater quality since the project 
site was typical of the Los Angeles Basin and had 
extremely fine-grained sediments, making filter 
pack and well screen design critical to reduce 
sand production and turbidity. NTWF Well 
No. 10 construction included the installation 
of the conductor casing and drilling and testing 
the pilot borehole conducted in 2009. The Well 
No. 10 pilot borehole was backfilled in 2009 
pending the decision made by City of Torrance 
to ream the borehole and complete the Well No. 
10 construction during 2019 to 2020. NTWF 
Well No. 11 construction included pilot borehole 
drilling, isolated aquifer zone testing, borehole 
reaming, well construction, well development, 
and pump testing. Our services on the project 
also included:

 6 Obtaining and reviewing background 
geohydrologic data and preparing a 
preliminary design.

 6 Coordination with Division of Drinking 
Water and LA County health for variance 
requests.  

 6 Providing pump design recommendations, 
including short- and long-term drawdown, 
recommended discharge rate, and pump 
setting.

The design maximum total production from the 
well field (NTWF Well Nos. 9, 10, and 11) is 
9,000 gallons per minute (gpm) which will allow 
the City to fully utilize its existing water right 
and provide surplus capacity to allow for well 
maintenance or local production in the event 
of an emergency that interrupts groundwater 
imports. 

city oF torrance, north torrance WellField Well noS. 10 and 11
Torrance, CA

Client: City of Torrance
Project Date: 2019 - 2021

Scope of Services:
• Well Siting
• Well Preliminary Design Reports
• New Well Design and Construction
• Well Demolition
• Quality Assurance/Quality Control
• Project Administration

 
Project Data

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 204



gssiwater.com

3.4.b

Packet Pg. 205



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: October 12, 2022 

TO: Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On July 12, 2022, Carson BBC Logistics Center, LLC (“Developer”) submitted a request for West 
Valley Water District (“District”) to review a Water Supply Assessment (“WSA”) for its proposed 
project in the unincorporated San Bernardino County area, known as Pepper 210 Commerce Center 
(“Project”). The Project proposes a development that consists of a 101.3-acre site located north of 
Highland Avenue, at the terminus of Pepper Ave as shown in Exhibit A. The development plan 
includes two structures: a warehouse, distribution, and logistics building totaling 1,255,354 sf and a 
single-story office building totaling 2,100 sf.  The project will require water for consumptive and 
sanitary purposes to support employees at the facility, provide fire protection and for irrigation of 
landscaped areas. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The WSA is a necessary requirement for compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”), furthermore, the California Water Code (Code) requires projects as defined in Section 
10912 of the Code, to include a WSA in their environmental impact report.  The WSA evaluates 
whether the total water supplies available during normal, single-dry, and multiple-dry water years 
projected within the latest adopted Urban Water Management Plan (“UWMP”) will meet the 
anticipated water demand associated with the particular project, in addition to the existing and 
planned future uses.  
 
A “Project” in the Water Code means any of the following: 
 

1) A proposed residential development of more than 500 dwelling units. 
2) A proposed shopping center or business establishment employing more than 1,000 persons 

or having more than 500,000 square feet of floor space. 
3) A proposed commercial office building employing more than 1,000 persons or having more 

than 250,000 square feet of floor space. 
4) A proposed hotel or motel, or both, having more than 500 rooms. 
5) A proposed industrial, manufacturing, or processing plant, or industrial park planned to 

house more than 1,000 persons, occupying more than 40 acres of land, or having more than 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT: PEPPER 210 COMMERCE CENTER 

3.5

Packet Pg. 206



650,000 square feet of floor area. 
6) A mixed-use project that includes one or more of the projects specified in this subdivision. 
7) A project that would demand an amount of water equivalent to, or greater than, the amount 

of water required by a 500 dwelling unit project. 
 
This development is considered a project as defined by the Water Code per item number 5 above.  
The Code states that the District shall determine whether the projected water demand associated 
with a proposed project was included as part of the most recently adopted UWMP, and if so, the 
District may incorporate the requested information from the UWMP in preparing the elements of 
the WSA. 
 
UWMPs are prepared to support the District’s long-term resource planning, and to ensure that 
adequate water supplies are available to meet existing and future water demands. The plans must be 
prepared every 5 years and submitted to the Department of Water Resources. The latest UWMP 
adopted by the District was the 2020 Upper Santa Ana River Watershed Integrated Regional Urban 
Water Management Plan (“IRUWMP”). The demand projections for water usage rates per acre were 
based on land use designations from City and County General Plans.   
 
Attached as Exhibit B for your review is a WSA prepared by the Developer’s consultant, Water 
Systems Consulting, Inc. The net water demand for this Project is anticipated to be 119-acre feet per 
year.  The anticipated water demand associated with the Project has been accounted for in the most 
recently adopted IRUWMP and information from that plan was utilized in the preparation of this 
WSA. 
 
As demonstrated in the 2020 IRUWMP, the water supply available in 20 years in a normal, single dry 
and multiple dry water years is sufficient to meet the projected net demand associated with the 
project 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
No fiscal impact at this time. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve the Water Supply Assessment for 
Pepper Ave 210 and authorize the Acting General Manager to execute all related documents. 
 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 

3.5

Packet Pg. 207



DG:ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Aerial Map 

2. Exhibit B - Water Supply Assessment for Pepper 210 Commerce Center 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
10/12/22 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee    

3.5

Packet Pg. 208



 
EXHIBIT A 

 
  

3.5.a

Packet Pg. 209



Ex
hi

bi
t A

Pe
pp

er
21

0
Co

m
m

er
ce

Ce
nt

er

15
 

FR
W

Y
21

0
FR

W
Y

10
FR

W
Y

21
5

FR
W

Y

PR
O

JE
CT

 
AR

EA

3.5.a

Packet Pg. 210



EXHIBIT B 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 211



  

Draft Pepper 210 

Commerce Center 

Water Supply 

Assessment 
20080 North Highland Ave 

 

 SEPTEMBER 2022 PREPARED FOR WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  

 

  

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 212



 

 
 

Draft Pepper 210 
Commerce Center Water 
Supply Assessment 
20080 North Highland Ave 

SEPTEMBER 2022 

 

Prepared for 

 

 

West Valley Water District Board Approved on Date 
TBD 
 
Prepared Under the Responsible Charge of: 
Kirsten Plonka, PE 
California R.C.E. No. 70746, Expires 6/30/2023 

  

To be stamped upon finalization 

Prepared by Water Systems Consulting, Inc 

 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 213



 Table of Contents   

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  i i  
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Table of Contents ........................................................................................................................ ii 

List of Figures ............................................................................................................................ iv 

List of Tables .............................................................................................................................. v 

Acroynms & Abbreviations ......................................................................................................... vi 

1.0 Introduction and Purpose ............................................................................................. 1-1 

1.1 Legislation ................................................................................................................ 1-2 

1.2 Definitions ................................................................................................................. 1-3 

2.0 Public Water System Overview .................................................................................... 2-1 

2.1 Climate ..................................................................................................................... 2-3 

2.2 Service Area Population ........................................................................................... 2-3 

2.2.1 Other Demographic Factors ............................................................................... 2-4 

3.0 Project Description ....................................................................................................... 3-1 

4.0 Project Water Demand ................................................................................................. 4-1 

4.1 Project Water Demand Projections ........................................................................... 4-2 

5.0 Water Supply Analysis .................................................................................................. 5-1 

5.1 Water Sources .......................................................................................................... 5-2 

5.1.1 Purchased or Imported Water ............................................................................ 5-2 

5.1.2 Groundwater ...................................................................................................... 5-2 

5.1.3 Surface Water .................................................................................................... 5-7 

5.2 Transfer Opportunities .............................................................................................. 5-7 

5.3 Future Water Projects ............................................................................................... 5-7 

5.4 Recycled Water ........................................................................................................ 5-8 

5.5 Water Supply Summary ............................................................................................ 5-8 

5.6 Water Supply Reliability .......................................................................................... 5-11 

6.0 Water Supply and Demand Analysis ............................................................................ 6-1 

7.0 Determination of Water Supply Sufficiency ................................................................... 7-1 

7.1 Conditions of Approval .............................................................................................. 7-2 

References ........................................................................................................................ REF-1 

Appendix A Lytle Creek Judgment & Surface Water Purchase Agreement .......................... A 

Appendix B Western Judgment ............................................................................................ B 

Appendix C Rialto Basin Decree ........................................................................................... C 

Appendix D Chino Basin Watermaster Judgment ................................................................. D 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 214



 Table of Contents   

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  i i i  
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

Appendix E Baseline Feeder Agreement .............................................................................. E 

 

  

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 215



 L ist  of F igures   

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  iv  
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

LIST OF FIGURES 

Figure 2-1. WVWD Service Area ............................................................................................. 2-2 

Figure 2-2. Historical, Current and Projected Population Trends ............................................. 2-4 

Figure 3-1. Project Site Plan ................................................................................................... 3-2 

Figure 3-2. Project Location .................................................................................................... 3-3 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 216



 L ist  of Tables   

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  v  
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

LIST OF TABLES 

Table 2-1. Historical Temperature, Rainfall and Reference Evapotranspiration (ETo) Data .... 2-3 

Table 2-2. Historical, Current and Projected Population .......................................................... 2-4 

Table 4-1. Project Demand, AFY ............................................................................................ 4-2 

Table 4-2. Net Project Demand, AFY ...................................................................................... 4-2 

Table 4-3. 2020 IRUWMP Projected Demand for Industrial Customers with the Addition of Net 

Project Demand ...................................................................................................................... 4-3 

Table 5-1. Historical Groundwater Production, AFY ................................................................ 5-6 

Table 5-2. Water Supplies – Historical, AFY ........................................................................... 5-9 

Table 5-3  Current and Projected Supplies, AFY ................................................................... 5-10 

Table 6-1. Normal Year Supply and Demand Comparison, AFY ............................................. 6-2 

Table 6-2. Single Dry Year Supply and Demand Comparison, AFY ........................................ 6-2 

Table 6-3. Multiple Dry Year Supply and Demand Comparison, AFY ...................................... 6-3 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 217



 Acroynms & Abbrev iat ions   

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  v i  
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

ACROYNMS & ABBREVIATIONS 

AFY Acre-feet per year  

CA California 

CEQA California Environmental Qual ity Act  

CIMIS California Irr igat ion Management Information System 

CWC California Water Code 

DWR Department of Water Resources  

ETo Evapotranspirat ion  

GC Groundwater Council  

GIS Geographic Informat ion Systems  

IRUWMP Integrated Regional Urban Water Management Plan  

MG Mil l ion Gallons  

MGD Mil l ion Gallons per Day 

MSL Mean Sea Level  

SAR Santa Ana River  

SB Senate Bil l  

SBB San Bernardino Basin 

SWP State Water Project  

WFF Water Fi ltrat ion Faci l i ty  

WFMP Water Faci l i t ies Master Plan  

WSA Water Supply Assessment  

WSC Water Systems Consult ing, Inc.  

WVWD West Val ley Water Distr ict  

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 218



 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  1-1 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

 

WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT 

1.0 Introduction and Purpose 

This Water Supply Assessment (WSA) was prepared on behalf 

of Carson Companies for West Valley Water District (WVWD) 

by Water Systems Consulting, Inc. (WSC) to satisfy the 

requirements of California Water Code (CWC) Section 10910 

(Senate Bill 610) for the Pepper 210 Commerce Center 

(Project). The Project lies within unincorporated area of the 

County of San Bernardino (County).  

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 219



Section 1.0 Introduction and Purpose 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  1-2 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

As required by Senate Bill 610 (SB 610), WVWD is responsible for assessing whether the total 

projected water supplies available during average, single dry, and multiple dry water years 

during a 20-year projection will meet the projected water demand for the Project, in addition to 

WVWD’s existing and planned future uses. A water supplier’s Urban Water Management Plan 

(UMWP) serves as a foundational document for a WSA. The water demands for the Project 

area were not explicitly included in the projections made in the Upper Santa Ana River 

Watershed 2020 Integrated Regional Urban Water Management Plan (2020 IRUWMP) (Water 

Systems Consulting, Inc. and Woodard & Curran, June 2021), as submitted to the California 

Department of Water Resources (DWR) in June 2021. Under this WSA, updated demands for 

this Project are provided and summarized in Section 4.0. Additional information from other 

sources is also incorporated into this WSA to document supplies from all sources, including 

groundwater and purchased water. Documentation includes identifying and quantifying water 

rights, contracts, and/or entitlements to the supply. WVWD must provide the results of the 

assessment to the County, as the Lead Agency, for inclusion in the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) document for the Project. This WSA includes the following: 

➢ Overview of WVWD’s water system (Section 2.0) 

➢ Description of the Project and proposed water demand.  Additional information on 

WVWD’s current and projected water demands within the service area (Section 3.0 & 

4.0) 

➢ Information on WVWD’s current and projected water supplies (Section 5.0) 

➢ Discussion of WVWD’s water service area water supply reliability and comparison of the 

water supplies and water demands for average, single dry, and multiple dry years 

(Section 6.0) 

➢ Determination of WVWD’s water service area water supply sufficiency (Section 7.0) 

 

1.1 Legislation 

WVWD has determined that the Project is subject to review under CEQA (Public Resources 

Code, Section 21000 et seq.), and the state CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, 

Section 15000 et. seq.) WVWD has determined that the Project is a “project” as defined in CWC 

10912 and has determined that a WSA is required for the Project. 

SB 610 amended the Public Resources Code, effective January 1, 2002, to incorporate CWC 

requirements for certain types of development projects to improve the link between information 

on water supply availability and certain land use decisions made by cities and counties. SB 610 

seeks to promote more collaborative planning between local water suppliers, cities and counties 

by requiring detailed information regarding water availability to be provided to the city and 

county decision-makers prior to approval of specified large development projects.  

Under SB 610, water suppliers must prepare WSAs for projects meeting certain project size 

criteria and deliver them to local governments for inclusion in any environmental documentation. 

The Project requires a WSA because it includes a proposed industrial, manufacturing, or 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 220



Section 1.0 Introduction and Purpose 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  1-3 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

processing plant, or industrial park planned to house more than 1,000 persons, occupying more 

than 40 acres of land, or having more than 650,000 square feet of floor area.  The Project 

exceeds the criteria for land coverage and building square footage.  

1.2 Definitions 

For the purposes of this WSA, the following defined terms are used: 

➢ Groundwater Production: The amount of water produced from the Bunker Hill, Lytle, 

Rialto-Colton, Riverside North, and Chino Basins. These groundwater supply sources 

enter WVWD’s distribution system based on metered flows at each well. 

➢ Surface Water: The amount of water produced from Lytle Creek. 

➢ Purchased Water: The amount of water imported from the State Water Project (SWP) 

through San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (Valley District) and put into the 

distribution system based on metered flows at the Lytle Turnout off the San Gabriel 

Feeder Pipeline.   

➢ Consumption: The amount of billed metered water consumed by customers. The 

Project site includes one existing customer, Vulcan Materials.  

➢ Demand: The amount of water distributed through the entire water system, which is the 

sum of groundwater production and purchased water. Demand includes non-revenue 

water, which is equal to the difference between water put into the distribution system and 

consumption.  

➢ Non-revenue water: Unmetered water use and losses from the distribution system due 

to leaks, unauthorized connections, agency use (e.g., system flushing), theft, or other 

unmetered usage.  

➢ Water demand factor: The calculated amount of water demand per unit (e.g., acre, sqft, 

dwelling unit, etc.) of a specific type of use (e.g., land use, development type, business 

type, etc.). 

 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 221



 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  2-1 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT 

2.0 Public Water System Overview 

WVWD is located in the southwest region of San Bernardino 

County, California, and serves the Cities of Rialto, Fontana, 

Colton, and Jurupa Valley, and unincorporated areas of San 

Bernardino County. Figure 2-1 shows WVWD’s service area.  

The Project is located entirely within WVWD’s northern service 

area section. WVWD’s total water service area encompasses 

approximately 31 square miles and is located approximately 

50 miles east of Los Angeles. WVWD is bounded by the City of 

Fontana to the west, the City of San Bernardino to the east, the 

U.S. Forest Service boundary to the north, and the County of 

Riverside to the south.  

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 222



Section 2.0 Public Water System Overview 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  2-2 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

 

Figure 2-1. WVWD Service Area 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 223



Section 2.0 Public Water System Overview 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  2-3 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

2.1 Climate 

WVWD’s climate is characterized by hot, dry summers and cool winters with intermittent 

precipitation. Table 2-1 presents average climate data for the service area, including 

temperature, rainfall, and reference evapotranspiration (ETo). As shown in Table 2-1, the 

warmest months of the year are July and August, with an average temperature of 80 degrees 

Fahrenheit (°F), while the coldest month of the year is December with an average temperature 

of 53.6°F. 

The monthly average precipitation at WVWD is about 1.2 inches; annual average precipitation is 

estimated as 14.3 inches. As shown in Table 2-1, the majority of the rainfall occurs in the 

months of December through March.  January and February are the wettest months with an 

average rainfall of approximately 2.3 inches.  

Table 2-1. Historical Temperature, Rainfall and Reference Evapotranspiration (ETo) Data 

 

Month Average Temperature 
(°F) 

Average Precipitation 
(in.) 

Average Standard ETo 
(in.) 

January 53.9 2.58 2.22 

February 54.1 2.12 2.78 

March 58.1 2.09 4.12 

April 64.5 1.32 5.54 

May 67.0 0.69 5.99 

June 74.7 0.32 7.21 

July 80.0 0.69 8.10 

August 80.1 0.53 7.44 

September 77.0 0.34 5.77 

October 69.2 0.45 4.42 

November 61.5 1.06 2.91 

December 53.6 2.09 2.10 

Note: 
Data provided from the California Irrigation Management Information System (CIMIS) weather station 251 in 
Highland, CA; average values provided based on data from 2017 through 2021. 

 

2.2 Service Area Population  

The current and projected population for WVWD’s water service area is shown in Table 2-2. The 

projected population was prepared as part of the 2020 IRUWMP.  2020 population was 

determined using the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) Geographic Information 

Systems (GIS)-based tool (DWR Tool) to estimate the population within WVWD’s service area 

using census data and the number of service connections.  Future population was projected 

based on the 2020 WVWD Water Facilities Master Plan (WFMP).  Based on various growth 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 224



Section 2.0 Public Water System Overview 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  2-4 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

rates identified in the WFMP, it was estimated that population between 2020 and 2025 would 

grow at 2.84%, then reduce to an annual growth rate of 1.5% from 2025 through 2045 (AKEL 

Engineering Group, Inc., July 2020).     

Table 2-2. Historical, Current and Projected Population 

  2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

WVWD Water Service Area 

Population 
89,101 102,490 110,410 118,943 128,136 138,039 

Note: Population projection developed in the 2020 IRUWMP (Water Systems Consulting, Inc. and Woodard & Curran, June 

2021). 

 

 

Figure 2-2. Historical, Current and Projected Population Trends  

2.2.1 Other Demographic Factors 

WVWD provides service to a variety of customers, including single family, multi-family, 

commercial, industrial, institutional, landscape irrigation, hydrant, golf course, fire service, and 

agricultural irrigation accounts.  WVWD also provides wholesale water through an 

interconnection with Marygold Mutual Water Company.  Based on information gathered in the 

2020 IRUWMP, approximately 44 percent of households within WVWD are considered very-low 

and low-income households  (Water Systems Consulting, Inc. and Woodard & Curran, June 

2021). 

89,101 

102,490 

110,410 

118,943 

128,136 

138,039 

 -

 20,000

 40,000

 60,000

 80,000

 100,000

 120,000

 140,000

 160,000

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

P
o
p
ul

a
ti
o
n

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 225



 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  3-1 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT 

3.0 Project Description 

The Project will be constructed at 20080 North Highland 

Avenue within unincorporated San Bernardino County and will 

replace the existing Vulcan Materials aggregate processing 

plant, asphalt plant and concrete batch plant.  The 101.3 acre 

Project site is located on the north side of the CA-210 freeway, 

west of the Cajon Wash, and east of N Oakdale Avenue.  The 

proposed Project is comprised of two structures: a warehouse, 

distribution, and logistics building, totaling 1,255,354 square 

feet (sf) and a single-story office building totaling 2,100 sf.   

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 226



Section 3.0 Project Description 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  3-2 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

The warehouse, distribution, and logistics building (1,255,354 sf) will include 25,000 sf of 

mezzanine office space.  The warehouse will feature 42-ft minimum clear heights and may 

include additional mezzanine warehouse storage space, not currently included in the previously 

referenced square footage.  The building features also include abundant car and tractor-trailer 

parking stalls.  The single-story office building will include a lounge area and restrooms, totaling 

2,100 sf.  The proposed Project facilities are illustrated in Figure 3-1.  The Project is anticipated 

to be completed by 2027. 

The Project will require water for consumptive and sanitary purposes to support employees at 

the facility and for irrigation of landscaped areas. The Project site covers an area that is 

currently occupied by Vulcan Materials Company.  Vulcan Materials Company has planned to 

cease operations, reclaim the site in accordance with their reclamation plan, and end its lease 

prior to redevelopment for this Project. 

 

Figure 3-1. Project Site Plan 

The Project site lies within pressure zone 4 of the northern section of WVWD’s water service 

area, a public water system as defined in CWC Section 10912. Figure 3-2 depicts the Project 

location with respect to WVWD’s service area boundaries. 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 227



Section 3.0 Project Description 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  3-3 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

 

Figure 3-2. Project Location

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 228



 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  4-1 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT 

4.0 Project Water Demand 

The 2020 IRUWMP summarized existing demands and 

projected future demands based on estimated number of future 

water connections and associated demand factors.  Future 

connections were based on projected population growth 

identified in the WFMP.  To estimate Project demand, land use-

based water demand factors from the 2020 WFMP were 

applied.  The results of the demand analysis are discussed in 

this section.  

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 229



Section 4.0 Project Water Demand 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  4-2 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

4.1 Project Water Demand Projections 

Water demand factors were applied to projected development units (acres) to estimate Project 

demands.  These factors were selected from the 2020 WFMP and applied to the Project land 

use.  The County designated the Project’s land use zoning as Regional Industrial (IR), which 

corresponds to the 2020 WFMP’s Heavy Industrial water demand factor category. The 

estimated water demand factor applied is provided in Table 4-1. 

Based on the demand factors developed in the WFMP, the demand for this Project is estimated 

at 174 acre-feet per year (AFY), as shown in Table 4-1.  Historical usage for the existing 

customer at the Project site was 55 AFY; therefore, the net additional Project demand is 119 

AFY, as shown in Table 4-2 (Project demand less existing customer use).  If the actual land use 

specified for this Project changes, the associated water demand may change and would need to 

be reevaluated. 

Table 4-1. Project Demand, AFY 

Use Area (Acres) 
WFMP Demand Factor 

(gpd/acre) 
Demand, AFY 

Warehouse 101.3 1,530 174 

Note: Demand Factor provided in the 2020 WFMP Table 3-4 (AKEL Engineering Group, Inc., July 2020). 

 

Table 4-2. Net Project Demand, AFY 

 Demand, AFY 

Existing Customer Use 55 

Project Demand 174 

Net Project Demand 119 

Note: Existing customer use based on historical billing records for 2020. 

 

The Project is anticipated to be completed as early as the end of 2027 but may not be 

completed until later pending negotiations with the existing customer on the Project site. For the 

purposes of this WSA, it is assumed the Project will be developed by 2030. For this reason, the 

Project demand was compared to the demands projected within the 2020 IRUWMP starting in 

2030.  The 2020 IRUWMP reports projections every five years (2025, 2030, 2035, 2040, and 

2045). 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 230



Section 4.0 Project Water Demand 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  4-3 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

The demand for this Project was compared to existing and future projected industrial demand 

summarized in the 2020 IRUWMP and summarized in Table 4-3 below.  The IRUWMP 

projected a 142 AFY increase of industrial demands from 2020 to 2030, which is greater than 

the Project’s net demand. However, the Project demand was not explicitly captured in the 

IRUWMP’s demand projection methodology, primarily because the Project requires a land use 

zoning change. Net Project demand was added to the demands from the 2020 IRUWMP as 

shown in Table 4-3 below.   

 

Table 4-3. 2020 IRUWMP Projected Demand for Industrial Customers with the Addition of Net Project 
Demand 

Customer 

Class 

 Demand, AFY 

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

Industrial 623 717 765 813 861 909 

Additional 

Net Project 

Demand 

- - 119 119 119 119 

Total 

Industrial 

Demand 

623 717 884 932 980 1,028 

Industrial demand for 2020 provided in Table 10-3 and industrial demand for 2025 – 2045 provided in Table 

10-5 of the 2020 IRUWMP. 

 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 231



 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  5-1 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT 

5.0 Water Supply Analysis 

WVWD utilizes three primary sources for drinking water 

supply: local surface water, groundwater, and imported water 

from the State Water Project (SWP).  Groundwater is the 

primary source of supply.  This section describes each water 

source in more detail.    

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 232



Section 5.0 Water Supply Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  5-2 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

5.1 Water Sources 

WVWD’s distribution system is divided into eight pressure zones and utilizes 25 reservoirs for a 

total storage capacity of 72.6 million gallons (MG).  WVWD also operates a 14.4 MGD water 

filtration facility.  The following sections describe each water source in more detail.  Additional 

details on each water supply source are provided in the 2020 IRUWMP. 

5.1.1 Purchased or Imported Water 

WVWD purchases SWP water from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (Valley 

District) through the Lytle Turnout off the San Gabriel Pipeline Feeder.  Metering and 

transmission facilities are sized to enable WVWD to purchase and treat up to 20 million gallons 

per day (MGD), approximately 23,000 AFY, at final treatment plant expansion.  SWP water is 

treated at WVWD’s Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility (WFF) and used for potable 

supply.  WVWD is investigating the use of SWP water for groundwater recharge in the Lytle 

Creek Basin.  In 2006, the WFF was expanded to increase production capacity to 14.4 MGD.  In 

2020, WVWD began the design of a 7.2 MGD expansion of the WFF to increase capacity to 

21.6 MGD. WVWD has utilized SWP water through the Lytle Turnout since 1999. 

5.1.2 Groundwater 

WVWD draws the majority of its supply from its wells from five regional groundwater basins: 

Bunker Hill and Lytle Creek (which are both part of the San Bernardino Basin or SBB), Rialto-

Colton, Riverside North, and Chino Basins.  All five basins have been adjudicated and are 

managed for long term sustainability.  Details on adjudication and management are provided in 

the 2020 IRUWMP. 

WVWD’s historical groundwater production for 2016 through 2021 is shown in Table 5-1. 

5.1.2.1 Bunker Hill and Lytle Creek (Part of SBB) 

The San Bernardino Basin (SBB), labeled as the “San Bernardino Basin Area” in the Western-

San Bernardino Judgment (Western Judgment), was defined by, and adjudicated in gross, by 

the Western Judgment in 1969.  The SBB has a surface area of approximately 141 square miles 

and lies between the San Andreas and San Jacinto faults.  The basin is bordered on the 

northwest by the San Gabriel Mountains and Cucamonga fault zone; on the northeast by the 

San Bernardino Mountains and San Andreas fault zone; on the east by the Banning fault and 

Crafton Hills; and on the south by a low, east-facing escarpment of the San Jacinto fault and the 

San Timoteo Badlands.  Alluvial fans extend from the base of the mountains and hills that 

surround the valley and coalesce to form a broad, sloping alluvial plain in the central part of the 

valley.  The SBB encompasses the Bunker Hill sub basin (DWR Number 8.02-06) defined by 

DWR and also includes a small portion of the Yucaipa Basin (8-02.07) and the Rialto-Colton 

Basin (8-02.04) as defined by DWR.   

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 233



Section 5.0 Water Supply Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  5-3 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

The Western Judgment established the natural safe yield of the SBB to be a total of 232,100 

AFY for all extractions, including surface water diversions and groundwater pumping.  The 

Western Judgment is provided in Appendix B.  Surface water is diverted from Mill Creek, Lytle 

Creek, and the Santa Ana River (SAR).   

The Western Judgment allocates 64,862 AFY of the safe yield, which equates to 27.95 percent, 

to the Plaintiffs.  The Plaintiffs include the City of Riverside (the successor to the Riverside 

Water Company and the Gage Canal Company), Riverside Highland Water Company, Meeks & 

Daley Water Company, and Regents of the University of California.  The Riverside County 

agencies may not exceed their allocation unless they participate in “New Conservation” 

(explained below).  

The Non-Plaintiffs’ (agencies within San Bernardino County, including WVWD) rights were 

defined in the Judgment as 167,238 AFY, which equates to 72.05 percent of the safe yield.  San 

Bernardino agencies are allowed to extract more than 167,238 AFY from the SBB, as long as 

they import and recharge a like amount of water into the SBB. The Western-San Bernardino 

Watermaster provides an annual accounting of both the plaintiff and non-plaintiff extractions and 

a comparison to the safe yield.  The Western Judgement requires the non-plaintiffs to provide 

replenishment water whenever the cumulative extractions exceed the cumulative safe yield.  If 

the cumulative extractions are less than the cumulative safe yield, a “credit” is earned.  In years 

when cumulative extractions are greater than their allocation, a “debit” is taken.  To date, the 

cumulative extractions have been less than the cumulative safe yield since the Western 

Judgement was signed so that the non-plaintiffs have never been required to recharge the 

basin. 

Recharge is also required to offset the export of water outside the SBB in excess of the amount 

recorded during the base period (1959-1963).  Credits are earned for any new supplies such as 

stormwater capture.  As of the accounting performed for the 2020 Annual Western-San 

Bernardino Watermaster Report, the Non-Plaintiffs have 463,168 AF of net credit accumulated 

in the SBB and are, therefore, not required to recharge.  Although there is no recharge 

requirement under the Western Judgment, the Non-Plaintiffs have continued to recharge the 

SBB.  

WVWD, in a joint venture agreement with the City of Rialto, the Riverside Highland Water 

Company, and Valley District, constructed 25,000 feet of 48-inch transmission line known as the 

Baseline Feeder, which delivers Bunker Hill groundwater to WVWD.  Through this agreement, 

WVWD can receive up to 5,000 AFY of supply through this transmission line from Valley 

District.  WVWD has received water through the Baseline Feeder since 1998.   

5.1.2.2 Lytle Creek Sub Basin 

Lytle Creek Basin is part of the SBB, and it is not identified as a separate sub-basin in DWR 

Bulletin 118-2003; however, the sub basin is an integral part of the Upper Santa Ana Valley 

Groundwater Basin and a major recharge area for both the Bunker Hill and Rialto-Colton sub 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 234



Section 5.0 Water Supply Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  5-4 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

basins.  Historically, local agencies have recognized Lytle Creek sub basin as a distinct 

groundwater sub basin.  In the Western Judgment, the Bunker Hill and Lytle Creek sub basins 

are combined into the SBB.  However, the three separate water-bearing zones and intervening 

confining zones of the Bunker Hill sub basin are not observed in the Lytle Creek sub basin.  

Sediments within the Lytle Creek sub basin are, for the most part, highly permeable, and the 

aquifer has a high specific yield.  High permeability and specific yield tend to result in an aquifer 

that responds rapidly to changes in inflow (precipitation and streamflow) and outflow 

(groundwater pumping, streamflow, and subsurface outflow). 

Lytle Creek sub basin is adjoined on the west by the Rialto-Colton sub basin along the Lytle 

Creek fault, and on the east and southeast by the Bunker Hill sub basin along the Loma Linda 

fault and Barrier G.  The northwestern border of the sub basin is delineated by the San Gabriel 

Mountains, and runoff from the mountains flows south/southeast through Lytle and Cajon 

Creeks into the basin.  

Numerous groundwater barriers are present within Lytle Creek sub basin, resulting in six 

compartments within the sub basin.  Barriers A through D divide the northwestern portion of the 

sub basin into five sub-areas and the southeastern portion of the sub basin comprises the sixth 

sub-area.  Barrier F divides the northwestern sub-areas from the southeastern sub-area. 

Studies have shown that the groundwater barriers are less permeable with depth.  When 

groundwater levels are high during wet years, more leakage occurs across the barriers than 

when groundwater levels are lower (i.e., during dry years).  The amount of pumping in each 

sub-area, in large part, controls the movement of groundwater across the barrier within the older 

alluvium but not the younger alluvium. 

It is important to note that the water rights in Lytle Creek are set forth in long-standing court 

judgments governing the rights of the parties in that basin.  The Lytle Creek Basin was 

adjudicated under the 1924 Judgment No. 17,030 from the Superior Court of San Bernardino 

County (Lytle Creek Judgment) and is managed by the Lytle Creek Water Conservation 

Association, which is made up of the successors to the stipulated parties of the Lytle Creek 

Judgment. 

 

5.1.2.3 Rialto-Colton Basin 

The Rialto-Colton subbasin underlies a portion of the upper Santa Ana Valley in southwestern 

San Bernardino County and northwestern Riverside County.  This subbasin is about 10 miles 

long and varies in width from about 3.5 miles in the northwestern part to about 1.5 miles in the 

southeastern part.  This subbasin is bounded by the San Gabriel Mountains on the northwest, 

the San Jacinto fault on the northeast, the Badlands on the southeast, and the Rialto-Colton 

fault on the southwest.  The Santa Ana River cuts across the southeastern part of the basin.  

The basin generally drains to the southeast, toward the Santa Ana River.  Warm and Lytle 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 235



Section 5.0 Water Supply Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  5-5 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

Creeks join near the southeastern boundary of the basin and flow to meet the Santa Ana River 

near the center of the southeastern part of the sub basin.   

The groundwater extractions in the Rialto-Colton sub basin are governed by the Rialto Basin 

Decree, the Rialto Basin Settlement Agreement, and the Western Judgment.  The Rialto-Colton 

Subbasin was adjudicated under the 1961 Decree No. 81,264 from the Superior Court of San 

Bernardino County (Rialto Basin Decree).    

In any year in which the average of the elevation of the spring-high water level, measured in 

March, April, and May, in the three index wells is above 1002.3 feet mean sea level (msl), 

WVWD has no restrictions on yearly extractions.  When the average standing water levels in the 

three index wells falls below 1002.3 feet msl and is above 969.7 feet msl, WVWD is restricted to 

total groundwater extractions of 6,104 AFY. When the average of the three index wells drops 

below 969.7 feet msl, ground water extractions are reduced for all parties stipulated in the 

decree by 1 percent per foot below the 969.7-foot level, but not to exceed 50-percent reduction.  

WVWD’s total water right allocation of 6,104 AFY includes 510 AFY of fixed rights and 5,594 

AFY that is adjustable and subject to the groundwater reductions specified in this section. 

WVWD participates in the Rialto Basin Groundwater Council (Rialto Basin GC), which was 

formed in 2021.  The Rialto Basin GC will develop, adopt, and implement a sustainable 

groundwater management plan, which will include implementing groundwater recharge projects 

to restore groundwater levels. 

5.1.2.4 North Riverside Basin 

The North Riverside Basin (the portion of the Riverside Basin Area in San Bernardino County) is 

part of the 1969 Judgment No. 117,628 (see Appendix B), under the Bunker Hill Basin.  The 

Riverside Groundwater Basin is a large alluvial fill basin that is bounded by major faults and 

topographic barriers.  Recharge to the basin occurs by the underflow from basins to the north, 

contributions from the Santa Ana River, and from percolation of surface water runoff from the 

surrounding uplands, in particular the Box Spring Mountains to the east.  WVWD, which has no 

limits or restrictions on groundwater pumping in the basin, has been utilizing the North Riverside 

Basin for water supply for more than 60 years.   

Extractions from the North Riverside Basin for use in Riverside County are limited to 21,085 

AFY by the Judgment.  Extractions for use in San Bernardino County are unlimited, provided 

that water levels at three index wells in the Rialto-Colton and Riverside North Basins stay above 

822.04 feet MSL.  The 2015 IRWMP provided an estimate of 30,100 AFY as the sustainable 

supply from North Riverside for use in San Bernardino County, based on extractions from 1996 

to 2005.  Valley District has budgeted to update the safe yield estimate prior to the next 

IRUWMP. 

5.1.2.5 Chino Basin 

The Chino Basin is an adjudicated basin managed by the Chino Basin Watermaster.  The Chino 

Sub basin lies in the southwest corner of San Bernardino County.  The Chino Sub basin is 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 236



Section 5.0 Water Supply Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  5-6 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

bordered to the east by the Rialto-Colton fault.  In the other three directions, the Chino Sub 

basin is ringed by impermeable mountain rock, the San Gabriel Mountains to the north, the 

Jurupa Mountains and Puente Hills to the south and southwest.  Average annual precipitation 

across the basin is 17 inches.  This part of the San Bernardino Valley is drained by San Antonio 

Creek and Cucamonga Creek southerly to the Santa Ana River. 

On January 2, 1975, several Chino Basin producers filed suit in California State Superior Court 

for San Bernardino County (the "Court") to settle the problem of allocating water rights in the 

Chino Basin.  On January 27, 1978, the Court entered a judgment in Chino Basin Municipal 

Water District v. City of Chino et al. (Chino Basin Watermaster Judgment, provided in Appendix 

D) adjudicating water rights in the Chino Basin and establishing the Chino Basin Watermaster.  

This Judgment adjudicated all groundwater rights in Chino Basin and contains a physical 

solution to meet the requirements of water users having rights in or dependent upon the Chino 

Basin.  The Judgment also appointed the Watermaster to account for and implement the 

management of the Chino Basin.  The Judgment declared that the initial operating safe yield of 

the Chino Basin is 145,000 AFY.  The Basin is managed through implementation of the Chino 

Optimum Basin Management Plan.  Per the Judgment, WVWD owns rights to approximately 

900 AFY of extraction rights.  Extractions above that amount must be replenished with SWP 

water through a program with the Chino Basin Watermaster. 

Due to water quality constraints, WVWD does not currently use their rights within the Chino 

Basin.  WVWD is looking at options to utilize these rights, including nitrate treatment and 

delivery through interties with other agencies.  By 2030, WVWD may use this supply directly. 

Table 5-1. Historical Groundwater Production, AFY 

Groundwater 

Basin 
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Bunker Hill 5,452 5,640 5,777 4,508 5,549 4,447 

Lytle Creek 1,850 2,365 2,416 2,572 3,078 3,763 

Chino - - - - - - 

Rialto-

Colton 
2,123 3,923 3,353 2,779 1,420 4,041 

Riverside-

Arlington 
2,745 1,089 1,542 1,301 1,354 1,152 

Total 12,170 13,017 13,088 11,160 11,401 13,403 

 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 237



Section 5.0 Water Supply Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  5-7 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

5.1.3 Surface Water 

WVWD utilizes local surface water from the east side of the San Gabriel Mountains, including 

North Fork Lytle Creek, Middle Fork Lytle Creek, and South Fork Lytle Creek.  WVWD has the 

right to divert and export out of the Lytle Creek Region 2,290 gpm when it is available.  WVWD 

can also purchase an additional 1,350 gpm of Lytle Creek flows through an agreement with the 

City of San Bernardino (San Bernardino is not able to utilize their surface water flows), which is 

treated at the Oliver P. Roemer WFF.  WVWD also utilizes Lytle Creek surface water flows for 

groundwater recharge in the Lytle Creek Basin. 

When the flows at the mouth of Lytle Creek Canyon drop below 7,182 gpm (798 miners inches), 

all diversion rights holders must reduce their diversions to a prorated schedule set in the 1897 

decree.  If WVWD is not receiving its full Lytle Creek surface water allotment, they are permitted 

to make up the difference by additional pumping in the Lytle Creek Region. 

 

5.2 Transfer Opportunities  

WVWD currently has interconnections with the Fontana Water Company, Marygold Mutual 

Water Company, Valley District, and the Cities of Rialto, Colton and San Bernardino which can 

be utilized as needed for short-term supply needs.  These connections are not typically used for 

extended periods. 

5.3 Future Water Projects  

To meet future demands within the system, WVWD plans to rehabilitate existing wells, to drill 

new wells, and equip wells with wellhead treatment if required.  These wells are planned for 

various groundwater basins and pressure zones within the distribution system. 

WVWD is expanding the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility by 7.2 MGD for a total 

capacity of 21.6 MGD to allow additional treatment of SWP water, when available.   

When planning future water supply sources, WVWD selects projects that will provide sufficient 

supply to meet peak day demands.  When possible, these sources are planned by pressure 

zone, thereby reducing the need to lift water to a higher zone.   

As development progresses and increases demands are placed on the system, WVWD will 

determine which projects to implement.  Although WVWD may not need to utilize each source to 

its full potential, construction of these water supply projects gives WVWD this option should one 

or more sources be off-line due to maintenance. 

As part of the Rialto Basin GC, WVWD plans to collaborate with the other parties to implement 

groundwater recharge in the Rialto Basin to increase water levels.  Increased water levels will 

result in an increase in WVWD's allowable pumping from the Rialto Basin, thereby increasing 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 238



Section 5.0 Water Supply Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  5-8 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

supply.  The Rialto Basin GC will be developing a groundwater management plan that will 

identify recharge goals and projects and the potential supply increase is not yet quantified.    

5.4 Recycled Water 

The wastewater collected within different portions of WVWD’s service area is treated by the City 

of Rialto, the City of Colton, San Bernardino County, or the Inland Empire Utilities Agency.  In 

2012, WVWD prepared a master plan to evaluate potential uses of recycled water within its 

service area.  WVWD does not currently have a recycled water distribution system and is not 

pursuing recycled water use at this time because it is not cost effective to extend facilities from 

the wastewater treatment plants to the locations of potential use. 

 

5.5 Water Supply Summary 

WVWD’s historical water supplies are summarized in Table 5-2. 

 

  

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 239



Section 5.0 Water Supply Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  5-9 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

Table 5-2. Water Supplies – Historical, AFY 

Water Supply 

Additional 

Detail on 

Water 

Supply 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Groundwater 

Lytle Creek 2,159 1,850 2,365 2,416 2,572 3,078 3,763 

Riverside 

North 
2,065 2,745 1,089 1,542 1,301 1,354 1,152 

Rialto-

Colton 
2,505 2,123 3,923 3,353 2,779 1,420 4,041 

Bunker Hill 1,520 1,351 2,300 2,002 891 1,933 1,650 

Chino 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Purchased 

or Imported 

Water 

SWP Water 2,244 2,839 2,653 4,042 3,649 3,342 4,979 

Baseline 

Feeder 
4,367 3,380 3,151 3,701 3,512 3,616 2,797 

Surface 

Water 
Lytle Creek 2,271 2,026 4,540 3,748 4,023 5,356 3,442 

Total  17,131 16,314 20,021 20,804 18,727 20,098 21,824 

   

WVWD plans to utilize a greater amount from each of its supply sources, up to the legal rights 

and availability.  WVWD’s available supplies for future years are summarized in Table 5-3. 

These quantities are established in the 2020 IRUWMP. 

  

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 240



Section 5.0 Water Supply Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  5-10 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

Table 5-3  Current and Projected Supplies, AFY 

Water Supply 
Additional Detail 

on Water Supply 
2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

Groundwater 

Bunker Hill (part 

of SBB)  
2,052 2,353 3,554 4,754 6,455 

Bunker Hill (part 

of SBB, via 

Baseline Feeder) 

5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 

Lytle Creek (part 

of SBB) 
2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900 

Rialto-Colton 4,426 4,538 4,650 4,761 4,873 

Riverside-

Arlington 
2,500 3,000 3,500 4,000 4,000 

Chino - 900 900 900 900 

Purchased or 

Imported Water 

SWP – Rialto 

Colton 

Groundwater 

Supplemental 

Supply 

- - - - - 

SWP - Direct 

Delivery 
7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 

Surface Water Lytle Creek 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100 

Total  26,978 28,791 30,603 32,415 34,229 

 

 

 

 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 241



Section 5.0 Water Supply Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  5-11 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

5.6 Water Supply Reliability 

WVWD performed a water service reliability assessment as part of the 2020 IRUWMP and 

assumed that demands could increase as much as 10% in single and consecutive dry year 

conditions.  Although water use may decrease in later years of a multiple year drought, the 

reliability assessment assumed a 10% increase to be conservative. 

Valley District has been conducting groundwater recharge activities in the SBB since 1972 and 

participates in conjunctive use programs to store water in local groundwater basins during wet 

years for use in dry years. It is estimated that Valley District and its agencies will benefit by 

increasing water levels, reducing pumping costs, and obtaining up to 88,500 AF of storage and 

up to 29,500 AF of dry year yield.  There are various planned groundwater recharge projects 

outlined in the 2020 IRUWMP to help increase supply resiliency.    

The effects of a local drought are not immediately recognized since the region uses the local 

groundwater basins to simulate a large reservoir for long term storage.  While pumping rights 

from the Rialto Basin and available surface water may be reduced in dry years, WVWD is able 

to pump additional groundwater from Bunker Hill, Lytle, and Riverside North to meet total 

demands in dry years and participates in efforts to replenish the basins with imported and local 

water through regional recharge programs.  WVWD’s total groundwater supplies are not 

reduced in dry years, so 2020 was considered the base year in the reliability analysis.  Based 

on the analysis, WVWD does not anticipate any shortage due to single or consecutive dry 

years, but participates in ongoing water conservation measures and regional recharge projects 

to optimize and enhance the use and reliability of regional resources.  WVWD also has a water 

shortage contingency plan to put into action as appropriate to reduce the demand during critical 

drought years or other supply emergencies.  WVWD’s water shortage contingency plan is 

available in Part 4 of the 2020 IRUWMP and accessible at https://www.sbvmwd.com/reports/-

folder-1120.  The WSCP may be updated and adopted by WVWD staff as needed. 

  

 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 242

https://www.sbvmwd.com/reports/-folder-1120
https://www.sbvmwd.com/reports/-folder-1120


 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  6-1 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT 

6.0 Water Supply and Demand 

Analysis 

There has been a historical trend associated with drier years 

and an increase in water use among agencies.  Conservation 

efforts have proven to be effective in decreasing water use in 

dry years, such as the historical drought of 2013-2015.  

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 243



Section 6.0 Water Supply and Demand Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  6-2 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

As noted in the previous section, WVWD has estimated that demands could increase by 10 

percent during a single dry year in the reliability analysis conducted in the 2020 IRUWMP.  

During a multiple dry year period, it was assumed that demand could continue to exhibit the 

10% increase as the most conservative estimate.  It is expected that conservation messaging 

and restrictions would help reduce overall consumption. 

Including 2020 IRUWMP and Project Net demands, Table 6-1 presents a comparison of supply 

and demand projections in a normal year, Table 6-2 presents a comparison of supply and 

demand projections in a single dry year, and Table 6-3 presents a comparison of supply and 

demand projections for multiple dry years.  Demands shown here differ from the demands 

provided in the 2020 IRUWMP because they include the net increase in industrial demand 

required to serve the Project (119 AFY).  

Table 6-1. Normal Year Supply and Demand Comparison, AFY 

Totals 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

Supply 

Totals 
26,978 28,791 30,603 32,415 34,229 

Demand 

Totals 
23,459 25,154 26,730 28,307 29,883 

Difference 3,519 3,637 3,873 4,108 4,346 

Notes: Supply information provided in the 2020 IRUWMP Table 10-12.  Demand totals updated to reflect addition 

of net Project demand. 

   

Table 6-2. Single Dry Year Supply and Demand Comparison, AFY 

Totals 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

Supply 

Totals 
29,676 31,670 33,663 35,657 37,651 

Demand 

Totals 
25,805 27,658 29,392 31,125 32,859 

Difference 3,871 4,012 4,271 4,532 4,792 

Notes: Supply information provided in the 2020 IRUWMP Table 10-14.  Demand totals updated to reflect addition 

of net Project demand. 

 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 244



Section 6.0 Water Supply and Demand Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  6-3 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

Table 6-3. Multiple Dry Year Supply and Demand Comparison, AFY 

Year Totals 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

First 

Year 

Supply 

Totals 
29,676 31,670 33,663 35,657 37,651 

Demand 

Totals 

25,805 27,658 29,392 31,125 32,859 

Difference 3,871 4,012 4,271 4,532 4,792 

Second 

Year 

Supply 

Totals 
29,676 31,670 33,663 35,657 37,651 

Demand 

Totals 
25,805 27,658 29,392 31,125 32,859 

Difference 3,871 4,012 4,271 4,532 4,792 

Third 

Year 

Supply 

Totals 
29,676 31,670 33,663 35,657 37,651 

Demand 

Totals 
25,805 27,658 29,392 31,125 32,859 

Difference 3,871 4,012 4,271 4,532 4,792 

Fourth 

Year 

Supply 

Totals 
29,676 31,670 33,663 35,657 37,651 

Demand 

Totals 
25,805 27,658 29,392 31,125 32,859 

Difference 3,871 4,012 4,271 4,532 4,792 

Fifth 

Year 

Supply 

Totals 
29,676 31,670 33,663 35,657 37,651 

Demand 

Totals 
25,805 27,658 29,392 31,125 32,859 

Difference 3,871 4,012 4,271 4,532 4,792 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 245



Section 6.0 Water Supply and Demand Analysis 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  6-4 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

Year Totals 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

Notes: Supply information provided in the 2020 IRUWMP Table 10-15.  Demand totals updated to reflect addition 

of net Project demand. 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 246



 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  7-1 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT 

7.0 Determination of Water Supply 

Sufficiency 

According to the 2020 IRUWMP, WVWD has adequate supplies 

to meet their customer demands and replacement water needs 

during average, single dry, and multiple dry years throughout 

the planning period.  Even with the addition of Net Project 

demand to the projected demands established in the 2020 

IRUWMP, WVWD anticipates sufficient supply to serve the 

Project with additional surplus supply for as-needed use.  It is 

concluded that WVWD has adequate supplies to meet demands 

during average, single dry, and multiple dry years throughout 

the planning period.  Should this Project be completed prior to 

it's planned year (2027), the conclusions of this WSA are not 

expected to change.     

 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 247



Section 7.0 Determination of Water Supply Sufficiency 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  7-2 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

WVWD is committed to minimizing the need to import water from other regions.  WVWD will 

continue aggressive water conservation efforts to implement various Demand Management 

Measures, helping to reduce the need for imported water. 

7.1 Conditions of Approval 

This assessment of reliable water supply is conditioned on the following items: 

ITEM 1: The property owner will install water efficient devices and landscaping according to the 

California Green Building Code (CalGreen) as enforced by San Bernardino County and 

applicable requirements of the WVWD’s water use efficiency ordinance(s), local, and state 

ordinances, if any, at the time of building permit issuance to reduce this Project’s demand on 

WVWD water supplies. 

ITEM 2(a): The Developer will be required to apply for and submit a plan check for the 

installation of all new water services associated with the development of this Project.   

ITEM 2(b): The Project will be required to connect to the 16” CMLC Zone 4 water line located in 

Highland Ave for all domestic, irrigation and fire services.   

ITEM 2(c): All water improvements proposed for installation must be installed by one of the 

District's preapproved contractors. All development fees and deposits must be paid prior to 

construction of any water facilities.   

ITEM 2(d): The Developer shall adhere to the most recent District's "Standards for Domestic 

Water Facilities" and "Water Service Rules and Regulations" and any amendments. 

ITEM 3: This WSA will be reviewed every three (3) years from the WVWD Board approval date 

shown on cover of this WSA until the Project begins construction.  The property owner shall 

notify the WVWD when construction has begun.  The review will ensure that the information 

included in this WSA remains accurate and no substantial changes to the Project or WVWD’s 

water supply have occurred.  If the property owner has not contacted WVWD within three (3) 

years of the WVWD Board approval date shown on the cover of this WSA, it will be assumed 

that the proposed Project no longer requires the estimated water demand calculated, the 

demand for this Project will not be considered in assessments for future projects, and the 

assessment provided by this document will become invalid. 

ITEM 4(a): Based on present information, WVWD has determined that it will be able to provide 

adequate water supplies to meet the potable water demand for this Project in addition to 

existing and future uses.  WVWD reserves the right to revisit this WSA in the event that the 

Project’s actual water demand is greater than the Project’s estimated demand reported in this 

WSA or if a substantial change in the scope of the Project occurs. 

ITEM 4(b): This WSA is not a commitment to serve the Project, but a review of WVWD’s 

supplies based on present information available.   

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 248



 References 

 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  REF-1 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

REFERENCES 

AKEL Engineering Group, Inc. (July 2020). 2020 Water Facilities Master Plan. Rialto: West 

Valley Water District. 

Water Systems Consulting, Inc. and Woodard & Curran. (June 2021). Upper Santa Ana River 

Watershed 2020 Integrated Regional Urban Water Management Plan.  

 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 249



 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  A 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

A   
Appendix A Lytle Creek Judgment & 

Surface Water Purchase 

Agreement 
 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 250



 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  B 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

B   
Appendix B Western Judgment 

  

 

  

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 251



 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  C 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

C   
Appendix C Rialto Basin Decree 
 

  

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 252



 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  D 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

D   
Appendix D Chino Basin Watermaster 

Judgment 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 253



 

West Val ley Water  Dis tr ic t  E 
Draft  Pepper  210 Commerce Center 

Water Supply  Assessment  

 

E  
Appendix E Baseline Feeder 

Agreement 
 

  

 

 

3.5.b

Packet Pg. 254



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: October 12, 2022 

TO: Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Lennar Homes of California, LLC. (“Developer”) is the owner of land located north of Sycamore 
Avenue, east of Country Club Drive and west of Oakdale Avenue in the City of Rialto, known as the 
River Ranch.  The Developer has subdivided the land into multiple tracts to be developed into single 
family residential homes within River Ranch. The West Valley Water District (“District’) owns and 
operates several water facilities within the River Ranch development which the Developer is 
responsible for reconnecting into the newly constructed infrastructure. The Well 2 Treatment Plant 
and Well 1 Flush Line, are among the existing facilities which must be tied into the new Well Supply 
Line and new storm drain system in order to allow for continued operation of the site. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District and the Developer wish to enter into a Developer-Installed Water System 
Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement (“Agreement”) to construct the water 
facilities needed to connect this well into the well supply line. This Agreement outlines the 
responsibilities of the Developer in constructing facilities, including insurance, indemnification and 
bonding requirements as well as conveyance and acceptance of the water system by the District.  
Attached as Exhibit A is a copy of the Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance 
Agreement for this development. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
No fiscal impact to the District. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to authorize entering into an agreement with 
Lennar Homes of California, LLC pertaining to River Ranch Well 2 Treatment Plant and Well 1 
Flush Line Improvements and authorize the Acting General Manager to execute all related 
documents. 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE INSTALL AND CONVEYANCE 
AGREEMENT WITH LENNAR 

3.6

Packet Pg. 255



 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
DG:ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Water System Infrastructure Installation Agreement 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
10/12/22 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee    

3.6

Packet Pg. 256



EXHIBIT A 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 257



1 
D22031 

WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE 
INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT 

This water system infrastructure installation and conveyance agreement (“Agreement”) is 
entered into and effective as of October 20, 2022, by and between LENNAR HOMES OF 
CALIFORNIA, LLC (“Developer”), and WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT (“District”) 
who agree as follows: 

 The Developer is the owner of certain land described as TRACT 20204 and as more fully 
(or further) shown on Exhibit "A".  In developing this land, the Developer is desirous of obtaining 
a public water supply adequate for domestic uses and public fire protection purposes and is 
desirous of integrating that water system into the District’s public water system. 

In order to provide facilities for a water supply to said land, it is the intention of the parties 
to this Agreement that the Developer shall furnish and install those water mains, fire hydrants, 
service laterals, water meters and valves, valve boxes, and all other appurtenant fittings and 
facilities required for a complete water system to serve the land shown on Exhibit "A".  

In order to implement the foregoing and in consideration of the terms and conditions herein 
contained, the parties further agree as follows: 

1. DESIGN

1.1. Developer shall design and construct, at the Developer's own expense, the water 
facilities and appurtenances required to serve the development in accordance with final District-
approved plans known as WELL 2 TREATMENT PLANT AND WELL 1 FLUSH LINE 
IMPROVEMENTS, as approved and provided at a later date attached herein as Exhibit "B" 
and in accordance with District-approved design standards and specifications, and the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  

1.2. The water system design shall be by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of 
California, and in accordance with the District's most recent Rules and Regulations (the “Rules 
and Regulations”), the District's Standards for Domestic Water Facilities and Standard Drawings 
herein included by reference, all applicable District ordinances and policies and all City, County of 
San Bernardino, State of California, and Federal laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes and 
other legal requirements of all government bodies having jurisdiction over said construction and 
property (all of the foregoing requirements in this paragraph being collectively referred to herein 
at times as “Legal Requirements”). 

1.3. The District, at Developer's expense, shall review Developer's plans for the purpose of 
ensuring the adequacy of the design and conformance with the District's standards and 
specifications.  The District reserves the right to add, delete, modify, change or amend any or all 
the plans and specifications. 

1.4. In the event that the property to be developed includes multiple residential, 
condominiums, commercial or industrial uses, all site plans, grading plans, and any available 
plumbing plot plans shall be furnished to the District by Developer. 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 258



2 
D22031 

1.5. The District makes no warranties as to the correctness, accuracy or completeness of 
the plans and specifications.  The accuracy, adequacy, suitability, and correctness of the water 
system design shall be the sole responsibility of the Developer. 

2. CONSTRUCTION

2.1. Developer shall perform, or caused to be performed, all construction of the water
system infrastructure installation pursuant to the approved water system plans, and all Legal 
Requirements. 

2.2 The performance of this Agreement shall commence within ninety (90) calendar days 
from the date of this Agreement and shall be completed within one (1) year from the estimated 
construction start date. 

2.3. Time is of the essence in this Agreement; provided that, in the event good cause is 
shown therefore, the general manager of the District (“General Manager”) may extend the time for 
completion of the water system installation.  Any such extension may be granted without the 
notice to Developer's surety, and extensions so granted shall not relieve the surety's liability on the 
bond to secure faithful performance of this Agreement.  The General Manager shall be the sole 
and final judge as to whether or not good cause has been shown to entitle Developer to an 
extension. 

2.4. The Developer and its contractor and subcontractors shall attend a preconstruction 
meeting with the District at the District's headquarters no less than five (5) working days prior to 
commencement of construction. 

2.5. No work on water facilities shall commence prior to the completion of all required 
curbs and gutters. 

3. LICENSES AND PERMITS

3.1. Developer, and all of Developer’s contractors and subcontractors warrants it
possesses, or shall obtain, and maintain during the term of this Agreement any and all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, insurance and approval of whatever nature that are legally required of 
Developer, its contractors, and all subcontractors to practice its profession, skill or business.   

3.2. The work to be performed under this Agreement, except meter installations, shall be 
performed by Developer, or a contractor or subcontractor who is pre-approved by the District and 
is licensed under the laws of the State of California in the specialty Class of "C-34" Pipeline or 
Class "A" General Engineering.  A copy of the contract between Developer and the selected pre-
approved contractor and all subcontractors shall be submitted to the District for review and 
approval.  

3.3. Excavation/resurfacing permits shall be secured by Developer at Developer's 
expense.  Permits/easements to install, maintain and operate water system facilities in private 
property shall be secured by Developer at Developer's own expense prior to construction. 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 259



3 
D22031 

3.4. Developer shall, at Developer's own expense, be responsible for obtaining and 
adhering to a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit from the 
Regional Water Quality Board as required for construction or pipeline flushing and disinfection. 

4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

4.1. The following insurance requirements have been adopted by the District and shall be
applicable to this Agreement.  These requirements supersede the insurance requirements set forth 
in any other reference of the District, and to the extent of any conflict, the specified requirements 
herein shall prevail. 

4.2. Developer shall ensure that Developer’s contractors conform to the following 
insurance requirements and that all required documents are submitted to the District at the time of 
Agreement submittal:  Developer shall ensure that its contractors and all subcontractors shall 
purchase and maintain insurance in amounts equal to the requirements set forth in (a) through (d) 
below, and shall not commence work under this Agreement until all insurance required under this 
heading is obtained in a form acceptable to the District, nor shall Developer allow any contractor 
or subcontractor to commence construction pursuant to a contract or subcontract until all insurance 
required of the contractor and any subcontractors has been obtained. 

a. General Liability:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all
subcontractors shall maintain during the life of this Agreement, a standard form of either 
Comprehensive General Liability insurance or Commercial General Liability insurance (“General 
Liability Insurance”) providing the following minimum limits of liability: Combined single limit 
of $1.0 million per occurrence for bodily injury, including death, personal injury, and property 
damage with $2.0 million minimum aggregate, separate for this project as evidenced by 
endorsement.  The insurance shall include coverage for each of the following hazards: Premises-
Operations; Owners and Contractors Protective; Broad Form Property Damage contractual for 
Specific Contract; Severability of Interest or Cross-Liability; XCU Hazards; and Personal Injury – 
With the "Employee" Exclusive Deleted. 

b. Automotive/Vehicle Liability Insurance:  Developer shall ensure that its
contractor and all subcontractors shall maintain a policy of automotive/vehicle liability insurance 
on a commercial auto liability form covering owned, non-owned and hired automobiles providing 
the following minimum limits of liability:  Combined single limit of liability of $1.0 million per 
accident for Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage (“Automotive/Vehicle Liability 
Insurance”). 

c. Workers' Compensation Insurance:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor
and all subcontractors shall provide such workers' compensation insurance with statutory 
minimum amounts of coverage, as required by the California Labor Code and other applicable 
law, and including employer's liability insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000.00 
(“Workers’ Compensation Insurance”).  Such Workers' Compensation Insurance shall be endorsed 
to provide for a waiver of subrogation against the District. 

d. Excess Liability:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all
subcontractors shall provide a policy providing excess coverage in a face amount necessary when 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 260



4 
D22031 

combined with the primary insurance, to equal the minimum requirements for General Liability 
Insurance and Automotive/Vehicle Liability Insurance.   

4.3. The insurances provided for in Section 4.2 and its subsections above are subject to all 
of the following conditions: 

a. The insurance shall be issued and underwritten by insurance companies
acceptable to the District, and shall be licensed by the State of California to do business on the 
lines of insurance specified.  The insurers must also have an "A-" Policyholder's rating" and a 
"financial rating" of at least Class VII in accordance with the most current A.M. Best's Rating 
Guide. 

b. Developer’s contractor and subcontractors may satisfy the limit requirements in
a single policy or multiple policies.  Any such additional policies written as excess insurance shall 
not provide any less coverage than that provided by the first or primary policy. 

c. Any costs associated with a self-insured program, deductibles, or premium
rating programs that determine premium based on loss experience shall be for the account of 
Developer, Developer’s contractor and subcontractors, and the District shall not be required to 
participate in any such loss.  If any such programs exist, Developer, Developer’s contractor and 
subcontractors, agree to protect and defend the District in the same manner as if such cost 
provisions were not applicable. 

d. Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all subcontractors shall have
presented at the time of execution of the Agreement, the original policies of insurance and a 
certificate of insurance naming the District as the certificate holder and that such coverage is in 
force and complies with the terms and conditions outlined herein. 

e. If an insurance policy contains a general policy aggregate of less than the
minimum limits specified, then the policy coverage shall be written with limits applicable solely to 
this Agreement, as specified, and shall not be reduced by or impaired by any other claims arising 
against Developer.  These policy limits shall be set forth by separate endorsement to the policy. 

4.4. Each such policy of General Liability Insurance and Automotive/Vehicle Liability 
Insurance shall contain endorsements providing the following: 

a. The District, their board members, officers, agents, employees, consultants, and
engineers, are hereby declared to be additional insureds under the terms of this policy, but only 
with respect to the operations of the Developer at or upon any of the premises of the District in 
connection with the Agreement with the District, or acts or omissions of the additional insureds in 
connection with, but limited to its general supervision or inspection of said operations and save for 
any claims arising from the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct the District. 

b. No policy shall be canceled, limited, materially altered, or non-renewed by the
insurer until thirty (30) days after receipt by the District of a written notice of such cancellation or 
reduction in coverage. 

c. This insurance policy is primary insurance and no insurance held or owned by
the designated additional insureds shall be called upon to cover a loss under this policy.  

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 261



5 
D22031 

5. BONDING REQUIREMENTS

5.1. Developer shall provide a Contractor’s proposal based on the District approved water 
system plans.  The Developer will provide a Contractor’s proposal and will be submitted to the 
District for review and approval at a later date (Exhibit “C”), and shall be used as the basis for 
bonding requirements for the water system described in the plans provided to the District by the 
Developer and approved for construction by the District.  

5.2. Performance Bond:  The Contractor’s proposal from the Developer for WELL 2  
TREATMENT PLANT AND WELL 1 FLUSH LINE IMPROVEMENTS, is TBD –
DEVELOPER WILL PROVIDE BOND AMOUNT AT A LATER DATE – DOLLARS and 
00/100 ($0.00). Developer shall and by this Agreement does guarantee the Developer's faithful 
performance of this Agreement and all of its terms and conditions. The Developer shall provide 
the District with a performance bond from a surety institution licensed by the State of California 
and authorized to do and doing business in said State, valid and renewable until such 
improvements are accepted by the District.  The performance bond shall be in the amount of 
DEVELOPER WILL PROVIDE BOND AMOUNT AT A LATER DATE – TBD –
DOLLARS and 00/100 ($0.00) equal to 100 percent of the approved Developer’s estimate.

5.3. Warranty Bond:  The Developer’s pre-approved contractor shall furnish a two-year 
warranty bond for all work completed in accordance with the approved plans. The approved plans 
will be provided at a later date (Exhibit "B"). Before District's acceptance of the completed water 
facilities and appurtenances, such facilities and appurtenances shall be free from any and all liens 
and encumbrances and free from any and all defects in the materials or construction thereof. The 
two-year warranty shall be a warranty bond beginning on the date of acceptance of the water 
facilities by the District. 

6. MATERIALS

6.1. The water system facilities to be installed pursuant to this Agreement shall become
an extension of the distribution system of the District.  All materials used must conform to District 
specifications for such materials pursuant to all applicable Legal Requirements.   

7. NOTICES

7.1. All notices herein required shall be in writing, and delivered in person or sent by
registered mail, postage prepaid. 

7.2. Notices required shall be given to the District addressed as follows: 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Attn:  General Manager 
Post Office Box 920 
Rialto, CA  92377 
RE: WELL 2 TREATMENT PLANT AND WELL 1 FLUSH LINE 
IMPROVEMENTS 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 262



6 
D22031 

7.3. Notices required shall be given to Developer addressed as follows: 

LENNAR HOMES OF CALIFORNIA, LLC 
ATTENTION: RYAN COMBE   
980 MONTECITO, SUITE 302 
CORONA, CA  
RE: WELL 2 TREATMENT PLANT AND WELL 1 FLUSH LINE 
IMPROVEMENTS 

7.4. Notices required shall be given to Surety addressed as follows: 
SURETY NAME: 
ADDRESS 
RE: WELL 2 TREATMENT PLANT AND WELL 1 FLUSH LINE 
IMPROVEMENTS 

7.5. Provided that any party or Surety may change such address by notice in writing to the 
other party, and thereafter, notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address. 

7.6. The Developer or its contractor shall provide the District forty-eight (48) hours 
advance notice of request for inspection or testing. 

7.7. The District is closed on the holidays listed in Exhibit “D”. 

8. NOTICE TO PROCEED TO CONSTRUCT WATER SYSTEM
FACILITIES

8.1. Upon acceptance of the insurance and aforementioned bonds in the amounts provided 
herein and approval by the District and upon payment of all applicable charges, the Agreement 
shall be signed by Developer and the District.  The District shall return an original copy of the 
signed Agreement with a letter to Developer giving notice to proceed to construct the water 
system facilities. 

9. INSPECTION

9.1. It is understood that the sole purpose and intent of the District's inspection and testing
is to validate that the materials, workmanship, and construction of the water facilities are in 
compliance with the District-approved final plans, the District’s Rules and Regulations, the 
Standards for Domestic Water Facilities, the Standard Drawings, and all other applicable District 
requirements.  Developer acknowledges and represents that it assumes full and sole responsibility 
for the safety and management of the project. 

9.2. Developer shall at all times maintain proper facilities and provide safe access for 
inspection by the District to all parts of the work and to the shops wherein the work is in 
preparation.  Additionally, in connection with the performance of this Agreement, the District 
shall have the authority to enter the work site at any time for the purpose of identifying the 
existence of conditions, either actual or threatened, that may present a danger of hazard to any and 
all employees.  Developer agrees that the District, in its sole authority and discretion, may order 
the immediate abatement of any and all conditions that may present an actual or threatened danger 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 263



7 
D22031 

or hazard to any and all employees at the work site.  Furthermore, Developer acknowledges the 
provisions of California Labor Code Section 6400 et seq., which requires that employers shall 
furnish employment and a place of employment that is safe and healthful for all employees 
working therein.  In the event the District identifies the existence of any condition that presents an 
actual or threatened danger or hazard to any or all employees at the work site, the District is 
hereby authorized to order an immediate abatement of that condition. 

9.3. All work and materials shall be subject to inspection, testing, and acceptance by the 
District at Developer's expense.  In the event Developer arranges to have materials fabricated for 
the project, Developer may be required to arrange for the District to inspect that material during 
fabrication at Developer's expense. 

9.4. All material fabrications shall be preapproved by the District and must conform to 
District standards and specifications. 

9.5. The District's inspectors shall have full, unlimited access to perform continuous 
inspection and have the authority to stop work at any time, by written notice, without any liability 
whatsoever to the District, if, in the inspectors' judgment, the work called for by this Agreement, 
or the District approved plans, or the specifications is not being installed or performed in a 
satisfactory and workmanlike manner according to District's standards and specifications and/or in 
the event the materials do not comply with the District's standards and specifications. 

9.6. Final acceptance of all material to be purchased or fabricated by Developer under this 
Agreement shall be made only with the prior approval of the District.  Approval by the District, 
however, shall not operate to relieve the material supplier or Developer of any guarantees, 
warranties, or the duty of compliance with any of the requirements of the approved plans and 
specifications or of this Agreement.  All construction pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
inspected pursuant for conformity with District requirements.  Developer shall pay actual costs for 
inspections. 

10. TESTING AND DISINFECTION

10.1. All water system facilities and components constructed pursuant to this Agreement
shall adhere to all requirements for testing, disinfection, and flushing pursuant to District standards 
and Legal Requirements. 

11. RELOCATIONS, RECONSTRUCTIONS, AND DAMAGES

11.1. Developer accepts the responsibility for and the costs occasioned by any
reconstruction, relocation, damages to, or changes of water services or facilities caused or 
contributed to directly or indirectly by any subsequent changes in the location of any of said 
facilities or water meters or water services. 

12. AS-CONSTRUCTED DOCUMENTATION

12.1. In order for the District to accept the facilities, Developer shall provide all required
documentation as specified in the Standards for Domestic Water Facilities, including As-Built 
drawings. 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 264



8 
D22031 

13. INDEMNIFICATION

13.1. Developer hereby agrees to and shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold the District
and its board members , officers, agents, employees, and engineers free and harmless from any 
and all liability losses, damages, claims, liens, demands and cause of action of every kind and 
character including, but not limited to, the amounts of judgments, penalties, interests, court costs, 
attorney's/legal fees, and all other expenses incurred by the District arising in favor of any party, 
including claims, liens, debts, demands for lost wages or compensation, personal injuries, 
including employees or the District, death or damages to property (including property of the 
District) and without limitation by enumeration, all other claims or demands of every character 
occurring or in any way incident to, in connection with or arising directly or indirectly out of the 
obligations herein undertaken or out of the operations conducted by Developer save and except 
claims or litigation arising through the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct of the District or 
the District's agents and employees.  Developer shall investigate, handle, respond to, provide 
defense for and defend any such claims, demand, or suit at the sole expense of Developer even if 
the claim or claims alleged are groundless, false or fraudulent.  Developer agrees to, and shall 
defend the District and its members, directors, officers, agents, employees, and engineers from any 
suits or actions at law or in equity for damages caused, or alleged to have been caused, by reason 
of any of the aforesaid operations, provided as follows: 

a. That the District does not and shall not waive any rights against Developer
which it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold harmless agreement, because of the acceptance 
by the District, or the deposit with District by Developer, or any of the insurance policies 
described in this Agreement. 

b. That the aforesaid hold harmless agreement by Developer shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by 
reason of any or the aforesaid operations referred to in this subsection, regardless of whether or 
not District has prepared, supplied water system installation, or regardless of whether or not such 
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any such damages or claims for 
damages. 

This provision is not intended to create any cause of action in favor of any third party 
against Developer or the District or to enlarge in any way Developer's liability but is intended 
solely to provide for indemnification of the District from liability for damage or injuries to third 
persons or property arising from Developer's performance hereunder. 

13.2. Neither Developer nor any of Developer's agents, contractors or subcontractors are, 
or shall be, considered to be agents of the District in connection with the performance of 
Developer's obligations under this Agreement. 

14. REPAIR OR RECONSTRUCTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK

14.1. If, within a period of two years after final acceptance of the work performed under
this Agreement, any structure or part of any structure furnished and/or installed or constructed, or 
caused to be installed or constructed by Developer, or any of the work done under this Agreement, 
fails to fulfill any of the requirement of this Agreement or the specifications referred to herein, 
Developer shall, without delay and without any cost to District, repair or replace or reconstruct 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 265



9 
D22031 

any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of the work structure.  Should Developer 
fail to act promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or should the exigencies of the 
situation as determined by the District in the exercise of its sole discretion require repair, 
replacement or reconstruction before Developer can be notified, District may, at its option, make 
the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the necessary work, and Developer shall pay to 
the District the actual cost of such repairs.

15. COSTS AND FEES

15.1. Developer shall be responsible for all fees and deposits as required by the District. 
All fees and deposits, shall be paid in full prior to the execution of this Agreement and before 
construction can take place. 

15.2. Any additional costs and fees shall be paid in full prior to conveyance and acceptance 
of the water system. 

16. CONVEYANCE AND ACCEPTANCE OF WATER SYSTEM

16.1. Upon completion of the water system in accordance with the approved water plans 
and submission of the required documentation, the Developer shall convey the water system to the 
District. 

16.2. The Developer shall be responsible for insuring the pre-approved contractor furnish 
an irrevocable letter of credit to the District or a warranty bond (One Hundred (100%) of 
Developer’s estimate) for a period of two years as stated in Sections 5.3 of this Agreement, as-
built drawings with contractor redlines and AutoCAD files, materials list with quantities, labor, 
equipment, and materials, water system cost breakouts, compaction test report signed and sealed 
by a California Registered Engineer, notice of completion filed with San Bernardino County 
Recorder, fire flow tests of all hydrants, all required easements for water facilities and 
unconditional financial release from subcontractors and material providers,  Upon compliance 
with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the District shall prepare the conveyance 
agreement accepting the water facilities and forward same to the address provided herein.  Title to 
the ownership of said facilities and appurtenances shall thereby be conveyed to the District.  The 
District shall thereafter operate and maintain said facilities so as to furnish water service to the 
development (Exhibit "A") in accordance with the District's ordinances, policies and Rules and 
Regulations. 

17. PERMANENT WATER SERVICE

17.1. In no event shall permanent water services be provided to Developer's installed
system until all applicable charges and fees have been paid by Developer and all facilities have 
been conveyed, free of all encumbrances, to the District, including any easements which may be 
required.  Such conveyance shall occur in a timely manner in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 266



10 
D22031 

18. BREACH OR DEFAULT OF AGREEMENT

18.1. If Developer refuses or fails to obtain prosecution of the work, or any severable part
thereof, with such diligence as will insure its completion within the time specified, or any 
extension thereof, or fails to obtain completion of said work within such time, or if Developer 
should be adjudged as bankrupt, or Developer should make a general assignment for the benefit of 
Developer's creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Developer's insolvency, 
or if Developer, or any of Developer's contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees, should 
violate any of the provisions of this Agreement, the District’s General Manager or the General 
Manager’s designee may serve written notice upon Developer and Developer's surety of breach of 
this Agreement, or of any portion therefore, and default of Developer. 

18.2. In the event of any such notice, Developer's surety shall have the duty to take over 
and complete the work and the improvement herein specified; provided, however, that if the 
surety, within five (5) days after the serving upon of such notice of breach, does not give the 
District written notice of its intention to take over the performance of the contract, and does not 
commence performance thereof within five (5) days after notice to the District of such election, 
District may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or by any other 
method District may deem advisable, for the account and at the expense of Developer, and 
Developer's surety shall be liable to the District for any excess cost or damages occasioned District 
thereby; and, in such event, District, without liability for so doing, may take possession of, and 
utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances, plant and other property belonging to 
Developer as may be on the site of the work and necessary therefore. 

19. SUCCESSORS BOUND

19.1. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of each of the parties
and their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs, and assigns. 

20. ENFORCEMENT OF PROVISIONS

20.1. The District's failure to enforce any provisions of this Agreement or the waiver
thereof in any instance shall not be construed as a general waiver or relinquishment on its part of 
any such provision, but the same shall nevertheless be and remain in full force and effect. 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 267



11 
D22031 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Agreement. 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

By: Date: 
Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

DEVELOPER:   
Lennar Homes of California, LLC  
a California limited liability company 
(as successor-in-interest by conversion to Lennar Homes of California, Inc.) 

By: Date: 
Authorized Agent 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 268



Exhibit A 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 269



Ex
hi

bi
t A

W
el

l 2
 T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

nt
 a

nd
 W

el
l 1

 F
lu

sh
 L

in
e

15
 

FR
W

Y
21

0
FR

W
Y

10
FR

W
Y

21
5

FR
W

Y

W
el

l 2
 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

nt
W

el
l 1

 
Fl

us
h

Li
ne

TR
AC

T 
20

20
4

RI
VE

R
RA

N
CH

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 270



Exhibit B

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 271



3.6.a

Packet Pg. 272



3.6.a

Packet Pg. 273



3.6.a

Packet Pg. 274



3.6.a

Packet Pg. 275



Exhibit C
 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 276



Exhibit D 

3.6.a

Packet Pg. 277



3.6.a

Packet Pg. 278



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: October 12, 2022 

TO: Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
In May 2016, the West Valley Water District (District) and the San Bernardino County Flood 
Control District executed an agreement permitting the spreading of water in Cactus Basin 2 (Basin) 
to support the District’s Fluidized Bed Bioreactor (FBR) Groundwater Treatment project. The 
District is responsible for obtaining regulatory permits and performing all maintenance activities.  
Burrowing owl and nesting bird survey was completed in September 2022, and the District has 
received permission from the California Fish and Wildlife to proceed with mowing down vegetation 
in Cactus Basin 2, removing them, and disposing them in October 2022.   
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The District’s landscaping contractor, California Landscape & Design, submitted a quote in the 
amount of $24,945.00 for the specified services. Attached as Exhibit A is the quote. The project 
must be completed before bird nesting season, and before rain season so the basin would be dried 
for contractor to perform the specified services. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
This item is included in the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Operating Budget and will be funded from project 
number GL100-5350-536-5473 titled “Miscellaneous/Permits & Fees”.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to issue a Purchase Order to California 
Landscape & Design in the amount of $24,945.00 for Cactus Basin maintenance activities. 
 
 
 
 

 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: CACTUS BASIN 2 MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES 

3.7

Packet Pg. 279



Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
VJ:jc 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Quote 

 
MEETING HISTORY: 
10/12/22 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee    

3.7

Packet Pg. 280



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.7.a

Packet Pg. 281



Date: Proposal #   402

Name:

Address: 855 W Baseline Rd. Rialto CA 92376 Vaild Untill: January 1,2023

Phone:

Project:

Attn:

Email:

Quantity Unit Description Unit Price Ext. Price

Removal of Plant Material and Disposal from Water Basin 

13.5 Acres Approx

6 Container 40 YD High Wall Trash Containers 600.00$           3,600.00$            

1 LS Miscellaneous Materials/Tools 200.00$           200.00$               

13.5 Acre Tractor 150.00$           2,025.00$            

NOTE: Mowing weeds inside of basin and etc.

5 Day Tractor Rental 600.00$           3,000.00$            

48 Hour Tractor Operator 65.00$             3,120.00$            

200 Hour Labor 65.00$             13,000.00$          

NOTE: Manual removal of weeds and clean up

We propose hereby to furnish material and labor complete in accordance with above specification for the sum of: 24,945.00$          

____________________________         _________________ ____________________________________________

Customer                                                      Date License Number 597267 (Class C27)

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You are authorized to perform the work specified.

This project was completed on: _________________               Sign: __________________________________

Any questions concerning a contractor may be referred to the Contractors State License Board, P.O. Box 26000 Sacramento, CA  95826

Sergio Granda

Removal of Plant Material and Disposal from Water Basin 

PO #:

Bid Proposal 

(909) 644-6910, (909) 875-1804 ext. 717

West Valley Water District

September 27, 2022

sgranda@wvwd.org

3.7.a

Packet Pg. 282

mailto:sgranda@wvwd.org
mailto:sgranda@wvwd.org


BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: October 12, 2022 

TO: Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The pumping equipment at the 4-1 Pump Station is equipped with a 25-year-old open architecture 
soft start motor drives which are now obsolete and cannot be repaired.  Pump No. 1 at that facility 
has failed and needs to be replaced.  District staff has been replacing old motor drives of this type 
with Allen Bradley brand digital soft start motor drives as the older drives fail. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
District staff selected the Allen Bradley devices based on cost, heat tolerance, reliability, ease of 
programming and operation, and the compatibility with the district’s current and future control 
systems.  District Staff has been trained on the Allen Bradley brand products and is able to reduce 
the District’s reliance on outside contractors for the installation and programming of those devices.   
 
This a sole source item.  Royal Industrial Solutions (Royal) is the sole distributor to sell Allen 
Bradley associated products. Attached as Exhibit B is the sole source justification form. The quote 
from Royal for the requested motor drive totaled to $7,968.42. Attached as Exhibit A is the quote.  
The quote expires on October 31, 2022 and the lead time is approximately 30 days.  Staff is 
recommending a purchase order be issued to Royal in the amount of $9,000.00 to account for a 
slight contingency for unforeseens. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
This item will be paid for using budgeted funds from O&M Production – Repair & Maintenance / 
Structures / Facilities 100-5210-540-5614. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to issue a purchase order to Royal in the 
amount of $9,000.00 for a motor drive. 
 
 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: SOFT START MOTOR DRIVE FOR 4-1 PUMP STATION 

3.8

Packet Pg. 283



 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
VJ:jc 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Quote 

2. Exhibit B - Sole Source Form 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
10/12/22 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee    

3.8

Packet Pg. 284



3.8.a

Packet Pg. 285



3.8.a

Packet Pg. 286



3.8.b

Packet Pg. 287



3.8.b

Packet Pg. 288



3.8.b

Packet Pg. 289



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: October 12, 2022 

TO: Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
West Valley Water District’s (District) six Ion Exchange Treatment Systems are equipped with a 
filter to prevent sand or silt from the source wells from getting into the bed of Ion Exchange Resin 
and causing flow restrictions.  Production Division operates and maintains four of the six sites, 
while Treatment Division operates and maintains the remaining 2 sites. Restrictions in flow caused 
by sand/silt cannot be removed or separated from the resin bed and require replacement of the resin 
to remedy. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The filters used for the District’s Ion Exchange Treatment Systems use disposable cartridges which 
must be replaced periodically, in some cases several times per year, and each replacement uses 9-13 
cartridges depending on the well sites. The Harmsco filters used by the District require Harmsco 
brand cartridges to maintain the NSF-61 rating required by the State Water Resources Control 
Board. 
 
The quote for 120 cartridge filters from Harmsco totaled to $21,188.61.  The quote is good for 30 
days from September 14, 2022 and the lead time is approximately 30 days.  Attached as Exhibit A is 
the email quote. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
This item will be shared 50/50 between the Treatment and Production Departments, as both        
departments use these cartridges.  Production – Repair & Maintenance / Structures / Facilities 100-
5210-540-5614, and Treatment – Repair & Maintenance / Structures / Facilities 100-5350-540-5614. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to issue a purchase order in the amount of 
$21,188.61 to Harmsco Filtration Products for cartridge filters. 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: DISPOSABLE CARTRIDGE FILTERS FOR ION EXCHANGE 
TREATMENT SYSTEMS 

3.9

Packet Pg. 290



 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
VJ:js 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Email Quote 

 
MEETING HISTORY: 
10/12/22 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee    

3.9

Packet Pg. 291



3.9.a

Packet Pg. 292



3.9.a

Packet Pg. 293



3.9.a

Packet Pg. 294



3.9.a

Packet Pg. 295



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: October 12, 2022 

TO: Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
District staff has identified a need to replace a malfunctioned ultraviolet transmittance (UVT) meter 
with Trojan Technologies for the ultraviolet disinfection (UV) system at the Oliver P. Roemer Water 
Filtration (Roemer) Plant. The Roemer Plant utilizes coagulation, contact clarification, filtration, and 
post filtration process including a UV system, Granular Activated Carbon (GAC), and chlorine 
disinfection.  Filtered water is disinfected by UV reactors as primary disinfection before going to the 
GAC vessels for total organic carbon (TOC) removal.  Finally, water leaving the GAC vessels is 
delivered to a water storage basin for secondary disinfection.   
 
The UV system at the Roemer Plant is manufactured by Trojan Technologies. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Trojan Technologies is the manufacturer of Trojan UV systems.  Attached as Exhibit A is the Sole 
Source Letter.  The total cost for the UVT is $12,100.33.  Attached as Exhibit B is the Quote. Staff 
is recommending a purchase order be issued to Trojan Technologies in the amount of $12,500.00 to 
account for other Trojan parts and a slight contingency for unforeseens. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
This item is included in the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Operating Budget and will be funded from project 
number GL100-5390-525-5340 titled “Professional Services/Other Consultants”. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to issue a Purchase Order in the amount not 
to exceed $12,500.00 for a UVT meter from Trojan Technologies. 
 
 
 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: ULTRAVIOLET TRANSMITTANCE METER FOR THE OLIVER P. 
ROEMER WATER FILTRATION PLANT 

3.10

Packet Pg. 296



 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
VJ:jc 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Sole Source Letter 
2. Exhibit B - Quote 

 
MEETING HISTORY: 
10/12/22 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee    

3.10

Packet Pg. 297



3.10.a

Packet Pg. 298



3.10.a

Packet Pg. 299



3.10.a

Packet Pg. 300



3.10.b

Packet Pg. 301



QUOTATION
QO0001411

TROJAN TECHNOLOGIES
3020 GORE ROAD
LONDON, ON N5V 4T7
CANADA
T. 519-457-3400
www.trojantechnologies.com

Sold to Ship to
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
PO BOX 920 855 W. BASELINE ROAD
Rialto CA 92377-0920 Rialto CA 92376-3103
UNITED STATES UNITED STATES

Customer Service Contact : tuvcustomerservice@trojantechnologies.com
Payment Terms : 0% / 00 / 30 net Internal Sales Rep : HEATHER WILCOX
Delivery Terms : Customer No. : 100003960
Carrier/LSP : Reference : Detection assembly

Quote Date : 09-27-2022
Quote Expiry Date : 10-27-2022

Project Quantity Price Unit Net Price Tax Rate
Line Item Discount % Net Amount Tax Amount Amount

Description

1.00 10,730.00/ EA 10,730.00 7.75%
10 905307 10,730.00 831.58 11,561.58

DETECTION ASSY, ONLINE UVT
1.00 500.00/ EA 500.00 7.75%

20 FREIGHT 500.00 38.75 538.75
FREIGHT & HANDLING

Estimate for budgeting

Goods 10,730.00 Discount 0.00 Tax Amount Total USD
Costs 500.00 Subtotal 11,230.00 870.33 12,100.33

Page 1/ 2

3.10.b

Packet Pg. 302



QUOTATION
QO0001411

TROJAN TECHNOLOGIES
3020 GORE ROAD
LONDON, ON N5V 4T7
CANADA
T. 519-457-3400
www.trojantechnologies.com

Terms and Conditions

All purchases of Trojan products and/or services are expressly and without limitation subject to Trojan's

Terms and Conditions of Sale ("Trojan" or "SELLER"), incorporated herein by reference and published on

Trojan's website https: www.trojantechnologies.com/sales-terms-conditions/

Trojan TCS are incorporated by reference into each of Trojan's offers or quotations, order acknowledgments,

and invoice and shipping documents. The first of the following acts shall constitute an acceptance of Trojan's

offer and not a counteroffer and shall create a contract of sale ("Contract") in accordance with the Trojan

TCS, subject to Trojan's final credit approval: (i) Buyer's issuance of a purchase order document against

Trojan's offer or quotation; (ii) Trojan's acknowledgement of Buyer's order; or (iii) commencement of any

performance by Trojan in response to Buyer's order. Provisions contained in Buyer's purchase documents that

materially alter, add to or subtract from the provisions of the Trojan’s TCS shall be null and void and not

considered part of the Contract.

www.trojantechnologies.com/sales-terms-conditions

Page 2/ 2

3.10.b

Packet Pg. 303



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: October 12, 2022 

TO: Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On September 21, 2022, a main break of an 8” polyvinyl chloride (PVC) waterline occurred on Calle 
Vista Drive in the City of Rialto.  This led to a substantial amount of water loss that resulted in 
major damage to the street.  The waterline has been repaired and temporary asphalt has been 
installed by District staff; however, a section, 33-feet x 93-feet, of the street will need to be repaired 
and paved to the City of Rialto standards.  Photographs of the damage are attached as Exhibit A. 
 
The scope of work consists of removing 3,069 square feet of existing and temporary asphalt 8.5 to 
10 inches deep, installing 6 inches of aggregate base and 2.5 inches of asphalt, performing soil 
compaction testing, capping with 1.5 inches of thick asphalt, and providing traffic control. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The District’s street paving contractor, Mike Roquet Construction Inc., submitted a quote in the 
amount of $56,522.00 (Exhibit B).  Staff is recommending a purchase order be issued to Mike 
Roquet Construction Inc. in the amount of $60,000.00 to account for payment and performance 
bonds and a slight contingency for unforeseens.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
This item is included in the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Operating Budget and will be funded from project 
number GL100-5410-540-5612.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to issue a purchase order in the amount of 
$60,000.000 to Mike Roquet Construction Inc. for post water-main break street repairs. 
 
 
 
 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: POST WATER-MAIN BREAK STREET REPAIRS 

3.11

Packet Pg. 304



 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
VJ:jc 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Photo 

2. Exhibit B - Quote 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
10/12/22 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee    

3.11

Packet Pg. 305



EXHIBIT A 

3.11.a

Packet Pg. 306



3.11.a

Packet Pg. 307



EXHIBIT B 

3.11.b

Packet Pg. 308



     P.O. Box 539  
Highland, CA 92346 

(951) 533-3797
Lic #1007568

PROPOSAL 
To:   Page 1 of 1 September 23, 2022 

West Valley Water District 
855 W. Baseline Rd. 
Rialto, CA 92376 
(909) 875-1804

JOB LOCATION:  2419 CALLE VISTA DRIVE, RIALTO 
We hereby submit specifications and estimates for:

Item        total 

STREET REPAIR: 
First move-in: 

1. Remove existing asphalt and subbase material to a depth of 10” below
finished surface elevation at one area (33’ x 93’) totaling 3,069 sq. ft.

2. Haul away asphalt and subbase material to a legal disposal site.
3. Compact 3,069 sq. ft. of subgrade area by rolling with a vibratory roller.
4. Install 6” thick class II (crushed miscellaneous base) on 3,069 sq. ft.
5. Fine-grade and compact 3,069 sq. ft. of class II base.
6. Base-pave 3,069 sq. ft. with 2.5” of asphalt (3/4” mix for strength).
7. Furnish and provide a geotechnical engineer for compaction testing on

subgrade, class II base material, asphalt base course, and final asphalt cap.
Second move-in (1 – 2 weeks later):

8. Header grind and feather where new asphalt joins existing; then clean,
tack, and cap 3,069 sq. ft. with 1.5” thick asphalt (1/2” mix).

 Lump sum:    $54,522.00 
Optional price: 

1. Provide and set up traffic devices for street closure:     $2,000.00

GENERAL CONDITIONS: 

• Two equipment moves are included. Street to remain closed during construction.

• Price includes prevailing wages.

• EXCLUSIONS: permits, fees, engineering, staking, water costs, water meter, seal coats, damage to buried objects

not visible from the surface, over-excavation of subgrade for any reason, relocating utilities, disconnecting or

handling utilities.

• Proposal good for 60 days from the date of issue.

• Any attorney fees, costs, or other expenses which may be incurred in the collection of monies as may become due

under this contract or enforcement of the terms of this contract will be paid for by the customer.

• Unless otherwise herein provided, this contract shall be due and payable at Mike Roquet Construction Inc., P.O.

Box 539, Highland, CA 92346 within 10 days from date of invoice.

AMOUNT: Fifty-four thousand, five hundred and twenty-two dollars and no cents ($54,522.00) 

Mike Roquet 

President 

Mike Roquet Construction Inc. 

3.11.b

Packet Pg. 309



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: October 12, 2022 

TO: Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The West Valley Water District (“District”) has identified a need to improve Building “C”. The 
project goal is to upgrade and optimize the facilities for the Meter and Distribution Departments. 
The improvements will include new offices, breakrooms, restrooms, showers, lockers, laundry, and 
AC, lighting, and fire system upgrades. 
 
District Staff invited six Consultants to submit a Request for Conceptual Design Proposal (RFP). 
The RFP identified the areas to be considered for improvements and the scope of the project. 
 
District Staff received a total of three proposals. The three Consultants and proposals are 
summarized below: 
 

Consultant Proposed Cost 

Miller Architectural Corporation $24,775.00 

SVA Architects, Inc. $51,820.00 

Gillis + Panichapan Architects, Inc. $53,160.00 

 
Staff has reviewed the proposals and confirmed that Miller Architectural Corporation best meets the 
District’s needs. Attached as Exhibit A is the proposal submitted by Miller Architectural 
Corporation. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to perform the conceptual design is $24,775.00. This will provide the District with a 
minimum of 3 architectural design concepts for improvements to Building “C” identifying all the 
required permits along with associated construction costs for the District to select the design 
concept that best meets its needs. This item was included in in the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Capital 
Improvement Budget with a budget of $75,000.00. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR BUILDING “C” IMPROVEMENTS 

3.12

Packet Pg. 310



Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to authorize entering into an agreement with 
Miller Architectural Corporation in the amount of $24,775.00 to provide architectural services for 
design concepts for Building “C” improvements.   
 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
MB:ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Miller Architectural Corporation Proposal 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
10/12/22 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee    

3.12

Packet Pg. 311



EXHIBIT A 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 312



Utah 

Nevada 

Idaho 

California 

1177 Idaho Street 

Suite 200 

Redlands, CA 92374 

P 909.335.7400 

F 909.335.7299 
An Architectural Corporation 

September 6, 2022 

West Valley Water District 
855 West Base Line Road 
Rialto, CA 92377 

Re: Architectural Services for Design Concepts 
For Building “C” Improvements    

Dear Mr. Bravo: 

We are pleased to submit a proposal to provide architectural design services for the 
WVWD Building “C” located at 855 West Base Line Road. We understand the scope of 
work for this project to entail the following services: 

• Facility assessment, programming and floor plan design services for renovations to
the existing 5,000 SF Building “C”.

Services generally include but are not limited to all services necessary to study, evaluate, 
program, design, produce construction documents and administer construction 
administration.  Specifically, these services include: 

• Facility Assessment
• Field Measurement and creation of as-built floor plan
• Programming
• Cost Estimating
• Architectural

• Project management of all investigation and assessment of the existing facility
systems for architecture services

• Programming, space planning and floor plan design concepts.

We intend to provide the following services: 

Task 1 - Project Initiation Fee - Not Applicable 

Task 2 - Project Management Project Information 
1. Provide all services required by the Architectural Space Programing Phase
2. Research requirements of local regulatory agencies.
3. Programming meetings with the Owner to establish requirements and

determine needs for the project. (Includes 3 meetings)
4. Measure & document existing premises as needed and observe existing

conditions
5. Field verification of site and facility conditions by Architect
6. Prepare a background floor plan drawing illustrating existing conditions.

Task 3 - Schematic Design 
1. Provide all services required by the Schematic Design Phase
2. Meetings with the Owner to establish requirements and determine detailed

needs for each space for the project to fine tune program and adjacency
needs. (Includes 3 meetings)

3. Prepare floor plan review to determine final scope requirements
4. Modify as necessary floor plan to accommodate required ADA accessibility

for approval of the final floor plan layout.

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 313



 
We will provide the above services on a time and materials basis with and estimated not to exceed 
amount per the breakdown below:  
 

Task 1 Project Initiation Fee (N/A) -0- 

Task 2 Project Information $10,825.00 

Task 3 Schematic Design $13,550.00 

Total $24,375.00 

Estimated reimbursable $400.00 

Total with reimbursable $24,775.00 
 
Additional Services –  
1. Changes to the scope of work during any phase of the contract shall be billed in accordance 

with the attached hourly rate schedule. 
2. Services beyond submitting and allowing the review process to run its normal course shall be 

billed hourly in accordance with the attached hourly rate schedule.  These services include but 
are not limited to phone calls to assure timely processing, tracking documents lost by 
government agencies and other efforts necessary to assure the government agencies are 
moving the project through the process. 

 
Expenses and services beyond the above-described scope shall be billed in accordance with the 
attached fee schedule.  The Owner permits the Architect to take photographs of the property during 
construction and upon completion of the work. 
 
Payments on account of services rendered, and for reimbursable expenses incurred, shall be made 
monthly upon presentation of Architect’s statement of services. Architect may charge interest at a 
rate of 1% per month for unpaid balances over 30 days late. Work may stop on this project if an 
invoice is past due by more than 30 days. Collection efforts including liens will be pursued for 
invoices more than 90 days past due. The Owner agrees that the Architect has a lien on any money 
or property recovered in satisfaction or partial satisfaction of your claim in any matter in which you 
have retained the Architect. This lien is not limited to fees and costs incurred in the specific matter 
from which a settlement or judgment arose but applies to all fees and costs the Owner owes the 
Architect for any legal services provided. 
 
This Agreement may, without cause, be terminated by either party upon not less than seven days’ 
written notice of withdrawal in the event that the either party fails to meet to their obligations, or in 
the event either party determines, with reasonable discretion, that it would be unethical or impractical 
to continue in this or any other matter. In the event of termination, the Architect shall be 
compensated for services performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses. The 
Architect reserves the right to make final selection of consultants. This Agreement constitutes the full 
understanding of the terms of the agreement, superseding any prior oral or written understanding, 
and may not be amended or modified except by a writing signed by both the Architect and Owner.  
 
Owner Responsibilities: 
1. Agency review and processing 
2. Access to site 
3. Record Drawings 
 
The following items are excluded from this proposal: 
- Reproduction Costs (except for Architect’s in-house use) 
- Title Information (Radius Map, etc.) 
- Environmental Impact, CEQA & Traffic Reports  
- Agency Fees 
- Construction Related Testing/Reports 
- Project Scheduling 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 314



- Landscape Architecture 
- Fire Sprinkler Design Engineering and calculations 
- New electrical main service or service upgrade 

If you would like us to proceed, and are in agreement with the above, please sign where 
indicated below and return one signed copy for our files or prepare a purchase order.  Work on 
this project will commence after receipt of the signed proposal or purchase order.  Thank you for 
this opportunity to be of service; we look forward to working with you on the successful 
completion of this project. 
 
Sincerely,      Approved by: 
 

MILLER     ___________________________ 

Architectural Corporation    Signature   Date 
 

 
 
Gary W. Miller, AIA, President 
(909) 335-7400 X 111 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 315



2022 FEE SCHEDULE 
 

MILLER ARCHITECTURAL CORPORATION 
1177 IDAHO STREET, SUITE 200 

REDLANDS, CA 92374 
P 909.335.7400 F 909.335.7299 

 

PROFESSIONAL AND TECHNICAL STAFF: 
 

Senior Principal      $242.00/hour 
Court/Arbitration Appearance    $289.00/hour 
Deposition      $315.00 - First Hour 

        $284.00 - Each Additional Hour 
Principal (Architecture Division)    $186.00/hour 

 Associate (Architecture Division)   $163.00/hour 
 Principal (Interiors Division)    $158.00/hour  

Senior Project Manager     $145.00/hour 
Project Manager     $135.00/hour 
Senior Technician     $126.00/hour 

 Intermediate Technician     $88.00/hour 
 Senior Clerk/Executive Assistant/Office Mgr.  $87.00/hour 

Junior Technician     $79.00/hour 
Administrative Assistant/Marketing Assistant  $84.00/hour    

 Secretarial/Clerical/Intern    $65.00/hour   
 Archive Retrieval Fee     $210.00/Flat Fee 
 Drone Photography/Remote Aerial Survey  $263.00/hour 

 

Overtime for hourly personnel will be charged at the base rate of 1.5 per hour for time in excess of 8 
hours per weekday or for work on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays. 
 

 
EXPENSES: 
 

1. Out of pocket expenses, (i.e. photocopies, film development, shipping, blueprints): cost plus 15%. 
 

2. In-house Services: 
Large Format  $ 2.40 per 24" x 36" sheet 

  Black & White:  $ 3.35 per 30" x 42" sheet 
 

Large Format  $7.10 per 24" x 36" sheet  
Color:   $9.20 per 30" x 42" sheet 

 

Photo Copies:  Black & White:   $0.33 per 8-1/2” x 11” page 
     Black & White:   $0.56 per 11" x 17" page 
     Color:    $1.82 per 8/1/2" x 11" page 
     Color:    $3.10 per 11" x 17" page 
     Black & White $0.83 per 12” x 18” page 
     Color  $3.65 per 12” x 18” page 
 

  Presentation Materials: $21.00 per 30 x 40 Foam Board 
 

  CD with Files: $52.00 
 

  Upload Data: $52.00 
 

3. Mileage: $.70 per mile. 
 

4. For work which requires overnight lodging, a per diem charge will be made appropriate to the 
area, based on actual costs. 

 

5. Outside consultants not included in base fee and plan check fees shall be billed at direct cost plus 
15%. 

 

INVOICING 
 

Invoices will be issued either monthly or bi-weekly and are due and payable upon receipt of the invoice, 
unless otherwise agreed. Interest of 1% per month, but not exceeding the maximum rate allowed by law, 
will be payable on any amounts not paid within 30 days. Payment thereafter is to be applied first to 
accrued interest and then to the principal unpaid amount. Attorney’s fees or other cost incurred in 
collecting any delinquent amount shall be paid by the client. 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 316



1177 Idaho St. Suite 200 

Redlands, CA 92374 

Phone: 909-335-7400 

Fax: 909-335-7299 

Request for Proposal  
Architectural Services for 

Design Concepts for  

Building “C” Improvements 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

West Valley Water District 
September 6, 2022 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 317



MILLER Architectural Corporation 

September 6 2022 West Valley Water District Design Concepts Building “C” Improvements  

 

Cover Letter 

 
September 6, 2022 
 
 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line Road 
Rialto, CA 92377 
 
Re:  Architectural Services for Design Concepts for Building “C: Improvements  
 
 
Dear Mr. Bravo 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our qualifications for the above referenced project.   
We believe because of our current experience with Corporate Yard and Utility Department 
projects, extensive experience working with the City of Rialto makes us uniquely qualified to 
provide these services.    

 
History of Firm 
 MILLER Architectural Corporation (MAC) was founded in 1986 by Gary W. Miller and has 

been in business continuously for over 35 years. During that time we have provided architec-
tural services for both the public and private sector.   

 Current number of employees -   14 professionals and 2 support personnel in our Califor-
nia office. Work for this project will be performed from our Redlands office with support pro-
vided on an as needed basis from our Nevada and Utah offices. 

 MAC is a highly professional, well balanced organization with experienced personnel in the 
fields of Architecture, Land Planning, Interior Design, Site and Building Evaluation, Master 
Planning and Construction Administration. 

 
Project Scope 
 We understand the scope of work for this project to entail the following services: 

 Architectural design concepts for renovations to an existing 5,000 SF metal Building “C” 
to serve the required use of Operations staff.   

 Building and facilities system assessment and recommended cost estimates to address 
priorities for the proposed building improvements for the facility at 855 West Base Line 
Road. to address facilities needs and meet conformance with all building and safety 
codes including required ADA improvements.   
 

Service and Availability  
 The MAC team is presently completing more projects than it is starting; therefore, we have 

staff  available to immediately move on this project and produce them promptly.   
 We have complete numerous project in and for the City of Rialto. 
 Our corporate headquarters is located in Redlands which is within minutes to the project site.  

This positions us  to respond quickly to your needs and enables us to be at the project site 
within a very short time. 

 
Experience with Publicly funded Projects  
 MAC constantly has at least one and usually many office and renovation projects on the 

boards. Issues that we are particularly sensitive to include: 

 Maintaining project budgets  

 Limiting scope creep (end users asking for more than budget allows) 
 Controlling the contractor and avoiding change orders during construction 
 We provide timely service and schedule compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 318



MILLER Architectural Corporation 

September 6 2022 West Valley Water District Design Concepts Building “C” Improvements  

Experience With Capital Improvements and Publicly Bid Projects 
 MILLER Architectural Corporation (MAC) is a highly professional, well balanced organization with a wide 

range of experience in nearly every type of building and structural system.   
 MAC has a particularly strong resume in the following building types: 

 Office  / Administration Buildings 
 Warehouses and Corporate Yards 
 Site Master Planning 
 Space Planning 

 Additions and Renovations / Demolition  
 Throughout the years 60% of our work has been site and building evaluation, renovation and addition work. 
 Our extensive renovation experience has enabled us to develop specialized skills that are unique and neces-

sary for a successful renovation project. These skills and services include: 
 Photographic documentation of the existing facility to ensure that all impacts of the addition/renovation are 

taken into consideration. 

 Thorough check list system to identify all items affected by renovation/addition projects. 
 Specialized cost estimating experience that is unique to renovation projects. 
 A keen eye developed from years of experience in identifying critical aspects of the site and building that 

impact demolition and renovation work. 
 
City license and Evidence of Insurance 
 All insurance criteria meets or exceeds the Agency requirements and will be provided to satisfy WVWD if select-

ed for this project.  
 City business license will be obtained is awarded this project to meet all City requirements.  
 
RFP Acknowledgements 
 I Gary W. Miller certify that the firm of Miller Architectural Corporation (MAC) is registered in the State of Califor-

nia and is licensed to perform architectural, engineering and construction services in the State of California and 
that the firm is not barred, suspended or otherwise prohibited from professional practice by any federal, state or 
local agency.  We have no history of default, litigation settlements or judgments against our firm.   

 We accept the WVWD’s Agreement for Professional Services, Insurance and Indemnity requirements. 
 We acknowledge that this proposal shall be valid for a period of 120 calendar days from the due date of the pro-

posal. 
 We acknowledge that there are no existing or potential conflicts of interest associated with this project. 
 We acknowledge that all information submitted in this proposal is true and correct and that the signature of Gary 

W. Miller is the person authorized to bind consultants to the terms of any contracts which result from this submit-
tal.  We acknowledge that there were no addenda issued for this project and that all items in the RFP  
have been included in the fee proposal. 

 Authorized Consultant for Contractual Terms and Conditions: 
 Miller Architectural Corporation 
 1177 Idaho Street, Suite 200, Redlands, CA 92374 
 Phone: (909) 335-7400   
 Email: koswalt@miller-aip.com 
 Contact: Gary Miller – Principal (License C14635) 
 Federal Tax ID – 330355016 
 

This team, headed by MAC can offer the more personal and hands on level of service that only a medium sized firm 
can offer.  We have sufficient staff to respond with short notice to meet your needs and with a staff of 20 we are able 
to make people available quickly without overloading the firm.  We feel confident that with our staff and team of ex-
perts for this project we can work seamlessly and hand in hand with your staff to assure a successful project.  Our 
goal will be to meet the expectations of your staff and end users resulting in a project that is completed on time and 
within budget that will serve all of your needs for years to come.  Thank you for your consideration. 
 

Sincerely,  

MILLER Architectural Corporation 
 
 
 
Gary W. Miller 
AIA, President 

 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 319



MILLER Architectural Corporation 

September 6 2022 West Valley Water District Design Concepts Building “C” Improvements PAGE  1  

Table of Contents 

  

 

 Cover Letter 

 

 Executive Summary ........................................................................................  2 

 

 Qualification ..................................................................................................  3-4 

 Relevant Projects ........................................................................................ 5 

  

Scope of Services  

 Detailed Project Approach and Work Plan ............................................6-7 

  

 Key Personnel 

 Miller Architectural Team Resumes .......................................................8-9 

  

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 320



MILLER Architectural Corporation 

September 6 2022 West Valley Water District Design Concepts Building “C” Improvements PAGE  2  

Executive Summary 

 

Skills required for Renovation Design and Adaptive Reuse Projects 

• Renovation and adaptive reuse projects typically require a variety of skills.  In addition to traditional 
architectural skills, we offer: Building and building system evaluation, initial budget estimating, 
ADA assessments, roofing consulting, interior design, space planning, and project management.  
Our experience has shown that the following skills and experience benefit this kind of contract. 
a. Renovation experience  

b. Small scope of work project experience 

c. Experience in a variety of building types and building uses 

d. A network of consultants to meet the skill required for all types of work 

 

        Service and Availability  

• The MAC team is presently completing more projects than it is starting; therefore, we have suffi-
cient staff to immediately move on project and produce them promptly.   

• Our corporate headquarters is located in Redlands which is about 10 minutes from the cities main 
offices and most potential project sites.  This positions us to respond quickly to WVWD staff and 
enables us to be at most project sites within a very short period of time.    

This team, headed by the medium sized firm of MAC can offer the more personal and hands on level of 
service that only a medium sized firm can offer.   We have sufficient staff to respond with short notice to 
your needs and with a staff of 20 we are able to make people available quickly without overloading the 
firm.  Our size is large enough to serve major projects yet the staff is all experienced in projects that 
have been as small in scale as $60,000.00 in construction costs. 

 

Proposed Scope 

• The MAC motto is VISION TO REALITY.  Our goal is to capture your vision and bring it into an 

affordable, functional, and enriching reality.  In order to accomplish this goal we must become 

part of your team.  We must listen and ask questions to fully understand your philosophy, goals, 

needs, preferences and priorities.  Once our understanding is parallel with yours, we apply our 

skills to accomplish your goals and make this building meet your desired needs.  We intend to 

achieve these goals by providing the following: 

• RESEARCH AND PROGRAMMING 

• ASSESSMENT- ASSESS CONDITION  OF THE SITE AND PROPOSED FACILITY NEEDS 

• EARLY COST ESTIMATE 

• SPACE PLANNING 

• SPACE PLANNING 

 

• The ultimate goals is to develop design concepts that present the best options in meeting the 

design objectives and prepare conceptual floor plans consistent with the agreed objectives and 

priorities.   

Executive Summary 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 321



MILLER Architectural Corporation 

September 6 2022 West Valley Water District Design Concepts Building “C” Improvements PAGE  3  

FIRM HISTORY 
 

 MILLER Architectural Corporation (MAC) (formerly GMID) has provided architectural 
services for Local Government agencies for the entire history of the firm.  Agencies 
served include the City of San Bernardino for 20 years, County of San Bernardino for 
30 years, County of Riverside for 20 years and multiple other local municipalities.  We 
encourage you to seek input from County personnel familiar with our work and are 
confident you will receive favorable reports of our work. 

 Since it’s inception in 1986 MAC has enjoyed consistent growth to reach its current 
staff level of 20 with 16 of those located in our Redlands, CA office.  Personnel con-
sist of 4 architects, 5 project managers, 4 technicians, 1 interior designer and 2 ad-
ministrative/clerical personnel.  This medium size assures you personal attention of 
the owner, stability in the staffing of your project and excellent quality in the people 
assigned to your project.  Many of our staff have been with us since the very early 
days of the company.  

 MAC is a highly professional, well balanced organization with experienced personnel 
in the fields of Architecture, Land Planning, Interior Design, LEED qualifying buildings, 
Site and Building Evaluation, Master Planning and Construction Administration. 

 Our reputation has been built by respecting your needs and priorities, and blending 
creative ability with practical skills. 

 MAC does not have any outstanding or proposed commitments that will impact our 
ability to perform this agreement. 
 

EXPERIENCE REQUIRED FOR ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE & SITE ASSESSMENT 
 

 Each member of the team has considerable experience with multiple building type. 
 The work our office has provided have involved new structures, additions, renovation 

and reuse.  Over 50% of our firms work load year to year has been building evalua-
tion, renovation and addition work.  As a result of this extensive experience we have 
developed systematic methods to assure the project avoids pitfalls common in the 
design of new and renovation construction.  This system includes: 
  Survey checklists to identify all building components affected by the project. 
  Thorough documentation of existing conditions prior to start of construction 
  Properly phasing the work to allow maximum building usage and minimizing the 

disruption to operations. 
 Renovation projects typically require a variety of skills.  In addition to traditional skills, 

in-house skills offered by our office include: 
 Site and building system evaluation 
 Initial budget estimating 
 ADA assessments 
 Roofing consulting 
 Interior Design 
 Movable systems furniture layout and specifications 
 Project Management  

 One important aspect of renovation and addition work is performing the construction 
process while keeping operations going.  This requires extensive knowledge in con-
struction methods, and realistic scheduling.  Many of our projects have been complet-
ed while operations continued.  We can make it happen. 
 

EXPERIENCE WITH CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND PUBLICLY BID PROJECTS 
 

 MAC consistently has at least one and often many public projects on the boards. 
 We have experience in designing buildings which house multiple uses or multiple de-

partments. 
 We are skilled at bringing different departments together in a spirit of cooperation 
 We have been involved in all aspects of publicly funded work.  This includes when 

there has been money available from  other sources outside the City. 
 We have tools that help departments and agencies arrive at a consensus of opinion 
 Issues to which we are particularly sensitivity include: 

 Maintaining Budgets. 
 Limiting scope creep (end users asking for more than budget allows) 

Qualifications 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 322



MILLER Architectural Corporation 

September 6 2022 West Valley Water District Design Concepts Building “C” Improvements PAGE  4  

 Maintain the authority of the Project Manager while serving the need of the client  
 Avoiding change orders 
 Controlling construction schedule and quality 

 We have made it a policy to keep our practice diverse.  Thus it is safe to say that it is 
unlikely that there is a building type that we have not designed.  We are also familiar 
with every type of construction method to be encountered.  A partial list of building 
types we have completed includes: 
 Office Buildings 
 Additions / Renovations 
 Utility Company 
 City Yards 

 We offer a solid reputation for quality service, timely performance, within budget, and 
a minimum of change orders during construction.   
 

PROJECT TEAM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 
 

 It is our policy to assign a design team to each project.  The Key personnel assigned 
to the project are as indicated on the attached organization chart and will be available 
for the duration of the project and no person that is designated as “key” personnel 
shall be removed or replaced without the prior written concurrence of the Owner’s 
representative.  The team follows the project from the beginning to the end.  The ben-
efits of such an arrangement are: 
 The client deals with the same individuals for all phases of the project 
 The client knows who is directly responsible for  the progress of the project. 
 An uninterrupted flow of information is maintained, thus reducing the possibilities 

for lost and misinterpreted project data. 
 When addressing the assessment and renovation of the existing facility these type 

projects require consultants who are willing to roll up their sleeves, crawl into the attic, 
take off electrical panel covers and evaluate the condition of existing air conditioning 
equipment.  We have that consultant network in place and have a long history of 
working together on these type projects.  These consultants understand our methods, 
enabling us to provide quick response for the completion of projects.  With the exper-
tise of our structural, mech., and elect. consultants to evaluate the facility require-
ments and review and assist with the design and programming the project will be as-
sured of a well rounded project with all of the necessary elements required to assure 
a complete and thorough set of construction documents. 
 

ABILITY AND COMMITMENT TO SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETE A PROJECT WITHIN 
BUDGET, SCHEDULE AND SCOPE 

 

 The MAC design team has a long history of completing projects within budget, sched-
ule and scope 

 Critical path schedules are required for our services for contractor’s work 
 We have completed design and construction documents for private sector projects 

within 6 weeks of receiving notice to proceed 
 Our government projects have an enviable history of timely completion also 
 We can perform cost estimates in house and have a reliable data base of construction 

costs especially for buildings of this size. 
 Our office uses three different cost estimating methods depending on the nature of 

the project.. In-house estimating, estimating services, (seldom any more reliable than 
our in-house estimates) and contractor and subcontractor input.  These three sources 
enable us to catch oversights from any of the three methods. 

 

Qualifications 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 323



MILLER Architectural Corporation 

September 6 2022 West Valley Water District Design Concepts Building “C” Improvements PAGE  5  

Relevant Projects 

 PROJECT NAME 

LOCATION 

  

DESIGN SCOPE 

  

COST 

Rialto Public Works  

Administration Facility 

Rialto, CA 

8,640 SF renovation of fire damage facility.  Improvements in-

cluded removal and replacement of fire damage trusses and 

reroof. Entire building provided with tenant Improvement, pro-

gramming  and space planning for office layout which include 

lobby, reception, admin. offices, conference room, break room 

and ADA restroom improvements.  Exterior improvements to 

include ADA path of travel from public way to building entry and 

ADA accessible parking with path of travel to entrance.  Building 

to be upgraded with Fire sprinkler system.   

In Design 

San Bernardino Valley Municipal 

Water District Headquarters 

San Bernardino, CA 

• 16,000 SF office building  

(masonry construction) 

• 10,000 SF operations building 

$5,850,000 

Southwest Gas Administration & 

Operations Center 

Victorville, CA 

• 20,000 SF Administration Office Building 

• 20,000 SF Operations Center 

$12,000,000 

San Bernardino Municipal Water 

Department 

San Bernardino 

• 7,550 SF Office Tenant Improvement 

• 1,375 SF Addition 

4,200,000 

Riverside Highland Water District 

Corporate HQ 

Grand Terrace, CA  

• 5,600 SF admin office building 

• 3,828 SF operations building 

• 2,852 SF vehicle storage building 

$2,000,000 

East Valley Water District  

Corporate Headquarters 

San Bernardino, CA 

  

• 25,000 SF office building steel frame 

• 8,000 SF operations bldg steel frame, 

• 5,000 SF vehicle maintenance bldg 

• 8,000 SF warehouse (pre-eng) 

$20,000,000 

IVDA Admin Headquarters 

San Bernardino  

International Airport 

San Bernardino, CA  

• 28,000 SF one-story renovation (existing CMU block building) 

to provide council chamber, admin offices, and meeting room 

facilities  LEED Silver 

$3,800,000 

RC Construction 

Administrative  

Offices, Shops and Storage  

• 20,000 SF office (tilt-up concrete) 

• 10,000 SF shops (tilt-up concrete) 

• 80,000 SF storage (pre-engineered metal)  

$6,360,000 

  

Social Security Administration 

Office of Hearing & Appeals 

San Bernardino, CA 

• Programming, space planning and construction documents for 

a 44,700 SF, 2 story office building consisting of administrative 

offices, Hearing & Appeals courtrooms and judges chambers 

$4,025,000 

Chino Hills City Yard 

Chino, CA 

• 13,000 SF renovation for city yard administration and mainte-

nance offices (4.6 acre master plan and design documents) 

$1,200,000 

San Bernardino County  

Superintendent  Schools 

Administration Offices 

San Bernardino, CA 

• Architectural analysis and survey of existing conditions for 

needs assessment and ADA compliance for two existing office 

building to house administrative function for the Superinten-

dent of  Schools.  Tenant Improvement, programming and 

space planning for office layout for two 50,000 SF buildings to 

include lobby, reception, admin. offices, training facility, regis-

tration center, conference rooms, breakroom and ADA im-

provements. 

$5,000,000 

Norco City Hall /Sheriff  

Expansion 

Norco, CA 

  

• 28.000 SF of tenant Improvement, programming and space 

planning for office layout to include expansion of Sheriff Dept, 

front lobby and reception area, admin. offices, conference 

room, break room, locker rooms and ADA restrooms 

$915,000 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 324



MILLER Architectural Corporation 

September 6 2022 West Valley Water District Design Concepts Building “C” Improvements PAGE  6  

Detailed Project Approach and Work Plan 

DETAILED PROJECT APPROACH & WORK PLAN 

 

PHILOSOPHY 

The MAC motto is VISION TO REALITY.  Our goal is to capture your vision and bring it into an affordable, functional, 

and enriching reality.  In order to accomplish this goal we must become part of your team.  We must listen and ask 

questions to fully understand your philosophy, goals, needs, preferences and priorities.  Once our understanding is par-

allel with yours, we apply our skills to accomplish your goals and make this your building. 

 

OVERALL PROJECT GOALS & GENERAL PROCEEDURES 

 The overall purpose of this project approach is to provide every service listed in the Scope of Work section 
of the Request for Proposal. 

 Meet with staff to establish the end purpose of the work 
 Confirm  mission statement, and how this project fits with short and long term goals. 
 Maximize Cooperative Team Effort to understand and attain project goals 
 Understand the philosophy behind the program 
 Shepherd the Process/Push the Schedule 

 The data collection and evaluation process can easily become bogged down by indecision and over analysis.  
We will apply management techniques that assure decisions are made promptly and finally, also to point out the 
consequences of each decision. 

 Aid the Decision Making Process 
 Offer graphically clear data and cost estimate options that:  

 Clearly illustrate the options and individual benefits 
 Chart the benefits and disadvantages of each option 
 Illustrate budget impacts 

 Thoroughly consider all facility use options to meet the facility needs 
 

PROJECT INITIATION/ PREPARATION 

 Establish a line of authority and who is authorized to make decisions for the City 
 The MAC Design Team will meet with the owner’s representative to accomplish the following: 

 Establish communication procedures & line of authority 

 Acquire an understanding of the programmatic requirements. 

 Plot a timeline to ensure that goals are being met 

 Research code and local agency requirements and determine their effect on the project 

 Using our expertise in facility needs assessment review the following: 

 Review current space usage  

 Review current and perceived future space needs based upon current  / future employee needs 

 Review and determine if there are any amenities and building features that need to be incorporated into the pro-

ject. 

 Review compliance with current code including the American’s with Disability Act 

 

RESEARCH/PROGRAMMING 

 MAC and the project team will seek to  fully understand the goals and priorities of the project team and then 
adopt those goals and priorities as our own 

 As a project team refine the program to the satisfaction of the Department. 
 MAC will thoroughly review and become familiar with Department operations, policies, & design goals. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 325



MILLER Architectural Corporation 

September 6 2022 West Valley Water District Design Concepts Building “C” Improvements PAGE  7  

ASSESSMENT- ASSESS CONDITION  OF THE SITE AND PROPOSED FACILITY NEEDS 

 MAC suggests that assessment of existing conditions of site and building be conducted first to provide a 
basis of information to help guide the programming phase. 

 Employ a systematic evaluation system that has been developed from years of experience in evaluating 
facility and site needs and requirements. 

 Assure that all areas listed in the RFP are addressed. 
 Survey checklists to identify and categorize all site required components as follows: 

 Site 
 Accessibility compliance 

 Code compliance 
 Exiting requirements 
 Accessibility (ADA)  
 Allowable occupancy and allowable uses 
 Construction type and the impacts 

 Occupancy 
 Building materials 
 Structural systems 
 Mechanical / Plumbing / Electrical 
 Method of providing fire protection 
 Energy efficiency of the building shell 

 Review existing facility to determine extent of potential improvements.  Based upon preliminary review of the facili-
ty the following items will need to be addressed and will be surveyed with a checklist to identify and categorize the 
building components as follows: 
 Assessment and replacement of mechanical equipment and systems 
 Assessment and replacement of electrical wiring and lighting with Code compliant LED fixtures and controls 
 Review and assessment of wall, ceilings and insulation systems to determine extent of removal and replace-

ment of  components. 
 
EARLY COST ESTIMATE 

 Using accepted industry data base provide rough order of magnitude costs for facility improvements and renova-

tion of the existing fire damaged facility 

 Use cost estimating as a tool to determine the necessary funding required to assure that appropriate funding is in 

place or that scope of work is adjusted to meet the anticipated budget 

 Confirm that Department accepts this early estimate. 

 

SPACE PLANNING 

 Provide all services as required for Architectural Space Program Phase 

 Inventory existing space, furniture and equipment and assess it’s potential for reuse or repurposing. 

 Using established  industry standards, existing data, interviews, space assessments, and future projections and in 

cooperation with Department Leadership develop job description categories, space classifications, and functions. 

 Develop standards for each space classification.  Standards shall include recommended room size, layout, furni-

ture, equipment, preferred lighting, power and communication needs.  

 Develop a proximity matrix for spaces and for exterior access and lighting 

 Provide a projection of future space needs based upon a  20 years long range plan 
 Identify opportunities to efficiently optimize use of current space 
 Based upon needs assessment prepare prioritized recommendations for development of facility 
 Provide a written report listing the needs as described above. 

 Review the report with Department Staff, modify as appropriate 

 Present the Final Architectural Space Program recommendations to the Department.  Once approved by the De-

partment this will serve as the basis for design.  

 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN 
 Provide all services required for Schematic Design Phase  
 Develop design concepts that present the best options in meeting the design objectives 
 Prepare conceptual floor plans consistent with the agreed objectives and priorities.   
 Modify design as directed 
 Obtain Department’s approval of the schematic design  

Detailed Project Approach and Work Plan 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 326



MILLER Architectural Corporation 

September 6 2022 West Valley Water District Design Concepts Building “C” Improvements PAGE  8  

EDUCATION: 
- Cal State Polytech-
nic Bachelor of Archi-
tecture 

 
PROFESSIONAL: 
- Licensed Architect 
State of California 
License #C14635 
- State of Utah  
License #280768-
0301 

State of Arizona  
License #26672 
-State of Wyoming 
License #C-1695 
State of Idaho 
License #AR-2527 
 
 
PROFESSIONAL/
COMMUNITY  
MEMBERSHIP: 
- American Institute of 
Architects 

- Inland California 
Chapter American 
Institute of Architects 

- Interfaith Forum on 
Religion, Art & Archi-
tecture 

- National Council of 
Architectural Regis-
tration Boards 

- Local Planning Com-
missioner 

- National Trust for 
Historic Preservation 

- Boy Scouts of Ameri-
ca former district 
chairman, scout mas-
ter and other posi-
tions 

 
 
LEED EXPERIENCE 
- Riverside County 
Library, LEED Silver 
Certified 

GARY MILLER 

President, CEO, Principal in Charge 

 

Gary Miller, President and CEO of MILLER-
AIP has over 45 years in the architectural 
arena.  His high impact, cost effective de-
signs have set MILLER-AIP apart from other 
architects.  Strict adherence to client priori-
ties and program requirements is a hallmark 
of Mr. Millers approach.  A “hands on” ap-
proach and lengthy experience has resulted 
in satisfied and repeat clients.  He has final responsibility to assure the goals and 
quality standards are achieved.  
 
Relevant Experience: 

• San Bernardino Water Department, San Bernardino, CA: Renovation of 16,000 

SF office building and 10,000 operations building including masonry construction 

• Southwest Gas Corp. Operation Center, Victorville, CA:  40,000 SF Operation 

Center and Warehouse Facility and Masterplan 

• East Valley Water District, San Bernardino, CA:  25,000 SF Administration Facility, 
8,000 SF Operation building, 8,000 SF Warehouse and 5,000 Sf Maintenance Build-

ing.  Designed for LEED silver  

• Joshua Tree Administration Building, Joshua Tree, CA: 29,500 sf  Administration 
building with future 10,000 sf expansion capabilities containing 5 county agencies 

with LEED silver certified.  

• County of Riverside Mental Health Treatment Facility, Indio, CA: Feasibility study 
of current building and recommendations for expansion 

• Arrowhead Orthopedics, Riverside, CA: 3 suites totaling 49,000 SF         

• Riverside Highland Water District, Grand Terrace, CA: 6,500 SF administrative 
office building, 3,828 SF operations building and 2,852 SF vehicle storage building  

• S.B. Co Health Department: 4,800 SF Tenant Improvement Space planning for of-

fice layout to include lobby, reception area, admin. offices, break room and ADA re-
stroom 

• San Bernardino Welfare Services, San Bernardino, CA: Restroom remodel for 

A.D.A.  compliance 

• San Bernardino Health Dept.: 6,435 SF T.I. to include office space for three County 

departments and  restroom remodel 

• Housing Authority of San Bernardino, San Bernardino, CA: 19,500 SF 1 story 
administrative office building,  with social service functions, concrete tilt up 

• San Bernardino County Medical Society, Colton, CA: 24,000 SF Office building, 

major tenant Improvements required a high degree of electronic communications and 
record storage.  

• Immigration & Naturalization Services, San Bernardino, CA: 80,000 SF offices, 

detention areas, sally port, public waiting & info area. Programming, space planning 
& construction documents 

• LEED Silver Certified Riverside County Library – $2,800,000, 7,671 SF one story 
wood frame library and community room.  Minimized staff by making public space 
easily supervised by one central station, constructed of durable finishes to increase 
longevity of the building. 

 

Miller Architectural Corporation Resumes 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 327



MILLER Architectural Corporation 

September 6 2022 West Valley Water District Design Concepts Building “C” Improvements PAGE  9  

Miller Architectural Corporation Resumes 

 

GLEN FOLLETT 

Principal in Charge of Production/Quality 

Control 

Glen Follett has over 40 years of Architectural and 

construction experience.  As a long time member of 

the ICC Glen has become an expert in code 

interpretation.  As director of production Mr. Follett 

has developed document standards and quality 

control protocols that have been adopted by other offices  

throughout the western United States. 
 

Relevant Experience: 

• Riverside Highland Water District, Riverside, CA:  5,600  SF Admin. offices, 3,800 

SF Operations building and 2,900 SF vehicle storage 

• SB County INS Homeland Security, San  Bernardino, CA: 60,357 SF building 
including offices, interview rooms, conference rooms and secured sally port. 

• Remax Office, Valencia, CA:  Two story 24,000 SF building with parking structure. 

• Granum/IRC Office, San Bernardino, CA: Two story 51,700 SF office bldg. 

• Granum/Hardt Street Office, San Bernardino, CA: Two story 39,024 SF office. 

• Feldkamp Office Building, San Bernardino, CA:  Three story 20,532 SF office 

• Mt. West Financial Corp. Headquarters, Redlands, CA:  Two story 45,000 SF  

• Highgrove Library, Riverside, CA:  7,500 SF library w/community room.  LEED Silver 
 

KATHLEEN M. OSWALT 

Senior Project Manager 

Kathleen Oswalt brings 40 years in the field of 
architecture with experience in planning and 
agency coordination, project scheduling, client 
negotiation and interaction, team organization, 
construction document preparation, project 
management, bid phase and Construction 
administration. 

Relevant Experience: 
• Rialto Public Works Administration, Rialto, CA:  10,000 SF Facility Repair and 

Renovation  

• San Bernardino Unified School District Administration, San Bernardino, CA: 

32,670 SF of tenant improvements and renovation for main administration offices 

• Norco City Hall/Sheriff Expansion, Norco, CA:  28,000 sq. ft. tenant improvement 

and exterior upgrades 

• Pro-Craft Construction, Redlands, CA:  20,000 SF Corporate Headquarter Tenant 

Improvement 

• Co. of SB Public Health Dept. FSS/CAH, San Bernardino, CA:  23,235 SF of 

tenant Improvement for main offices and central conferencing center 

• Chino Corporate Yard, Chino, CA:  7,000 sq. ft addition and 15,000 sq. ft. 

renovation 

• Loma Linda Civic Center, Loma Linda, CA:  New Library, Fire Station, Council 

Chambers & Conference rooms    

• Lucerne Valley Library, Lucerne, CA:  Library & Community Center 

 

 

 

PROFESSIONAL/
COMMUNITY  

MEMBERSHIP: 

International Code 
Council 

- American Institute of 
Architects 

- Southern California 
Association of Forest-
ers and Fire Wardens 

EDUCATION: 

Cal State  

San Bernardino,  

Bachelor of Arts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.12.a

Packet Pg. 328


	Agenda Packet
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
	III. DISCUSSION ITEMS
	1. Updates to Engineering, Operations, and Planning Committee
	2. 3348 : Award of Contract for the Construction of the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility
	Printout: 3348 : Award of Contract for the Construction of the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility
	a. EXHIBIT A - PCL Construction Inc. Proposal Revised
	b. Exhibit B - Contract Documents

	3. 3335 : Grant of Easement for the Oliver P. Roemer Upgrade and Expansion Project
	Printout: 3335 : Grant of Easement for the Oliver P. Roemer Upgrade and Expansion Project
	a. Exhibit A - Private Property
	b. Exhibit B - Easement Agreement

	4. 3346 : Bunker Hill Well Site Evaluation Ph2
	Printout: 3346 : Bunker Hill Well Site Evaluation Ph2
	a. Exhibit A - Management Zones Area Map
	b. Exhibit B - Proposal Submitted by Geoscience

	5. 3334 : Water Supply Assessment: Pepper 210 Commerce Center
	Printout: 3334 : Water Supply Assessment: Pepper 210 Commerce Center
	a. Exhibit A - Aerial Map
	b. Exhibit B - Water Supply Assessment for Pepper 210 Commerce Center

	6. 3332 : Water System Infrastructure Install and Conveyance Agreement with Lennar
	Printout: 3332 : Water System Infrastructure Install and Conveyance Agreement with Lennar
	a. Exhibit A - Water System Infrastructure Installation Agreement

	7. 3344 : Cactus Basin 2 Maintenance Activities
	Printout: 3344 : Cactus Basin 2 Maintenance Activities
	a. Exhibit A - Quote

	8. 3345 : Soft Start Motor Drive for 4-1 Pump Station
	Printout: 3345 : Soft Start Motor Drive for 4-1 Pump Station
	a. Exhibit A - Quote
	b. Exhibit B - Sole Source Form

	9. 3336 : Disposable Cartridge Filters for Ion Exchange Treatment Systems
	Printout: 3336 : Disposable Cartridge Filters for Ion Exchange Treatment Systems
	a. Exhibit A - Email Quote

	10. 3339 : Ultraviolet Transmittance Meter for the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Plant
	Printout: 3339 : Ultraviolet Transmittance Meter for the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Plant
	a. Exhibit A - Sole Source Letter
	b. Exhibit B - Quote

	11. 3338 : Post Water-Main Break Street Repairs
	Printout: 3338 : Post Water-Main Break Street Repairs
	a. Exhibit A - Photo
	b. Exhibit B - Quote

	12. 3342 : Architectural Services for Building “C” Improvements
	Printout: 3342 : Architectural Services for Building “C” Improvements
	a. Exhibit A - Miller Architectural Corporation Proposal


	IV. ADJOURN

	Appendix
	3.2 · 3348 : Award of Contract for the Construction of the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility
	3.2.a · EXHIBIT A - PCL Construction Inc. Proposal Revised
	3.2.b · Exhibit B - Contract Documents

	3.3 · 3335 : Grant of Easement for the Oliver P. Roemer Upgrade and Expansion Project
	3.3.a · Exhibit A - Private Property
	3.3.b · Exhibit B - Easement Agreement

	3.4 · 3346 : Bunker Hill Well Site Evaluation Ph2
	3.4.a · Exhibit A - Management Zones Area Map
	3.4.b · Exhibit B - Proposal Submitted by Geoscience

	3.5 · 3334 : Water Supply Assessment: Pepper 210 Commerce Center
	3.5.a · Exhibit A - Aerial Map
	3.5.b · Exhibit B - Water Supply Assessment for Pepper 210 Commerce Center

	3.6 · 3332 : Water System Infrastructure Install and Conveyance Agreement with Lennar
	3.6.a · Exhibit A - Water System Infrastructure Installation Agreement

	3.7 · 3344 : Cactus Basin 2 Maintenance Activities
	3.7.a · Exhibit A - Quote

	3.8 · 3345 : Soft Start Motor Drive for 4-1 Pump Station
	3.8.a · Exhibit A - Quote
	3.8.b · Exhibit B - Sole Source Form

	3.9 · 3336 : Disposable Cartridge Filters for Ion Exchange Treatment Systems
	3.9.a · Exhibit A - Email Quote

	3.10 · 3339 : Ultraviolet Transmittance Meter for the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Plant
	3.10.a · Exhibit A - Sole Source Letter
	3.10.b · Exhibit B - Quote

	3.11 · 3338 : Post Water-Main Break Street Repairs
	3.11.a · Exhibit A - Photo
	3.11.b · Exhibit B - Quote

	3.12 · 3342 : Architectural Services for Building “C” Improvements
	3.12.a · Exhibit A - Miller Architectural Corporation Proposal



